NOTICE OF MEETING

PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 18th July, 2017, 7.00 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, Wood
Green, N22 8LE

Members: Councillors Natan Doron (Chair), Toni Mallett (Vice-Chair), Dhiren Basu,
Barbara Blake, David Beacham, John Bevan, Clive Carter, Jennifer Mann,
Peter Mitchell, James Patterson and Ann Waters

Quorum: 3

1.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending
the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask members of
the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to include the
public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting should be
aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or recorded by
others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating in the
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests)
should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on. By
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings.

The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

PLANNING PROTOCOL

The Planning Committee abides by the Council’s Planning Protocol 2016. A
factsheet covering some of the key points within the protocol as well as some
of the context for Haringey’s planning process is provided alongside the
agenda pack available to the public at each meeting as well as on the
Haringey Planning Committee webpage.

The planning system manages the use and development of land and
buildings. The overall aim of the system is to ensure a balance between
enabling development to take place and conserving and protecting the
environment and local amenities. Planning can also help tackle climate
change and overall seeks to create better public places for people to live,
work and play. It is important that the public understand that the committee
makes planning decisions in this context. These decisions are rarely simple

Haringey



and often involve balancing competing priorities. Councillors and officers
have a duty to ensure that the public are consulted, involved and where
possible, understand the decisions being made.

Neither the number of objectors or supporters nor the extent of their
opposition or support are of themselves material planning considerations.

The Planning Committee is held as a meeting in public and not a public
meeting. The right to speak from the floor is agreed beforehand in
consultation with officers and the Chair. Any interruptions from the public may
mean that the Chamber needs to be cleared.

APOLOGIES
URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.
Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New
items will be dealt with at item 14 below.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is
considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -12)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Planning Sub Committee held on 26
June 2017.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
In accordance with the Sub Committee’s protocol for hearing representations;

when the recommendation is to grant planning permission, two objectors may
be given up to 6 minutes (divided between them) to make representations.



10.

Where the recommendation is to refuse planning permission, the applicant
and supporters will be allowed to address the Committee. For items
considered previously by the Committee and deferred, where the
recommendation is to grant permission, one objector may be given up to 3
minutes to make representations.

CANNON FACTORY AND ASHLEY HOUSE (PAGES 13 - 154)

Proposal: Demolition of the existing buildings at Cannon Factory and Ashley
House and erection of three buildings to provide up to 3,600sgm of
commercial floorspace (GEA) (Class A1/A3/B1/D1), up to 265 residential units
(Class C3), new public realm, landscaped amenity space, car and cycle
parking and all associated works.

Recommendation: GRANT
PRE-APPLICATION BRIEFINGS

The following items are pre-application presentations to the Planning Sub-
Committee and discussion of proposals.

Notwithstanding that this is a formal meeting of the Sub-Committee, no
decision will be taken on the following items and any subsequent applications
will be the subject of a report to a future meeting of the Sub-Committee in
accordance with standard procedures.

The provisions of the Localism Act 2011 specifically provide that a Councillor
should not be regarded as having a closed mind simply because they
previously did or said something that, directly or indirectly, indicated what view
they might take in relation to any particular matter. Pre-application briefings
provide the opportunity for Members to raise queries and identify any
concerns about proposals.

The Members’ Code of Conduct and the Planning Protocol 2016 continue to
apply for pre-application meeting proposals even though Members will not be
exercising the statutory function of determining an application. Members
should nevertheless ensure that they are not seen to pre-determine or close
their mind to any such proposal otherwise they will be precluded from
participating in determining the application or leave any decision in which they
have subsequently participated open to challenge.

HORNSEY TOWN HALL THE BROADWAY N8 9JJ (PAGES 155 - 176)

Proposal: Refurbishment and change of use of the Hornsey Town Hall from
B1 Use Class and sui-generis to a mixed use scheme comprising a hotel (Use
Class C1), food and beverage uses (use classes A3 and A4), community uses
(Use Class D1 and D2) and co-working uses (Use Class B1). Removal of east
wing extension and erection of east wing roof extension. Use of the northwest
roof of Town Hall as a roof terrace. The erection of a 7 storey building and
part 6, part 7 storey building comprising 120 residential units to the rear and



1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

associated car parking at basement level. Change of use of the ground floor
of Broadway Annex to food and beverage use (Use Class A3 and A4) and
change of use of the first and second floors to residential use comprising 16
units. The erection of a residential mews block to the rear of the Broadway
Annex comprising 9 residential units. Alterations and landscaping
improvements to the Town Hall square and open spaces. Demolition of the
Weston Clinic building.

LAND AT BERNARD WORKS, BERNARD ROAD, HERBERT ROAD AND
NORMAN ROAD BERNARD ROAD N15 4NX (PAGES 177 - 186)

Proposal: Demolition of the existing commercial buildings and erection of a
part 1, 3, 4, 6 and 8 storey mixed use development comprising 20,020sqft of
commercial makers and designers space, circa 97 apartments and 16
residential apartments tethered to the commercial space. The commercial
space will also include live music rehearsal as well as recording space.

UPDATE ON MAJOR PROPOSALS (PAGES 187 - 200)

To advise of major proposals in the pipeline including those awaiting the issue
of the decision notice following a committee resolution and subsequent
signature of the section 106 agreement; applications submitted and awaiting
determination; and proposals being discussed at the pre-application stage.

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS (PAGES
201 - 250)

To advise the Planning Committee of decisions on planning applications taken
under delegated powers for the period 5/6/2017-7/7/2017.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any items admitted at item 4 above.
DATE OF NEXT MEETING

31 July 2017.

Felicity Foley, Principal Committee Co-ordinator
Tel — 020 8489 2957

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: felicity.foley@haringey.gov.uk

Bernie Ryan
Assistant Director — Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ

Monday, 10 July 2017



Page 1 Agenda Item 6

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING SUB
COMMITTEE HELD ON MONDAY, 26TH JUNE, 2017, 7pm

PRESENT:

Councillors: Natan Doron (Chair), Toni Mallett (Vice-Chair), Dhiren Basu,
David Beacham, John Bevan, Jennifer Mann, Peter Mitchell,
James Patterson and Ann Waters

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Noted.

PLANNING PROTOCOL

Noted.

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Carter.

URGENT BUSINESS

None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

Councillor Doron wished to make the Committee and Officers aware that he knew the
applicant personally as the applicant had run a business in Councillor Doron’s ward,
however there was no connection in relation to the application.

MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 8 May 2017 be
approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
Noted.
CAR PARK WESTERFIELD ROAD N155LD

The Committee considered a report on the application to grant planning permission for
the temporary use of the site for up to 7 years for the installation of modified shipping

Haringey



Page 2

containers to provide mixed use workspace, retail, bar / food, events, performances
and green spaces.

The Planning Officer gave a short presentation highlighting the key aspects of the
report.

The Committee raised a number of questions and issues, responses to which are
summarised as follows:

- In relation to parking, surveys had been conducted of the car park and the car
park at Brunswick Road, and the maximum use of both was 94 spaces. The
next steps were to look at how the Brunswick Road car park could be better
configured to maximise parking, along with optimising the on street parking
spaces. It was thought that there would be little or no impact on parking. It
was important that the closure of Westerfield Road was managed correctly, and
should be staged in conjunction with the improvements to Brunswick Road car
park.

- The outside seating would be until 2100hrs, and the terraces would be
surrounded by 2m high solid screening to allow privacy for neighbouring
properties.

- The site would be managed by an site management team who would be
responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of the whole site.

Members requested that officers liaise with the Licensing Team with regards to the
hours for the outside seating areas, and to ensure that noise tests were carried out
and steps taken to mitigate any noise nuisance.

The Chair moved that the application be granted and it was
RESOLVED

i)  That planning permission be GRANTED and that the Head of Development
Management is authorised to issue the planning permission and impose
conditions and informatives subject to the signing of a section 106 Legal
Agreement providing for the obligation set out in the Heads of Terms below.

i)  That the section 106 legal agreement referred to in resolution (i) above is to be
completed no later than 10" July 2017 or within such extended time as the Head
of Development Management or the Assistant Director Planning shall in her/his
sole discretion allow; and

iii)  That, following completion of the agreement(s) referred to in resolution (i) within
the time period provided for in resolution (i) above, planning permission be
granted in accordance with the Planning Application subject to the attachment of
the conditions.

Conditions



Page 3

The development hereby permitted shall be operated for a temporary seven year
period only until 25" June 2024 on or before which date the use shall be
discontinued.

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of
unimplemented planning permissions.

The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and specifications: 1099-1001 to 1003 all Rev A, 1099-
1004 to 1006 all Rev. C, 1099-1007 Rev. D and 1099-1008 Rev. B, 1099-1101,
1099-2000, €16037-001.

The following supporting documents also approved: Design and Access
Statement Rev. D; Preliminary Bat Roost Assessment; Environmental Noise
Impact Assessment.

Reason: In order to avoid doubt and in the interests of good planning.

Details of finishing materials to be used for the external surfaces of the
development (including samples where appropriate) shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority before any development is
commenced. Details of the finishing treatments for site fencing/boundary
treatments and amenity screens shall also be provided for further consideration.

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the exact
materials to be used for the proposed development and to assess the suitability
of the samples submitted in the interests of visual amenity consistent with Policy
7.6 of the London Plan 2015, Policy SP11 of the Haringey Local Plan 2013 and
Saved Policy UD3 of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006.

The development hereby approved permits operation of 67 containers for the
purposes within Use Classes Al, A3, A4, A5, B1(a), D1 and D2 only (other than
for servicing purposes). No more than 30 of the 67 containers hereby approved
shall be operated at any one time under Use Class A3,A4 or A5. A minimum of
16 of the 67 containers hereby approved shall be operated at any one time
under Use Class Al. None of the containers on the ground floor of the
development hereby approved shall be operated at any one time under Use
Class A3,A4 or A5. A maximum of four of the containers at ground floor level
shall be operated at any one time under Use Class Bl(a). Containers on the
third floor of the development shall be operated only for purposes within Use
Class B1(a).

Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full
accordance with the plans hereby approved and to safeguard the cumulative
impact of development within the area.

The permitted hours for the development hereby approved shall be restricted as
follows:
| Type of Unit | Use Class | Days | Hours Restriction |




(@)

(b)

Page 4

Food/Drink | A3/A4/A5 Sun — Weds 1000h — 2200h
Thurs 1000h — 2300h
Fri & Sat 1000h — 0000h

Retail Al Sun — Thurs 1000h — 1800h
Fri & Sat 1000h — 2000h

Community/ | D1/D2 All 0800h — 2200h

Well-being

Offices Bl(a) All 24 hour access

In addition, the roof areas of the containers within the development hereby
approved shall, other than as demonstrated on the submitted plans, shall not be
used for seating or any other activities and amplified sound shall not be played
within any of the external areas. The external seating areas approved shall not
be occupied after 2100h.

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

Noise generated for the use of any plant or associated equipment shall not
increase the background noise level (Lago 15mins) when measured (Laeq 15mins)
1 metre external from the nearest residential or noise sensitive premises.

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

The A3, A4 and A5 uses hereby approved shall not be operated in a manner that
requires the installation of associated flues for cookers and/or other cooking
equipment. No other flues, ducting or extractor plant shall be permitted within
this development without prior written consent of the Council.

Reason: The containers hereby approved are unable to facilitate the dispersal of
fumes, but the selling of food with internal seating is beyond the provisions of Al
use class and if otherwise allowed could result in unacceptable smell and smoke
etc.

No construction works shall commence until further details (in consultation with
Thames Water) of the drainage design methodology, implementation,
maintenance and management of the sustainable drainage system have been
submitted & approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall
include:-

Methodology and reasoning for SuDS flows and volumes pro-forma
determination enabling full assessment that allowable thresholds have been
achieved and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

Management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development,
managed by a management company or other arrangements to secure the
operation of the sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.

Reason: In accordance with Policy SP5 of the Local Plan 2013 and emerging
policies DM24 and DM25 of the Development Management Policies DPD.



10.

11.

12.

Page 5

Sustainability measures as set out in Stack N15 - Design and Access Statement
(24/02/2017) by Haverstock shall be implemented. The development shall then
be constructed in strict accordance of the details so approved, and shall be
maintained as such thereafter. Evidence that these measures have been
delivered shall be submitted to the local authority at least 6 months after
completion on site for approval. In the event that the development fails to deliver
the measures in the approved document, a full schedule and costings of
remedial works required to achieve this rating shall be submitted for our written
approval with 2 months of the submission of the post construction certificate.
Thereafter the schedule of remedial works must be implemented on site within 3
months of the local authority’s approval of the schedule, or the full costs and
management fees given to the Council for offsite remedial actions.

Reason: In the interest of addressing climate change and to secure sustainable
development in accordance with London Plan (2016) polices 5.1, 5.2, 5.3 and
5.9 and policy SP:04 of the Local Plan.

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until detailed design
and method statements (in consultation with London Underground), have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority which:

¢ Provide details on the installation and lifting of shipping containers;

e Accommodate the location of the existing London Underground structures;

¢ Provide details on the use of tall plant;

e 3 metres clearance is required between the containers and adjacent London
Underground property.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not impact on existing London
Underground transport infrastructure, in accordance with London Plan 2015 and
‘Land for Industry and Transport’ Supplementary Planning Guidance 2012

Construction Management Plan The applicant will be required to submit a
Construction Management Plan (CMP) and Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for
the local authority’s approval prior to construction work commencing on site. The
Plans should provide details on how construction work (including any demaolition)
would be undertaken in a manner that disruption to traffic and pedestrians on
Westerfield Road, West Green Road, Seven Sisters Road and Suffield Road and
the surrounding residential roads is minimised. It is also requested that
construction vehicle movements should be carefully planned and co-ordinated to
avoid the AM and PM peak periods.

Reason: To reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of traffic
on the transportation network.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved the type of
cycle parking to be provided shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, in discussion with Transport for London. A minimum
5% of cycle spaces should be suitable for enlarged cycles and the type of stand
proposed must be clarified. The recommendations and requirements of the
London Cycle Design Standards document should be followed.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 6

Reason: In accordance with Policy 6.3 of the London Plan.

The development hereby approved shall be designed to achieve Secured by
Design accreditation in consultation with the Metropolitan Police.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development meets the Police standards
for the physical protection of the building and its occupants, and also to comply
with Haringey Local Plan 2013 Policy SP11.

No external illumination of the external elevations to the buildings shall take
place other than in accordance with a detailed building lighting scheme which
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved. The lighting
scheme shall require ground floor unit lighting to be switched off entirely after
10pm.

Reason: To ensure that any external lighting of the building has regard to the
visual amenity of the area including the character and appearance of the
conservation area, the amenities of surrounding properties and the safety of
users of the surrounding highway network.

Prior to first occupation of the development, the applicant will be required to
submit a Delivery and Servicing Plan (DSP) for the local authority’s written
approval. The DSP must also include a waste management plan which includes
details of how refuse is to be collected from the site. The plan must also include
details of how deliveries will be facilitated to ensure that servicing does not
impact on the flow of traffic on the local highways network.

All vehicular deliveries to the site shall be restricted Monday to Saturday
between 08.00 — 17.00hrs, with no deliveries on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Waste collections from the site shall be restricted between 7am and 11am, with
no collections on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: To reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of traffic
on the transportation

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a Risk
Assessment and Method Statement for lifting and placing containers, and all
other activity adjacent to Network Rail land, shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Network Rail.

Reason: In order to ensure the safe operation of the railway and the protection of
Network Rail's adjoining land.

No development shall take place on site until full details of both hard and soft
landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority and these works shall thereafter be carried out as approved.
These details shall include: proposed finished levels or contours; means of
enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian access and



oo

18.

Page 7

circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures (eg.
furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting etc.);
proposed and existing functional services above and below ground (eg. drainage
power, communications cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes,
supports etc.); retained historic landscape features and proposals for restoration,
where relevant.

Soft landscape works shall include planting plans; written specifications
(including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass
establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate; implementation programme]. The soft
landscaping scheme shall include detailed drawings of:
those existing trees to be retained.
those existing trees to be removed.
those existing trees which will require thinning, pruning, pollarding or lopping as a
result of this consent. All such work to be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Those new trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule of species
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of the development.

Such an approved scheme of planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out and implemented in strict
accordance with the approved details in the first planting and seeding season
following the occupation of the building or the completion of development
(whichever is sooner). Any trees or plants, either existing or proposed, which,
within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are
removed, become damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting
season with a similar size and species. The landscaping scheme, once
implemented, is to be retained thereafter.

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to assess the acceptability of
any landscaping scheme in relation to the site itself, thereby ensuring a
satisfactory setting for the proposed development in the interests of the visual
amenity of the area consistent with Policy 7.21 of the London Local Plan 2011,
Policy SP11 of the Haringey Local Plan 2013 and Policy UD3 of the Haringey
Unitary Development Plan 2006.

Prior to the commencement of works on site a meeting must be specified and
attended by all interested parties, (e.g. Site manager, Consultant Arboriculturist,
Council Arboriculturist and Contractors) to confirm all the protection measures to
be installed for trees and discuss any construction works that may impact on the
trees. Robust protective fencing / ground protection must be installed under the
supervision of the Consultant Arboriculturist, prior to the commencement of
demolition and retained until the completion of construction activities. The tree
protective measures must be inspected or approved by the Council
Arboriculturist, prior to the commencement of demolition. The tree protective
measures must be periodically checked the Consultant Arboriculturist and
reports made available to the Council Arboriculturist. All construction works



19.

20.

21.

Page 8

within root protection areas (RPA) or that may impact on them, must be carried
out under the supervision of the Consultant Arboriculturist.

Reason: In order to ensure the safety and well being of the trees on the site
during constructional works that are to remain after building works are completed
consistent with Policy 7.21 of the London Plan 2011, Policy SP11 of the
Haringey Local Plan and Saved Policy UD3 of the Haringey Unitary
Development Plan 2006.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a survey of the
site for Japanese knotweed shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority, and all relevant measures taken to fully remove and prevent
further ingress of Japanese knotweed in the future.

Reason: In order to protect the integrity of the on-site soft landscaping and public
amenity.

The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be carried
out before 0800 hours or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800
hours or after 1300 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of
neighbouring occupiers of their properties consistent with Saved Policy UD3 of
the Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006.

No roller shutters other than of the brick grille type shall be installed on the
premises. All units at ground floor level shall be fitted with either a toughened
glass frontage (with glazing a minimum of 8.6mm thickness) or a perforated grille
type shutter that is integral to the internal frame of the container. Details of any
proposed non-perforated grille shutter must be agreed by the Local Planning
Authority in advance of installation. Details shall include drawings of a suitable
scale; and no non-perforated shutter shall be installed other than in accordance
with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure that the premises maintain an appropriate contribution to the
street scene, in order to safeguard visual interest, an attractive shopping
environment, and on-street amenity generally.

Informatives:

INFORMATIVE : In dealing with this application, Haringey Council has implemented
the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment
No.2) Order 2012 to foster the delivery of sustainable development in a positive and
proactive manner.

INFORMATIVE : Party Wall Act: The applicant's attention is drawn to the Party Wall



Page 9

Act 1996 which sets out requirements for notice to be given to relevant adjoining
owners of intended works on a shared wall, on a boundary or if excavations are to be
carried out near a neighbouring building.

INFORMATIVE : The new development will require numbering. The applicant should
contact the Local Land Charges at least six weeks before the development is
occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address.

INFORMATIVE : With regards to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of a
developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water course, or a suitable
sewer. In respect of surface water, it is recommended that the applicant should
ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network
through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a combined public
sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole
nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of groundwater.
Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from
Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845
850 2777.

INFORMATIVE: The development hereby approved shall be completed in
accordance with the associated Section 106 agreement.

Section 106 Heads of Terms:

1) The applicant will be required to enter into a S.106 agreement to fund the
following measures in order to mitigate the impact of closing the Westerfield
Road car park:

a. Improvements to the Brunswick Road car park including: resurfacing and
reconfiguration of the car park, provision of two electric vehicle parking spaces,
and lighting and CCTV;

b. Provide advance closure signage of the existing car park, and implementation of
direction signage on West Green Road to the improved Brunswick Road car
park;

c. Provide a temporary strategy to deal with replacement of the existing disability
car parking spaces during the construction period;

d. The applicant will be required to pay for an Inventory Study to assess capacity
for local residents’ bays as it may be best to implement shared-use bays rather
than converting single and double yellow lines into additional car parking bays;

e. Fund a Traffic Management Order, signing and lining to accommodate on-street
displacement parking from Westerfield Road car park;

f. Fund additional works to Brunswick Road car park including: measures to
address anti social behaviour, a press notice advertisement, temporary signage
and stakeholder engagement.

The total cost of the works in relation to the closure of the car parking and
implementing measures to address the displaced traffic has been estimated at:



2)

3)

4)

Page 10

£195,588 (one hundred and ninety five thousand five hundred and eighty eight
pounds).

Four car parking spaces shall be provided to the front of the site, adjacent to
Westerfield Road, and these shall be allocated for wheelchair-accessible parking
spaces only (although temporary usage is also permitted for short term waste
collection and/or delivery activities as necessary).

The applicant will be required to fund traffic marshals to assist in directing users
to Brunswick Road car park during the first 2 weeks of the closure of Westerfield
Road car park and details of an appropriate car park closure management
strategy must be submitted to the Council for approval 3 months before the
closure of the Westerfield Road car park.

A commercial travel plan must be secured. The following measures must be
included in order to maximise the use of public transport:

The developer must appoint a travel plan co-ordinator, working in collaboration
with the Council’s Facility Management Team, to monitor the travel plan
initiatives annually;

Provision of welcome induction packs containing public transport and
cycling/walking information like available bus/rail/tube services, map and time-
tables to all new businesses.

The applicants are required to pay a sum of £3,000 (three thousand pounds) for
monitoring of the travel plan initiatives.

That, in the absence of the agreement referred to in resolution (i) above being
completed within the time period provided for in resolution (ii) above, the
planning permission be refused for the following reasons:

The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement to mitigate the
loss of off-street parking from the removal of the Westerfield Road car park, to
improve the layout of the existing Brunswick Road car park, or to provide
additional on-street parking spaces in the local area, would significantly
exacerbate pressure for on-street parking spaces in surrounding streets,
prejudicing the free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety along the
neighbouring highway. As such, the proposal would be detrimental to the
amenity of local residents. As such the proposal is considered contrary to the
requirements of Policy 6.13 of the London Plan 2016, and Saved Policies UDS3,
HSG11 and M10 of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006.

That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Development Management to
make any alterations, additions or deletions to the recommended heads of terms
and/or recommended conditions as set out in this report and to further delegate
this power provided this authority shall be exercised in consultation with the
Chairman (or in their absence the Vice-Chairman) of the Sub-Committee.



Page 11

62. UPDATE ON MAJOR PROPOSALS
RESVOLVED that the report be noted.

63. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

64. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

18 July 2017

CHAIR: Councillor Natan Doron



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda Item 8

Planning Sub Committee

REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE
1. APPLICATION DETAILS

Application: HGY/2016/4165 Ward: Tottenham Hale
Address: Cannon Factory and Ashley House

Proposal: Demolition of the existing buildings at Cannon Factory and Ashley House
and erection of three buildings to provide up to 3,600sgm of commercial floorspace
(GEA) (Class A1/A3/B1/D1), up to 265 residential units (Class C3), new public realm,
landscaped amenity space, car and cycle parking and all associated works.

Applicant: Notting Hill Housing Trust

Ownership: Private

Case Officer Contact: James Farrar/Robbie McNaugher

Site Visit Date: 19/04/17

Date received: 20 December 2017 Last Amended: 21 April 2017

Plans and Drawing Number: Site Location 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-0001 Rev A,
Planning Application Boundary 1824-JMP-02-00-DR-A-0002 Rev C; Site Location
(proposed buildings shown) 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-0003 Rev C; Demolition Plan
1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-1001; Existing Ground Levels 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-1002
Rev A; Building Footprints — Maximum Parameters (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-
XX-DR-A-0004 Rev E; Building Heights — Maximum Parameters (existing context)
1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-0005 Rev G; Access Parameters (existing context) 1824-
JMP-02-XX-DR-A-0006 Rev E; Land Use Parameters — Ground Floor (existing
context) 1824-JMP-02-00-DR-A-0007 Rev E; Land Use Parameters — First Floor
(existing context) 1824-JMP-02-01-DR-A-0008 Rev D; Land Use Parameters — Typical
Upper Floor (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-02-DR-A-0009 Rev E; Proposed Ground
and Floor Levels (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-00-DR-A-0017 Rev C; Use Frontage
Ground Floor (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-00-DR-A-0018 Rev A; Landscape
Parameters Ground Level (showing existing context across the Ashley Road South
Masterplan) 449-101 Rev 02; Landscape Parameters Upper/Roof Level (showing
existing context across the Ashley Road South Masterplan) 449-103 Rev 02.

Documents: Planning Statement; prepared by Lichfields; Design and Access
Statement incorporating Landscape Strategy (Amended April 2017), Design Guidelines
(Amended April 2017) & Introduction to the Ashley Road South Masterplan prepared



Page 14

by John McAslan + Partners; Equalities Impact Assessment prepared by Lichfields;
Health Impact Assessment prepared by Lichfields; Arboricultural Impact Assessment
and Method Statement (Amended April 2017) prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff;
Statement of Community Involvement, prepared by Belgrave Communications;
Framework Travel Plan prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff; Development
Specification (Amended April 2017); Sustainable Design and Energy Statement
prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff (Amended April 2017); Affordable Housing &
Viability Statement prepared by Jones Lang LaSalle; Construction Logistics Plan
prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff; Delivery and Servicing Plan prepared by WSP
Parsons Brinckerhoff; PERS Audit prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff.

Supplementary Environmental Statement (April 2017) incorporating:

Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment;
Transport;

Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing;
Socio-Economic Effects;

Built Heritage

Environmental Wind;

Air Quality;

Noise and Vibration;

Ground Conditions and Contamination Impact;
Water Resources and Flood Risk;

Ecology and Nature Conservation;
Cumulative Assessment.

1.1  This application is before Planning Sub-Committee because it is major
development.

1.2  The application has been referred to the Mayor of London as it is development
which comprises or includes the erection of a building that is more than 30
metres high and is outside the City of London.

1.3 SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

e Tottenham Hale has been identified as having the capacity for a significant
number of new homes, with numerous sites that are suitable for new
residential-led mixed-use development. The application forms an important
first step in the regeneration of Ashley Road South in support of emerging
allocation TH6.

e The development will provide a significant number of new homes that will
help to meet the Borough and London’s wider housing needs in the future.
The scale of development is supported by its location within the Upper Lee
Valley Opportunity Area; the Tottenham Area Action Plan and the
Tottenham Housing Zone all of which envisage transformational change.



Page 15

The minimum overall affordable housing proposal of 50% will make a
significant contribution to meeting the portfolio approach to the management
of affordable housing within the Tottenham Hale Housing Zone, and
contributing to a mixed and balanced new residential neighbourhood. The
overall tenure balance, which includes a significant number of lower-cost
shared ownership units, is acceptable.

The height of the north eastern tower element of the building at 16 stories,
will sit comfortably within the context of a clear block structure, announcing
the new District Centre on approach from the north along Watermead Way.
This is supported in the context of the step change in the urban context
envisaged within the emerging Tottenham Hale District Centre.

Taking into account the wider approach to employment re-provision across
the Ashley Road South Masterplan, the overall balance of employment
floorspace is considered to be acceptable. The overall balance of retail, food
& drink and commercial floorspace, subject to the controls recommended in
this report, is likely to contribute to a genuinely mixed use neighbourhood.

The masterplan has undergone rigorous testing since 2015 evolving with
the potential to form a well considered new neighbourhood. The form, scale
and massing of the proposed mansion blocks, of which this application is
part, is appropriate to the site’s changing urban context. The quality of the
scheme is considered to be high.

The density of the development equates to a maximum of 265 units per
hectare if the scheme’s maximum parameters are built out. This would be
slightly above the density range within the London Plan’s indicative range
for ‘urban’ sites with a PTAL of 5-6a but would optimise the site’s potential
and is considered acceptable given its good quality design.

The site is highly accessible, being located close to Tottenham Hale Station.
The site is also adjacent to a significant open space in the form of Down
Lane Park with Lee Valley Regional Park in close proximity. The mansion
block structure presents the opportunity for a good housing mix and balance
of residential units having regard to local need and site specific
characteristics contributing to the creation of a mixed and balanced
community.

The scheme will make a significant new contribution to the quality of the
public realm, facilitating the enhancement of Ashley Road as a new central
spine and delivering a significant new east-west route from Down Lane Park
towards the planned College (Ashley Link) all of which weigh heavily in
favour of the scheme.



Page 16

Subject to remodelling of entrances and detailed landscaping, the
development will relate positively to the adjacent Down Lane Park, providing
new and improved pedestrian & cycle links. Building 2 in particular, holds
the potential to be a high quality pavilion building at the interface between
the park and a new neighbourhood.

The overall impact on social and community infrastructure is acceptable,
taking into account existing provision to support new development. Given
the importance of social infrastructure in areas of major new development
most play and open space will be provided on-site, which is welcome, but
additional mitigation measures are needed to remodel access to Down Lane
Park, secured via s.106 agreement.

The proposal will deliver a compliant quantum of wheelchair housing and all
of the units will receive an acceptable amount of daylight and sunlight when
assessed against relevant BRE criteria. Subject to mitigation at the
condition stage, the noise, vibration and air quality impacts to future
occupiers of the units are acceptable.

No additional mitigation measures in relation to environmental wind are
considered necessary at this stage. Planning conditions are recommended
to take wind conditions into consideration when designing sitting areas and
building entrances at the detailed design stage. Further testing is suggested
to test the effectiveness of the measures mentioned above and verify that
pedestrians are sheltered from prevailing winds, particularly in the north-
eastern corner of the site.

Following a request from officers, the applicant has provided additional
information in respect of fire safety in the form of a question and answer
sheet. No details are being approved at this outline stage and all details
and materials will be the subject of reserved matters in addition to
requirements relating to Building Regulations. The commitments that the
applicant has made are set out in the body of the report.

The transportation impacts of the scheme are acceptable. The scheme will

not generate a significant increase in traffic and a car free scheme, save for
accessible spaces, is acceptable. The overall provision of cycle storage will
be revisited at detailed stage as will the re-provision of existing bus stops on
Ashley Road but is considered acceptable.

Subject to a S106 obligation to provide an updated energy strategy and
agree a carbon offset payment if required, the design of the scheme is

considered to be sustainable. The applicant has committed to a future

district energy connection. The issues of flood risk, drainage, land



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Page 17

contamination and waste storage are able to be addressed by the
imposition of conditions.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission and that the Head
of Development Management is authorised to issue the planning permission and
impose conditions and informatives subject to referral to the Mayor of London
and the signing of a section 106 and Legal Agreement providing for the
obligations set out in the Heads of Terms below.

That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Development Management
or the Assistant Director Planning to make any alterations, additions or deletions
to the recommended heads of terms and/or recommended conditions as set out
in this report and to further delegate this power provided this authority shall be
exercised in consultation with the Chairman (or in their absence the Vice-
Chairman) of the Sub-Committee.

That the section 106 legal agreement referred to in resolution (2.1) above is to
be completed no later than 18 January 2018 or within such extended time as the
Head of Development Management or the Assistant Director Planning shall in
her/his sole discretion allow; and

That, following completion of the agreement(s) referred to in resolution (2.1)
within the time period provided for in resolution (2.2) above, planning
permission is granted in accordance with the Planning Application subject to the
attachment of the conditions.

Conditions — Summary (the full text of recommended conditions is contained
in Section 9 of this report)

1. Reserved Matter Approval (Scale, Appearance, Layout, Access,

Landscaping)

PRIOR TO RESERVED MATTERS - Affordable Housing Strategy

PRIOR TO RESERVED MATTERS - Phasing strategy & details

COMPLIANCE - Time limits for Reserved Matters

COMPLIANCE - Reserved Matters Specification (List of documentation

to accompany Reserved Matters Applications)

COMPLIANCE - Development in Accordance with Approved Drawings

and Documents

7. COMPLIANCE - Environmental Statement

8. COMPLIANCE - Environmental Statement: Reserved Matters
Applications

9. COMPLIANCE - Quantum of Development

10. COMPLIANCE - LAND USE (Community)

11.COMPLIANCE - LAND USE (Retalil)

abrwn

o



Page 18

12. COMPLIANCE - Development in Conformity with Energy Statement

13.COMPLIANCE - Land Contamination — Part C

14. COMPLIANCE - Landscaping — Replacement of Trees and Plants (LBH
Development Management)

15. COMPLIANCE - NRMM Inventory and Documentation Availability

16. COMPLIANCE — Accessibility

17.COMPLIANCE - Compliance with London Housing Design Standards

18. COMPLIANCE - Individual Satellite dishes or television antennas
precluded

19.PRE COMMENCMENT - Confirmation of Site Levels

20.PRE COMMENCEMENT Drainage Strategy (Thames Water)

21.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Archaeology (Written Scheme of
Investigation)

22.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Tree protection meeting (pre-commencement)

23.PRE-COMMENCEMENT — Water supply (Thames Water)

24.PRE- COMMENCEMENT - Construction Environmental Management
Plan

25.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Land Contamination — Part A and B

26.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Details of AQDMP (Dust)

27.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Waste Management Scheme

28.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Updated Construction Logistics Plan

29.PRE COMMENCEMENT - Piling method statement (Thames Water)

30.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Biodiversity Enhancement Plan

31.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Sustainable Urban Drainage

32.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Energy Strategy

33.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS Sustainability Standards — Non-
residential

34.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - External Solar Shading and
Passive Ventilation Study

35.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Phasing strategy & details

36.PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Green and Brown Roof

37.PRIOR TO INSTALLATION - Ultra Low NOx Boilers - Product
Specification and Dry NOx Emissions Details (LBH Environmental
Services and Community Safety)

38.PRIOR TO SUPERSTRUCTURE WORKS - Cycle Parking Details

39.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Estate Management & Maintenance Plan

40.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Play Space

41.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Secured by Design

42.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Details Roof Top PV Panels

43.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION- Lighting strategy

44.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Car Parking Management Plan

45.PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Details of Central Dish/Receiving System

Informatives — Summary (the full text of recommended informatives is
contained in Section 9 of this report)
1) Working with the Applicant (LBH Development Management)



Page 19

2)  Community Infrastructure Levy (LBH Development Management)

3) Hours of Construction Work (LBH Development Management)

4) Party Wall Act (LBH Development Management)

5) Requirement for Groundwater Risk Management Permit (Thames Water)

6) Attenuation of Storm Flows. Combined Sewer drain to nearest manhole.
Connection for removal of ground water precluded. Approval required for
discharge to public sewer. (Thames Water)

7) Public Sewer Crossing — Approval required for building, extension or
underpinning within 3 metres. (Thames Water).

8) Water Main Crossing Diversion (Thames Water)

9) Minimum Pressure and Flow Rate from Pipes (Thames Water)

10) Responsibility to Dispose of Commercial Waste (LBH Neighbourhood
Action Team)

11) Asbestos Survey (LBH Environmental Services and Community Safety)

12) New Development Naming (LBH Transportation)

13) Environment Agency — Additional Advice (Environment Agency)

14) Archaeology

15) Asbestos Survey (LBH Environmental Services and Community Safety)

16) Highways Licenses

Section 106 Heads of Terms:

Affordable Housing

¢ No less than 50% affordable units (71% Intermediate / 29% Affordable Rented
Units). All affordable rented units in the development will be nominated units
with targeted rents in line with Haringey Housing Strategy.

e Viability review mechanism to be triggered if an agreed level of progress on
implementation is not made within two years of permission being granted i.e. if
no reserved matter application has been submitted within 2 years

e Occupation restriction (market housing) until affordable units delivered.

e Of the intermediate units, minimum 34% lower-cost shared ownership within
Band 2 aimed at those households earning less than £40,000 a year.

e All shared ownership units to remain affordable until and unless affordable
occupier’s staircase to 100% outright ownership.

e Time Limited marketing of the Low Cost Shared Ownership homes, for a period
of up to three months. Time limited marketing of Shared Ownership, for a period
of up to three months to persons who live or are employed in Haringey.

e Recycling of the GLA grant funding within the Haringey Local Authority area,
unless no developments readily available within the borough.

Transport
e To submit Design details of Ashley Road, public realm and pedestrian/cycle

improvements, prior to commencement (Area 18 of DCF Drawing Numbers ref:
257 - 01 -170511 Tottenham Hale DCF: Proposed Public Realm with Revised
Highways Layout and 257 - 02 -170511 Tottenham Hale DCF: Streets & Spaces
and Green and Open Space Project Delivery).

¢ Aresidential and site-wide framework commercial travel plan, including:



Page 20

Travel plan co-ordinator to monitor the travel plan initiatives

Provision of welcome induction packs containing public transport and
cycling/walking information

Three years’ car club membership for each residential unit including £50 annual
credit for those who take up or equivalent assistance in buying a bike
Contribution to the LPA in the amount of £3,000 (per each travel plan
submitted), for reviewing and providing recommendations to the submitted TP,
until such time when targets have been achieved.

Car free development, occupiers of the residential units are not eligible, for on-
street car parking permits.

Residents of the new wheelchair accessible dwellings will be granted parking
permits for the new wheelchair accessible parking spaces, which shall be
individually allocated per relevant dwelling in accordance with priority criteria.
Details to be agreed through the car parking management plan.

CPZ review of the area in the vicinity, before and after 50%, and 90%, of
occupation including a contribution towards costs associated with the revision of
the existing CPZ across the impact area arising from the development (to be
agreed).

Commercial Strateqy
Provision to review and update the commercial strategy to take into account
wider regeneration and commercial proposals.

Public Realm Delivery and Management

Public access to footpaths, cycleways and open spaces.

Maintain development estate public realm areas in accordance with standards
to be agreed.

Meanwhile conditions & landscaping of sites to enhance and integrate new
development, during phased development.

Complete works to Ashley East-West Link, including any interim landscaping
proposals, prior to occupation of Buildings 2 and 2A

Complete works to Burdock Road, including any interim landscaping proposals
and wind mitigation measures, prior to occupation of works to Building 3.

Final design of Ashley Road prior to commencement and phasing plan for
implementation.

Securing Design Quality

The existing architects or other such architects as approved in writing by the
Local Authority

Work in partnership to achieve coherent design of Buildings 2a & la as one
urban block together with Buildings 3 & 4 as another urban block.

Skills and training

Local Labour and Training During Construction (obligation to seek targeted
approach to on-site labour by way of an employment skills plan to ensure not
less than 20% of those employed are local residents).




Page 21

End User Skills Training (£96,000 Contribution) Haringey Employment and
Recruitment Partnership’s activities to offer employability and vocational skills
training targeted at Haringey residents for the purpose of facilitating their access
to end use employment opportunities. Payable upon implementation of the
development.

Open Space
Leisure facilities and landscaping measures as a consequence of remodelling

residential access to Down Lane Park including contribution of £895,000.
Payable upon implementation of the development.

Energy
To use best endeavours to connect to the Tottenham Hale District Energy

Network (DEN) including delivery of pipework to highway edge. The Energy
Strategy will demonstrate that the development either connects to the DEN
upon completion of the building work if the DEN is present, or the development
is designed to connect to the DEN once the DEN is constructed. This will be set
out through two options. District Energy Option 1 will set out how the scheme
is designed and will be delivered to connect to the DEN and ensure heat and
how water supply for first occupiers. If it is accepted by the LPA that the
development cannot connect to the DEN then the applicant must deliver District
Energy Option 2. District Energy Option 2 will demonstrate how the
development will be designed to connect to the DEN once access to the heat
network is available.

Provision to work with the Council to facilitate access to the Ashley Link in order
for the Council to deliver the DEN.

If no DEN has been delivered within Tottenham Hale within a 5 years from
planning approval, then the applicant will have the freedom to replace the
boilers serving the development with CHP or other similar technologies.

Any shortfall in carbon offsetting required to ensure policy compliance (as set
out in London Plan Policy 5.2) will be offset at £1,800 per tonne.

Construction

Obligation to register with the Considerate Constructor scheme during the
construction and demolition phase of the development

The applicant will work with developers in the Tottenham Hale area to directly
procure a coordinator to monitor compliance, reporting and review of
construction activity, including the provision of timely information and to act as a
shared resource or pay a maximum sum each year towards the Council’s direct
appointment of a shared resource [not agreed with the applicant].

Monitoring
Environmental Monitoring Fee — the applicant will pay a maximum sum each

year towards environmental monitoring of the construction of the development
as described in the Environmental Statement.



Page 22

2.5 In the event that members choose to make a decision contrary to officers’
recommendation members will need to state their reasons.

2.6 That, in the absence of the agreement referred to in resolution (2.1) above being
completed within the time period provided for in resolution (2.2) above, the
planning permission be refused for the following reasons:

In the absence of a legal agreement securing 1) the provision of on-site
affordable housing 2) marketing of the scheme to local residents on targeted
incomes, and 3) the recycling of grant funding, the scheme would fail to
foster mixed and balanced neighbourhoods where people choose to live,
and which meet the housing aspirations of Haringey’s residents. The
scheme would not make full use of Haringey’s capacity for housing to meet
targeted delivery of required homes. As such, the proposal is contrary to
London Plan Policies 3.9, 3.11 and 3.12, Strategic Policy SP2, and emerging
DPD Policies DM 11 and DM 13, and emerging Policies AAP3 and TH4.

In the absence of a legal agreement securing local employment, the
proposal would fail to facilitate training and employment opportunities for the
local population. The scheme would fail to contribute to the social
regeneration of the area. As such the proposal is contrary to Local Plan
Policies SP8 and SP9, emerging Policy DM48 and emerging Policy AAP4.

In the absence of legal agreement securing 1) residential and commercial
Travel Plans, and Traffic Management Order (TMO) amendments to
preclude the issue of parking permits, and 2) financial contributions toward
cycle parking, travel plan monitoring, and car club provision, the proposal
would have an unacceptable impact on the safe operation of the highway
network, and give rise to overspill parking impacts and unsustainable modes
of travel. As such, the proposal would be contrary to London Plan policies
6.9, 6.11 and 6.13. Spatial Policy SP7, Saved UDP Policy UD3 and
emerging Policy DM31 and emerging Policy AAP7.

In the absence of a legal agreement securing 1) public realm enhancements
2) soft landscaping improvements to local green spaces, the proposal would
give rise to an illegible public realm, poorly detailed building elevations and
poor quality residential access to local green spaces. As such, the proposal
would be contrary to London Plan policies 7.1, 7.4, 7.6, 7.18, Strategic
Policies SP11 and SP13 and emerging Policies DM1, DM3, DM19 and
DM20, and emerging Policies AAP6, AAP9, TH1 and TH4.

In the absence of a legal agreement securing an Energy Plan to address a
carbon offset payment requirement and demonstrate a connection to a
future district energy network, the proposal would fail to mitigate the impacts
of climate change. As such, the proposal would be unsustainable and



Page 23

therefore contrary to London Plan Policy 5.2 and Strategic Policy SP4, and
emerging DPD Policies DM 21, DM22 and emerging Policy TH4.

2.7 Inthe event that the Planning Application is refused for the reasons set out in
resolution (2.5) above, the Head of Development Management (in consultation
with the Chair of Planning sub-committee) is hereby authorised to approve any
further application for planning permission which duplicates the Planning
Application provided that:

i.  There has not been any material change in circumstances in the relevant
planning considerations, and

ii.  The further application for planning permission is submitted to and approved
by the Assistant Director within a period of not more than 12 months from
the date of the said refusal, and

iii.  The relevant parties shall have previously entered into the agreement
contemplated in resolution (1) above to secure the obligations specified
therein.



Page 24

CONTENTS

3.0 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AND SITE LOCATION DETAILS

3.1 Proposed Development

3.2 Site and Surroundings

3.3 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History

4.0 CONSULATION RESPONSE

5.0 LOCAL REPRESENTATIONS

6.0 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Principle of the Development - Policy Background

6.2 Employment, retail and land use mix

6.3 Tall buildings, view management & townscape

6.4 Housing and density

6.5 Masterplanning, urban design & public realm

6.6 Impact on Heritage Assets

6.7 Quality of Residential Accommodation

6.8 Social and community infrastructure

6.9 Development Impact to Adjoining Occupiers

6.10 Transportation and Parking

6.11 Flood Risk and Drainage

6.12 Energy and Sustainability

6.13 Waste and Recycling

6.14 Land Contamination

6.15 Equalities Impacts

6.16 Health Impacts

6.17 Fire Safety

6.18 Summary and Conclusion — Material Planning Considerations

7.0 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

9.0 PLANNING CONDITIONS & INFORMATIVES

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Consultation Responses — Adjoining Occupiers and Internal and
External Consultees

Appendix 2 Development Management Forum Comments

Appendix 3 GLA Stage 1 Report

Appendix 3 Planning conditions

Appendix 4 Plans and images

Appendix 5

Fire Safety — additional information



Page 25

3. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AND LOCATION DETAILS

3.1. Proposed development
3.1.1. This is an outline planning application with all matters reserved for the
demolition of the existing buildings at Cannon Factory and Ashley House and
erection of three buildings to provide up to 3,600sgm of commercial floorspace
(GEA) (Class A1/A3/B1/D1), up to 265 residential units (Class C3), new public
realm, landscape amenity space, car and cycle parking all associated works.
3.1.2. A minimum and maximum quantum of development is being applied for across
the Cannon Factory and Ashley Road site. The land use quantum’s applied for
are specific to each plot and are as follows:
Maximum residential Up to 265
units
Proposed Residential | Building 2/2A — 97 units
Building 3 — 168 units
Affordable Housing 50% affordable housing provision with a tenure
split of 70% intermediate and 30% affordable
rent.
Maximum non- Up to 3,600sgm (Use Classes Al, A3, B1, D1)
residential floorspace
Proposed non- Scheme Total:
residential floorspace Maximum: 3,600sgm (GEA) (3,290 sgm (GIA))
(Class A1/A3/B1/D1)
Building 2/2A — 725 sgm (minimum 600sgm)
Building 3 — 2,565 sgm (minimum 2,000sgm)
Maximum Heights Building 2 (the Pavilion) — Up to 25.4m AOD
(AOD heights) Building 2A (Ashley House) — Up to 34.950m
AOD
(up to 35.950m AOD with flue)
Building 3 (Cannon Futon Factory) — up to
63.725m AOD (up to 64.725m AOD with flue)
Table 1: quantum of development proposed
3.1.3. The application seeks planning permission for a maximum of 3,600sqm of
commercial floorspace (Class A1/A3/B1/D1) (GEA) (3,290sgm GIA) and a
minimum of 3,000sgm (GEA) (2,750sgm).
3.1.4. The application seeks planning permission for a maximum of 265 residential

units with a commitment to provide 50% affordable housing including a
70%/30% tenure split (intermediate/affordable rent). The exact mix of units is
reserved at this stage although an indicative mix has been provided.



Page 26

3.1.5. The planning application seeks formal approval for the following documents as
part of the submission:

e Planning application form, certificate and notices

e Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) form

e Site location plan

e Parameter plans (these define the application boundary, disposition of
land uses, proposed heights, access and circulation, landscape and open
space, phasing, building footprints and roof plans).

e Design guidelines (to guide and control the detailed design of future
reserved matters applications)

e Development specification (to describe precisely what is being applied
for).

3.1.6. The residential development is proposed to be ‘car-free’ but will provide 18
accessible car parking spaces. The breakdown per plot is shown below:

Building Car parking
212A 6

3 12

Total 18

Table 2: Car Parking
3.2. Site and Surroundings
Ashley Road South Masterplan

3.2.1. The Ashley Road South Masterplan comprises this outline application on behalf
of Notting Hill Housing and the two Berkeley Square Developments applications.
The wider masterplan (see images below) proposes seven new buildings:
Buildings 1,1A, 2, 2A, 3, 4; the Ada National College for Digital Skills; and, the
redevelopment and extension of Berol House for commercial and residential
use.

3.2.2. Whilst not forming all of this outline application the wider Ashley Road
Masterplan area shows emerging proposals for the land uses shown below.
Planning applications, pursuant to the wider masterplan, have now been
submitted for the remainder of the Ashley Road South Masterplan on behalf of
Berkeley Square Developments.



Page 27

T

|
|
) A ’A’.ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ

=

]
D - -~ e, S . o -

"‘m

P &

_‘_ National College
¥ 1 for Digital Skills

I Application site boundary
B Cther land in applicant's ownership
-~ Masterplan boundary

| / f
in ™

g < L0 y ) E' .
[ e S E—
m— 1 '.i"."ff&&!:— BRI~ ®

Application site boundary and masterplan boundary



Page 28

Applications Building Residential units
Full Building 1 377 units
(Berkeley Square | Building 1A

Developments)

Hybrid Building 4 156 units
(Berkeley Square

Developments) | Berol House Up to 18 units
Outline Building 2 Up to 265 units
(Notting Hill Building 2A

Housing) Building 3

Ashley Road All buildings 816 units

South (including maximum NHH
Masterplan parameters)

Table 3: Emerging residential units for Ashley Road South Masterplan

Application Building Proposed commercial
floorspace (GIA)
Full (BSD) Building 1 1,070 sgm (GIA)
Building 1A
Hybrid (BSD) NCDS 6,000 sgm (GIA)
Building 4 833sgm (GIA)
Berol House 3,316.5 sgm (GIA)
Outline (NHH) Building 2 725 sgm (GIA)
Building 2A
Building 3 2,565 sgm (GIA)
ARSM All buildings 14,509.5 sgm (GIA)
(including NHH
building along
DLP)

Table 4: Emerging employment floorspace across ARS
The Ada National College for Digital Skills (NCDS)

3.2.3. The hybrid planning application by Berkeley Square Developments includes
proposals for a new National College for Digital Skills amounting to 6,000sgm of
educational space. This will be designed to be a defining architectural
statement with a rotated volume mirroring the design approach adopted for
Building 2. The masterplan envisages these two buildings acting as a
counterpoint to one another along Ashley Link. This route will form an important
new movement route as part of the wider movement network across Ashley
Road Site.



3.2.4.

3.2.5.

3.2.6.

3.2.7.

3.3.

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

Page 29

Ada, the National College for Digital Skills will be a new Further Education
College established as the centre of excellence in the delivery and learning of
digital skills. The overall objective is to deliver a learning environment that
supports the vision and values of the College and has the technology to deliver
the educational offering. This is currently operating from a temporary location.

The application site comprises land to the north-east and south-west of the
Ashley Road South Masterplan area. To the north-east, the development will
comprise a mixed use building of between eight and sixteen storeys. To the
south-west, the development will comprise Building 2, a small pavilion building
of four storeys and Building 2A, a mixed use building up to seven storeys.

The Ashley House section of the application site occupies the southwestern part
of the masterplan. The site comprises two 2-storey buildings which serve as
warehouse and office accommodation. The buildings are laid out on an L
shaped configuration and partly enclose a car park and holding area, all of
which is owned by Notting Hill Housing. To the south lies a petrol station and a
terrace of Victorian houses which front onto Hale Road. On the western
boundary the site backs onto a playground/recreational area within Down Lane
Park.

The Cannon Factory section of the planning application site occupies the north
eastern part of the masterplan. Accessed from Ashley Road, the site also has
frontages along Burdock Road and Watermead Way both of which are lined with
mature trees. The two-storey brick building is largely factory warehouse space
with a small block of office accommodation on Ashley Road. The building has a
service yard to the south for the loading/unloading. It is currently occupied in a
meanwhile use. This part of the site is located diagonally opposite Down Lane
Park with the Harris Academy to the north and Berol House immediately the
south.

Relevant Planning and Enforcement history

There are no planning applications for this site that are of direct relevance to
the current proposal. Emerging development activity in and around the site is
summarised below.

A planning application was submitted in January 2017 in relation to 18 Ashley
Road, to the north of this application site but within the Ashley Road Masterplan
area. The application was for a temporary change of use of building from light
industrial B1 use to D2 use incorporating a climbing wall facility, yoga studio,
ancillary cafe and offices, and B1 light industrial use. The application was
granted, subject to a range of planning conditions.



3.3.3.

3.3.4.

3.3.5.

3.3.6.

3.3.7.

3.3.8.

Page 30

On 21 March 2016, the Council entered into the Tottenham Hale Strategic
Development Partnership (SDP) with Argent Related to progress the above
sites within Tottenham Hale. The SDP will secure the comprehensive delivery
of a new District Centre at the heart of Tottenham Hale and a significant part of
the first phase of the Tottenham Housing Zone.

There are a number of development sites in the vicinity of the application site
(Monument Way, Welbourne Centre, Transport for London “Over Station”
Development site, and a further site on the fringe of the bus station) which have
been the subject of recent land disposal by the Council.

On 10 April 2017 the Council resolved to grant planning permission, subject to
s.106 agreement, for 1 Station Square, Station Road. The application included
demolition of existing buildings and erection of a building providing 434 sq.m.
(GEA) of commercial floorspace (Class A1/A3), 128 residential units (117
shared ownership units) (Class C3), landscaped amenity space, cycle parking
and all structural and associated works. The site, together with Ashley Road
South, forms an important part of the proposed north-south spine envisaged in
the Tottenham Streets and Spaces.

Applicant’s Consultation

The applicant has undertaken pre-application public consultation prior to the
submission of the application, and has sought pre-application guidance from the
Council and the Greater London Authority (GLA).

The applicant has submitted a Statement of Community Involvement prepared
by Belgrave dated December 2016, in accordance with the Council’s Statement
of Community Involvement. The scheme has also previously been considered
by Haringey’s Quality Review Panel (QRP). A chronology of pre- application
engagement is below:

e A meeting with ward Councillors on 27" July 2016

e 5 September 2016 workshop with LBH officers regarding the wider
masterplan

5 October pre-application meeting with LBH

7 October pre-application meeting with GLA

15 September 2016 pre-application meeting with LBH

12 October 2016, meeting with Haringey Quality Review Panel (QRP);
18 October pre-application meeting with LBH

24 October 2016 pre-application meeting with the GLA and LBH officers
Development Management Forum (23" November 2016)

The following discussions took place following the submission of the application:
e 18 January 2017 presentation to the QRP on the Ashley Road
Masterplan



3.3.9.

Page 31

e 24 January 2017 application meeting with LBH

14 February 2017 application meeting with GLA regarding energy
matters

15 February 2017 application meeting with TfL

8 March 2017 presentation to QRP (Chair’'s Review)

15 March 2017 meeting with the Secured by Design Officer
24 April Development Management Forum

The following public exhibitions were held by the applicant at Berol House, 25
Ashley Road. 4,600 invitations were issued across the distribution area to
publicise the exhibitions.

e 20 July 2016 (15:30 — 19:30) 53 people
e 10 November 2016 (15:30 — 19:30) 20 people

The response to the Council’s statutory consultation is tabulated in the section
below.

Quality Review Panel

3.3.10.The scheme has been presented to Haringey’s Quality Review Panel on three

3.3.11.

occasions, at the pre-application stage and the application stage (Chair's
review). This has included a panel review of the wider Ashley Road Masterplan.
The application has also been presented to the Development Management
Forum. The application has been amended during the pre- and post-application
process in response to issues raised by officers and the QRP.

A summary of the most recent QRP Chair's Review (on 8 March 2017) is
contained in the design section of this report. A summary of the Development
Management Forum and officer response is appended (Appendix 2).

4. CONSULTATION RESPONSE

4.1.

The following were consulted regarding the application:

Internal:

LBH Head of Carbon Management

LBH Regeneration Tottenham Team

LBH Housing Design & Major Projects

LBH Flood and Surface Water Drainage

LBH Economic Regeneration

LBH Cleansing Team - East

LBH Parks

LBH EHS — Pollution, Air Quality, Contaminated Land
LBH EHS - Noise



Page 32

e LBH Conservation Officer Conservation Officer

e LBH Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
e LBH Building Control Building Control

e LBH Transportation Group

External:

e Network Rall

e London Fire Brigade

e Lee Valley Regional Park Authority

e Metropolitan Police - Designing Out Crime Officer
Transport for London — Borough Planning

Ferry Lane Action Group

Environment Agency

London Underground

Natural England

Greater London Authority

Thames Water Utilities

Historic England - Greater London Archaeology Advisory Service
London Wildlife Trust

Tottenham Conservation Area Advisory Committee

4.2. The full text of comments from internal and external consultees that responded
to consultation is contained in Appendix 1. A summary of the consultation
responses received is below:

Internal:

LBH Transportation

Subject to suggested planning conditions and planning obligations the proposal is
acceptable in transportation terms. See detailed comments within the main body of
the report.

LBH Environmental Health Officer — Noise
Environmental health officers are satisfied with the findings of the Environmental
Statement in respect of noise issues and there are no objections.

LBH Environmental Health Officer — Air Quality

A detailed energy, air quality assessment and AQNA have not been provided at this
outline stage. Further information used to model the air pollution impacts will be
required. Predictions provided with the application indicate some areas remain above
annual mean objective level. The borough is an Air Quality Management Area
therefore the Band B emission standards must apply to the proposed boilers. A
number of pre-commencement planning conditions are proposed to secure further
details at the detailed design stage. These should include a revised air quality
assessment and details of the combustion and energy plant.



Page 33

Site investigations revealed a range of contaminants present. A hotspot of asbestos
containing material was found to be present in made ground. Further site
investigations are recommended as follows: further ground gas/vapour monitoring to
fully characterise ground gas regime; post demolition works including sampling and
testing within the footprint of the existing buildings and the area of Ashley Road car
park to delineate the hydrocarbon and asbestos impacted soils.

LBH Carbon Management

The updated version of the Sustainable Design and Construction Strategy (April 2017)
follows a series of meetings between the GLA, LBH and the applicant. The current
strategy indicates the scheme will deliver a 10.7% improvement over building
regulations (Building Regs 2013). This is a relatively low standard considered against
comparable schemes in Haringey. To become policy compliant (LP 5.2) the developer
will have to offset the remaining of their emissions at a cost per tonne, secured via
s106 agreement.

Lean

The scheme delivers a 9.1% carbon reduction through lean (energy efficiency
measures). This is comparatively low, but is within an acceptable range. On average,
Haringey Council sees 10-12% improvement through energy efficiency measures.

Clean

The scheme is now proposing a boiler-led heating system following discussions
regarding the ability of the scheme to easily connect into a future DEN. Thisis a
change from the CHP which was proposed initially and is welcomed.

The following measures should be secured via a combination of planning conditions
and planning agreement:

e That the boilers provide all space heating and hot water across the site;

e That this energy centre has pipework installed which will run from the Energy
Centre, under the landscaping to the edge of Ashley Road highway. This will
enable this to be connected to the DEN at a later date;

e A commitment to connect this (currently unused) pipework to the larger
pipework which will then be serve the DEN;

e That when the DEN is delivered that they commit to decommission their
boilers and take heat from the DEN.

The Carbon Management Team accept that this carbon performance is less than the
applicants preferred CHP-led ambition, and are willing to discuss the impact of this on
the overall carbon emissions in the context of longer-term gains flowing from
connections to a future DEN. This will need to be verified by detailed carbon
emissions and technology type proposed. The detailed issues relating to these
comments have been discussed with the Carbon Management Team and are
addressed later in this report. Appropriate planning conditions and planning
obligations to overcome these issues are proposed.



Page 34

The Carbon Management Team note the results of the overheating testing including
the conclusion that the majority the bedrooms, and 1/3 of living rooms will potentially
overheat. As the scheme is currently illustrative and no details of this assessment
have yet been provided further modelling work will be required at Stage 3 and 4 of
design. The team recommend that this is undertaken and that the units are designed
not to overheat through the use of design measures, but not through the use of blinds.
This should be required by condition and required 6 months before commencement
for approval in order to arrive at appropriate design mitigation measures.

LBH Senior Drainage Engineer

LBH Drainage Engineers satisfied with the supplied calculations. LBH Drainage
require the applicant to supply detailed drainage design drawings, including SuDS
features for review and sign-off for approval. The Drainage Officer also comment that
the use of orifice plate flow control is preferred over ‘Hydrobrake’.

LBH Waste Management
Some detailed issues raised, but the application has been given a RAG traffic light
status of GREEN for waste storage and collection.

This proposed application will require adequate storage provision for refuse and
recycling storage for a once weekly collection

The 252 dwellings will require the following bin capacity provision across the 3
buildings (Building 2, Building 2A and Building 3):

e 43 x 1100L bin for refuse

e 25 x 1100L bin for recycling

e 19 x 140L food waste exterior bin.

The site will require the managing agents to have a cleansing schedule to remove litter
from the external areas of the site and cleansing of the waste storage areas.

Vehicles should never have to reverse into or from a highway to make a collection.
Where collection vehicles do have to enter developments there should be sufficient
onsite turning circles or hammerheads to allow safe egress.

Commercial Businesses occupying the commercial floor space must ensure all waste
produced on site are disposed of responsibly under their duty of care within
Environmental Protection Act 1990

LBH Nature & Conservation

Officers have reviewed the Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AlA) & Method
Statement. It is not proposed to remove any of the trees located on council land that
are immediately adjacent to this development sites(s). The AIA & MS outline all the
necessary measures to be implemented to ensure the trees are protected throughout



Page 35

the demolition and construction process. No objection subject to conditions to ensure
trees to be retained are adequately protected during the demolition/construction phase.

External:

Thames Water

No objections subject to the provision of drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off
site drainage works by grampian condition, and informatives. Thames Water
recommend the imposition of a Grampian Style Planning Condition to require the
submission of a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site drainage works for
approval.

Transport for London
The Applicant responded to a number of initial queries raised by TfL and TfL now
considers the proposals to be acceptable, subject to:

e The management of the demand responsive accessible parking proposal being
clearly set out in the car park management plan; this must clearly demonstrate
how accessible spaces will be efficiently made available for Blue Badge holders
when the demand exists. The car park management plan should be secured by
condition;

e 24-hour access to Ashley Link should be secured through the Section 106
agreement or condition as appropriate;

e The applicant must either deliver a replacement bus stand that is approved by
TfL as being fit for purpose, or fully incorporate the existing Ashley Road bus
stand into the planning application. The former option would require a Grampian
condition. The latter option would require inclusion within the planning
application;

e Atreserved matters stage TfL expect to see greater detail regarding how the
cycle storage in Building 2A is accessed from the street, including how the
internal courtyard integrates with the cycle parking access points.

e Atreserved matters stage TfL also expect to see greater detail of the internal
cycle parking arrangements on plan, including numbers and types of cycle
parking stands;

e TfL expect short-stay cycle parking to be clearly set out (including quantity and
type) on plan at reserved matters stage;

e Evidence of coordination with London Underground should be included in the
construction logistics plan (CLP). The final CLP should be secured by a pre-
commencement condition in consultation with TfL.

Environment Agency

No objection to scheme. Environment Agency is not providing specific advice on the
risks to controlled waters for this site to concentrate local resources on the highest risk
proposals. The Environment Agency refers the Council to standing flood risk advice.

Natural England



Page 36

Natural England notes the potential for recreational pressure from new residents upon
the Walthamstow Wetlands site (Walthamstow Reservoirs Site of Special Scientific
Interest and Lee Valley Special Protection Area and Ramsar) once this opens for
public access later this year. In order to combat this Natural England believes it would
be desirable to have high quality Green Infrastructure (Gl) on site and to ensure that
there are good links with Lane Down Park to the north of the site with the potential to
provide funding for improvements at the park should space not be available on the
development site itself.

Benefits in the long term and of course in the desirability of the properties would be
gained through the inclusion of high quality on site Gl such as green roofs and walls as
well as Sustainable Drainage Systems on site in order to cope with future changes in
climate and the associated weather effects (heavy rainfall for instance). The benefits
for wildlife would be mirrored by human health benefits seen from plentiful high quality
on site Gl which could also help with the air quality issues the area suffers from due to
being able to absorb more of the pollutants at the roadside through the use of
hedgerows for example. Given the location, Natural England has no other comments
to make.

Greater London Authority [see full report in appendices]

The GLA considered a Stage 1 report on 30 January 2017. The principle of the
proposed residential led mixed-use development is consistent with London Plan
policies and is supported. The report indicated broad policy support in terms of
London Plan policies but raised a number of issues in relation to the following policies:
residential/town centre uses/employment including the number of jobs and possibility
of affordable workspace; the housing density and play space proposals are supported;
ranges of housing mix should be secured in the section 106 agreement.

The proposed tenure split meets the requirements of the draft SPG, subject to the
views of the Council. The applicant’s viability assessment confirms that assumed
affordable rent levels are at local housing allowance levels or lower. Of the shared
ownership units, 25% will be low cost shared ownership; however, there are concerns
about the affordability of the remaining 75%. The urban design and tall building
proposed are generally supported; however, some amendments and clarifications are
required. The proposed development would preserve the settings of heritage assets.
The proposals are acceptable in relation to inclusive design, subject to an increase in
Blue Badge parking spaces.

The applicant should increase Blue Badge car parking provision; assess development
trip generation impact on buses; increase cycle parking provision; and provide detail
on location, access and design of all cycle parking. A car park management plan,
delivery and servicing plan and travel plan should be secured by condition or section
106 agreement. A construction logistics plan should be secured by pre-
commencement condition. Depending on results of bus impact assessment, a
contribution towards bus impact mitigation may be required.



Page 37

A site-wide energy network is required. Further information is required in order to verify
the carbon savings. On balance, the application does not yet comply with the London
Plan; however, the possible remedies set out in the report could address these
deficiencies.

Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service

Pre-demolition recording of the Cannon Avent factory is proposed in the applicants'
ES. GLAAS advise that this aspiration be secured by a planning condition. Historic
England guidance is that the appropriate recording for structures to be demolished
complies withg Level 3 recording as set out in Understanding Historic Buildings, and
this approach should be applied here.

Appraisal of this application using the Greater London Historic Environment Record
and information submitted with the application indicates that the development is likely
to cause some harm to archaeological interest but not sufficient to justify refusal of
planning permission provided that a condition is applied to require an investigation to
be undertaken to advance understanding. The archaeological interest should be
conserved by attaching a planning condition.

London Underground
London Underground Infrastructure protection has no comment to make on this
planning application.

Designing out crime officer

The applicant has addressed most of the earlier issues raised following a meeting with
the architect. The Designing Out Crime Officer is encouraged by the Design
Guidelines which makes proper mention of Secured by Design New Homes 2016. The
officer is confident with the correct specification of products, that the scheme could
achieve at least Secured by Design Silver award. The officer requests a planning
condition to detail the measures to be incorporated.

London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority
The LFPA is satisfied with the proposals. Fire brigade access appears satisfactory
although an appropriate turning area will be required adjacent to Building 2. Detailed
advisory informatives are provided.
Network Rail
Network Rail provide a number of advisory comments to ensure the proposal, both
during construction and after completion of works does not:

e encroach onto Network Rail land

e affect the safety, operation or integrity of the company's railway and its
infrastructure
undermine its support zone
damage the company's infrastructure
place additional load on cuttings
adversely affect any railway land or structure
over-sail or encroach upon the air-space of any Network Rail land



Page 38

cause to obstruct or interfere with any works or proposed works or Network Rail
development both now and in the future

5. LOCAL REPRESENTATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The following were consulted:

Neighbouring properties consulted by letter
Resident’s Association consulted by letter
6 planning site notices were erected in the vicinity of the site.

The number of representations received from neighbours, local groups etc in
response to notification and publicity of the application were as follows:

No of individual responses: 2

Objecting: 2
Supporting: 0
Others: 0

The full text of representations from adjoining occupiers (and the officer
response) is set out at Appendix 1 for reference.

The issues raised in representations from adjoining occupiers are summarised
below:

The proposed height, is considered to be out of scale with surrounding
buildings;

The development will cause overlooking;

Objections on the basis of the level of noise and disruption during and post-
construction;

Objections on the basis of adverse impact on access to Berol House for
employees and visitors;

Reduction in attractiveness of Berol House as employment location.

The following issues raised are not material planning considerations (the officer
comment is noted in brackets following):

6 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main planning issues raised by the proposed development are:

6.1

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

Principle of the development — Policy Background
Principle of the development — Assessment
Employment and land use mix

Housing (including affordable housing) and density
Masterplanning, public realm & urban design

Tall buildings, townscape and view management
Quality of Residential Accommodation



6.2

6.2.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

Page 39

8) Development Impact to Adjoining Occupiers
9) Heritage Assets

10) Transportation and Parking

11) Flood Risk and Drainage

12) Energy and Sustainability

13) Waste and Recycling

14) Land Contamination

15) Equalities

16) Health Impact Assessment

Principle of the Development

The NPPF establishes overarching principles of the planning system, including
the requirement of the system to “drive and support development” through the
local development plan process and supports “approving development
proposals that accord with the development plan without delay”. The NPPF
also expresses a “presumption in favour of sustainable development which
should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making and
decision-taking.”

The Development Plan

For the purposes of S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 the Development Plan includes the London Plan (2016), Haringey’s
Local Plan Strategic Policies and the saved policies of Haringey’s Unitary
Development Plan (2006). The Examination in Public (EiP) into the Council’s
suite of forthcoming strategic policy documents, including the Tottenham Area
Action Plan (AAP) and Development Management Polices Development Plan
Document (DPD) concluded in September 2016. The Council undertook an 8-
week public consultation on the Inspector’'s Main Modifications arising from the
Local Plan examination hearings. The consultation concluded January 13th
2017 and the DPP’s were referred from Cabinet to full Council in June 2016. A
number of clarifications in the wording to site allocation TH6 (Ashley Road
South Employment Area) were proposed through Modifications to the
Tottenham Area Action Plan. To provide greater clarity, these related primarily
to site requirements including reference to support for ‘mixed-use employment-
led development’.

The Inspector’s Report was received on 28 April 2017 and concludes that the
Alterations to Strategic Policies (ASP), Site Allocations Development Plan
Document (TAAP), Tottenham Area Action Plan (TAAP) and the Development
Management Development Plan Document (DMDPD) provide an appropriate
basis for the planning of Haringey.

The ‘development plan’, including the relevant site allocation (TH6), is
therefore at an advanced stage and should be afforded significant planning



6.1.4

6.1.5

6.1.6

6.1.7

6.1.8

Page 40

weight. The AAP and accompanying suite of Development Plan documents
are on track to be adopted by Cabinet later in 2017.

The London Plan

The London Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, setting out an
integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the
development of London over the next 20-25 years. The consolidated London
Plan (2016) sets a number of objectives for development through various
policies. The policies in the London Plan are accompanied by a suite of
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPGs) that provide further guidance.

Upper Lea Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework

The Upper Lea Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework (OAPF) (2013) is
supplementary guidance to the London. The OAPF sets out the overarching
framework for the area, which includes the application site. The objectives for
the Upper Lee Valley. The OAPF identifies the wider Ashley Road South site
as suitable for residential, employment and potential new school. A
comprehensive mixed masterplan is envisaged with good connections to
transport and improved entrance to Down Lane Park.

Housing Zone

Key to the delivery of regeneration at Tottenham Hale is the Council’s
participation in the Mayor of London’s Housing Zone program. Tottenham
Hale’s designation as a Housing Zone provides funding for new infrastructure
and allows policy interventions such as tax incentives, simpler planning
regulations and the use of compulsory purchase powers. The programme
seeks to deliver a total of 5,500 new homes — 1,700 more than would
otherwise be viable — through the unlocking of brownfield sites. The Housing
Zone approach also seeks a portfolio-approach to housing delivery to better
align public sector resources. This approach also balances housing tenures
and dwelling mixtures across Housing Zone areas.

Haringey Local Plan Strategic Policies (2013)

Haringey’s Local Plan Strategic Policies document highlights the importance
of growth areas within the Borough and notes that Tottenham Hale will be the
key locations for the largest amount of Haringey’s future growth.

Proposed changes to Haringey’s Strategic Policies reflect a number of
changes in the overarching planning framework at the national and regional
level, which affect planning locally.



Page 41

6.1.9 The pre-submission draft of proposed changes to Haringey’s Strategic
Policies were considered alongside the Tottenham AAP and Development
Management DPD at an Examination in Public (EiP) that concluded in
September 2016. The Inspector’'s Report was received on 28 April 2017 and
concludes that the Alterations to Strategic Policies (ASP), Site Allocations
Development Plan Document (TAAP), Tottenham Area Action Plan (TAAP)
and the Development Management Development Plan Document (DMDPD)
provide an appropriate basis for the planning of Haringey.

6.1.10 The most significant change to the Strategic Policies arise as a result of the
adoption of the Further Alterations to the London Plan (FALP) that
significantly increased Haringey’s strategic housing target from 820 homes
per annum to 1,502 homes per annum, effective from April 2015 — an 83%
increase. The plan also reflects the more challenging position in respect of
affordable housing delivery. Given the progression of the alterations to the
Strategic Policies in the plan making progress, they may be given significant
weight by the decision maker.

6.1.11 The alterations to the Strategic Policies also make clear the need for
affordable housing outstrips supply in Haringey. The most recent Strategic
Housing Market (SHMA) informing the alterations indicates that with a
shortfall in provision of 11,757 homes over the plan period. As a proportion of
the total net housing requirement for all tenures (20,172), this equates to
59%. At an annual rate, this is 784 affordable homes out of 1,345.

Emerging Tottenham Area Action Plan (AAP)

6.1.12 The Tottenham AAP is at an advanced stage and should be afforded
significant planning weight given its progression in the plan making process.
The document provides site specific and area based policy to underpin the
delivery of the spatial vision set out in the adopted and proposed alterations
to the Strategic Polices DPD and the suite of DPDs emerging alongside the
Tottenham AAP to articulate the spatial vision for growth.

AAP Site Allocation

6.1.13 The site allocation (TH6) envisages the creation of an employment-led mixed
use quarter north of a new District Centre, creation of a new east-west route
linking Down Lane Park and Hale Village, and enhanced Ashley Road public
realm. Residential use will only be acceptable for the purpose of making
viable the re-provision of employment floorspace.

The site requirements for the wider site allocation (incorporating Major
Modifications endorsed by the Inspector 2017) are as follows:



Page 42

e The site is within a Designated Employment Area: Regeneration Area
and proposals for mixed use employment-led development will be
supported, where appropriate. It is anticipated that the redevelopment of
this site will not create a net reduction in employment floorspace.

e The introduction of a tertiary education provider providing education in
the technology sector will be supported on this site.

e Residential development will only be acceptable for the purpose of
making viable the re-provision of employment floor space.

e The proximity of the new Harris Academy to the north and Down Lane
Park to the north and west make the area particularly suitable for larger
units along those edges.

e Ashley Road will form the key public and movement spine, with
pedestrian access to Tottenham Hale District Centre from enhanced
workspaces optimised.

e Active frontages will be expected on both sides of the Ashley Road
frontage at ground floor level.

e Good quality buildings, including, but not limited to Berol House and 16
Ashley Rd should be retained and adapted for flexible, and affordable
employment use. Residential use will only be acceptable for the purpose
of making viable the re-provision of employment floorspace.

e The site has a key role to play in laying out the Green Grid. Along the
southern edge of the site and east-west link will be provided to connect
into Down Lane Park to the west and to the Lee Valley in the west.
Developments should positively benefit this route by providing active
frontages along its length.

e The delivery of superfast broadband to the employment area will be
supported.

Tottenham Hale District Centre Framework

6.1.14 The Tottenham Hale District Centre Framework (DCF) sets out that
Tottenham Hale has been identified as having the capacity for a significant
number of new homes, with numerous sites that are suitable for new
residential or residential-led mixed-use development. In the next 10-15 years,
it is expected that 5,000 homes will come forward on these sites. A mix of
housing tenures will be delivered, with emphasis on the affordable end of the
market, to provide choice.

6.1.15 The DCF is not a Development Plan Document (DPD) but acted as a key part
of the evidence base informing the Tottenham APP. The Tottenham AAP will
allow for the implementation of proposals for the Tottenham Hale District
Centre. The DCF has also been informed through engagement with the
community, stakeholders and key landowners / developers in the Tottenham
Hale area. The DCF provides design guidance and parameters for the wider
allocated site.



Page 43

6.1.16 The Ashley Road South site is envisaged to be a thriving mixed-use area with
a vibrant mix of high density businesses and homes occupying converted and
new purpose built accommodation.

Tottenham Hale Streets and Spaces Strategy

6.1.17 The Streets and Spaces Strategy sets out how to improve streets and public
spaces around the area to make them safer, more user-friendly and inviting.
The Strategy seeks to provide a north/south spine linking Ashley Road and
the retail park with a new street, calming traffic by creating a pedestrian
friendly environment with new controlled crossings, narrowed roads, wider
less cluttered footways and more street activity. The document sits below the
DCF and is not a development plan document.

Tottenham Hale Green and Open Spaces Strategy

6.1.18 The Green and Open Spaces Strategy suggests way to improve and protect
existing green spaces. The strategy suggests making it easier to get to the
Lea Valley with new and improved connections. The Strategy speaks to the
need to invest in Down Lane Park to boost sports provision and enhance the
park’s wildlife. The document sits below the DCF and is not a development
plan document.

Tottenham Strategic Regeneration Framework

6.1.19 The Framework outlines the key strategies that will be used to revitalise
Tottenham. It sets seven strategic and overarching priorities for achieving
the vision and the aspirations for Tottenham. While inter-related, several of
the priorities are less related to the built form of Tottenham and address
issues such as educational provision and services. The Framework sets out
what the community thinks Tottenham will be and feel like when these
strategies have been delivered and what it may mean for Tottenham’s
different character areas.

Tottenham Physical Development Framework

6.1.20 The Tottenham Physical Development Framework (PDF) was produced by
Arup in 2012 for Haringey Council and highlights the scale of the
opportunities within the Borough. The document was not consulted upon or
adopted by the Council as planning policy and as such has no weight in
planning terms. It notes that the area is becoming known for a high-quality,
well-connected public realm providing a welcoming place to do business and
socialise throughout the day and evening.

Urban Characterisation Study



Page 44

6.1.21 Published in February 2015 as part of the evidence base for Haringey’s Local
Plan documents, the Haringey Urban Character Study is not adopted policy
but is a useful guide for assessing development. It identifies the components
of local character and distinctiveness and highlights those aspects which
make Haringey unique. It also provides guidance on the location, type and
form of new development, including the location of tall buildings.

6.1.22 The study notes areas in the borough that could be intensified and benefit
from an increase in building height. These include areas along main streets,
within centres, and areas of regeneration including Tottenham Hale.
Potential Tall Buildings Locations Validations Study

6.1.23 The main purpose of the study is to assess the locations for tall buildings
already established by the Council and determine what may be appropriate in
terms of place-making, townscape and landscape, and views. The Study
undertakes an assessment of Tottenham Hale as an area that is suitable for
tall buildings. It forms part of the evidence base for the Local Plan.

6.1.24 The study confirms the potential for tall buildings in Tottenham Hale to
provide a land-marking role for the emerging district centre, as well as
identifying the locations of the Tottenham Hale bus and railway station. The
study notes the visual relationship between individual locations (as well as
the existing and unimplemented built forms) will need careful consideration to
ensure a cohesive building group. Tall buildings must also respond to and
maintain the individual neighbourhoods identified in the UCS.

6.2 Principle of Development — Assessment

Principle of Demolition

6.2.1 The scheme proposes the full redevelopment of the site, including the
demolition of two existing buildings on the land. Whilst many of the existing
buildings on the land are of limited architectural merit and detract from the
character of the area the Cannon Avent Factory is considered to be of
sufficient merit to warrant building recording.

6.2.2 Archaeological building recording is an investigation to establish the
character, history, dating, form and development of an historic building or
structure which normally takes place as a condition of planning permission
before any alteration or demolition takes place. The outcome will be an
archive and a report which may be published. Pre-demolition recording of
the Cannon Avent factory is proposed in the applicants' Environmental
Statement and is also supported by Historic England and LBH officers. This
will be secured by a planning condition following the Historic England
guidance for Level 3 recording for structures to be demolished and as set out
in Understanding Historic Buildings.



6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

Page 45

Employment provision

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states at Paragraph 51 that
Local Planning Authorities should normally approve planning applications for
change to residential use and any associated development from commercial
buildings (currently in the B use classes) where there is an identified need for
additional housing in that area, provided that there are not strong economic
reasons why such development would be inappropriate.

Local Plan Policy SP8 indicates there is a presumption to support local
employment and small sized businesses that require employment land and
space. The site is also located within a Local Employment Area (LEA 15)
within the Local Plan Strategic Policies. These policies are now relatively out
of date and soon to be replaced by emerging policies, which are at an
advanced stage having been tested through examination.

Emerging policies restrict mixed-use redevelopment of employment land to
Local Employment Area — Regeneration Areas. The Strategic Policies Local
Plan provides the basis for a more flexible approach to development in such
Regeneration Areas. Furthermore, the London Plan and Haringey’s Strategic
Policies require that more intensive land uses are directed to highly
accessible locations. Emerging Policy DM38 states that the Council will
support proposals for mixed-use development within a Local Employment
Area — Regeneration Area where this is necessary to facilitate the renewal
and regeneration of existing employment land and floorspace. In particular,
proposals are expected to demonstrate that for reasons of viability a mixed-
use scheme is necessary to facilitate the delivery employment floorspace and
maximise the amount of employment floorspace to be provided within the
mixed-use scheme, having regard to development viability. Proposals are
expected to provide demonstrable improvements in the site’s suitability for
continued employment and business use, having regard to:

o The quality, type and number of jobs provided, including an
increase in employment densities where appropriate;

o Flexibility of design to enable adaptability to different business
uses over the lifetime of development;

o Environmental quality of the site;

o Provision for an element of affordable workspace where viable.

Specifically, emerging policies relating to site allocation TH6 in the Tottenham
Area Action Plan state residential development will only be acceptable for the
purpose of making viable the re-provision of employment floorspace. The
site is within a Designated Employment Area: Regeneration Area and
proposals for mixed use employment-led development will be supported,
where appropriate. Subject to the above, the principle of the demolition of the
existing buildings on the land is considered to be acceptable in principle and



Page 46

will optimise its reuse in accordance with a range of development plan
policies.

6.2.7 The majority of the employment floorspace applied for within the application
concerns Building 3, which includes a partial podium and commercial
floorspace on the ground floor facing Ashley Road and a future public square
behind Berol House (the “Yard’). The first floor will provide dedicated B class
uses with the flexibility to sub-divide to attract a range of employers. Early
assessments of demand, provided to the applicant, indicates the location and
space could be attractive to a range of occupiers seeking more affordable
options than Central London, but within a creative and vibrant environment.
The space could be appealing to local creative tenants, small to medium
sized companies that might view Tottenham as an alternative to Central
London or large-scale occupiers looking to a new affordable fringe location,
such as co-working spaces.

Number and type of jobs

6.2.8 The existing buildings and yards are currently occupied by low grade
commercial and industrial buildings (Class B1/B2/B8). The site currently
provides 3,234sgm (GIA) of commercial floorspace (B1/B2 uses) and this is
estimated to provide in the order of 63 FTE jobs. The construction phase
could lead to the displacement of various employment on-site activities. The
existing occupiers are on short term leases with all having an end date in
2018.

6.2.9 The precise number of jobs that will be supported will depend on the end-
users that occupy the scheme and the extent to which current occupants of
employment space may be re-accommodated in the new scheme. However,
it is possible to estimate employment generation by applying average
employment densities to the proposed floorspace. In gross terms, itis
estimated that the proposed development could support 262 jobs or 217 FTE
jobs. In terms of net additional employment and assuming approximately half
of these jobs are re-accommodated in the proposed scheme would give rise
to a net employment figure of approximately 186 FTE jobs. This represents a
significant uplift in the number of jobs. The new commercial space will be of
a high quality and more efficient design and will provide predominantly B1(a)
office space which can support a greater capacity of workers.

Employment floorspace

6.2.10 The employment provision directly relating to this application is
disaggregated below.



Page 47

Application | Building | Existing commercial | Proposed commercial
floorspace (GEA) floorspace (GEA)
Outline Building 2 | 1,748 sgm (Class B1) | 800sgm (A1/A3/B1/D1)
(Notting Hill | Building
Housing) 2A
Building 3 | 1,486 sqm (Class B1) | 2,800sgm (A and B Class
Uses)

Totals 3,234sgm (Class B1) | Up to 3,600sgm (GEA) all
commercial uses

Table 5: commercial floorspace applied for (NHH)

6.2.11 The application seeks permission for up to 3,600sgm total commercial
floorspace with a minimum provision of 2,750sgm. In the event the total
amount applied for is built out this represents an overprovision of commercial
floorspace. Conversely, in the event the minimum applied for is built out, this
represents a like-for-like reduction in commercial provision, within the context
of the red line in the application. The proposals, as submitted, allow flexibility
for a range of commercial A, B1 & D1 uses.

6.2.12 As part of a wider mixed use allocation in emerging policies the existing and
proposed employment provision must also be viewed in the context of the
wider proposals for Ashley Road South. The ambition of emerging policies is
to secure re-provision of employment floorspace across the whole allocation
leading to a genuinely mixed use area. Proposals for the wider masterplan
area have now been submitted and this application seeks to play a
complementary role. The provision across Ashley Road South is shown
below and, if built out in full, shows the potential for 9% additional re-
provision in all forms of commercial floorspace. The residual commercial
floorspace is the subject of separate planning applications for the remainder
of the masterplan area. The specific question of the overall balance of uses,
specifically retail use, is considered below.

Policy Building | Existing commercial | Proposed

Document floorspace (GEA) commercial
floorspace (GEA)

Policy All 14,729 sgm (158,549 | 16,611.3 sqm (113%

Requirement | buildings | sgft) (GEA) re-provision)

(DCF)

Policy Totals 15,300 sgm (Assumed | 16,611.3 sgm (109%

Requirement GEA) re-provision)

(TAAP)

Table 6: emerging commercial floorspace across ARS



Page 48

6.2.13 Officers have worked with the applicant to maximise the amount of
employment-generating floorspace across the masterplan area and the new
buildings within this proposal provide a total of up-to 3,600sgm. The
parameter plans and Development Specification currently allow for a range of
uses across A1/A3/B1/D1 use classes. This level of provision would meet
the overall objective of re-provision required, subject to finding the right
balance between retail and employment uses to secure policy objectives.

6.2.14 The proposals clearly demonstrate a significant improvement in the quality,
type and flexibility of employment space provided. Whilst subject to market
demand and future detailed design, the proposals offer flexibility of design to
enable adaptability to a range of businesses over the lifetime of development
consistent with the ambition for the area. In addition, the proposals offer a
significant improvement in the environmental quality of the site, in line with
the changing function and role of Tottenham Hale, and also consistent with
the Council’s employment policies.

Balance of commercial land uses

6.2.15 To maximise and secure the employment re-provision envisaged (Policies
TH6 and DM40) and secure an appropriate re-provision of employment
floorspace across the masterplan area, controls on the commercial
floorspace to restrict retail use within the scope of this application are
necessary. A limited amount of A1/A3 use commensurate with the
employment-led role of ARS is supported, particularly in and around key
public areas of activity & movement. The commercial employment units will of
course be subject to market demand but the proposals offer a range of unit
sizes capable of adapting to a range of businesses over the lifetime of the
development.

6.2.16 The existing and emerging policy framework does not envisage retail use in
this part of the regeneration area and officers view the introduction of
significant new retail provision in this location as potentially detrimental to the
strategic role of Ashley Road South as part of the wider town centre offer. In
particular, DM38 seeks to maximise the amount of employment floorspace.
The introduction of a significant amount of retail provision in this location
would lead to an unbalanced mix of land uses in conflict with the
employment-led role identified for Ashley Road South. Officers have
carefully considered the overall balance of uses including the option of an
embargo on retail uses, and consider a limited amount of retail and A3 use as
appropriate in the circumstances of this particular site.

6.2.17 Taking all these factors into consideration, including the overall policy
objective of creating an employment-led mixed use area, officers recommend
the retail use is restricted to a maximum of 450sg.m. of Class Al use and a
maximum Class A3 use of 300sgm. In addition, as part of the s.106



Page 49

agreement, the applicant has agreed to review and update the commercial
strategy prior to the occupation of any units, to give due consideration to the
wider commercial offer as part of the Ashley Road South masterplan.
Officers consider this approach to strike the right balance between
maximising employment floorspace and allowing a limited amount of flexibility
to deliver a genuinely mixed use and vibrant part new neighbourhood in
Tottenham Hale. The proposed retail use restrictions will also bring the
proposal into line with emerging policies by securing the maximum viable re-
provision of existing employment floorspace. This balance will also ensure
Ashley Road South does not compete with the existing and emerging retail
role in the new Tottenham Hale District Centre.

6.2.18 Within Building 2a, specific provision is made for D1 community use. Itis

anticipated this space, located at a key visual interface between a new
residential community and the park, could form an important community
function. Utilisation of the ground floor to provide a community use would be
a benefit to the scheme. The parameter plans currently allow for a range of
uses within this ground floor space across A1/A3/B1 and D1 uses. A
community use is the preferred use in this important location and will be
secured via planning condition.

6.2.19 Considered in the light of wider emerging proposals and subject to the

recommended restrictions on retail use, the land use and employment
provision is considered to be acceptable. The proposed employment, food
and drink and community components would provide a significant number of
new jobs, help create safe and attractive places for meeting and socialising
consistent with the wider ambition to create a vibrant new creative district.
The demolition of the existing buildings on the application site is acceptable
and a commensurate quantum of commercial floorspace is proposed to be
delivered by the scheme. Carefully managed, the balance of land use
components could make a positive contribution towards creating a
sustainable community creating a genuinely mixed use area.

6.3 Tall Buildings, townscape and view management

6.3.1

6.3.2

London Plan Policy 7.7 (Location and Design of Tall and Large Buildings) is
the key London-wide policy for determining tall building applications. The
policy requires that tall buildings ‘should generally be limited to sites in
opportunity areas, areas of intensification or town centres that have good
access to public transport’.

Strategic Policy SP11 (Design) requires all new development to ‘enhance
and enrich Haringey’s built environment and create places and buildings of
high quality’. The Council’s emerging Development Plan Document (DPD)
Policy DM6 (Building Heights) allocates the site (as per Figure 2.2 ‘Potential
Locations Appropriate for Tall Buildings) as suitable for a tall building and set



Page 50

criteria that tall buildings should achieve. When the Quality Review Panel
reviewed the District Centre Framework it concluded that the area was
suitable for tall buildings.

6.3.3 Haringey Council’s Urban Characterisation Study, February 2015 (UCS),
includes a map indicating the general locations with the potential suitability
for tall building(s). This is supplemented by Potential Tall Buildings Locations
Validations Study (November 2015) and the Local Plan identifies this as an
area for tall buildings.

6.3.4 The Study notes that there is potential for tall buildings in Tottenham Hale to
provide a land-marking role for the district centre, as well as identifying the
locations of the bus and railway station. The visual relationship between
individual tall building locations (as well as the existing and unimplemented
built form) will need careful consideration to ensure a cohesive building

group.

6.3.5 Historic England Advice Note 4 supersedes the document ‘Guidance on Tall
Buildings’ produced by English Heritage and CABE in 2007 (as referenced in
emerging Policy DM6). While not part of the Development Plan, this Note
provides a list of design criteria that should be satisfied when considering the
merit of tall buildings. These criteria include:

Architectural quality

Sustainable design and construction

Credibility of the design

Contribution to public space and facilities
Consideration of the impact on the local environment
Provision of a well-designed inclusive environment

6.3.6 At the Local Level, both the Urban Characterisation Study and emerging
Policy DM6 identify Locally Important Views and Vistas as set out in Figure
2.3 of the document. These designated views have been evaluated
according to their interest as panoramas, vistas, landmarks and townscapes.
Ashley Road South masterplan area sits outside the identified views.

6.3.7 The Local Tall Buildings Validation Study states that the areas of industrial
and business alongside the railway are considered to be less sensitive to
potential tall buildings. There is potential for tall buildings in this area to
provide a land-marking role for the district centre, as well as identifying the
locations of the bus and railway station. The visual relationship between
these individual locations requires careful consideration to ensure a cohesive
building group.

Tall buildings assessment



Page 51

6.3.8 Within the Tottenham Area Action Plan emerging policy AAP6 (Urban Design
and Character including Tall Buildings) outlines the opportunity to ‘establish a
new urban character’ for such Growth Areas. One overall objective under
TH1 is to create ‘a new urban form — consistent with the area’s status and
accessibility’.

6.3.9 The AAP also allocates Ashley Road South (TH6) as a key site and states
that it will form a transition site between the denser District Centre and the
surrounding residential area. Within the emerging Haringey Development
Management DPD the proposed site is allocated in Figure 2.2 ‘Potential
Locations Appropriate for Tall Buildings’ under emerging Policy DM6
(Building Heights) as an area that continues to be appropriate for tall
buildings. The Tottenham Hale District Centre Framework (December 2015)
also identifies the Ashley Road South site as suitable for medium rise height
buildings.

6.3.10 Any new tall building(s) should be a focal point, but should also adhere to the
existing hierarchy; the aim is to create discrete, identifiable places, both
within the borough and London. Building 3 is predominantly a medium rise
courtyard form building with a taller element at its north eastern corner. The
taller element, rising to 16 stories, is located on the busy Watermead Way, so
it will become a visible element on the approach to Tottenham Hale from the
north, demarcating the entrance to the district centre. The planned heights
provide an appropriate step down from the taller buildings of around 20
storeys which are proposed within the new centre. The building heights,
sitting within a well resolved masterplan, are likely to contribute to a planned
and cohesive group of taller buildings as part of a new urban context and are
therefore in line with AAPG.

6.3.11 As the proposals are currently in outline form it is only possible to form a view
on the silhouette, with detailed elevational treatment and materials reserved
for future consideration. lllustrative material shows the potential for a high
guality outcome through effective articulation of windows, balconies and
recessed windows running the vertical length of buildings. A number of
planning conditions and planning obligations are recommended to secure
further attention to design and details and a high quality outcome.

6.3.12 Overall, there is policy support for a tall building in this location at the local
and regional level. The DCF has also identified this site a suitable for a tall
building and notes the potential to act as a way finding structure to
Tottenham Hale. Sitting in the context of a well resolved masterplan, the tall
building proposed represents an appropriate and positive addition to
Tottenham Hale and is supported in this location.

View management and townscape assessment



Page 52

6.3.13 The preferred approach to the cluster as per the DCF is a ‘strip’ formation
within the centre (as opposed to a ‘node’ or ‘ring’ layout) which will minimise
the impact of the cluster to this local view given building orientations. The
location of the subject building is consistent with a strip formation in terms of
location, and the emerging Station Square proposal and Argent Related
proposals are considered to compliment this arrangement. The development
sits to the north (and outside) the designated local view from Burgoyne Road.

6.3.14 An assessment has been carried out of the effect of the development on
existing townscape character and on views towards the site. A total of 11
representative views were selected and agreed with LBH officers. The
assessments comprise two separate but interrelated assessments: an
assessment of the likely significant effects on the character and quality of the
townscape together with an assessment of the effect of development on
views (including protected views), viewers and their visual amenity. The
cumulative impact of the wider proposals for Ashley Road South was also
assessed.

6.3.15 Together, the sites identified for cumulative assessment would deliver a
considerable change in urban scale around the centre of Tottenham Hale,
commensurate with the objectives set out in the District Centre Framework.
The proposed introduction of high density mixed use and residential
development would also change the area’s currently partially industrial land
use character. The assessments conclude that the nature of change to the
Tottenham Hale East character area would be high, whilst the nature of
change to the Park View Road and Jarrow Road character areas would be
moderate, the latter experiencing primarily visual changes in scale to their
setting.

6.3.16 Officers agree with the conclusions of the individual and cumulative
assessments. The introduction of a cluster of taller buildings and higher
density residential and mixed use development around Tottenham Hale
would have a number of benefits for the area, including replacing the existing,
often utilitarian, architectural context with attractive contemporary
architecture; introducing better definition to the streetscape with new active
frontages; the introduction of new uses and activities within Tottenham Hale
which would benefit surrounding residents; improved natural surveillance and
legibility for those moving through the area; and a stronger district identity for
Tottenham Hale within the surrounding town centre hierarchy, expressed
through appropriate taller elements.

6.3.17 The applicant has also presented various AVRs (Accurate Visual
Representations) of the scheme from non-designated locations in the vicinity
of the site. The submitted AVR’s in the HTVIA indicate the development will
sit comfortably within the massing that is envisaged to be created across
Ashley Road South Masterplan and within the wider Tottenham Hale District



Page 53

Centre. Given the trajectory of other development across the Ashley Road
South Masterplan and Tottenham Hale, the buildings will soon form part of a
new urban structure as Tottenham Hale is regenerated and additional
development is brought forward.

6.3.18 The proposed buildings, as part of the wider masterplan, will appear

prominently above the existing tree plane in Down Lane Park. Overall, and
subject to detailed design, the introduction of residential development
adjacent to the park will provide a positive new relationship not dissimilar to
the way in which residential areas interface with urban parks in other parts of
London.

6.3.19 Down Lane Park divides the smaller scale industrial areas close to the centre

from low rise residential streets forming the hinterland transition to Bruce
Grove and Northumberland Park/North Tottenham and the introduction of a
well-designed residential neighbourhood will assist in the transition from a
new district centre to the residential and industrial hinterland.

6.3.20 With regards to London strategic views, GLA officers confirm via the Stage 1

Planning Report of 30 January 2017 that the proposal will not impact on any
view that is subject to the London View Management Framework. The
Validations Study confirms that Tottenham Hale is located at over 4.5km
away from Alexandra Palace, and the Growth Area at Tottenham Hale would
form a new cluster, which would be offset to the east and viewed separately
to the two key focal points of Central London and Canary Wharf. The
proposed development therefore would not obscure these focal view points.

6.3.21 Overall, the Cannon Factory and Ashley House scheme will have a positive

effect on the townscape and visual amenity of Tottenham Hale. The scale,
form and character of the outline development are a direct response to the
emerging policy requirement for a high quality mixed use development at
Ashley Road Area and Tottenham Hale. The visual and townscape
assessments indicate the development will have a beneficial environmental
effect.

6.4 Housing and density

6.4.1 London Plan Policy 3.3 provides explicit strategic support for the provision of

housing within London, and sets a target for the Council to deliver a minimum
of 15,019 homes in the Plan period 2015-2025. London Plan Policy 2.13 (and
supporting Table Al1.1) recognises the significant potential of the Upper Lee
Valley Opportunity Area to accommodate new homes, and identifies a
minimum of 20,100 new homes to be accommodated within the area.
Haringey Council’s Strategic Policy SP1 seeks to focus the majority of
housing growth in the designated Growth Areas, including Tottenham Hale.
Therefore, given the site’s context within the Upper Lee Valley Opportunity



6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

Page 54

Area and the Tottenham Housing Zone, and in light of the Council’s local
policy designations, the principle of the redevelopment for of this site for
housing, to include up to 265 new homes is supported and in line with both
London Plan and local planning policy.

The NPPF states that where it is identified that affordable housing is needed,
planning policies should be set for meeting this need on site. London Plan
Policy 3.11 indicates that Boroughs should set an overall target in LDFs for
the amount of affordable housing provision needed over the plan period. The
London Plan (2011), Policy 3.12 states that Boroughs should seek the
maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing when negotiating on
individual private residential and mixed-use schemes.

Amended Strategic Policy SP2 requires developments of more than 10 units
to provide a proportion of affordable housing to meet an overall borough
target of 40%. This approach is reflected in and emerging Policy DM 13,
which also sets out the preferred affordable housing size mix as set out in the
Council’'s Housing Strategy (2017-2022) which was adopted by Cabinet in
late 2016. Policy AAP3 Part B relates to the provision of affordable housing
within Tottenham in line with Policies SP2 and DM13.

The Mayor is currently consulting on an Affordable Housing and Viability
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG). This consultation draft provides
guidance to ensure that existing affordable housing policy is as effective as
possible. The SPG focuses on affordable housing and viability and includes
guidance on the threshold approach to viability appraisals and on viability
assessments.

Affordable Housing and Tenure Split

The affordable housing tenure split in Haringey is typically required to be 40%
intermediate accommodation and 60% affordable rented accommodation, in
accordance with Policy SP2 and emerging Policy DM13. However emerging
Policy AAP3 and DM13A(c) provide that this split should be reversed in
Tottenham to rebalance the historically high levels of social rented
accommodation. Policy therefore requires 60% intermediate accommodation
and 40% affordable rented accommodation in this area.

Policy DM13 also states the Council may seek to alter the tenure of
affordable provision to be secured on a case-by-case basis, to avoid
affordable housing of a certain tenure being over or under represented in an
area. This approach is in line with London Plan Policy 3.9 (Mixed and
Balanced Communities) which states that a more balanced mix of tenures
should be sought in neighbourhoods where social renting predominates and
there are concentrations of deprivation.



Page 55

Portfolio approach to affordable housing

6.4.7

6.4.8

6.4.9

The site is also located within the boundaries of a Housing Zone. The
Housing Zone programme is explicitly designed to encourage developers,
boroughs and other key partners to consider innovative and flexible
approaches to accelerate sustainable development and increase housing
delivery.

The Housing Zone also seeks a portfolio approach to housing delivery to
better align public sector resources. This approach also balances housing
tenures and dwelling mixtures across Housing Zone areas. The Housing
Zone programme is explicitly designed to encourage developers, boroughs
and other key partners to consider innovative and flexible approaches to
accelerate sustainable development and increase housing delivery.

The affordable housing tenure split proposed by the applicant is consistent
with the Housing Zone approach in which various sites may each contribute a
higher or lower proportion of a particular affordable housing type or tenure, in
line with an overall Zone-wide target. The contribution will depend on
individual site characteristics and viability. The affordable housing tenure mix
was agreed with the applicant at the pre-application stage. The overall
provision of a scheme offering 50% affordable housing is a welcome
contribution to the portfolio approach given the location of the site within a
Housing Zone and the built form of the development which offers
opportunities for larger homes. Looking at all the sites across the Ashley
Road site allocation the level of affordable housing is likely to be
approximately 36%. The illustrative breakdown across the sites is shown in
the table below and will be subject to further testing through individual
applications.

App Building |Residential [Number of |Percentage A.H|Percentage A.H|Tenure split
units (h/r) |affordable |(%) (%) (by hab room)
units (h/r) |(by unit) (by hab room)
Full Building 1 |377 units 138 units  36.6% 34.6% 60% Intermediate
(BSD) |[Building (1,120 h/r)  |(387 h/r) 138 units (387 hir) (231 hir)
1A e 52n0. AR 40% AR
units (156 hir)
e 36no. Int
units
Hybrid |Building 4 |156 units 15 units 10% 10% 100 % Intermediate
(BSD) (426 hir) (43 hir) 15 units 43 hir (43 hir)
Berol Up to 18 6 units 33% 35% 100% Intermediate
House |units (30h/M) |6 units (30 hir) (30 hir)
(86 hir)
Outline |Building 2 |Up to 265 Upto 147 |55% 50% 71% Intermediate
(NHH) |Building |units units (147 units) (411 hir) (290 hir)
2A (820 hir) (411 hir)




Page 56

ARSM

Building 3 29% AR
(121 hir)
816 units Up to 306 |37.5% 36% 68% Intermediate
buildings [(2,452 h/r) [(871h/r)  [(306 units) (871 hir) (594 hir)
(including 32% Affordable
maximum rent
NHH (277 hir)
parameters)

Table: lllustrative ARS Portfolio Approach to Affordable Housing

6.4.10 The affordable housing tenure split (70%/30% intermediate/affordable rent)

proposed by the applicant is also consistent with the portfolio approach in
which various sites may each contribute a higher or lower proportion of a
particular affordable housing tenure, in line with an overall Zone-wide target.
The contribution will depend on individual site characteristics and viability.
The affordable housing tenure mix was agreed with the applicant at the pre-
application stage and this will be a baseline position.

6.4.11 The proposed affordable housing tenure split is therefore considered to

deliver a balanced and diverse housing sector that reflects local strategic
priorities, in line with London Plan Policy 3.11. The variation to the Council
targeted affordable housing tenure split in Tottenham also accords with the
‘case-by-case’ flexibility noted in emerging Policy DM 13 and the negotiated
approach to affordable housing articulated in Strategic Policy SP2.

Affordability

6.4.12 London Plan Policy 3.12 (Negotiating Affordable Housing) states that criteria

for intermediate housing may be set locally to recognise the individual
characteristics of local housing markets. London Plan Policy 3.10 also notes
that affordable housing should include provisions to remain at an affordable
price for future eligible households or for the subsidy to be recycled for
alternative affordable housing provision.

6.4.13 In relation to Affordable Rent, LBH's draft Housing Strategy 2015-2020 states

that registered providers should aim for average rents to be no more than
65% of Market Rent. The housing strategy also sets out the maximum
affordable rents as a percentage of Market Rent for each unit type.

6.4.14 The applicant’s viability assessment has had regard to the maximum

affordable rents as a percentage of market rent, as set out in the draft
housing strategy. It has also had regard to the Local Housing Allowance
(LHA) caps for the Outer North London Broad Rental Market Area (BRMA).



Page 57

6.4.15 The Haringey Housing Strategy outlines three “cost elements” of shared
ownership products (mortgage costs on the percentage share purchased,
rent charged on the unsold equity and service charges) should not exceed
45% of net income received by a household. These are defined as ‘lower-
cost shared ownership’ aimed at households earning less than £45,000 gross
income per year.

6.4.16 The applicant notes in the Affordable Housing Statement that effective
management will in part allow for affordability and the applicant, Notting Hill
Housing, has longstanding experience in the management of affordable
housing to ensure cost elements are proportionate.

6.4.17 While the final income limits will be determined by negotiation in the S106
process, the Mayor’s draft Affordable Housing and Viability SPG notes the
income cap for all intermediate products is £90,000 per household per
annum. To ensure the units are effectively targeted to Haringey residents
and worker’s officers have worked with the applicant to maximise the amount
of ‘lower-cost shared ownership’ within the scheme and this has increased to
a minimum of 34% of overall provision (up from 25%). Current financial
modelling assumes the following mix of shared ownership units:



Page 58

LBH (Housing Strategy 2017-2022)

Income Bands Percentage
LBH Income Band 3
£40,000 - £56,000 28%

LBH Income Band 5

‘Lower Cost’ Shared Ownership for lower
income households, including those at or
just above proposed Pay to Stay threshold
(currently £40,000) £30,000 - £40 ,000 34%
LBH Income Band 6
‘Higher-cost Shared Ownership’
£40,000 - £90,000 38%
TOTAL 100%
Table 7: Affordability of Shared Ownership Units

6.4.18 These assumptions indicate that, on average the income requirements
across the proposed Shared Ownership homes achieve a mid-point of
£48,416, which sits comfortably within the Council’s Income Band 3, as
defined in the Draft Housing Strategy.

6.4.19 The applicant has also agreed to a S106 obligation to market the scheme, for
a time-limited period of three months, to persons who live or are employed in
Haringey.

6.4.20 The affordability and eligibility for the shared ownership units, subject to S106
negotiations, are considered to respond to the characteristics of the local
housing market and will provide a significant number of affordable homes,
including towards the lower end of the income scale. Taken as a whole, the
affordable housing content will make a significant contribution to the overall
balance of affordable housing within Tottenham Hale and is considered to
weigh in favour of the scheme.

Dwelling Unit Mix

6.4.21 London Plan Policy 3.8 requires new residential developments to offer a
range of housing choices, in terms of the mix of housing sizes and types,
taking account of the housing requirements of different groups and the
changing roles of different sectors. Amended Strategic Policy SP2 (Housing)
and Policy DM11 of the Council’'s emerging Development Management DPD
continue this approach.

6.4.22 Haringey’s Housing Strategy (2017-2022) does not set out a target dwelling
mix for market housing, however emerging Policy DM11 states that Council
will not support proposals which result in an overconcentration of 1 or 2 bed



Page 59

units overall unless they are part of larger developments or located within
neighbourhoods where such provision would deliver a better mix of unit sizes.

6.4.23 As the scheme is in outline at this stage, no detailed housing mix is approved
at this stage although the urban block typology and illustrative drawings
demonstrate the potential for a good housing mix. An illustrative dwelling mix
has been shown below and shows the potential for the built form to provide a
good residential mix. This will be addressed at reserved matters stage taking
into account local and strategic housing need and the preferred housing mix
identified in the District Centre Framework.

Application Building(s) | Number of |1 2 3
units bedroom | bedroom | bedroom
units units units

Ashley House | Building2 | Upto 265 | 103 units | 98 units 64 units

and Cannon Building 2A | units (39%) (37%) (24%)
Factory Building 3

NHH Outline

Planning

Application

Table 8: Indicative mix for assessment purposes (not for approval)
Affordable Housing Viability

6.4.21 The scheme has been independently assessed by the Council’s viability
advisors. As part of the assessment process and interrogation of the
appraisal officers have worked with the applicant to maximise the amount of
lower-cost shared ownership units and improve the overall affordability of the
shared ownership homes. Officers agree with the conclusions of the
consultant that the scheme provides the maximum viable and practical
guantum of affordable housing and is consistent with local and strategic
housing policies. A planning condition is recommended to secure further
details of the affordable housing within each building. The proposed level of
affordable housing is considered to be a significant factor in favour of the
scheme.

6.4.22 A further review mechanism has been agreed between the applicant and
GLA/Council officers which requires the viability assessment to be revisited
should no substantial progress be made in terms of the progression of
reserved matters within two years. Officers are satisfied this review
mechanism is required to incentivise development and ensure that the
maximum reasonable level of affordable housing is secured.



Page 60

6.4.23 Having considered the information submitted by the applicants, the Council’s
consultant, and the revised 50% baseline offer including a higher proportion
of low-cost intermediate units, officers are satisfied that the above affordable
housing offer represents the maximum reasonable amount of affordable
housing, taking into account the individual circumstances of the site. The
rents and income levels specified within the S106 agreement will ensure that
the affordable homes are genuinely affordable to local people. On this basis,
the affordable housing provision complies with NPPF policy, as well as
London Plan and Haringey Council’s local policies, which require the
maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing to be delivered on sites
subject to viability.

Summary of housing issues

6.4.24 The scheme will make a significant affordable housing contribution required
by local and strategic planning policies. 50% affordable housing by habitable
room delivered by way of intermediate and affordable rent is welcomed by
officers and weighs in favour of the scheme. The s106 process will secure
the final income levels but the scheme will deliver a significant number of
‘lower-cost shared ownership’ units, in accordance with the Council’s
Housing Strategy.

6.4.25 As part of a wider masterplan-led approach, the scheme is considered to
optimise the site potential and the potential range of tenures and mix of
affordable housing offered is welcomed. The site lies within a Housing Zone
and the affordable housing tenure of the scheme will be balanced by other
development coming forward in the area. This is in line with draft GLA
guidance seeking a tailored approach to affordable housing for Housing
Zones.

Density

6.4.26 London Plan Policy 3.4 (Optimising Housing Potential) indicates that a
rigorous appreciation of housing density is crucial to realising the optimum
potential of sites, but it is only the start of planning housing development, not
the end. The reasoned justification to policy states that it is not appropriate to
apply the London Plan Density Matrix mechanistically - its density ranges for
particular types of locations are broad, enabling account to be taken of other
factors relevant to optimising potential — local context, design and transport
capacity are particularly important, as well as social infrastructure. The
Mayor’'s SPG Housing encourages higher density mixed use development in
Opportunity Areas. This approach to density is reflected in the Tottenham
AAP and other adopted and emerging local policy documents.

6.4.27 Appropriate density ranges are related to setting in terms of location, existing
building form and massing, and the index of public transport accessibility



Page 61

(PTAL). The site is considered to be within an ‘urban’ setting where the
density matrix sets a guideline of 45-260 units or 200-700 habitable rooms
per hectare with a PTAL of 4-6. The density of the development equates to a
maximum of 265 units per hectare if the scheme’s maximum parameters are
built out. This upper end of the range would be slightly above the density
range within the London Plan’s indicative range for ‘urban’ sites with a PTAL
of 5-6a. Other local factors, including the quality of the scheme, its location
within the Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area and the Tottenham Housing
Zone, high accessibility and proximity to nearby open spaces support the
proposed density.

6.5 Masterplanning, public realm & urban design

6.5.1

6.5.2

The NPPF should be considered alongside London Plan Policies 3.5, 7.4 and
7.6, Local Plan Policy SP11, and emerging Policy DM1. Policy DM1 states
that all development must achieve a high standard of design and contribute
to the distinctive character and amenity of the local area. Further,
developments should respect their surroundings by being sympathetic to the
prevailing form, scale, materials and architectural detailing. Local Plan policy
SP11 states that all new development should enhance and enrich Haringey’s
built environment and create places and buildings that are high quality,
attractive, sustainable, safe and easy to use.

Masterplan-led approach

The illustrative masterplan at Ashley Road South is a joint collaboration
between Notting Hill Housing and Berkeley Square Developments, both
bringing forward separate applications for their respective landholdings. New
and improved links and public spaces provide the structuring ‘grid’ for the
masterplan, namely;

e Ashley Road which will be improved to provide increased pavement
widths and full environmental improvements providing a leafy avenue
where pedestrians have priority;

e Berol Link is a new public space linking Down Lane Park, through the
development, to Ashley Road. It will be a green space with ornamental
rain gardens, decks and play space, extending the park into the
development.

e Ashley Link connects to Haringey’s wider networks. It will be a linear
garden inspired by woodland belt with natural play.

e The Yard, is a potential new square enclosed by employment floorspace
at lower levels of Building 3 and Building 4.

e The Campus, within which the new National College for Digital Skills will
be the focus, with incubator facilities. The immediate surroundings of the
college will be student-oriented.



6.5.3

6.5.4

Page 62

A masterplan-led approach is encouraged by the District Centre Framework
(2015) as part of a wider set of urban design and regeneration principles.
The Quality Review Panel has reviewed the application proposals together
with proposals for the wider masterplan on a number of occasions and is
generally supportive of the wider masterplan, subject to a number of specific
issues being addressed. The proposals, pertaining to the implementation of
the wider masterplan, were recently submitted to the Council for
consideration. The design, scale and massing of this application has evolved
as part of a comprehensive and planned approach which is welcomed. The
specific design issues pertinent to this application are dealt with elsewhere in
this report.

The form, scale and massing of the building is considered to be appropriate
to the site context, and will sit comfortably within new development envisaged
in the Tottenham Hale District Centre. The mansion block layouts are a
positive response to the creation of a new neighbourhood in this part of
Tottenham Hale, while also creating a visual landmark within Tottenham Hale
and optimising the site’s potential. The scale, massing and layout of the
development is considered to achieve a high standard of design and
contribute to the distinctive character and amenity of the local area in line
with the aforementioned London Plan and local policy noted above.

Public realm, landscaping & meanwhile conditions

6.5.5

6.5.6

6.5.7

The Streets and Spaces Strategy sets out how to improve streets and public
spaces around the area to make them safer, more user-friendly and inviting.
The Strategy seeks to provide a north/south spine linking Ashley Road and
the retail park with a new street, calming traffic by creating a pedestrian
friendly environment with new controlled crossings, narrowed roads, wider
less cluttered footways and more street activity.

A key objective of the Tottenham Area Action Plan is well designed public
spaces that will be at the heart of district centres which focus on creating a
pleasant and functional pedestrian urban realm. This objective is reflected in
London Plan Polices 7.1 and 7.4, Strategic Policy SP11 and emerging
Policies DM1 and DM3.

The applicant has submitted an indicative landscaping plan prepared by
Churchman Landscape Architects. This plan details wider proposals for
public realm within and beyond the redline area based on liaison with
adjacent landowners progressing schemes in Tottenham Hale. This also
includes outline landscape proposals for areas around the curtilage of
Buildings 2/2A and 3 including Ashley Link, Burdock Road and Ashley Road
itself.



Page 63

6.5.8 The applicant has also submitted proposals for interim or meanwhile
landscaping conditions to allow for circumstances in which particular
buildings or parts of the masterplan area come forward at different times.
This is particularly relevant to the consideration of this application given the
landownership pattern, juxtaposition of Buildings 2a and 3 to adjacent blocks,
the need for coherent building and public realm design and the potential risks
associated with delay to particular sites coming forward.

6.5.9 The Design and Access Statement, Design Guidelines and Introduction to the
Masterplan documents submitted with the application all show the potential
for a high quality new public realm, establishing a high standard for future
phases to follow. The new links provided in the form of Ashley Link,
improvements to Burdock Road and ‘The Yard’ provide a positive framework
of new public spaces contributing to the ambition to create a vibrant new
creative neighbourhood.

6.5.10 The relationship of the application site to the wider public realm in this
instance is somewhat unique, as the emerging Tottenham Hale DCF
(together with the Tottenham Streets and Spaces Strategy and the
Tottenham Green and Open Spaces Strategy) will largely articulate the
direction and impression of the public realm in Tottenham Hale. This is
envisaged to be delivered in a comprehensive way (including landscaping,
paving and street furniture) and respond to the Strategic Development
Partnership’s plans for the wider area. This delivery is partly underpinned by
Housing Zone funding.

6.5.11 The buildings provide a contextually appropriate built form and framework for
the introduction of a high quality public realm, brought forward on a
comprehensive basis. The Tottenham Streets and Spaces Strategy seeks to
incorporate the landscape quality of the Lea Valley and its environs into
Tottenham Hale. Comprehensive delivery of public realm infrastructure will
allow visual consistency and enhanced place making within Tottenham Hale.

6.5.12 The Tottenham AAP states that developers and the Council should utilise
Housing Zone funding to optimise housing delivery and more effectively meet
the objectives of the Haringey Local Plan. Comprehensive delivery of the
public realm is considered to optimise such delivery and would allow the
current applicant to defer design and delivery of the public realm to strategic
partners.

6.5.13 The applicant has agreed to meet site specific mitigation (as per the S106
Heads of Terms) to ensure the responsibility for a high quality public realm.
This approach is in line with Policy TH4 which states that each development
in the allocated site will be expected to contribute to the aims of a
comprehensive public realm strategy.



Page 64

6.5.14 Notwithstanding the delivery of the wider public realm on a comprehensive
basis, detailed landscaping plans will be required as part of the reserved
matters applications to ensure appropriate landscaping to the communal
amenity areas, particularly the proposed Ashley Link and Burdock Road. A
number of other planning conditions and s106 obligations are also proposed
in order to secure the design and delivery high quality public realm consistent
with site mitigation and wider regeneration aims. These will include:

e Completion of works to Ashley Link secured prior to the occupation of
Buildings 2 and 2A

e Public access secured via planning agreement

e Completion of Burdock Road and Watermead Way works, including any
wind mitigation measures prior to practical completion of Buildings 3.

e Estate management strategy to secure long-term management and
maintenance

e Design & landscaping details in accordance with Design Guidelines

Quality Review Panel (QRP)

6.5.15 As noted above, the proposal has been assessed by Haringey’s QRP at the
application and pre-application stage. The final review took place on 8 March
2017 and the Panel’s stated:

“The Quality Review Panel thanks the project team for their presentation, and
feels that in broad terms the proposals provide a good basis for the
development of Buildings 2, 2A and 3 within the overall masterplan. Whilst
the panel acknowledges the external pressures that have resulted in the
Notting Hill Housing (NHH) parcels of land coming forward first through an
outline application, they note that there are significant risks to design quality
in granting outline permission for this high density scheme. A full planning
application would have minimised these risks.

The proposals for Buildings 2, 2A and 3 seem to have addressed the key
comments from the previous reviews. Subject to verification of daylight and
sunlight levels in adjacent gardens and public space, the panel broadly
supports the content of the parameter plans and design guidelines / codes.
Integration with the wider development and ongoing management will need to
be ensured through Section 106 agreements. The external views of the
illustrative proposals promise high quality development. The panel notes that
the reserved matters stage will be critical to ensure that this standard is
delivered.” Further details on the panel’s views are provided below.

6.5.16 A summary of the most recent Chair’s review is below, in addition to the
applicant’s response and officer comments.



Page 65

Quality Review Panel Chair's Comment

Officer Response

Scope of the outline applcation

Due to the scope and nature of the outline application
presented for review, the panel’s comments were
focused on the parameter plans and design
guidelines/codes. The parameter plans establish the
silhouette of the buildings, demonstrating: layout;
height scale and quantum; non-residential floorspace;
residential accommodation; landscape parameters;
Ashley Road; access and movement.

Commentary. No
response required.

The design guidelines identify the proposed design
qualities of the scheme, and comprise codes that will
be formally approved.

The Design Guidelines
will be secured via
planning condition.

Accommodation layout, architectural expression,
detailed landscape and public realm design were not
considered in detail at this review, as they are outside
the scope of the application.

These matters will be the
subject of future reserved
matters.

Consideration in detail of the other buildings within
the overall site (Buildings 1, 1A, 4, Berol House and
NCDS) was not undertaken at this review.

These matters form part
of planning applications

recently submitted to the
Council.

Building 2 Noted
The panel support the proposed uses within Building

2, and the configuration of the building envelope.

Building 2A Noted

The panel welcome the adjustments to the massing of
Building 2A to increase the levels of daylight and
sunlight in communal gardens and the public realm.

However, this needs to be supported by rigorous
testing of daylight and sunlight levels, in addition to
sections taken through the courtyard, to ensure that
enough has been done in this regard.

Daylight/sunlight
assessments, including
cumulative assessments
have been undertaken
and the impacts are
judged to be acceptable.

The depth of the plan suggests that a number of
single aspect flats will be unavoidable; the panel
reiterates that north facing single aspect units with a
poor outlook are unacceptable.

Officers assess the
quality of the
accommodation to be
high and the number of
north facing flats has
been minimised. Further
attention to design will be
secured via reserved
matters and planning
conditions.

The panel notes that interim solutions have been

Subject of s106




Page 66

considered for the locations where the NHH block
abuts the Berkeley Square Developments (BSD)
proposals, at the shared courtyard and party wall
location, and at the slot in the eastern section of the
Ashley House site.

provisions and secured
via Design Guidelines

However, concerns remain regarding how these
different parts of the overall scheme will integrate, in
terms of access and design. The panel strongly
recommends that Section 106 agreements should be
put in place to ensure that the two halves of the
Ashley House courtyard (NHH Building 2A and BSD
Building 1A), are coherently designed.

Coherent design will be
secured via planning
obligation & design
guidelines.

The panel notes that the proposals for Building 3
have responded to the previous QRP feedback on
heights.

Noted

The plan depth of Building 3 also necessitates a
number of single aspect units. Whilst the panel
highlights that north facing single aspect units with a
poor outlook are unacceptable, they welcome the
provision of two access cores and note that there is
the potential for some very high quality flats within the
scheme.

Noted

The panel recognises that interim solutions have
been considered for the locations where the NHH
block abuts the BSD proposals, at the yard and party
wall location within the Cannon Futon Factory site.
However, concerns also remain regarding how these
different parts of the overall scheme will integrate, in
terms of access and design.

Risk mitigated by s106
provisions requiring
integrated design and via
Design Guidelines

Design integration of the NHH Building 3, BSD
Building 4 and the adjoining public realm will need to
be controlled through Section 106 agreement.

As above

The BSD application for Building 4 and Berol House
should facilitate and secure the overall vision for a
commercially active and vibrant yard in this part.

Noted — subject of
separate application

Whilst the panel understands the scope (and limits) of
the NHH outline application, they note that there
remain a number of elements within the wider
scheme as a whole that require further consideration.

Noted — subject of
separate application

They remain to be convinced by the scale and
massing of Building 4, as outlined in previous
reviews, and look forward to considering it in detail at
a future review.

Noted — subject of
separate application

In addition, the panel still have reservations about
Building 1; they would welcome the opportunity for an
early review of this section of the site.

Noted — subject of
separate application




Page 67

Securing high quality development

The panel agree that the design guidelines / codes
should establish a high quality for the architectural
expression of the scheme.

Noted

This should include guidance on brick facades, to
ensure sufficient interest, shadow and apparent
depth, for example through recessed windows.

Amendments to the
Design Guidelines
include commentary on
palette of materials, and
requirement to enhance
daylight into the
dwellings.

Scrutiny of materials and construction details should
form part of the reserved matters stage. The
indicative designs presented alongside the
application look very promising, and set a high
standard for the next stage.

Noted — materials will be
the subject of reserved
matters, in accordance
with the Design
Guidelines.

Whilst the panel acknowledge that the parameter
plans and design guidelines/ codes also seem
reasonable, these alone will not guarantee the quality
of the completed scheme.

Noted

As detailed design work progresses, it will be critical
to the success of this prominent, high-density
scheme, for the existing architects (or other architects
approved by the local authority) to be retained.

Agreed — s106 obligation
recommended to secure
this.

Ensuring the design integration and robust
management strategies will be critical to achieving a
high quality scheme. The panel would support
planning officers in securing this through Section 106
agreements.

Agreed — wider Estate
Management Strategy
will be required by
condition and s106
provisions.

As per the above, the applicant has sought to engage with the QRP at
various stages in the pre-application and application stages, and the final
development has evolved to respond to earlier Panel advice. The result is
considered to be a high quality design that will deliver a significant quantum
of high quality affordable housing within a new neighbourhood quarter.
Future reserved matters applications will also be referred to the Quality

Review Panel to secure future design quality.

Access & building frontage

6.5.17 The Mayor’'s SPG Housing states that all main entrances to communal
entrance lobbies should be visible, clearly identifiable, and directly accessible
from the public realm. The overall movement and access strategy has been
established in the ARS masterplan, taking into account the wider strategic
ambitions outlined in the District Centre Framework.




Page 68

6.5.18 Ashley Road South will re-establish itself as part of a newly defined north-
south pedestrian friendly spine. The application includes provision for a
broad pavement on the west side of Ashley Road. The route will be
enhanced through the introduction of an avenue of trees and seating. It will
become one-way northbound and a quiet way where pedestrians have
priority and vehicular movement and speed are minimised. In relation to
Buildings 2/2A and 3 Ashley Road will remain the main access into the site
for pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles.

6.5.19 Building 2 commercial space will be accessed directly from Ashley Road.
lllustrative material also shows the potential for three accesses to Building 3
centred on its north-western corner. Building 2 and 2A has vehicular access
off Ashley Link whilst Building 3 has access directly from Burdock Road.
Similarly, residential entrances are located on Ashley Link for Building 2A and
on the north-eastern corner of and western side of Building 3. The accesses
to the residential elements of the building area considered to be legible in line
with London Plan guidance.

6.5.20 Access arrangements have not been designed in detail at this stage but will
be guided by the submitted Design Guidelines. The design precedents
shown in the guidelines are of a high standard. The detailed design of
residential entrances will also be specified in accordance with detailed
guidelines which requires prominent and obvious principal entrances. All
entrances will be expected to follow Secure by Design principles and this will
be secured by planning condition.

Building Frontage

6.5.21 The Mayor’s SPG Housing states that in mixed use development, non-
residential ground floor land uses should provide active frontages when
facing publically accessible space. Where inactive frontages have to be
located on the ground floor these should be interspersed with active
frontages and/or carefully located to minimise their overall impact on the
public realm. Long contiguous stretches of inactive frontage facing the public
realm reduce perceptions of pedestrian safety and can attract anti-social
behaviour, and should therefore be avoided. This approach is reflected in the
design guidelines for the wider allocated site in the AAP.

6.5.22 Building 2A is required to provide defensible space to facilitate visual privacy
and private amenity with the treatment across all buildings seeking to
minimise inactive frontages. It will also contain a new commercial frontage
facing Ashley Road. Building 2 will be activated by a community use at
ground level. Both buildings will front onto Ashley Link which is likely to
produce an attractive and quiet residential street. Building 3 is a more
challenging building to activate due to the length of the blocks along three



Page 69

key routes. The concentration of activity along Ashley Road also risks
diluting the potential for activation along Watermead Road and this will need
to be revisited at reserved matters stage. The guidelines require Building 3
to have a two-storey base articulation with double storey commercial space
and prescribe a maximum length of inactive frontage. The safeguards
outlined in the Design Guidelines indicate the active frontage has been
maximised and detailed design can be controlled through reserved matters
and Design Guidelines.

6.5.23 Officers consider the available ground floor frontage has been maximised at

this outline stage and in accordance with the different functions of the varying
character areas defined in the masterplan and at points where the most
pedestrian activity is programmed to occur. The applicant has also
interspersed active and non-active elements of the frontage in line with
London Plan guidance. Suitable design safeguards are included to guide
future detailed design through reserved matters and implementation.

Secure by Design

6.5.24 The applicant has worked with the Secured by Design officer to address a

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

number of issues raised earlier in the consultation process. As the
application, including landscape proposals, are illustrative at this stage the
points raised have been addressed through revisions to the Design
Guidelines which now include a specific guidance section dealing with
Secured by Design. The applicant has clarified visibility will be maintained
along both Burdock Road and Ashley Link and seating areas within the public
realm will be located away from residential entrances. A number of wider
issues were also raised in relation to the wider masterplan and these will be
addressed through separate planning applications. The outline scheme
design is therefore likely to give rise to a safe and overlooked street
environment in line with Tottenham AAP design and suitable design
safeguards are in place to secure future attention to design. A planning
condition will also be imposed requiring compliance with the principles and
practices of the Secured by Design award scheme and liaison with relevant
officers will continue through into detailed design.

Development Impacts to Heritage Assets

The legal position with respect to heritage assets is pursuant to Section 66
and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
and as per relevant planning case law, which is set out below.

Legal Position and Policy — Heritage Assets

The Barnwell Manor Wind Farm Energy Limited v East Northamptonshire
District Council case indicates that "Parliament in enacting section 66(1) did



6.6.3

6.6.4

6.6.5

6.6.6

Page 70

intend that the desirability of preserving the settings of listed buildings should
not simply be given careful consideration by the decision-maker for the
purpose of deciding whether there would be some harm, but should be given
“considerable importance and weight” when the decision-maker carries out
the balancing exercise.” The Forge Field Society v Sevenoaks District
Council case indicates that the duties in Sections 66 and 72 of the Listed
Buildings Act do not allow a Local Planning Authority to treat the desirability
of preserving the settings of listed buildings and the character and
appearance of conservation areas as mere material considerations to which it
can simply attach such weight as it sees fit.

When an authority finds that a proposed development would harm the setting
of a listed building or the character or appearance of a conservation area, it
must give that harm considerable importance and weight. This does not
mean that an authority’s assessment of likely harm to the setting of a listed
building or to a conservation area is other than a matter for its own planning
judgment. It does not mean that the weight the authority should give to harm
which it considers would be limited or less than substantial must be the same
as the weight it might give to harm which would be substantial. But it is to
recognise, as the Court of Appeal emphasized in Barnwell, that a finding of
harm to the setting of a listed building or to a conservation area gives rise to
a strong presumption against planning permission being granted.

The presumption is a statutory one, but it is not irrefutable. It can be
outweighed by material considerations powerful enough to do so. An
authority can only properly strike the balance between harm to a heritage
asset on the one hand and planning benefits on the other if it is conscious of
the statutory presumption in favour of preservation and if it demonstrably
applies that presumption to the proposal it is considering.

In short, there is a requirement that the impact of the proposal on the heritage
assets be very carefully considered, that is to say that any harm or benefit to
each element needs to be assessed individually in order to assess and come
to a conclusion on the overall heritage position. If the overall heritage
assessment concludes that the proposal is harmful then that should be given
‘considerable importance and weight’ in the final balancing exercise having
regard to other material considerations which would need to carry greater
weight in order to prevail.

Policy 7.8 of the London Plan requires that development affecting heritage
assets and their settings to conserve their significance by being sympathetic
to their form, scale and architectural detail. Policy SP12 requires the
conservation of the historic significance of Haringey’s heritage assets. Saved
policy CSV5 of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2006)
requires that alterations or extensions preserve or enhance the character of



6.6.7

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

Page 71

the Conservation Area. Policy DM9 of the Councils Development
Management DPD pre-submission version 2016 continues this approach.

Impacts to Heritage Assets

The Environmental Statement also includes a Heritage Statement which
identifies a number of Conservation Areas and listed buildings in the wider
area. However, all these are greater than 400 metres away from the site with
limited visual connection. The locally listed Berol House lies adjacent to the
site, forming an important element in the wider masterplan, and the heritage
statement concludes that the proposal would have a moderate beneficial
impact on its setting and preserve its significance. Its wider setting will also
be the subject of separate planning applications. In making this assessment
great weight has been given to the preservation or enhancement of the
heritage assets as per the Council’s statutory requirement.

Quality of Residential Accommodation

London Plan policy 3.5 requires the design of all new housing developments
to enhance the quality of local places and for the dwellings in particular to be
of sufficient size and quality. Strategic Policy SP2 and Policy DM12 of the
Council’'s emerging Development Management DPD reinforce this approach.
The Mayor’s Housing SPG sets out the space standards for new residential
developments to ensure an acceptable level of living accommodation is
offered.

All of the units in the scheme are capable of meeting the space standards in
the Mayor’s SPG Housing and the scheme gives considerable scope to
provide a high standard of residential accommodation. Future reserved
matters will be expected to comply with London Housing Design Guide
Standards.

Private amenity and children’s play space

Based on the maximum quantum of residential units proposed and an
indicative mix of unit sizes, the development’s potential child yield and play
space requirements have been calculated as follows

Age Number of Children
Under 5 33
5to 11 22
12 + 11

Total Number of Children 66
Play Space Required 663.7m2

Table 8: Projected Child Yield (London Plan requirements)




Page 72

6.7.4 Intotal, 66 children are predicted to live in the development, of which 33

would be under the age of 5. The illustrative strategy is presented in this
scheme. The areas of play space and the key principles of the design and
arrangement of the play space are captured in the Design Guidance. The
parameter plans show where the play space can be included within the

proposed area of public open space and communal amenity space.

Maximum Units | Communal Play Space Under 5
Space yrs
Building 2 12 (4.4%) 13m2 14m2
Building 2a | 83 (31.2%) 95m2 102m2
Building 3 170 (64.4%) 196m2 212m?2
Total 265 305m2 330m2
Table 9: Play Space Requirements (Mayor’s SPG)
Play Play Communal
provision for | provision for | amenity
under five 5-11yrs space
year olds
Building 2 | 24sgm - 48sgm
Building 2a | 145sgm - 626sgm
Building 3 | 459sgm - 540sgm
Ashley Link 240sgm
Total 628sqm 240sgm 1214sgm

Table 10: lllustrative proposals for play space provision

6.7.5

6.7.6

6.7.7

Policy 3.6 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that development proposals
include suitable provision for play and recreation. Local Plan Policy SP2
requires residential development proposals to adopt the GLA Child Play
Space Standards 2009, where London Plan Policy 3.6 and Local Plan Policy
SP13 underline the need to make provision for children’s informal or formal
play space.

The proposals demonstrate the potential to provide a total of 1,806m? of play
and amenity space. It is also noted that the play facilities of Down Lane Park
are in close proximity but that some remodelling and design work will be
required to facilitate improved access to the adjacent park. The mitigation
measures for this are addressed in the open space section. Landscaping and
play space details are proposed to be secured by condition.

It is proposed that the play provision for the children aged up to eleven years
old can be provided within the sites of this outline planning application. The
under five years play provision will be provided at roof level and accessed by
secure residential entrances. Therefore, the appropriate space provision for
young children has been established for each building and accommodated in
the proposals. The play provision for the 5 to 11 year olds for the application



Page 73

site will be accommodated in Ashley Link to some extent. Older children will
also have access to opportunities for play and sports/recreation in Down
Lane Park. The site also has good access to the wider amenities of the Lea
Valley. However, the shortfall in on-site provision for older children and
introduction of new routes into the park necessitates remodelled access to
the park and new boundary landscaping treatments. These mitigation
measures are secured through the s106 agreement.

6.7.8 Overall, the proposals are capable of delivering high quality private amenity
space and range of play spaces providing children with access to good
quality, well designed, secure and stimulating play and informal recreation
space. GLA officers support the play space provision within the scheme.

Inclusive Access

6.7.9 Local Plan Policy SP2 and Policy 3.8 of the London Plan require that all
housing units are built to Lifetime Homes Standards with a minimum of 10%
wheelchair accessible housing or easily adaptable for wheelchair users.

6.7.10 The development will provide approximately 25 wheelchair accessible homes
of varying unit sizes which will meet the 10% requirement in planning policy.
The development will also provide 18 accessible parking spaces, 12 of which
will be provided within Building 3 and 6 along Ashley Link serving Building 2
and 2A with the potential for additional spaces within a reserved car parking
area. The detailed layouts of units will be secured via reserved matters and a
minimum 10% provision will be secured by planning condition.

6.7.11 Level access to the buildings will be provided throughout Buildings 2/2A and
3 for both the main residential entrance doors and access from the
courtyards, where applicable. Furthermore, level access will also be
provided through the common areas and lobbies etc. Level access will also
be provided from the street to commercial premises.

6.7.12 The development parameters have been designed having regard to these
requirements and provide the basis from which to define an inclusive and
equitable scheme. The principles of inclusive design are also adequately
captured in the Design Guidelines, which will be secured by planning
condition.

6.7.13 The applicant further states that level pedestrian access to the scheme will
be provided to the commercial/retail unit in accordance with the Equality Act
(2010) and the other requirements of Part M of the building regulations. The
accessibility of the scheme is judged to be acceptable and in accordance with
the Mayor’s Housing SPG and the Mayor’s Accessible London SPG.

Daylight/Sunlight Provision to Proposed Units



Page 74

6.7.14 The Mayor’s SPG Housing states that in relation to daylight and sunlight
provision to new development an appropriate degree of flexibility needs to be
applied when using Building Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines.
Guidelines should be applied sensitively to higher density development,
especially in opportunity areas, town centres, large sites and accessible
locations, where BRE advice suggests considering the use of alternative
targets. This should take into account local circumstances and the need to
optimise housing capacity.

6.7.15 The application includes daylight, sunlight and overshadowing assessments
(revised April 2017) and considers the impacts of the proposed development
on residential receptors on Hale Road, Park View Road and Emily Bowes
Court, De Havillard Court and North Lodge within Hale Village. The
combined effects of the Cannon Factory and Ashley House development and
the wider Ashley Road South masterplan (as amended), and the cumulative
effects of the development, the wider masterplan and other reasonably
foreseeable developments on neighbouring receptors is also addressed in
the Environmental Statement.

Daylight

6.7.16 99% of the 302 neighbouring windows requiring assessment are shown as
achieving the guide levels for Vertical Sky Component (VSC) with the
amended development in place. Officer’s agree with the assessment that this
represents a high level of proportionate compliance with the BRE guidance
having regard to the site’s urban context and the suburban basis of the
guidance. The development will have no materially noticeable effects on Nos.
1,3,5,7,9, 11 and 15 Hale Road, Emily Bowes Court, De Havillard Court,
North Lodge and Nos. 1A, 6 and 8 Park View Road. These impacts are
defined as negligible.

6.7.17 Three isolated windows will experience departures from the guidance. In all
cases these will be marginal (i.e. experiencing residual VSC levels within
78%, 79% and 79% of the BRE guide level of 80%). These effects are
defined as minor adverse.

6.7.18 All of the classrooms within the neighbouring academy will continue to
experience very high levels of Average Daylight Factor with the amended
scheme in place (100% compliance). This reflects the large windows and
dual aspect nature of many of the classrooms assessed.

6.7.19 The assessment concludes the scheme will deliver very high levels of
compliance with the guide levels for interior daylighting for an urban
development project of this scale and character.



Page 75

Sunlight

6.7.20 The results of the sunlight assessment demonstrate that all of the windows
assessed serving neighbouring residential properties will comply with the
BRE guide levels for annual and winter sunlight with the development in
place (100% compliance). The development’s effect on these neighbouring
properties is therefore defined as negligible. 14 of the 17 properties
assessed showed no effect, whilst three were defined as negligible.

6.7.21 All of the windows assessed at the Harris Academy will comply fully with the
BRE guide levels for annual and winter sunlight availability with the
development in place. The impacts of the development on the sunlight levels
at the school are therefore defined as negligible, reflecting the large windows
and dual aspect nature of classrooms. The development’s impact on the
park has also been assessed. The assessment suggests the park will retain
a sunlit area of 97.8% with the development in place. This remains well
above the BRE guide level of 50%.

Internal Daylight, Sunlight and Conditions within the Development

6.7.22 The assessment also considers the levels of daylight and sunlight within
proposed residential units based on the illustrative development proposals
(this outline application only). The assessment has considered the natural
light conditions within the development both when considered in isolation and
with the wider masterplan proposals in place. This also responds to a
specific request from the Quality Review Panel for verification, particularly
internal conditions for lower level apartments within Building 2A.

6.7.23 This analysis demonstrates that the majority of habitable rooms within the
illustrative layouts assessed will achieve good levels of interior daylight.
Overall, c. 96% of habitable rooms within the lower five floors of the
development will achieve the guide levels for ADF and c. 90.3% will achieve
the guide levels for Direct Daylight when the Cannon Street J Factory
scheme is assessed independently. With the wider ARS masterplan in place,
87.5% of these habitable rooms will achieve the guide levels for ADF and
72.8% will comply in terms of Direct Daylight. Lower levels of annual sunlight
will be experienced across the development owing to the obstruction caused
by the proposed balconies.

6.7.24 Officers are of the view these remain good levels of compliance with the
guide levels for a higher density urban development project in London,
having regard to the flexible, suburban basis of the BS/BRE guidance. In
particular, the ADF results remain high with the wider masterplan in place.

6.7.25 The internal daylight results considered in the context of the wider masterplan
proposals represent an improvement on the comparable results contained in



Page 76

the original assessment (December 2017). A limited number of the illustrative
habitable rooms within buildings 2A and 3 will experience ADF levels below
the guide levels. In most cases these effects relate to less sensitive
bedrooms rather than main habitable rooms and many of the impacts are
viewed as marginal. Overall, officers agree the daylight results for the
illustrative accommodation demonstrate that the amended development
parameters proposed again provide an appropriate basis from which to
develop residential accommodation with good levels of interior daylight when
considered in the context of the wider emerging Ashley Road South
masterplan.

6.7.26 The levels of sunlight and shadow that would be experienced within the
proposed areas of public realm and amenity space in the Cannon Factory
and Ashley House development have also been assessed based on the
amended development parameters. This exercise demonstrates that the
majority of open spaces across the development will be well lit with the
scheme in place, which will assist in establishing secure and active public
spaces.

6.7.27 Officers agree with the applicant’s consultant’s conclusion that the levels of
daylight and sunlight availability within the proposed (and illustrative) units
are considered acceptable for an urban development project having regard to
the suburban basis of the BRE guidance, the orientation and potential quality
of the accommodation. The scheme is acceptable from a daylight/sunlight
perspective. Further internal analyses of the levels of daylight, sunlight and
shadow within the accommodation and the proposed open spaces in the
Cannon Factory and Ashley House development will be required at the
reserved matters stage.

Overheating

6.7.28 London Plan Policy 5.9 seeks to reduce the impact of the urban heat island
effect in London and encourages the design of places and spaces to avoid
overheating and excessive heat generation. Major development proposals
are expected to demonstrate how the design, materials, construction and
operation of the development would minimise overheating and also meet its
cooling needs. New development in London should also be designed to avoid
the need for energy intensive air conditioning systems as much as possible.

6.7.29 Modelling of the illustrative layouts has been undertaken by the applicant
which suggests the majority of the bedrooms and one third of living rooms
could potentially overheat under more extreme conditions. As the scheme
remains illustrative at this stage it is not currently known which units have
been assessed. However, it is understood the excess temperatures
identified in the analysis use the more extreme weather files, partly due to the
use of more stringent test years when high ambient temperatures were



Page 77

evident. The applicant has considered passive design measures but further
design work is recommended at detailed stage to ensure appropriate design
mitigation. Further modelling of overheating is recommended at Stage 3 and
4 of the design process. Officers agree that this is necessary and a planning
condition is proposed to ensure the units do not overheat and appropriate
mitigation measures are incorporated to ensure homes do not overheat. It
should be noted that this may impact on the overall design of the building
(smaller windows, shading introduced etc).

6.7.30 Subject to the conditions noted above, the proposal is considered to meet
standards of sustainable design as set out in the London Plan and local
policy and the development will conserve and enhance the natural
environment and make the required carbon savings identified in policy.

Environmental Wind Impacts

6.7.31 London Plan Policy 7.6 and 7.7 state that buildings and structures should not
cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of surrounding land and buildings,
particularly residential buildings, in relation to wind and microclimate. This is
particularly important for tall buildings. Emerging Policy DM6 states that
proposals for tall buildings should consider the impact on microclimate. Policy
DM3 more broadly requires improvements to the public realm for pedestrians
and cyclists in Haringey, and this approach is reflected in emerging
Tottenham Area Action Plan Policy AAPG6.

6.7.32 The outline application includes an environmental wind assessment the
purpose of which is to determine the effect of the proposed development on
the local pedestrian wind environment and on the surrounding areas as
compared to the baseline conditions. The assessment also compares the
effects of the proposed development in conjunction with the wider Ashley
Road Masterplan area and relevant consented developments as part of the
cumulative impacts assessment. In addition, the report has been revised in
response to an independent review by RWDI (on behalf of the Council).

6.7.33 The results of the wind assessment indicate that the local wind environment
once complete would change from the baseline scenario, improving in some
areas and becoming windier in others. This is due to the position, massing
and orientation of the buildings relative to the wind direction that create
localised areas of wind acceleration particularly around corners, narrow areas
where wind can channel through and accelerate, and areas where tall
elements of the building deflect the wind flow down to ground level. In
particular, the main changes with respect to the baseline conditions are
registered around the taller north-eastern corner of the site, where areas
previously suitable for sitting become suitable for standing.



Page 78

6.7.34 Overall, however, the area remains suitable for the intended uses throughout
the year with stronger winds being registered during colder periods. In terms
of pedestrian safety, all areas within and surrounding the site remain within
safety criteria. The assessment identifies the overall wind effects to be of
negligible significance in the absence of any additional mitigation measures.

6.7.35 In terms of mitigation, the existing trees along Watermead Way, in the
southern and western sides of Down Lane Park will help mitigate wind
speeds in these areas. Likewise, additional trees proposed as part of the
development along Ashley Road and in the west-east orientation are likely to
have a positive impact on the wind environment within the site.

6.7.36 A number of clarifications and corrections were included in the
Supplementary Information. The reports conclude additional trees to those
existing or proposed as part of the illustrative design are not considered
necessary at this stage but that additional testing to verify the effect of these
trees could be considered.

6.7.37 Officers agree that no additional mitigation measures are required at this
stage. Planning conditions are recommended to take wind conditions into
consideration when designing sitting areas and building entrances at the
detailed design stage. Further testing is suggested to test the effectiveness of
the measures mentioned above and verify that pedestrians are sheltered
from prevailing winds, particularly in the north-eastern corner of the site. This
is proposed to be secured via planning condition.

Noise and Vibration Impacts

6.7.38 London Plan Policy 7.15 (Reducing and Managing Noise) states that
development proposals should seek to manage noise by avoiding significant
adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life as a result of new
development. This policy also indicates that where it is not possible to
achieve separation of noise sensitive development and noise sources, then
any potential adverse effects should be controlled and mitigated through the
application of good acoustic design principles. This approach is reflected in
the NPPF, Saved UDP Policy UD3 and emerging Policy DM1 and DM23.

6.7.39 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer (Noise) has reviewed the noise
impacts to the residential units created, and examined the Environmental
Statement dated December 2016 produced by WSP/Parsons Brinckerdoff
with respect to the above proposed development. The report considers the
following potential impacts;

e Temporary noise and vibration arising from demolition, site preparation and
construction activities associated with the proposed development;

¢ Noise arising from changes in road traffic attributable to the proposed
development post-construction; and



Page 79

e Noise from any fixed plant associated with the proposed development.

6.7.40 Temporary noise and vibration due to demolition, site preparation and
construction activities are further regulated by Enforcement Response
(Noise) under sections 60, 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. Although
the exact plant equipment is speculative at this time, mitigation measures
documented in section K.6.0 will adequately address any adverse impact or
significant adverse impact with respect to noise and vibration. No mitigation
measures are required due to the change in road traffic as the predicted
increased noise levels will be negligible.

6.7.41 Noise from fixed plant will be designed or operated at such a level not exceed
the existing background noise level when measured 1 metre from the nearest
residential premises. This would confirm a low noise impact on the
surrounding premises.

Air Quality

6.7.42 The NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that any new
development in Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAS) is consistent with
the local air quality action plan. London Plan Policy 7.14 sets out the Mayor’s
commitment to improving air quality and public health and states that
development proposals should minimise increased exposure to poor air
quality. At the Local level, Policy SP7 states that in order to control air
pollution developers must ‘carry out relevant assessments and set out
mitigating measures in line with national guidance. This approach is reflected
in emerging Policy DM23 which states that air quality assessments will be
required for all major development and other development proposals, where
appropriate. Policy indicates that where adequate mitigation is not provided,
planning permission will be refused.

6.7.43 The site falls within the LBH Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) which is a
borough-wide designation due to measured exceedances of the air quality
objectives for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and particulate matter (as PM10). The
primary source of emissions of these pollutants in the Borough is road traffic
and the site itself is surrounded by heavily trafficked roads.

6.7.44 The Council’s Environmental Officer has assessed the application. The
results of an Air Quality Assessment and an Air Quality Neutral Assessment
(AQNA) has been submitted along with the outline planning application to
assess the air pollution impact of the proposed developments and determine
the change in pollutant concentrations of NO2 and PM10. The construction
phase impacts are considered to be addressed by the imposition of a
planning condition, around the provision of a detailed Air Quality and Dust
Management Plan (AQDMP). Such a condition is recommended for
imposition in Section 9.



Page 80

6.7.45 For the construction phase, a qualitative assessment of the potential impacts

on local air quality from construction activities has been carried out. This
identified that there is a high risk of dust soiling impacts and a low risk of
significant increases in particulate matter concentrations due to construction
activities. Officers agree that through good site practice and the
implementation of suitable mitigation measures, the effect of dust and
particulate matter releases would be significantly reduced. The residual
effects of dust and particulate matter generated by construction activities on
air quality are therefore considered to be negligible. The residual effects of
emissions to air from construction vehicles and plant on local air quality is
considered to be negligible.

6.7.46 Since the ES was completed in December 2016, the proposed plant for the

energy centre has been changed and instead of the CHPs proposed in
Buildings 2A and 3, there will be three gas fired boilers in each building, with
one of the three boilers acting as back-up only. The air quality modelling of
emissions from the proposed energy centres has therefore been updated.
The results of the updated modelling show that the use of boilers would result
in a small increase in annual mean NO2 concentrations predicted previously
at a number of the assessment receptors. The updated residual effects of
the Proposed Development once operational are moderate adverse at two
receptors and negligible (as before). However, the actual change in
concentrations at those receptors where moderate adverse effects are
predicted is very small and therefore can be considered to be negligible.

6.7.47 Subject to the provision of an AQDMP to address air quality construction

6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

impacts, and details of an updated Air Quality to ensure appropriate
mitigation to future occupiers is incorporated into the operational phase of the
development, together with further details of the energy plant boilers for
space heating and domestic hot water, the air quality impacts of the scheme
are considered to be acceptable and in accordance with the policies above.

Open Space, Social and Community Infrastructure

The London Plan includes a number of policies relating to social
infrastructure. The overarching policy is 3.16 which states adequate provision
for social infrastructure is particularly important in areas of major new
development and regeneration.

A review of the NHS Choices register indicates there are currently 11 GP
surgeries within the North East Locality of Haringey CCG, where the
proposed development site is located. In total there are approximately 99,000
registered patients in this locality and 49 GP practitioners. This results in a
ratio of one GP for every 2,020 patients. They are all accepting new patients
which suggests that some capacity exists within GP surgeries in the local



6.8.4

6.8.5

6.8.6

6.8.7

6.8.8

Page 81

impact area. A total of 49 GP practitioners are operating within these medical
centres.

The review of the Haringey’s School Place Planning Report 2016 indicates
15 primary schools in close proximity. The closest of these schools are Harris
Academy Tottenham, Welbourne, The Green CE Primary School (formerly
Holy Trinity) and Ferry Lane Primary School.

EduBase figures show that 6,737 pupils are currently enrolled in the primary
schools in the planning area with an overall capacity for 7,944 pupils
allocated to these schools. This indicates primary schools in the local impact
area are presently operating with surplus capacity, with 1,207 spaces
remaining, or 15%. In regards to the four primary schools situated in closest
proximity to the proposed development site, these schools currently have a
surplus, with a surplus of 1,333 places, or 51%. This is largely as a result of
Harris Academy Tottenham which opened to reception and year 7 in
September 2014.

The School Place Planning Report 2016 also indicates that of the 14
secondary schools in the Borough there are at present 2,577 year 7 places,
with demand expected to increase in the coming years. The closest of these
schools to the Cannon Futon Factory and Ashley Road site is Harris
Academy Tottenham in Tottenham Hale. EduBase figures indicate that this
school has a surplus of places with 224 enrolled pupils and 1540 places
available. The School Place Planning Report 2016 identifies that at present
there are sufficient places to meet in-year demand for years 8 to 11.

The additional population generated by the proposed development will place
further demands on existing open space, sport and recreation facilities,
particularly within the local impact area identified in the applicant’s
Environmental Assessment. London Plan Policy 3.5 states the design of all
new housing developments should enhance the quality of local places, taking
into account physical context and provision of, public, communal and open
spaces, taking particular account of the needs of children, disabled and older
people.

As outlined in the Council’s Development Management Policies DPD
(January 2016), a number of areas of the Borough are identified as being
deficient in public open space including the Tottenham Hale ward.
Nevertheless, Down Lane Park is located immediately adjacent to the
proposed development site and has facilities including football pitches and
walking paths. It is anticipated that the Park will cater for the new resident’s
needs to some extent but further mitigation is required to meet the needs of
the resident population, particularly older children, which can’t be met on-site.
In addition, comments from Natural England highlight the potential for
additional pressure on nearby Walthamstow Ramsar, SSSI sites with the



6.8.9

Page 82

potential for mitigation measures at the park should space not be available on
the development site itself.

The scale and location of the proposed development within a new district
centre does not allow for large amounts of new open-space to be
incorporated within the scheme but the scheme benefits from close proximity
to existing strategic open space provision. The scheme design does provide
for green infrastructure in order to enhance the site amenity and contribute to
the open space needs of residents. Specific play space requirements are
addressed elsewhere in this report.

6.8.10 However, the proposed design and introduction of new east-west routes into

6.9

6.9.1

6.9.2

6.9.3

Down Lane Park will necessitate significant remodelling of landscaping and
entrances into the park. These mitigation measures are also required to
meet the needs of older children in particular and mitigate additional pressure
on nearby SSSI sites and Walthamstow Ramsar. Provision for the re-design
and remodelling of landscaping and entrances into Down Lane Park are
included within the proposed Heads of Terms in order to mitigate the direct
impact of the development. Overall, adequate provision is made for open
space, social and community infrastructure, consistent with local and
strategic plan policies.

Development Impact to Adjoining Occupiers

Saved UDP Policy UD3 states that development proposals are required to
demonstrate that there is no significant adverse impact on residential amenity
or other surrounding uses in terms of loss of daylight or sunlight, privacy,
overlooking. Similarly, London Plan Policy 7.6 requires buildings and
structures should not cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of surrounding
land and buildings, particularly residential buildings, in relation to privacy. In
respect of tall buildings, London Plan Policy 7.7 states that tall buildings
should not affect their surroundings adversely in terms of overshadowing,
noise and/or glare and should not impact on local or strategic views.

Noise and Disturbance

Saved UDP Policy UD3 seeks to resist developments involving an
unacceptable level of noise beyond the boundary of the site. This stance
aligns to the NPPF and with London Plan Policy 7.15 and Policy SP14 of
Haringey’s Local Plan. Emerging Policy DM23 also reflects this approach.

While the introduction of mixed use development will give rise to additional
noise and comings and goings generated from future occupiers, the potential
noise emanating from the scheme would not create a level of noise and
disturbance over and above that of typical dwellings/flats or small scale



6.9.4

6.9.5

6.9.6

6.9.7

6.9.8

6.9.9

Page 83

commercial uses in an urban location. As noted above, the site is generally
isolated from existing residential uses.

Given that noise intensive uses currently operate from the site, the
conversion of the site to predominantly residential use is considered to be an
improvement in planning terms. The noise and disturbance impacts
generated by future occupiers of the land are acceptable in planning terms.

The impacts are of construction noise are temporary and are proposed to be
controlled by condition. The applicant has submitted a Construction Logistics
Plan prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff dated December 2016. The
applicant will also be required to join the Considerate Contractors scheme,
with proof of registration provided to the Local Authority.

The temporary noise impacts during the construction are, subject to
condition, judged acceptable. The long-term noise impacts introduced by the
development are acceptable given the existing planning position and the
nature of the scheme.

Summary - Development Impact to Adjoining Occupiers

The scheme is not anticipated to give rise to privacy or overlooking impacts
given its separation distance from existing residential development. Given
the existing commercial use of the land, the change of use to residential-led
mixed use is considered reduce the noise impacts to any adjoining occupier.
The impacts of construction noise and disruption are temporary and will be
controlled by condition.

The daylight/sunlight impacts to adjoining occupiers are acceptable for an
urban site in London. There have been no objections to the scheme on the
basis of daylight or sunlight impacts from any adjoining occupier. The
development will be in close proximity to the Academy but all of the
classrooms within the neighbouring academy will continue to experience very
high levels of Average Daylight Factor. In relation to environmental wind,
further testing is suggested to test the effectiveness of the measures
mentioned and verify that pedestrians are sheltered from prevailing winds,
particularly in the north-eastern corner of the site. The assessment identifies
the overall wind effects to be of negligible significance in the absence of any
additional mitigation measures. The planning agreement Heads of Terms
includes a requirement to modify the scheme, if required at a later stage.

Objections have also been raised on behalf of adjacent businesses currently
operating from Berol House. These are summarised in Appendix 2 and
relate to noise & disruption during and post construction; a reduction in the
attractiveness of location for business and operational impacts relating to
access and car parking for staff and visitors. The transport and access
issues are discussed elsewhere in this report. Whilst there is likely to be an



6.10

Page 84

impact on adjacent businesses in terms of noise and disruption this is not
unusual for a regeneration scheme of this scale and nature. A range of
safeguards are therefore suggested to mitigate the disruption and this
includes a commitment to establish a construction coordinator to mitigate the
environmental effects during the construction period.

Transportation and Parking

6.10.1 The Public Transport Accessibility Level of the site is 6a (excellent) towards

the southern end (Building 2 & 2A) and 5 (good) towards the northern end
(Building 3). Nearby bus stops provide access to six bus routes with a
combined frequency of 85 buses per hour (two-way). Tottenham Hale bus
station and Tottenham Hale railway and tube stations are accessible from the
site.

6.10.2 The nearest car club bays are located on Antill Road (1 bay) approximately

650m to the south of the site and Marketing Road (2 bays) approximately
500m to the north of the site. lllustrative drawings show a new 3-arm priority
junction on Ashley road to connect a new access road (Ashley Link) running
in an east west alignment to the south of Building 2 and 2A to Ashley Road.
Ashley Link will provide pedestrian access, off-street parking provision (blue
badge only), servicing provision and emergency access. A turning head is
suggested at its western extent with no general through route to traffic. All
matters are reserved at this stage, including access, and the applicant is not
seeking detailed approval for any access arrangements at this stage.

Trip generation

6.10.3 In order to assess the potential multimodal trips likely to be generated by the

proposed development, the industry standard TRICS database has been
interrogated. Trip rates for the typical morning (0800-0900) and evening
(1700-1800) peak traffic hours have been extracted from comparable sites.

6.10.5 These trip rates have then been applied to the proposed development and

based on 2011 census travel to work mode shares, demonstrate that peak
hour combined multi modal trip generation (including service trips) would be
up to approximately 80 arrivals and 168 departures for the am peak period
and up to 120 arrivals and 108 departures in the pm peak period.

6.10.6 Based on the above multi modal trip generation, the proposed development is

likely to generate around 24 vehicles in the weekday morning peak and 15
vehicles during the evening peak hours respectively. The predicted vehicle
trips generation is not expected to result in a significant or detrimental impact
on the local highway network. It should be noted that the development will not
be providing off-street car parking spaces (except for blue badge spaces) and
it has been assumed that the majority of the proposed trips will be by



Page 85

sustainable modes of transport. Person trips have therefore been largely
redistributed across the remaining non car modes to account for the
proposed low parking standard of 0.5 accessible parking spaces per
accessible unit which is equivalent to approximately 0.04 parking spaces per
dwelling. Given the car free nature of the development and the loss of trips
associated with the existing industrial use, the scheme is expected to results
in an overall net reduction in vehicle trips, including HGV/LGV trips.

Parking

6.10.8 Policy 2.8 of the Outer London Transport Strategic direction recognises the
car parking requirements for these areas to be higher in comparison with the
central areas, although a flexible approach is encouraged in applying
standards of the Policy 6.13 and Table 6.2.

6.10.9 Policy DM32 of the Council’s Development Management DPD (January
2016) establishes standards in line with relevant London Plan policies. The
addendum to chapter 6 in the London Plan includes recommendations for
non- residential uses, indicating that at least one on-or-off street car parking
space should be provided and designated for blue badge holders, even if no
other parking is provided.

6.10.10 The proposal includes a total of 18 accessible car parking spaces, 16 of
which are for residential units and the remaining two are for other uses
included in this proposal. The Access Parameter Plan (existing context)
submitted with the application shows the two areas where car parking is
proposed. Car parking Zone A could accommodate 6 parking spaces and
the car parking area in Zone B, and situated within the building 3, could
accommodate 12 car parking spaces.

6.10.11 Owing to the ‘car free nature’ of the scheme (i.e. no general off-street parking
provided), the multimodal trip rate assessment assumed that the vehicular
trip generation/parking demand is likely to be negligible. Whilst it is
considered reasonable to assume that a ‘car free development’ in such a
location (i.e. high PTAL) is likely to generate fewer car trips, there is still
potential for the proposal to generate some parking demand, which in the
absence of on-site parking, has the potential to be displaced on street.

6.10.12 The majority of roads in close proximity of the site are controlled by yellow
line ‘at any time restrictions’ including Burdock Road, Watermead Way
(clearway) and sections of Ashley Road. Additionally, a number of Controlled
Parking Zones (permit only parking) are located to the south and west of the
application site including: ‘Seven Sisters CPZ’ to the south of the site with
controls in operation Monday to Saturday 8:30am — 6:30pm; and, ‘“Tottenham
Hale CPZ’ to the west of the site with controls in operation Monday to Friday
8am to 6.30pm.



Page 86

6.10.13 In order to monitor on-street parking, following the occupation of this
development S106 mitigation measures are necessary. The contributions
agreed will be used to assess and analyse parking stress in the vicinity and,
subject to consultations, a revised Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) could be
introduced. Thus, S106 contributions to review the on-street parking, and
cover the costs associated with revision of the existing CPZ are included
within the heads of terms.

6.10.14 Taking the above parking constraints into consideration, the only other
opportunity for legal parking close to the site and outside of yellow line
controls is on Ashley Road (in parts), Mill Mead Road and Jarrow Road (in
parts) all of which are not within a CPZ. It is also noted that as part of the
consent for the neighbouring hotel development (Premier Inn), the council
required a financial contribution by way of a S.106 agreement towards the
investigation/implementation of a parking control scheme on Ashley Road.
Any residual parking demand as a result of the development proposal being
considered will be further minimised should the above mentioned controls be
implemented.

Accessible car parking spaces

6.10.15 The London Plan recommends that ten per cent of all new housing should be
designed to be wheelchair accessible from the start or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users. This equates to a requirement to
provide a total of 26 residential units, which are wheelchair user dwellings.
The Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (March 2016)-London Plan
2016 Implementation Framework reflects these standards, indicating that
each designated wheelchair accessible unit should have a car parking space.

6.10.16 In response to concerns raised by the council regarding the level of blue
badge parking being proposed, the applicant subsequently submitted a study
of comparable sites in London as evidence of the level of blue badge parking
demand likely to be generated by the proposals. In summary, the study
concluded that the maximum parking demand is likely to equate to 0.38
spaces per accessible unit based on 38% utilisation at other sites the
applicant manages. Both the council and TfL raised concerns regarding the
study, particularly with regard to the sample size, type of housing (i.e.
housing sites managed by the applicant only) and the possibility that the
study may not capture future demand.

6.10.17 In response to the above concerns, the applicant has carried out a further
assessment and provided details of sites where a lower provision of disabled
parking (0% - 5% provision) was deemed acceptable by planning authorities
in London, including the London Borough of Haringey. The above parking
study suggests that blue badge parking provision/demand can vary and the
level of parking demand can, in some instances, be lower in areas if higher
PTAL and higher in areas of lower PTAL. Having given consideration to the



Page 87

site in relation to accessible public transport connections (i.e. step free
access at Tottenham Hale LU Station) and the level of accessible bus
provision available in close proximity of the site, the proposed blue badge
parking provision of 0.5 per accessible unit is considered acceptable.

6.10.18 Details of future provision will be secured and managed via a car parking
management plan. Further details will also be required at detailed design
stage, as part of the reserved matters. A Car Parking Management Plan
(CPMP) condition is recommended to establish the overarching parking
strategy for the whole development and agree arrangements for the
management of accessible spaces. Following a comment by TfL, the
applicant has confirmed that the proposed ‘blue badge’ residential parking
spaces are to be leased rather than sold, to allow flexibility in the allocation of
these spaces. This is in line with London Plan Policy 6.13 and the London
Plan Housing SPG.

6.10.19 In addition, disabled users will be able to park for up to three hours on yellow
lines except where there are restrictions on loading or un-loading.
Furthermore, disabled badge holders may park in any shared-use bay for pay
and display or resident's parking place, or Blue Badge holder's disabled bay
for free and without a time limit. The limitation on the hours does, however,
mean some sections of the existing roads are appropriate for visitors but not
for all day parking required. Making appropriate provision for accessible
spaces will also be considered when redesigning Ashley Road and Burdock
Road, with parking provision reviewed and adjusted, balancing demand and
other public realm considerations.

Car club and electric vehicle charging points

6.10.20 Based on all of the above, it is considered that this proposal complies with
local and strategic policy in relation to car parking. In addition, there are a
total of three car club spaces in the vicinity, which new residents can use on
occasions. Two car club spaces are located on Mafeking Road
(approximately 500m away from the centre point of this development) and
equivalent to 6 minutes walking time. A further car club space is located on
Antill Road (650m) that can be reached within an 8-minute walking time.

6.10.21 The London Plan policy requires a minimum provision of 20% active and 20%
passive Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP). Due to the low level of
parking provision, officers recommend the inclusion of at least one EVCP in
each parking cluster and all spaces to be used for commercial/retail use to
have active EVCP. A planning condition is recommended, as part if the car
parking management plan, to provide locations of Electric Vehicle Charging
Points (EVCP) and indicate the criteria for reviewing the usage and
converting passive points to active.



Page 88

Cycle parking

6.10.22 The proposal includes a total of 474 cycle spaces, the majority of which will
be within the proposed building footprints, split between 434 for residential,
23 spaces for Al food retail and 17 for the B1 business offices. The proposed
provision is slightly lower than the recommended London Plan minimum
standards. It is recommended the shortfall of 15 spaces for office use is
secured via condition bringing the total provision to 489 spaces. To comply
with the London plan minimum cycle parking standards, the requirement for
long and short stay spaces for the residential part of the proposal equates to
434 spaces with a further requirement for 22 spaces for the Al land use and
32 for the B1 business offices.

6.10.23 Taking into account the balance of commercial uses discussed elsewhere in
this report, the overall level of provision will need to be reviewed at detailed
stage. The illustrative plans show suitable space for future adjustment and
an overall increase in cycle parking spaces. The proposals are considered
acceptable at this stage subject to revisiting the level of provision at detailed
stage and securing a minimum of 489 spaces through planning condition.

6.10.24 The submitted drawings show the area reserved for cycle parking with the
detailed design reserved for later stages. Future detailed design will consider
the need for parking space provision at a surface level, near to, and fronting
different land uses of this proposal, including cycle parking long Ashley Road.
Details of the locations, access to areas reserved for parking, and quality of
the proposed spaces, maintenance of the area, will form part of the
subsequent reserved matters submission.

Access and Servicing Arrangements

6.10.25 The applicant has proposed providing residential refuse storage on the
ground floor of Building 2 and 2A adjacent to Ashley Link (new access road)
where refuse trucks will be able to stop and collect refuse on a refuse
collection day/s. Track plans have been submitted and demonstrate that
sufficient turning area will be provided on Ashley Link. Residential refuse
storage areas are proposed on the ground floor of building 3 with an internal
trolley route permitting collection from either Burdock Road or the proposed
loading bay on Ashley Road. The servicing of non-residential uses on the site
is expected from two new interim loading bays proposed on Ashley Road.
Both bays are in close proximity of commercial frontages. The accompanying
TA includes an assessment of the likely servicing demand (trip generation) of
uses proposed (combined). The study demonstrates that the number of
loading bays being proposed is likely to be sufficient to meet the demand
expected to be generated by the proposals. It is advised that a revised
Delivery and Servicing Plan is submitted once the end occupiers of the



Page 89

commercial units are known, in order to ensure that the management and of
servicing provision reflects the specific needs of end users.

Highway works

6.9.26 The proposed development would require changes to the highway network.
These changes include the construction of two new vehicular access points
and changes to the existing vehicular crossovers on Ashley Road. In
addition, two on-street loading bays will be required as an interim highway
measure, until the proposed public realm enhancements on Ashley Road and
Watermead Way are finalised and delivered as part of the second stage
of the council’'s Streets and Spaces Strategy for Tottenham Hale. The
developer will therefore be required to enter into a S.278 agreement for the
implementation of the above detailed interim measures.

Bus stands

6.10.27 Discussions are ongoing between the Council and Transport for London
regarding the potential displacement of existing bus stands on Ashley Road
as part of the wider implementation of the Council’'s Streets and Spaces
Strategy. These are curtailment stands and as such do not have specific
routes they support, but are used as stands for rail replacement services and
to ensure the reliability of the bus network during Tottenham home football
games. TfL has indicated these stands are very important to the smooth
running of the network. One option being explored is re-provision along
Watermead Way. The Council and TfL have agreed to continue to work
together to agree a long-term solution looking across the regeneration area
that balances public realm and transport infrastructure objectives. A specific
requirement for future reserved matters (access) to address this matter is
included in the planning conditions and has been agreed with Transport for
London. The applicant will be expected to reflect any agreed solution in
subsequent detailed reserved matters.

Framework Travel Plan

6.9.28 London Plan Policy 6.3 (Assessing effect of development transport capacity)
makes clear that impacts on transport capacity and the network must be fully
assessed and that, amongst other things, workplace and residential travel
plans should be provided in support of significant applications.

6.9.29 The applicant has provided a draft Travel Plan which meets TfL’s ‘Attribute’
travel plan assessment tool. The Travel Plan includes a monitoring schedule
and list of measures including free car club membership for three years for
each household. On street car club provision has not been included on the
basis that preliminary discussion with ZipCar has indicated that current
demand does not warrant an additional bay/s in this location. Given the scale
of the development being considered, it is advised that the above discussion



Page 90

is reviewed as part of the travel plan and any additional provision detailed in
a revised Travel Plan action plan.

6.9.30 It is expected that a full travel plan will be submitted and thereafter re-
submitted in accordance with a S.106 Travel Plan obligation. The Travel Plan
must promote the development as a ‘Car Free’ scheme and support
sustainable travel choice and modal shift. The council will seek a Section 106
travel plan fee totalling £6000 to cover the cost of reviewing the Travel Plan
at each reporting stage. It will be necessary to secure its delivery via a S106
schedule.

6.9.31 London Plan Policy 6.3 (Assessing effect of development transport capacity)
makes clear that impacts on transport capacity and the network must be fully
assessed and that, amongst other things, Construction Logistics Plans
should be submitted to support strategic development proposals. London
Plan Policy 6.14 (Freight) states that development proposals should promote
the uptake of Delivery and Service Plans and the use of the Blue Ribbon
Network for freight transport. An update to the submitted Construction
Logistics Plan, to take into account the phasing strategy, is secured via
planning condition.

6.9.32 The proposed development incorporates a range of measures to encourage
walking and cycling, principally the proposed public realm improvements and
cycle parking facilities and would essentially be ‘car free’ apart from ‘blue
badge’ parking for disabled residents and staff. Subject to securing the
mitigation measures referred to above by planning condition and planning
obligation officers consider the proposals to be acceptable from a transport
perspective.

6.11 Flood Risk and Drainage

6.11.1 The site is located within Flood Zone 2 and is therefore considered to have a
low probability of flooding from rivers and sea. The site has a low probability
of fluvial flooding due to the high standard of protection available in the area
and the local topography. The key area of assessment is in relation to
surface water drainage.

6.11.2 London Plan (2011) Policy 5.13 (Sustainable drainage) and Local Plan
(2013) Policy SP5 (Water Management and Flooding) require developments
to utilise Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) unless there are
practical reasons for not doing so, and aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates
and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as
possible in line with the drainage hierarchy.

6.11.3 Policy also requires drainage to be designed and implemented in ways that
deliver other policy objectives, including water use efficiency and quality,



Page 91

biodiversity, amenity and recreation. Further guidance on implementing
Policy 5.13 is provided in the Mayor’s Sustainable Design and Construction
SPG (2014) including the design of a suitable SUDS scheme.

6.11.4 The potential for impacts of the proposed development on water resources
and flood risk have been identified and is supported by a Flood Risk
Assessment (‘FRA’). The FRA assesses flood risks from all potential sources
and investigates the potential for the development to increase flood risk
elsewhere taking into account the potential impact of climate change. The
FRA includes an Outline Drainage Strategy; the Outline Drainage Strategy
includes the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDS).

6.11.5 The site is currently entirely impermeable and therefore the volumetric
surface water runoff is not expected to increase as a consequence of the
development. Volumetric runoff will in fact be reduced through an increase in
permeable areas such as external landscaping. This applies particularly in
the case of landscaping along Ashley Link. The Outline Drainage Strategy
has been designed to manage a rainfall event up to a 1:100 year return
period including a climate change allowance which will help in reducing the
risk of flooding in the area and for the residents and occupants of the
surrounding areas. Surface water runoff discharged into the public drainage
network is therefore likely to reduce both in terms of volume and of peak
therefore having a positive, although limited effect on public surface water
sewer capacity (i.e. potentially less flooding in the wider area).

6.11.6 Significant effects of the proposed development have been assessed in
relation to flood risk, water supply, public sewerage systems and
groundwater. All significant effects are classed to be having either a
moderate or minor significance before mitigation. If the mitigation measures
and in-built mitigation measures specified are incorporated, all residual
effects are assessed as having a negligible significance. The assessment
conducted has identified a number of beneficial significant effects as a result
of the in-built mitigation measures proposed as part of the Flood Risk
Assessment and Outline Drainage Strategy.

6.11.7 The Council’s Senior Drainage Engineer has assessed the scheme and
requires the imposition of planning conditions to secure drainage details.
Thames Water and the Environment Agency do not raise and objection to the
scheme subject to condition. Subject to the imposition of the conditions
noted above, the development is acceptable in Flood Risk and drainage
terms.

6.12 Energy and Climate Change

6.12.1 The NPPF and London Plan Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.7, 5.8, 5.9, 5.10 and
5.11, and Local Plan Policy SP4 sets out the approach to climate change and



Page 92

requires developments to meet the highest standards of sustainable design,
including the conservation of energy and water; ensuring designs make the
most of natural systems and the conserving and enhancing the natural
environment. The London Plan requires all new homes to achieve a zero
carbon target beyond Part L 2013 of the Building Regulations.

6.12.2 The London Plan also sets a target of 25% of the heat and power used in
London to be generated through the use of localised decentralised energy
systems by 2025. Where an identified future decentralised energy network
exists in close proximity to a site it will be expected that the site is designed
so that is can easily be connected to the future network when it is delivered.
The Council’s Planning Obligations SPD (October 2014) indicates that a non-
financial obligation may be secured with respect to demonstration of
connection to the district energy network by way of a planning obligations
agreement pursuant to S106 of the TCPA 1990.

6.12.3 The applicant has submitted a Sustainable Design Energy and Construction
Statement prepared by WSP, updated April 2017. The applicant has also
provided supplementary comments in response to internal consultee
comments from LBH Carbon Management and the GLA. The revised
statement indicates that the proposed development will exceed the energy
2013 Building Regulation targets by 9.1%.

6.12.4 New development is expected to achieve the necessary energy and CO2
requirements within the London Plan and Haringey Council’s Local Plan. A
consideration of the applicant’s proposed energy strategy pursuant to the
Mayor’s Energy Hierarchy is below.

Energy — Lean

6.12.5 The scheme delivers a 9.1% carbon reduction through lean (energy efficiency
measures). Whilst at the lower end of the range, this is considered to be
within an acceptable range. Haringey averagely sees 10-12% improvement
through energy efficiency measures. The Carbon Management Team
considers this to be acceptable, subject to a planning condition securing a
minimum of 10% improvement on the site. Such a condition is contained in
Section 9.

Energy — Clean

6.12.6 The Carbon Management Team note that Tottenham Hale has been
identified as an area where a District Energy Network will be delivered.
Therefore, connectivity is expected, and an energy centre capable of
connecting to the future DE network must be designed into the development.



Page 93

6.12.7 A range of energy options have been considered and energy officers from
Haringey Council and the GLA met with the applicant on several occasions to
explore the scenarios for different energy strategies in terms of planning and
implementation, construction, cost and carbon emissions. Given the
proximity to a planned District Energy Network, officers are particularly
concerned to ensure the proposed development, irrespective of future
sequencing of development, is capable of easy connection to a future District
Energy Network.

6.12.8 The scheme is how proposing a boiler-led heating system. This is a welcome
change from the CHP proposed initially due to the flexibility and compatibility
it offers in connecting to the future DEN. The preferred option includes
individual, initially unconnected boilers, one within Building 3 and one in
Building 2 to also be utilised by Building 2A. A connection will then be made
to the DEN once the infrastructure is in place. This is a change from the
earlier proposed CHP-led solution and is viewed as the optimum solution in
terms of future proofing the development for connection to the DEN.

6.12.9 Planning conditions and Heads of Terms regarding a DEN connection are
contained in Section 9. The planning condition includes the following
requirements:

e Production of an updated site-wide energy strategy including a demand
assessment (taking into account wider ARS masterplan proposals)

e Reduction in energy demand by 10% (a broad target) through energy
efficiency measures

e Provision for connection to DEN

e NHH will work with the council in facilitating access to the Ashley Link in
order for the Council to deliver the DEN.

¢ Inclusion of renewable energy technology to offset 10% CO2 emissions

6.12.10 In addition, the planning agreement will include the following measures to
secure implementation of the energy strategy:

e All reasonable endeavours to connect to the DEN and safeguard a route
for the appropriate pipework under Ashley Link;

e Fallback provisions should the DEN not be available (2 energy options
with preference for district energy provision including requirement for
appropriate sizing of pipework & infrastructure);

e If no DEN has been delivered within Tottenham Hale within a 5 years
from planning approval, then the applicant will have the freedom to
replace the boilers serving the development with CHP or other similar
technologies;

e Any shortfall in carbon offsetting required to ensure policy compliance (as
set out in London Plan Policy 5.2) will be offset at £1,800 per tonne and
should be given to the Council upon commencement on site;



Page 94

e Overheating Mitigation Plan for each building to be submitted and
approved by the LPA in advance of the main works commencing.

6.12.11 It is acknowledged that the carbon performance is less than the applicant’s
preferred CHP ambition, but officers believe this is offset by the long-term
benefits in reducing overall carbon emissions as a result of connecting to a
decentralised energy network. This will need to be verified by detailed carbon
emissions and the technology type proposed at detailed stage.

6.12.12 It is also acknowledged that this interim solution will have a marginal negative
impact on carbon emissions in the short term but this is balanced against the
longer-term gains of easy connection to a future District Energy Network and
overall carbon emission reductions. On the basis the boiler-led solution
meets a number of conditions secured via a planning agreement, the strategy
is supported at this outline stage.

Energy — Green

6.12.13 The applicant has included 100m? of Solar PV panels as a renewable
contribution. There are no roof maps included within the energy statement
but illustrative material within the Design and Access Statement illustrate the
roof space with a balance of play space and landscaping to provide suitable
amenity for future residents. This technology delivers a 1.3% improvement
over building regulations.

6.12.14 In addition, to bring the proposals in line with policy (LP 5.2), the developer
will be required to offset the shortfall against target emissions at a cost of £60
per tonne. The value of this offsetting is currently £944,700. This will also be
secured via planning agreement.

6.12.15 Overall, the target carbon emissions for the proposed development are
calculated to be 402.7 tonnes C02 per annum. A planning condition is
proposed to secure these minimum savings and achieve a minimum agreed
carbon reduction of 10% beyond Building Regulations 2013. The proposals
provide an appropriate interim solution to meeting the energy needs of the
site prior to implementation of the District Energy Network. This provides
sufficient flexibility for future connection, subject to being secured via
planning agreement, as recommended within this report and Heads of Terms.

6.13 Waste and Recycling

6.13.1 London Plan Policy 5.16 indicates the Mayor is committed to reducing waste
and facilitating a step change in the way in which waste is managed. Local
Plan Policy SP6 Waste and Recycling and Saved UDP Policy UD7 Waste
Storage, require development proposals make adequate provision for waste
and recycling storage and collection. The approach is reflected in emerging



Page 95

DPD Policy DM4. The applicant has submitted a Delivery and Servicing Plan
prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff dated November 2016.

6.13.2 The application includes a Waste Management Strategy which includes
storage provision in accordance with the Sustainable Construction and
Design SPD Appendices (March 2013) guidance document. Volumes for the
Proposed Development were calculated using LBH’s. External bin storage
access areas are shown on the illustrative plans with two access points to
Building 2a and one to Building 2. Two separate bin storage access points
are also shown to Building 3.

6.13.3 It is proposed that each commercial tenant will provide a suitable waste
storage area within their own demise as part of their fit-out, which will include
provision for the segregation of refuse, recyclables and food waste (if
applicable). The capacity of the individual commercial waste stores will be
dictated by the commercial tenants’ business activities and the frequency that
they will receive waste collections, which they will arrange to suit their own
requirements. The overall level of provision is considered to comply with
relevant policies and further details of waste storage will be secured via
planning condition.

6.14 Land Contamination

6.14.1 Saved Policy ENV1 and emerging Policy DM32 require development
proposals on potentially contaminated land to follow a risk management
based protocol to ensure contamination is properly addressed and carry out
investigations to remove or mitigate any risks to local receptors. The
applicant has submitted a Geo-Environmental Site Assessment for both sites
by RSK Environment Ltd.

6.14.2 In relation to Cannon Factory, this identifies a hotspot of asbestos containing
material to be present in the made ground, with the following
recommendations:

e Further ground gas monitoring (completion of three monitoring visits)

e Groundwater monitoring and chemical testing for metals, PAH, TPH,
solvents and PCBs

e Determine the boundary of the asbestos impacted hotspot within the
made ground either prior to demolition or, via a watching brief during
the demolition works and the removal of the concrete slabs are to be
supported by deep pile foundations. At least one deep cable
percussive borehole should be advanced on the site to a depth of
approximately 25mbgl in order to provide information require to
complete a pile design proposal.



Page 96

6.14.3 In relation to Ashley House site elevated levels of arsenic, lead and
Polycyclic Aromatic Hyrdrocarbons were determined in the made ground and
oily black staining and hydrocarbon odour was identified in the south west
area of the site. Shallow groundwater contained petroleum hydrocarbons,
arsenic and naphthalene, likely to be associated with the historical tanks
located in the south western area of the site. Gas monitoring determined
elevated levels of methane and C)2 in the south west area of the site.

6.14.4 Recommend remediation works include:

e All the existing underground structures, including diesel tanks and
associated pumps, the UST'’s, the interceptor and the effluent storage
tank are to be removed and the underlying soils will need to be
inspected and validated

e Alocalised excavation of impacted soils may be required from the
vicinity of the above contamination sources

e A clean soil capping layer will be required in the areas of the proposed
communal landscaping

e A barrier pipe will be required for the protection of water supply pipes,
here passing through the impacted made ground

e A ground gas membrane and a potentially vapour resistant membrane
will need to be incorporated into the proposed development

6.14.5 Further site investigations are also recommended as follows:

e Further ground gas/vapour monitoring to fully characterise ground gas
regime beneath the site

e Post-demolition works including sampling and testing within the
footprint of the existing buildings and the area of the Ashley House car
park to delineate the hydrocarbon and asbestos impacted soils.

¢ In addition to those recommended by the applicant’s consultant, a
UXO survey is also recommended.

6.14.6 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer (Pollution) has assessed the
proposal and raises no objections subject to the imposition of standard
conditions around land remediation on any grant of planning permission.
These standard conditions are recommended for imposition and are
contained in Section 9.

6.15 Equalities

6.15.1 In determining this planning application the Council is required to have regard
to its obligations under equalities legislation including the obligations under
the Equality Act 2010. In carrying out the Council’s functions due regard must
be had, firstly to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, and secondly
to the need to promote equality of opportunity and to foster good relations
between persons who share a protected characteristic and persons who do



Page 97

not share it. Members must have regard to these duties in taking a decision
on this application.

6.15.2 The proposed development would engage primarily with people with
protected characteristics around physical access and have been designed to
contemporary Building Regulations. The proposed development would offer
step free access throughout including all entrances to private and affordable
housing, as well as commercial spaces. All floors of the residential
accommodation would be served by two lifts. All residential units would be
built to Part M4 (2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings' and 10% will be built
to Part M4 (3) 'wheelchair user dwellings' of Building Regulations.

6.15.3 The proposed development would be likely to provide a range of socio-
economic and regeneration outcomes for the Tottenham Hale area including
the provision of new housing including affordable housing to increase
affordability and reduce overcrowding. It would also result in local
employment impacts including displacement of existing employment but the
generation of construction employment and new employment opportunities to
the benefit of all priority groups that experience difficulties in accessing
employment.

6.16 Health Impact Assessment

6.16.1 The purpose of the HIA is to identify, assess and present any potential effects
on the health of the population arising from the proposed mixed-use
development, and to identify any interventions or mitigation measures
required to minimise potential adverse effects on health and inequalities and
optimise the beneficial impacts of the development. The report is intended to
assist in considering the planning application and positively influence the
development of the Environmental Impact Assessment.

6.16.2 The HIA shows that over one quarter (26.2%) of the resident population of
the local impact area comprises children and adolescents aged 0-17 years.
This proportion exceeds Borough and London-wide equivalent figure which
equates to c.22%. Furthermore, the proportion of 18-24 year olds in the local
impact area is higher than that in the Borough and in London at 11%
compared to 8.6-8.7%. Children and young people aged 0-24 years old are
therefore a significant proportion of the population in the local area. Two
thirds of the population comprise working-age adults (typically 18-64 years).
Notably, the local impact area has a markedly lower proportion of elderly
people (65 years plus) than the London average. In addition, Cannon Factory
and Ashley House fall within an LSOA that is within the 20% most deprived
areas.

6.16.3 Priority groups have been identified through the community profiling exercise
undertaken by the applicant, and these include:



Page 98

e Children and adolescents
e Older people

e People with a disability

e Low income groups

6.16.4 It is assessed that overall, the proposed development will have a short-term,
temporary, minor adverse impact on the health of the local population and
priority groups as a result of temporary construction activities. This will also
generate some dust, noise and vibration. Nevertheless, these adverse
impacts can be effectively overcome through mitigation, particularly the
Construction Logistics Plan. Construction activities will also generate new
employment, and will maximise the use of resources leading to beneficial
health outcomes.

6.16.5 In terms of the operational phase, it is assessed by the applicant that overall
the proposed development will have a long-term, permanent minor to
moderate beneficial impact on the health of priority groups and new residents
and a minor beneficial impact on the general public. Officers broadly agree
with this assessment. This beneficial health outcome is linked to the
provision of high quality, well-designed housing to meet local housing needs,
provision of flexible commercial floorspace that supports employment
opportunities and provides local amenities, public realm improvements that
provide opportunities for social interaction, improve access to a range of local
services and social infrastructure and create a safe environment.

6.17 Fire safety

6.17.1 Fire safety is not a planning matter rather it is dealt with at Building
Regulations stage. However, in light of recent events and the Council’s
understandable concern around this matter the applicant has been asked to
provide information regarding its plans for fire safety in the development and
in particular the sixteen storey element. High rise residential blocks are
constructed in many different ways and the varying combinations of design
and materials mean that all proposals have to be considered individually.

6.17.2 Building Regulations are minimum standards for design and construction for
the erection of new buildings and the alterations of existing buildings. The
regulations cover areas such as structure, fire, sound resistance, ventilation,
drainage, conservation of fuel, electrical installations, security and access for
disabled persons.

6.17.3 The development will be required to meet the Building Regulations in force at
the time of its construction and these may well be changed from those in
force currently. The Building Control Body (the Local Authority or an
Approved Inspector) would carry out an examination of drawings for the
proposed works and carry out site inspections during the course of the work



Page 99

to ensure the works are carried out correctly as far as can be ascertained.
As part of the plan checking process a consultation with the Fire Service
would also be carried out. On completion of work the Building Control Body
will issue a Completion Certificate to confirm that the works comply with the
requirement of the Building Regulations.

6.17.4 Fire safety provisions have several components which subdivide the building
into distinct fire compartments to prevent the rapid spread of fire. These
areas are separated by fire doors. To prevent the building from premature
collapse, the structural elements are protected to withstand the fire and heat
to a specified period of time.

6.17.5 There are also provisions to prevent fire and smoke spreading unseen in
cavities and concealed areas. Fire barriers are provided which are critical in
ensuring the fire and smoke separation between compartments.

6.17.6 External walls and roofs are required to have sufficient resistance against the
spread of fire between buildings. These are determined in relation to the
proximity of other buildings and the boundaries.

Provision of smoke detectors

6.17.7 The Building Regulations require installation of a self-contained mains
operated smoke alarm in the hallway (lobby) within each flat. These provide
early warning to the occupants and aid early evacuation and expect them to
alert the fire service. These requirements have been in place from 2006 for
new flats. In large developments, smoke detection in common areas is
provided that will activate automatic smoke vents. The applicant has
confirmed that smoke detectors will be fitted in the development and that a
smoke evacuation system will also be fitted.

Provision of sprinklers

6.17.8 New buildings with a floor more than 18m (approximately 6 stories) above
ground level will be provided with a firefighting shaft which includes a
firefighting lift, firefighting stairs and dry riser. A dry riser is a fixed vertical
pipe positioned in or close to the staircase which the fire brigade can help to
supply water to the upper floor levels. The applicant has confirmed this will
be provided.

6.17.9 New blocks of flats over 30m in height (approximately 10 stories) or more
would require installation of domestic sprinklers and those with a floor more
than 50m above ground level would require a wet riser under the Building
Regulations since 2006. The applicant has confirmed that these will be
provided as appropriate in the blocks.



Page 100

6.17.10 In general, sprinklers operate when the fire is developing and aim to keep
the fire under control, to prevent further spread and aid the fire fighters to
tackle the fire more effectively.

Materials

6.17.11 This is an outline application and as such no precise materials are currently
proposed. The applicant has confirmed that no Aluminium Composite
Cladding of the type identified as problematic is proposed. When the
materials are submitted for the discharge of the materials condition the
materials will need to meet the Building Regulations in force at the time and
taking account of the current Government Guidance.

6.18 Conclusions

6.18.1 This would be a significant development on a prominent site within the new
Tottenham Hale District Centre. Having considered all material planning
considerations including the development plan and the environmental
information submitted with the application, officers consider that:

e Tottenham Hale has been identified as having the capacity for a significant
number of new homes, with numerous sites that are suitable for new
residential-led mixed-use development. The application forms an important
first step in the regeneration of Ashley Road South, in support of emerging
allocation TH6.

e The development will provide a significant number of new homes that will
help to meet the Borough and London’s wider housing needs in the future.
The scale of development is supported by its location within the Upper Lee
Valley Opportunity Area; the Tottenham Area Action Plan and the
Tottenham Housing Zone all of which envisage transformational change.

e The minimum overall affordable housing proposal of 50% will make a
significant contribution to meeting the portfolio approach to the management
of affordable housing within the Tottenham Hale Housing Zone, and
contributing to a mixed and balanced new residential neighbourhood. The
overall tenure balance accords with the portfolio approach and is
acceptable.

e Taking into account the wider approach to employment re-provision across
the Ashley Road South Masterplan, the overall balance of employment
floorspace is considered to be acceptable. The overall balance of retail, food
& drink and commercial floorspace, subject to the controls recommended in
this report, is likely to contribute to a genuinely mixed use neighbourhood.



Page 101

The height of the north eastern tower element of the building at sixteen
stories, is appropriate within the context of a clear block structure,
announcing the new District Centre on approach from the north along
Watermead Way. This is supported in the context of the step change in the
urban context envisaged within the emerging Tottenham Hale District
Centre.

The masterplan has undergone rigorous testing since 2015 evolving with
the potential to form a well considered new neighbourhood. The form, scale
and massing of the proposed mansion blocks, of which this application is
part, is appropriate to the site’s changing urban context. The quality of the
scheme is considered to be high.

The density of the development equates to a maximum of 265 units per
hectare if the scheme’s maximum parameters are built out. This would be
slightly above the density range within the London Plan’s indicative range
for ‘urban’ sites with a PTAL of 5-6a but would optimise the site’s potential
and is acceptable.

The site is highly accessible, being located close to Tottenham Hale Station.
The site is also adjacent to a significant open space in the form of Down
Lane Park with Lee Valley Regional Park in close proximity. The mansion
block structure presents the opportunity for a good housing mix and balance
of residential units having regard to local need and site specific
characteristics contributing to the creation of a mixed and balanced
community.

The scheme will make a significant new contribution to the quality of the
public realm, facilitating the enhancement of Ashley Road as a new central
spine and delivering a significant new east-west route from Down Lane Park
towards the planned College (Ashley Link) all of which weigh heavily in
favour of the scheme.

The development, subject to s.106 provisions to secure remodelling of
access to Down Lane Park, will relate positively to the adjacent Down Lane
Park, providing new and improved pedestrian & cycle links. Building 2 in
particular, holds the potential to be a high quality pavilion building at the
interface between the park and a new neighbourhood.

The proposal will deliver a compliant quantum of wheelchair housing and all
of the units will receive an acceptable amount of daylight and sunlight when
assessed against relevant BRE criteria. Subject to mitigation at the
condition stage, the noise, vibration and air quality impacts to future
occupiers of the units are acceptable.



Page 102

e No additional mitigation measures in relation to environmental wind are
considered necessary at this stage. Planning conditions are recommended
to take wind conditions into consideration when designing sitting areas and
building entrances at the detailed design stage. Further testing is suggested
to test the effectiveness of the measures mentioned above and verify that
pedestrians are sheltered from prevailing winds, particularly in the north-
eastern corner of the site.

e Following a request from officers, the applicant has provided additional
information in respect of fire safety in the form of a question and answer
sheet. No details are being approved at this outline stage and all details
and materials will be the subject of reserved matters in addition to
requirements relating to Building Regulations. Officers are satisfied that the
commitments made would meet Building Regulations.

e The transportation impacts to the scheme are acceptable. The scheme will
not generate a significant increase in traffic or parking demand and a car
free scheme is acceptable. The provision of cycle storage is policy
compliant.

e The applicant has committed to a future district energy connection and will
work with the Council to safeguard a pipework route under the proposed
Ashley Link. Taking into account the proposed S106 obligations to provide
an updated energy strategy and agreement a carbon offset payment if
required, the design of the scheme is considered to be sustainable. The
issues of flood risk, drainage, land contamination and waste storage are
able to be addressed by the imposition of conditions.

e The proposal, subject to appropriate planning conditions, will incorporate
SUDs and would not increase flood risk and is considered to be a
sustainable design.

e The proposals are not considered to give rise to any adverse equalities
impact upon the protected characteristics of any individual or group and the
operational phase of the proposal is assessed as being beneficial in the
long-term.

7 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

7.11.1 Based on the information given on the plans, the Mayoral CIL charge will be
£513,240 and the Haringey CIL charge will be £175,995. This is an estimated
figure based on the outline plans and will be collected by Haringey
after/should the scheme is/be implemented and could be subject to
surcharges for failure to assume liability, for failure to submit a
commencement notice and/or for late payment, and subject to indexation in
line with the construction costs index. An informative will be attached advising



Page 103

the applicant of this charge. The applicant may apply for relief as a
Registered Provider of social housing following on from the grant of planning
permission.

8 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.11

GRANT PERMISSION subiject to conditions and subject to sec. 106 legal

Agreement.

9 CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES

CONDITIONS
No Condition
1. Reserved Matter Approval (Scale, Appearance, Layout, Access,

Landscaping)

This permission is granted in OUTLINE, in accordance with the provisions
of Article 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and before any
development is commenced, the approval of the Local Planning Authority
shall be obtained to the following reserved matters:

(a) appearance;
(b) landscaping;
(c) layout; and
(d) scale

(e) access

Full particulars of these reserved matters, including plans, sections and
elevations and all to an appropriate scale, and any other supporting
documents shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for the
purpose of obtaining their approval, in writing. The development shall
then be carried out in complete accordance with those particulars.

For the avoidance of doubt, the illustrative drawings submitted in support
of the application including those set out within the approved Design and
Access Statements are not approved.

Reason: In order to comply with the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as
amended) which requires the submission to and approval by, the Local
Planning Authority of reserved matters.

PRIOR TO RESERVED MATTERS - Affordable Housing Strategy
Prior to the determination of Reserved Matters application an affordable




Page 104

housing strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority relating to the provision of a minimum of 50%
Affordable Housing. The details set out in the strategy shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the approved strategy, unless otherwise
agreed by the Local Planning Authority. Such a strategy for each phase
must include:

I. The overall %, numbers, tenure, affordability and location of the
affordable housing provision to be made within the related
phase;

iii. The timing of the construction of the affordable housing;

iv. The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for
both initial and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing;
and

Reason: To secure details relating to the provision of affordable housing
and accord with London Plan Policy 3.11 Affordable housing targets.

PRIOR TO RESERVED MATTERS - Phasing strategy & details

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be carried out unless
and until a phasing strategy showing the location of each building and
including details of the order in which the buildings will be commenced,
has been be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority
unless otherwise agreed in writing in the event that the component
buildings are delivered concurrently.

The phasing strategy shall include details of:

1. the order in which the development and occupation of buildings
within the relevant phase shall take place taking into account its
relationship to the wider ARS masterplan;

2. the quantum, tenure and location of affordable housing to be
provided in that phase of the development;

3. the area, location and programme for construction of public open
space, public realm and landscaping to be provided in that phase;

4. the quantum and location of car parking to be provided in that
phase;

5. the quantum and location of cycle parking to be provided in that
phase;

6. the quantum and location of motorcycle and powered two wheeled
vehicular parking to be provided in that phase;

7. infrastructure, including the capacity of shared energy

infrastructure for that phase;

the principles of waste / refuse and servicing for that phase; and
the chargeable development(s) comprised in that phase for the
purposes of the Community Infrastructure Levy.

© ®

The Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the




Page 105

approved phasing strategy, subject to such amendments to such phasing
strategy as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority from time to
time.

Reason: To ensure that the development is consistent with the principles
of good masterplanning. It is necessary for condition to prevent
commencement of the development until the requirements have been
met because the timing of compliance is fundamental to the decision to
grant planning permission.

COMPLIANCE - Time limits for Reserved Matters

All applications for the approval of Reserved Matters within the OUTLINE
permission hereby approved, as depicted on the approved plans shall be
made to the Local Planning Authority no later than the expiration of five
years from the date of this permission, and the development hereby
authorised must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the
following dates, failing which the permission shall be of no effect:

a) The expiration of five years from the date of this permission OR
b) The expiration of two years from the final date of approval of any of
the reserved matters.

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of Section 92 of the Town &
Country Planning Act 1990 and to prevent the accumulation of
unimplemented planning permissions.

COMPLIANCE - Reserved Matters Specification (List of
documentation to accompany Reserved Matters Applications)

Each application for the approval of Reserved Matters submitted pursuant
to condition 2 shall contain such information set out below as is relevant
to the application and shall be consistent with the information approved
for the relevant building pursuant to Condition 4 (Phasing Strategy).

e A statement (including accompanying design material) to
demonstrate compliance with the parameter plans,
Development Specification and mandatory requirements in the
approved Design Guidelines (April 2017)
Access
1) Notwithstanding submitted illustrative material the Ashley Road
and Burdock Road bus stands shall remain in situ until such
time as a report and plans detailing the location and
arrangements for delivering the replacement of the bus stands
on Ashley Road and Burdock Road have been submitted and
approved as part of the reserved matters, in consultation with
Transport for London.




Page 106

2) Detailed plans and drawings including such drawings to show
method of construction, traffic calming measures, drainage,
street lighting, kerb alignment, levels, areas of highway visibility
and surface treatment.

3) Areport and plans detailing layout including parking areas,
servicing areas and plant areas; and

4) A report and plans detailing any necessary temporary layout and
landscaping associated with boundary treatment and condition;

Layout
1) Anupdated commercial report and layout plan detailing
commercial uses across the development, taking into account the
wider commercial provision across the ARS masterplan;

Landscaping

1) Details of the play equipment proposed for the child play spaces;

2) Notwithstanding the Design Guidelines plans, drawings, sections
and elevations to explain full details of the materials to be used on
all external surfaces (including hard landscaping) and, where
practicable, samples shall be provided and shall include:
¢ hard surfacing materials
e minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, refuse or other

storage units, signs, lighting etc.)
e Dbat/bird boxes

3) Notwithstanding the Design Guidelines details of soft landscape
works shall include:

e how the landscaping will interface with Down Lane Park and
facilitate access;

e planting plans (for amenity areas);

e a full schedule of species of new trees and shrubs proposed to
be planted;

e written specifications (including cultivation and other
operations) associated with plant and grass establishment;

e schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate; and

e an implementation programme detailing the timing of delivery.

Appearance
1) Details of rooftop and roofscape in accordance with Design
Guidelines (April 2017).

Reason: To ensure the development is consistent with London Plan
Policies 3.5, 7.4 and 7.6, Local Plan Policy SP11, and emerging Policy
DM1. The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-
commencement requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the
development permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to
refuse the whole permission.




Page 107

COMPLIANCE - Development in Accordance with Approved
Drawings and Documents

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved
plans and documents except where conditions attached to this planning
permission indicate otherwise or where alternative details have been
subsequently approved following an application for a non-material
amendment.

a) Development Specification (Revised April 2016);
b) Design Guidelines (April 2017)
c) The following plans:

The approved plans comprise drawing no’s: Site Location 1824-JMP-02-
XX-DR-A-0001 Rev A; Planning Application Boundary 1824-JMP-02-00-
DR-A-0002 Rev C; Site Location (proposed buildings shown) 1824-JMP-
02-XX-DR-A-0003 Rev C; Demolition Plan 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-1001;
Existing Ground Levels 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-1002 Rev A; Building
Footprints — Maximum Parameters (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-XX-
DR-A-0004 Rev E; Building Heights — Maximum Parameters (existing
context) 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-0005 Rev G; Access Parameters
(existing context) 1824-JMP-02-XX-DR-A-0006 Rev E; Land Use
Parameters — Ground Floor (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-00-DR-A-
0007 Rev E; Land Use Parameters — First Floor (existing context) 1824-
JMP-02-01-DR-A-0008 Rev D; Land Use Parameters — Typical Upper
Floor (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-02-DR-A-0009 Rev E; Proposed
Ground and Floor Levels (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-00-DR-A-0017
Rev C; Use Frontage Ground Floor (existing context) 1824-JMP-02-00-
DR-A-0018 Rev A; Landscape Parameters Ground Level (showing
existing context across the Ashley Road South Masterplan) 449-101 Rev
02; Landscape Parameters Upper/Roof Level (showing existing context
across the Ashley Road South Masterplan) 449-103 Rev 02.

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance
with the approved details and for the avoidance of doubt.

COMPLIANCE - Environmental Statement

All submissions of details pursuant to the planning permission hereby
approved shall be in substantial accordance with the Environmental
Statement dated December 2016 and the Supplementary Environmental
Statement dated April 2017.

Reason: In order to ensure that the details of the development are within
the parameters assessed in the Environmental Statement and that the
development is carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures
set out in the Environmental Statement in order to minimise the




Page 108

environmental effects of the development.

COMPLIANCE - Environmental Statement: Reserved Matters
Applications

Each reserved matters application shall be preceded by the adoption of
an EIA screening opinion by the LPA;

I. ifitis demonstrated that an application for reserved matters
approval is not likely to give rise to any additional significant
environmental effects in comparison with the Development as
approved by this Permission and assessed in the Environmental
Statement, a further environmental statement shall not be
required,;

II.  where an application for reserved matters approval would be likely
to have significant environmental effects, as screened and agreed
by the Council prior to the submission of any such application, that
application will be accompanied by an Environmental Statement
assessing the likely significant effects of the details applied for.

Reason: In order to ensure that the details of the development are within
the parameters assessed in the Environmental Statement and that the
development is carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures
set out in the Environmental Statement and to accord with the
Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations (2017).

COMPLIANCE - Quantum of Development

The total quantum of built floorspace across the Development shall not
exceed 265 residential units and 3,600 square metres (GEA) of non-
residential floorspace. The development hereby permitted shall comply
with the following amounts unless otherwise permitted:

Building | Non-residential floorspace | Residential units
(A1/A3/B1/D1)

Maximum Minimum
Building | Upto 600sgm Up to 97 units
212A 725sgm
Building | Upto 2,150sgm Up to 168 units
3 2.565sgm
Total 3,000sgm Up to 265 units

Upto 3,290 | (GEA)

sgm (GIA) Up to 2,750

sgm (GIA)

Reason: To ensure that the Development is undertaken in accordance
with the approved drawings and documents; the assessed Environmental
Statement; and to protect local amenity.




Page 109

COMPLIANCE - LAND USE (Community)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order
revoking and re-enacting that Order) the community space at ground floor
level in Building 2 hereby permitted shall only be used for D1 and for no
other purpose unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority or
any use permitted by the above order.

Reason: In order to secure the Council’s placemaking objectives in
pursuance of Local Plan policies SP11 and London Plan Policies 3.16
relating to community and social infrastructure.

10.

COMPLIANCE - LAND USE (Retail)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order
revoking and re-enacting that Order) the non-residential space shall not
exceed 450sgm in respect of Class Al use and 300sgm in respect of
Class A3 use hereby permitted unless otherwise agreed by the Local
Planning Authority or any use permitted by the above order.

Reason: In order to bring the proposal into line with the mixed-use
employment-led policy DM38 which requires the maximum viable re-
provision of employment floorspace.

11.

COMPLIANCE - Development in Conformity with Energy Statement
The development hereby approved shall be constructed and delivered to
the U-values set out in the document Sustainable Design, Energy and
Construction Statement prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff dated
April 2017 (and appended to the Planning Statement dated April 2017),
and any energy strategy document thereafter approved, and the
development shall achieve a minimum carbon reduction of 10% beyond
Building Regulations 2013.

Reason: to mitigate the impacts of climate change in accordance with
policies 3.2, 5.3, 5.5, 5.6 and 7.14 of the London Plan 2015 (with FALP
2011/REMA 2013).

12.

COMPLIANCE - Land Contamination — Part C

Where remediation of contamination on the site is required, completion of
the remediation detailed in the method statement shall be carried out and
a report that provides verification that the required works have been
carried out, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the development is occupied.

Reason:. To ensure the development can be implemented and occupied




Page 110

with adequate regard for environmental and public safety.

13.

COMPLIANCE - Landscaping — Replacement of Trees and Plants
(LBH Development Management)

Any tree or plant on the development (including roof top amenity areas)
which, within a period of five years of occupation of the approved
development 1) dies 2) is removed 3) becomes damaged or 4) becomes
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with a similar size
and species of tree or plant.

Reason: to protect the amenity of the locality.

14.

COMPLIANCE - NRMM Inventory and Documentation Availability

An inventory of all NRMM shall be kept on site during the course of the
demolitions, site preparation and construction phases of the
development. All machinery should be regularly serviced and service
logs kept on site for inspection. Records shall be kept on site which detail
proof of emission limits for all equipment. This documentation should be
made available to Local Authority Officers as required until development
completion.

Reason: To prevent adverse impact on air quality within an Air Quality
Management Area (AQMA) as required by Policy 7.14 in the London Plan
(2016).

15.

COMPLIANCE - Accessibility

The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the
inclusivity and accessibility measures identified in the Design and Access
Statement dated April 2017 with regard to the fit out in accordance with
Building Regulations Part M4 category 2. At least 10% of all dwellings
hereby approved shall be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
wheelchair use (Part M4 (3) 'wheelchair user dwellings' of the Building
Regulations 2015).

Reason: To provide suitable access for disabled persons in accordance
with London Plan (2015) policy 3.8 ‘Housing Choice’.

16.

COMPLIANCE - Compliance with London Housing Design Standards
The development shall comply with the London Plan Policy 3.5 and draft
London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) space
standards and as far as practical shall meet all other requirements within
the draft London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance 2016,
particularly the requirements regarding dual aspect units.

Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory standard of accommodation for
future occupiers of the development.




Page 111

17.

COMPLIANCE - Individual Satellite dishes or television antennas
precluded

The placement of any satellite dish or television antenna on any external
surface of the development is precluded, excepting the approved central
dish/receiving system noted in the condition above.

Reason: to protect the amenity of the locality.

PRE COMMENCEMENT

18.

PRE COMMENCMENT - Confirmation of Site Levels

Prior to the commencement of the development (except demolition
works) details of all existing and proposed levels on the site in relation to
the adjoining properties be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that any works in conjunction with the
permission hereby granted respects the height of adjacent properties
through suitable levels on the site.

The local planning authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirement of the condition is so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

19.

PRE COMMENCEMENT Drainage Strategy (Thames Water)
Development, excluding demolition and site preparation works, shall not
commence until a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site
drainage works, has been submitted in writing to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the sewerage undertaker.
No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into
the public system until the drainage works referred to in the strategy have
been completed.

Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that
sufficient capacity is made available to cope with the new development;
and in order to avoid adverse environmental impact upon the community.

The local planning authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirement of the condition is so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

20.

PRE COMMENCEMENT - Archaeology (Written Scheme of
Investigation)
No demolition or development shall take place until a written scheme of




Page 112

investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no
demolition or development shall take place other than in accordance with
the agreed WSI, which shall include the statement of significance and
research objectives, and:

a. The programme and methodology of site investigation and
recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or
organisation to undertake the agreed works.

b. The programme for post investigation assessment

c. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and
recording

d. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the
analysis and records of the site investigation

e. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and
records of the site investigation

f.  Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to
undertake the works set out within the Written Scheme of
Investigation.

g. The site investigation shall be completed prior to development, or
in such other phased arrangement, as agreed and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall take place within the area indicated until the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work has been
secured, in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To protect archaeological interests by providing an opportunity
to investigate and record the site in accordance with London Plan (2015)
policy 7.8 ‘Heritage Assets and Archaeology’. The Local Planning
Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement requirements of the
condition are so fundamental to the development permitted that it would
have been otherwise necessary to refuse the whole permission.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

21.

PRE COMMENCEMENT - Tree protection meeting (pre-
commencement)

No development shall start until all those trees to be retained, as
indicated in the Tree Protection Plans (2931-ARB-03 Rev B) (April 2017),
have been protected by secure, stout, exclusion fencing erected at the
recommended distance for the Root Protection Areas (RPA), in




Page 113

accordance with BS 5837: 2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolitions
and Construction. Any works connected with the approved scheme
within the RPA shall be carried out under the supervision of the
Arboricultural Consultant. No storage of materials, supplies or plant
machinery shall be stored, parked, or allowed access within the RPA.
The Local Planning Authority shall be given not less than two weeks’ prior
written notice by the developer of the commencement of works on the site
in order that the council may verify via a site meeting attended by all
interested parties to confirm all the protection measures to be installed for
trees and discuss any construction works that may impact on the root
protection areas. The tree protective measures must be inspected or
approved by the Council Arboricultural officer, prior to the
commencement of demolition works on site. All construction works within
the root protection areas or that may impact on them, must be carried out
under the supervision of the Consultant Arboriculturist.

Reason: In order to safeguard the root systems of those trees on the site
which are to remain after building works are completed in the interests of
visual amenity. The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-
commencement requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the
development permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to
refuse the whole permission.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

22.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT — Water supply (Thames Water)

Prior to the commencement of development, excluding demolition and
site clearance, impact studies of the existing water supply infrastructure
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority in consultation with Thames Water. The studies shall determine
the magnitude of any new additional capacity required in the system and
a suitable connection point. The development shall not be commenced
until the studies have been approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development shall not be brought into use until any
necessary mitigation measures identified by the impact studies have
been approved in writing by the local planning authority and carried out in
full in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the water supply infrastructure has sufficient
capacity to cope with the additional demand in accordance with London
Plan (2015) policies 5.14 ‘Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure’
and 5.15 ‘Water Use and Supplies’. The Local Planning Authority is
satisfied that the pre-commencement requirements of the condition are




Page 114

so fundamental to the development permitted that it would have been
otherwise necessary to refuse the whole permission.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

23.

PRE- COMMENCEMENT - Construction Environmental Management
Plan

Prior to the commencement a Construction Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP) for the relevant Phase shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall provide details
of how demolition and construction works are to be undertaken and
include (a):

i) The identification of stages of works;

i) Details of working hours, which unless otherwise agreed with the Local
Planning Authority shall be limited to 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday
and 08.00 to 13.00 on Saturdays);

iii) Details of all plant and machinery to be used during demolition and
construction stage, including an inventory of all Non Road Non-road
Mobile Machinery (NRMM);

iv) Details of an Unexploded Ordnance Survey;

v) Details of community engagement arrangements;

vi) Details of any acoustic hoarding;

ix) A temporary drainage strategy and performance specification to
control surface water runoff and Pollution Prevention Plan (in accordance
with Environment Agency guidance);

x) Details of external lighting

b) The inventory of NRMM shall be kept on site during the course of the
demolitions, site preparation and construction phases. All machinery shall
be regularly serviced and service logs kept on site for inspection. Records
shall be kept on site which details proof of emission limits for all
equipment. This documentation shall be made available to local authority
officers as required until development completion.

The works shall only be carried out in accordance with an approved
CEMP.

Reason: To safeguard residential amenity, protect areas of nature
conservation interest and prevent adverse impact on air quality within an
Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) as required by Policies 7.14, 7.18
and 7.19 of the London Plan (2016), Policy SP13 of the Haringey Local
Plan (2013) and Saved Policy ENV7 of the Haringey Unitary
Development Plan (2006).




Page 115

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

24,

PRE COMMENCEMENT - Land Contamination — Part A and B
Land Contamination — Part A and B
Before development commences other than for investigative work:

Using the information from Chapter L of the Environmental Statement
(12944366v1) a site investigation shall be designed for the site. This shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to that investigation being carried out on site. The investigation must
be comprehensive enough to enable:-

1. arisk assessment to be undertaken,

2. refinement of the Conceptual Model, and

3. the development of a Method Statement detailing the

remediation requirements.

The risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model shall be submitted,
along with the site investigation report, to the Local Planning Authority.

B) If the updated risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model indicate
any risk of harm, a Method Statement detailing the remediation
requirements, using the information obtained from the site investigation
and the potential effects set out in Section L5 of the Environmental
Statement dated December 2016, and also detailing any post remedial
monitoring shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority prior to that remediation being carried out on site.

Reason: To ensure the development can be implemented and occupied
with adequate regard for environmental and public safety.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition is so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

25.

PRE COMMENCEMENT - Details of AQDMP (Dust)

Prior to the commencement of the development an Air Quality and Dust
Management Plan (AQDMP), detailing the management of demolition
and construction dust, shall be submitted in writing to and for approval by
the Local Planning Authority. The (AQDMP) shall be in accordance with
the GLA SPG Dust and Emissions Control and include an updated Dust
Risk Assessment in substantial accordance with the Dust Risk




Page 116

Assessment dated December 2016. The plan shall be implemented as
approved and maintained for the duration of the construction phase of the
development.

Reason: To prevent adverse impact on air quality within an Air Quality
Management Area (AQMA) as required by Policy 7.14 in the London Plan
(2016).

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

26.

PRE COMMENCEMENT OF SUPERSTRUCTURE - Waste
Management Scheme

Prior to the commencement of any superstructure works on the approved
buildings, and notwithstanding the approved Delivery and Servicing Plan
(Prepared by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff dated December 2016) details
of an updated scheme setting out the collection and storage of waste and
recycled materials shall be submitted in writing to and for approval by the
Local Planning Authority.

The updated scheme shall address:

1) Waste and recycling collection frequency, following liaison with
Haringey’s Waste Management Team and Veolia (Haringey’s
waste service provider)

2) The cost implications of collection frequency to future occupiers

3) The management of waste on site, including bin rotation and
storage layout

4) The collection storage areas

The details shall be implemented as approved prior to the occupation of
the development for residential purposes, and maintained thereafter.
Reason: to protect the amenity of the locality.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

27.

PRE COMMENCEMENT - Updated Construction Logistics Plan
No development shall take place until such times as an updated
Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for the relevant phase has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
CLP shall include the following details:

i) Update to the Construction Logistics Plan prepared by WSP




Page 117

Parsons Brinkerhoff dated December 2016 to include phased
development;

i) Monitoring and joint working arrangements across Ashley
Road South Masterplan area,;

iii) Site access and car parking arrangements;

iv) Delivery booking systems;

V) Construction phasing and agreed routes to/from the
development replace lorry routeing;

Vi) Timing of deliveries to and removals from the site (to avoid

peak times as agreed with HA) L07.00 to 9.00 and 16.00 to
18.00 where possible);

vii) Construction works shall only proceed in accordance with the
approved relevant CLP;

viii)  Travel plans for staff/ personnel involved in construction.

Reason: To update the existing CLP to account for phased development
in the area, reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of
traffic on the transportation and highways network.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS

28.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Piling method statement
(Thames Water)

No piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the
depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which
such piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and
minimise the potential for damage to subsurface sewerage infrastructure,
and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water.
Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the
approved piling method statement.

Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground
sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local
underground sewerage utility infrastructure. The applicant is advised to
contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0800 009 3921 to discuss
the details of the piling method statement.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition is so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.




Page 118

29.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Biodiversity Enhancement
Plan
a) Prior to commencement of above ground works, a Biodiversity
Enhancement Plan (BEP) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The BEP shall be in
accordance with the Environmental Statement (dated December
2016) and include:
i) Integration of bird and bat boxes;
i) Details of native and ‘nectar rich’ landscaping; and
iif) Soft landscaping management & maintenance.

b) The Biodiversity enhancement measures set out in the approved BEP
shall be implemented.

Reason: In order to ensure that the authorised development makes a
positive contribution to biodiversity in accordance with Policies 7.18 and
7.19 of the London Plan (2015), Policy SP13 of the Haringey Local Plan
(2013) and Saved Policy ENV7 of the Haringey Unitary Development
Plan (2006).

30.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Sustainable Urban Drainage
Prior to the commencement of above ground works details of the design,
implementation, maintenance and management of the sustainable
drainage scheme shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
local planning authority. Those details shall include:

1. Information about the design storm period and intensity,
discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post
development), temporary storage facilities, means of
access for maintenance, the methods employed to delay
and control the surface water discharged from the site
and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution
of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

2. Any works required off-site to ensure adequate
discharge of surface water without causing flooding or
pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing
culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts
where relevant);

3. Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site;

4. A timetable for its implementation, and

5. A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of
the development which shall include the arrangements
for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory
undertaker, management and maintenance by a
Residents’ Management Company or any other




Page 119

arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable
drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.

Once approved, the scheme shall be implemented, retained, managed
and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect
water quality, improve habitat and amenity, and ensure future
maintenance of the surface water drainage system in accordance with
Policy 5.13 of the London Plan.

The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the pre-commencement
requirements of the condition are so fundamental to the development
permitted that it would have been otherwise necessary to refuse the
whole permission.

31.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Energy Strategy
Notwithstanding the submitted details and prior to the commencement of
above ground works, excluding demolition and site preparation works, a
revised energy strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The Energy Strategy shall, unless otherwise
agreed by the local planning authority, be based on connection of all
residential and non-residential buildings to a district energy and heating
network. The strategy shall explore all reasonable options for improving
the energy efficiency of the building and reducing carbon dioxide
emissions in accordance with the energy hierarchy set out in London Plan
policy 5.2 ‘Minimising carbon dioxide emissions’. The Strategy will comply
with the targets and measures set out in London Plan (2016) Policy 5.2
and will be submitted using the format set out in the GLA guidance on
Energy Strategies. The development shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development hereby approved is energy
efficient and to contribute to the avoidance of need for new fossil fuel or
other primary energy generation capacity and to reduce emissions of
greenhouse gases and to minimise the impact of building emissions on
local air quality in the interests of health, in accordance with policies 3.2,
5.3, 5.5, 5.6 and 7.14 of the London Plan 2015 (with FALP 2011/REMA
2013).

32.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS Sustainability Standards —
Non-residential

Evidence that each commercial unit of the development is registered with
a BREEAM certification body and that a pre-assessment report (or design
stage certificate with interim rating if available) has been submitted




Page 120

indicating that the development can achieve the stipulated BREEAM level
“Very good” shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority prior to the commencement of the relevant works and a
final certificate shall be submitted for approval to the local planning
authority within 6 months of the occupation of the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development achieves a high level of
sustainability in accordance with Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3 and 5.15 of the
London Plan (2016) and Policies SPO and SP4 the Haringey Local Plan
(2013).

33.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - External Solar Shading and
Passive Ventilation Study

Prior to the commencement of any superstructure work on each specific
building, an external solar shading and passive ventilation study shall be
submitted in writing to and for approval by the Local Planning Authority.
The strategy shall clarify where glazing is required to reduce solar gain
and how this has been balanced against the need to ensure good levels
of daylight. The study shall include design measures to ensure the risk of
overheating is low and adaptation to higher temperatures is included. The
details shall be implemented as approved and shall be maintained
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure sustainable development and mitigate the impacts of
climate change in accordance with policies 3.2, 5.3, 5.5, 5.6 and 7.14 of
the London Plan 2015 (with FALP 2011/REMA 2013).

34.

PRIOR TO ABOVE GROUND WORKS - Green and Brown Roofs

Prior to the commencement of above ground development for each
building, details of green/brown roofs, including planting and maintenance
schedules, and ecological enhancement measures shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Council. Development shall accord with
the details as approved.

Reason: To ensure the provision of green and brown roofs in the interests
of sustainable urban drainage and habitat provision in accordance with
policies 5.11, 5.13 and 7.19 of the London Plan.

35.

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION - Ultra Low NOx Boilers - Product
Specification and Dry NOx Emissions Details (LBH Environmental
Services and Community Safety)

If boilers are required by an updated energy strategy they shall be Ultra
Low NOx boilers. Prior to installation, details of the relevant boiler’s
product specification and dry NOx emissions shall be submitted in writing
to and for approval by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall
demonstrate dry NOx emissions not exceeding 31 mg/kWh @0% O2 in




Page 121

conformity with the approved document Air Quality Assessment (The
boilers shall be installed in accordance with approved details and
maintained thereafter (WSP Report dated December 2016).

Reason: To prevent adverse impact on air quality within an Air Quality
Management Area (AQMA) as required by Policy 7.14 in the London Plan
(2016).

36.

PRIOR TO SUPERSTRUCTURE WORKS - Cycle Parking Details
Prior to any superstructure works on each approved building, details of
arrangements for cycle storage (including provision for a total of 489
cycle parking spaces, means of enclosure for the storage area and the
bicycle stairway and trough system) shall be submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Transport
for London (Borough Planning), and the approved arrangements shall be
completed to the satisfaction of the Authority before any part of the
development is first occupied, and permanently maintained thereafter to
the Authority’s satisfaction.

Reason: To ensure that adequate cycle storage facilities are provided
and promote sustainable travel.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

37.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Estate Management & Maintenance Plan
Prior to the occupation of the relevant phase an Estate Management and
Maintenance Plan for that Phase in which development would be located,
setting out maintenance and management responsibilities for all
communal play spaces, communal amenity spaces and all publicly
accessible open spaces, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and the open spaces shall thereafter be
maintained and managed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to ensure that the Local Planning Authority is satisfied
with the details of the authorised development and to ensure the design
of the new housing development enhances the quality of local places in
accordance with London Plan Policy 3.5.

38.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION — ROAD SAFETY AUDIT

Prior to the occupation of any residential or commercial unit the applicant
shall arrange for a road safety audit (Stage 1&2) of the proposed site
access on Ashley Road and Burdock Road to be carried out by an
independent auditor not connected with the design of the scheme, in
accordance with Department for Transport's Design Manual for Roads
and Bridges (DMRB), HD 19/15 and shall submit the safety audit report to
the Local Planning Authority for approval.

Reason: to accord with Policy DM33 of the Council’'s Development
Management DPD and in the interests of road safety.




Page 122

39.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Play Space

The details approved in respect of play space(s), communal amenity
space and private amenity space pursuant to condition 2 shall be
implemented in full prior to occupation of 50% of the residential units
within the relevant building to which they relate taking into account
landscape drawings 449-101 P02 and 449-103 P02 and subsequently
approved plans and drawings.

Reason: To ensure that appropriate, accessible, play space and amenity
space are provided, in accordance with

the London Plan (consolidated with Alterations Since 2011 and published
March 2016).

40.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Secured by Design

Prior to the occupation of the relevant phase a statement shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority
showing how the development will be designed and constructed to
Secured by Design Sections 2 and 3 Compliance. The development shall
be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development meets the Police
standards for the physical protection of the buildings and their occupants,
and to comply with London Plan (2016) Policy 7.3 and Haringey Local
Plan 2013 Policy SP11.

41.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Details Roof Top PV Panels

Prior to the occupation of the development for residential purposes,
details of the layout and specification of the PV solar panel installation for
each individual building hereby approved shall be submitted in writing to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The installation shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved details and maintained
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure sustainable development and mitigate the impacts of
climate change in accordance with policies 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 of the London
Plan.

42.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION- Lighting strategy

Prior to the building being brought into use a lighting strategy to address
all external lighting across the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall
only be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area in
accordance with London Plan (2015) policy 7.4 ‘Local Character’.

43.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Car Parking Management Plan
Prior to the first occupation of each approved use within the development,
a Car Park Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning




Page 123

Authority for approval in writing. The plan should:

e describe how parking will be managed on the site

« arrangements for leasing and allocating residential car parking
spaces for wheelchair users and others;

e provide details of how disabled users of the commercial part of the
development, can use the parking spaces and how this is going to
be managed including details of priority criteria for allocation and
access for Dial-a-Ride services;

« details of how the loading bay(s) will be managed, and any agreed
restrictions;

« confirmation of the area reserved for off-street parking on Ashley
link (Parking Zone B Parameter Plan — Access) to be used only in
connection with the assigned residential units;

o details of the controlled access to the parking area(s), parking
enforcement, ramp details (if any), to show structural columns,
swept paths, vehicle circulatory movements, visibility splays, all
while considering pedestrian safety nearby and within the
undercroft parking area;

« demonstration that all car parking spaces are of the correct width
and length, with in-between allowance of 6m, following the Manual
for Street (MfS) guidance and taking into account the ‘IStructE
Design recommendations for multi-storey and underground car
parks’-third edition;

o details of the width in-between spaces that enables maneuvering
in/ out of parking spaces, include swept path analysis for corner
spaces and show the structural columns;

e provide a minimum of 20% active and 20% passive Electric
Vehicle Charging Points including locations of the EVCP points,
and details of the criteria for reviewing the usage and converting
passive points to active points. All identified points spaces should
be marked prior to occupation and retained & maintained
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure suitable arrangements for car parking as part of the
development in accordance with TfL and London Plan requirements. The
London Plan and Policy DM32 of the Development Management DPD
require a minimum provision of 20% active and 20% passive Electric
Vehicle Charging Points.

44.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION - Details of Central Dish/Receiving System
Prior to the occupation of the development, details of a Central Satellite
Dish/Receiving System for the residential units hereby approved shall be
submitted in writing to and for approval by the Local Planning Authority.
The System shall be implemented in accordance with approved details
and maintained thereafter.




Page 124

Reason: to protect the amenity of the locality.

INFORMATIVES

Working with the Applicant (LBH Development Management)

INFORMATIVE: In dealing with this application, the London Borough of Haringey has
implemented the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and of the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015 to foster the delivery of sustainable development in a positive and proactive
manner.

Community Infrastructure Levy (LBH Development Management)

INFORMATIVE: The Community Infrastructure Levy will be collected by Haringey
after/should the scheme is/be implemented and could be subject to surcharges for
failure to assume liability, for failure to submit a commencement notice and/or for late
payment, and subject to indexation in line with the construction costs index.

Hours of Construction Work (LBH Development Management)
INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that under the Control of Pollution Act 1974,
construction work which will be audible at the site boundary will be restricted to the
following hours:

- 8.00am - 6.00pm Monday to Friday

- 8.00am - 1.00pm Saturday

- and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Party Wall Act (LBH Development Management)

INFORMATIVE: The applicant's attention is drawn to the Party Wall Act 1996 which
sets out requirements for notice to be given to relevant adjoining owners of intended
works on a shared wall, on a boundary or if excavations are to be carried out near a
neighbouring building.

Requirement for Groundwater Risk Management Permit (Thames Water)
INFORMATIVE: A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be
required for discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without
a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the
Water Industry Act 1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what
measures he will undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer.
Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by
telephoning 02035779483 or by emailing wwqgriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk.
Application forms should be completed on line via
www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality."

Attenuation of Storm Flows. Combined Sewer drain to nearest manhole. Connection
for removal of ground water precluded. Approval required for discharge to public
sewer. (Thames Water)



Page 125

INFORMATIVE: In respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant
should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving public
network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a combined
public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole
nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of groundwater.
Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from
Thames Water Developer Services will be required. The contact number is 0800 009
3921.

Public Sewer Crossing — Approval required for building, extension or underpinning
within 3 metres. (Thames Water).

INFORMATIVE: There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. In
order to protect public sewers and to ensure that Thames Water can gain access to
those sewers for future repair and maintenance, approval should be sought from
Thames Water where the erection of a building or an extension to a building or
underpinning work would be over the line of, or would come within 3 metres of, a public
sewer. Thames Water will usually refuse such approval in respect of the construction
of new buildings, but approval may be granted for extensions to existing buildings. The
applicant is advised to visit thameswater.co.uk/buildover.

Water Main Crossing Diversion (Thames Water)

INFORMATIVE: There is a Thames Water main crossing the development site which
may/will need to be diverted at the Developer's cost, or necessitate amendments to the
proposed development design so that the aforementioned main can be retained.
Unrestricted access must be available at all times for maintenance and repair. Please
contact Thames Water Developer Services, Contact Centre on Telephone No: 0800
009 3921 for further information.

Minimum Pressure and Flow Rate from Pipes (Thames Water)

INFORMATIVE: Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure
of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it
leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum
pressure in the design of the proposed development.

Responsibility to Dispose of Commercial Waste (LBH Neighbourhood Action Team)
INFORMATIVE: Commercial Business must ensure all waste produced on site are
disposed of responsibly under their duty of care within Environmental Protection Act
1990. It is for the business to arrange a properly documented process for waste
collection from a licensed contractor of their choice. Documentation must be kept by
the business and be produced on request of an authorised Council Official under
section 34 of the Act. Failure to do so may result in a fixed penalty fine or prosecution
through the criminal Court system.

Asbestos Survey (LBH Environmental Services and Community Safety)
INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that prior to demolition of existing buildings,
an asbestos survey should be carried out to identify the location and type of asbestos



Page 126

containing materials. Any asbestos containing materials must be removed and
disposed of in accordance with the correct procedure prior to any demolition or
construction works carried out.

New Development Naming (LBH Transportation)

INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming. The applicant should
contact LBH Local Land Charges at least six weeks before the development is
occupied on 020 8489 5573 to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address.

Environment Agency — Additional Advice (Environment Agency)

INFORMATIVE: The Environment Agency has provided advice to the applicant in
respect of Ground Water Protection and Land Affected by Contamination. This advice
is available on the Council’s website using the application reference number.

Archeaology

INFORMATIVE: The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent
analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. this part of
the condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI The written scheme of investigation
will need to be prepared and implemented by a suitably qualified professionally
accredited archaeological practice in accordance with Historic England’s Guidelines for
Archaeological Projects in Greater London. This condition is exempt from deemed
discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

Asbestos

INFORMATIVE -Prior to demolition of existing buildings, an asbestos survey should be
carried out to identify the location and type of asbestos containing materials. Any
asbestos containing materials must be removed and disposed of in accordance with
the correct procedure prior to any demolition or construction works carried out.

Highways Licenses

INFORMATIVE: The following highways licences may be required: crane licence,
hoarding licence, on-street parking suspensions. The applicant must check and follow
the processes and apply to the HA.



Page 127

Appendix 1 — neighbour response summary

2 Park View Road

Officer comments

| do agree with the development of this
area as a mixed use development.
However, | have major reservations with
the scheme presented. Building 2 seems
to be of an appropriate size and scale for
the site and surrounding buildings. |
raised an eyebrow at the six floors of
building 2a. This seems to be above the
height of a building | would expect in this
location. | was horrified when | saw the
plans for building 3. This building will be
totally out of scale with the surrounding
buildings.

The scale and massing of the buildings
has evolved and been tested overtime as
the Ashley Road Masterplan has evolved.
The transformational change envisaged
across Tottenham Hale is part of a wider
planned process, having been tested
through the examination of the Tottenham
Hale Area Action Plan, of which Ashley
Road South is a significant component.
Combined with the environmental testing
and impacts discussed elsewhere in this
report the overall scale, height and
massing of buildings is considered
appropriate in this location.

It will bring a very high building across
the railway tracks from where the current
high-rise blocks are contained.

Significant change in scale and height of
buildings is envisaged across the
Tottenham Hale AAP and Housing Zone
area, of which Ashley Road South is a
significant element.

The existing high rise buildings at Hale
village have their own scale which works
due to their location.

As above.

Placing a block of this height on Ashley
road would be incongruous with the
surrounding low rise buildings and
vicinity to the park.

The proposed heights represent a
significant change in urban context in this
part of Tottenham Hale but this part of a
planned process of change to optimise the
use of land in this highly accessible
location and the buildings will replace low
grade commercial uses. The transition
between the new district centre and the
residential and industrial hinterland is
considered to be appropriate.

Properties on the other side of the park
(Park View Road) will feel very
overlooked and have their outlook spoilt.

The re-development of Cannon Factory
would be visible alongside future
development of Ashley Road South and
would also be visible from the park. The
development would also be visible from
the west but in the context of other recent
development in Hale Village. From these
locations the masterplan and this
application, subject to detailed design, are
likely to form a new urban edge to the
park, creating an attractive architectural




Page 128

| backdrop.

North London Waste Authority (Berol House)

The NLWA is concerned about losing the ability to
effectively carry on business from Berol House and
the ability to retain and attract staff to work at
NLWA if car parking spaces disappear. NLWA is
concerned because the proposals are for ‘car free’
development; because existing car parking space
is being removed from Ashley Road and because
some of the site plans in the application are
unclear. NLWA objects to the planning application
if their existing allocation is going to be reduced.

The application the subject of
this report does not include
proposals for Berol House
although the cumulative impact
of development across ARS is
considered as part of this
application. Specific proposals
relating to Berol will be
determined by the Council as
part of a separate
determination.

The NLWA seeks reassurance that: car users will
have access to parking at Berol House during
demolition and buildings works; delivery and
servicing arrangements and parking for Berol
House will be retained to the east of the building;
car parking for existing tenants will not be reduced.

Access arrangements during
construction and demolition
works will be controlled via the
CLP and a range of conditions
recommended elsewhere in this
report. No changes to current
access arrangements to Berol
House are proposed as part of
this application as it falls outside
the applicant’s landownership.

NLWA is concerned the proposals for
redevelopment of the area will mean that the car
park to Berol House is no longer secured and that
general security risks increase as a result. NLWA
wish to see alternative measures implemented to
retain the overnight and weekend gating of the car
park.

Does not form part of this
application. No changes to
current access arrangements
are proposed as part of this
application.

We welcome the introduction of loading bays along
Ashley Road but NLWA currently has no access to
our offices from this side of Berol House so these
servicing areas will be of no benefit to us. Itis
important to receive confirmation the east side of
Berol House will retain space for loading and
unloading of vehicles.

Interim works to Ashley Road
are proposed as part of this
application and are deemed to
be acceptable in transport
terms. Access to Berol House
is outside the scope of this
application.

The proposal to make Ashley Way one-way means
all staff and visitors arriving from the north will be
inconvenienced and adding to already significant
congestion at some times of day where
Watermead Way ends and the road becomes Hale
Road. This will inconvenience people coming to
Berol House, increase congestion in an already
busy network around Tottenham Hale and reduce
the attractiveness of Berol House as an

Changes to Ashley Way and the
proposed one-way flow will
impact upon staff and visitors
visiting Berol House and
therefore. There is the potential
for marginally longer journey
times for those visiting Berol
House by car but in the light of
the overall accessibility of the




Page 129

employment location.

site by public transport and the
other scheme benefits derived
from making Ashley Way more
pedestrian friendly the benefits
are considered to outweigh the
dis-benefits.

The NLWA is also concerned about the noise and
disruption during the proposed 21month build
process. There is already general level of noise
and activity around Berol House but the
introduction of a college and so many residents to
such close proximity will inevitably create a
significant increase in noise and activity. This
concern is in addition to concerns about the
disruptive and negative impact on employment at
Berol House if site security and car parking are not
maintained.

The noise and vibration impacts
during demolition, construction
and beyond have been
considered as part of the overall
environmental impact.
Appropriate planning conditions
are proposed in order to
mitigate and minimise the
overall impact on neighbouring
properties. A Construction
Logistics Coordinator will also
be employed in order to manage
impacts during the construction
programme.

NLWA is concerned that the working environment
could be very difficult for our staff for a period of
nearly two years and potentially the noise impacts
of being surrounded by many more people and a
large college could also be significant post
development. We urge LBH to place appropriate
conditions upon the construction phase of the
development such that existing local neighbours
face the minimum reasonable disruption.

We cannot see any analysis of the potential impact
of the development on the internal daylight,
sunlight or shadow effects on adjacent properties
such as Berol House and are therefore concerned
the analysis appears deficient. NWLA is
particularly concerned we it is located within the
ground floor level and light levels will be severely
reduced and our view of the sky will be severely
reduced.

NWLA objects to any demolition of part of Berol
House as indicated in some of the plans. This
appears to be in areas containing the entrance,
toilets and kitchen/eating area. Part of our
objection could be withdrawn if LBH confirm what
proportion of the area of Berol House marked on
the drawings is proposed to be demolished.

This will be the subject of a
separate planning application on
behalf of Berkeley Square
Developments.

The NWLA object to the development of the top

This will be the subject of a




Page 130

floor/roof of Berol House and any principle of
development to Berol House being established
through this application.

separate planning application on
behalf of Berkeley Square
Developments.

NWLA will continue to engage with the proposals
as they progress but have specific practical
concerns about working alongside the
development as the demolition and construction
takes place.




Page 131

Appendix 2 Notes from DM Forum 24 April 2017 (relating to wider masterplan)

The wider issues associated with the Ashley Road Masterplan were considered at a
recent Development Management Forum meeting and the issues relevant to this
application are highlighted below.

Development Management Forum (in relation | Officer Response (where
to wider Ashley Road Masterplan) relevant to this application)

Access/layout & design issues

Question - the new college entrance appears on | This will be the subject of a
the south-side; previous understanding was that | separate planning application.
it would open up opposite ‘The Hub’ building. Is
this correct?

Question — In relation to proposed outline only This is the subject of a separate
application for Berol House, is this because of planning application for Berol
the proposed residential use above Berol House | Yard.

and why does it look like it’'s been ‘stuck on the
top’/materials are different?

Timescales for development

Question - what’s the timescale? The applicant has submitted
separate planning applications for
Buildings 1/1A, Berol House.

Amenity space/community uses & benefits

Question — there was very little mention of The one and off-site open/play
space for families and children. Why not? space provision is assessed
elsewhere in this report and is
considered to provide a good
range of provision with equitable
access. Details will be secured
via reserved matters.

Question — will there be reasonable rates for The affordability of the housing
Affordable Housing? offer is assessed in the housing
section of this report. The
affordability and eligibility of the
affordable rent and shared
ownership will be secured via

s106.
Question - how will access to Ashley/Berol Link | Planning obligations to secure
be managed? public access along Ashley Link

are proposed.

Question — where is the gain for local amenity? | The one and off-site open/play
Too much reliance on existing provision next to | space provision is assessed
park. Improvements promised before and not elsewhere in this report and is
delivered. What is the overall vision for considered to provide a good




Page 132

community space? Who will be able to use the
spaces and how will it be managed?

range of provision with equitable
access. Details will be secured
via reserved matters.

Question — is the proposed nursery next to the
park a replacement or additional nursery space
for existing provision within the park?

Community space is provided in
the ground floor of Building 2 and
it will be restricted to community
use via planning condition.

Housing design standards & parking

Storage space is always lacking in new
development, particularly for computers/home
working e.g. Hale Wharf.

The London Housing Design Guide
requires sets out essential
minimum areas for dedicated built-
in storage cupboards of 1.5 sqg m
for 2 person dwellings and 0.5 sq
m for each additional occupant.
Storage cupboards should be free
of hot water cylinders, boilers, heat
exchangers or washing machines
and all parts of the cupboard
should be a minimum of 2m high
internally. This will be secured as
a minimum. Developers are
encouraged to exceed these
standards.

Question — 2-bed 4-person homes, usually not
enough room for two single beds, should have
separate toilet & bathroom

This is noted and the Council will
have a further opportunity to
review the layout and mix of
housing at detailed stage.

Question — parking — Hale Village lacked
parking. What is the provision?

Parking provision is made for
accessible homes and future car
parking will be managed in
accordance with a car
management plan to be submitted
and approved by the applicant.




Page 133

Appendix 3 GLA Stage 1 Report

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY
planning report D&P/4177 /01
30 January 2017

Cannon Factory & Ashley House, Tottenham Hale

in the London Borough of Haringey
planning application no. HGY /2016/4165

Strategic planning application stage 1 referral

Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended]; Greater London Authority Acts 1999 and 2007;
Town & Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008.

The proposal

Outline planning application for the demolition of the existing Cannon Factory and Ashley House
and the erection of three buildings of up to 16 storeys to provide up to 3,600 sg.m. (GEA) of
commercial floorspace (Class A1/AS/B1,/D1), up to 265 residential units (Class C3), new public
realm, landscaped amenity space, car and cycle parking, and associated works.

The applicant

The applicant is Notting Hill Home Ownership Limited, the architect iz John McAslan &
Partners, and the agent is Nathaniel Litchfield & Partners.

Strategic issues summary

Affordable housing: 50% (by habitable room]), made up of 70% intermediate shared ownership,
30% affordable rent. It is understood that grant funding will be required to achieve 50%. The
applicant should work with GLA officers to confirm the approach, taking account of the draft SPG
requirements and noting review mechanism and section 106 requirements. The proposed tenure
split meets the requirements of the draft SPG. The applicant has confirmed that assumed
affordable rent levels are at local housing allowance levels or lower. Of the shared cwnership
units, 25% will be low cost shared cwnership; however there are concerns about the affordability
of the remaining 75%. (Para’s 24-26.)

Urban design and tall buildings: The proposals are generally supported; however some
amendments and clanfications are required, including the proximity of buildings; the parameters
for frontage uses; maximum contiguous lengths of inactive frontages; the ground floor layout of
building 3; and light penetration into the courtyard of building 24, (Para’s 32-39.)

Transport: The applicant should increase Blue Badge car parking provision. (Para’s 45-53.)

Climate change: The approach of providing a separate site heat network for the two
development parcels is not supported and a site-wide network is required. (Para’s 54-59.)

Recommendation

That Haringey Council be advised that the application does not yet comply with the London Plan,
for the reasons set out in paragraph 63 of this report; however the possible remedies set out in
that paragraph could address these deficiencies.




Page 134

Context

1 On 21 December 2016, the Mayor of London received documents from Haringey Council
notifying him of a planning application of potential strategic importance to develop the above site
for the above uses. Under the provisions of The Town & Country Planning (Mayor of Lendon)
Order 2008, the Mayor has until 31 January 2017 to provide the Council with a statement setting
out whether he considers that the application complies with the Lendon Plan, and his reasons for
taking that view. The Mayor may also provide other comments. This report sets out information
for the Mayor's use in deciding what decision to make.

2 The application is referable under Categories 14, 1B(c) and 1C(c) of the Schedule to the
2008 Order:

+ 1A “Development which comprises or includes the provision of more than 150 houses, flats,
or houses and flats.”

s 1B{c) “Development (other than development which only comprises the provision of houses,
flats, or houses and flots) which comprises or includes the erection of a building or buildings
- outside Central London and with a total Aoorspace of more than 15,000 square metres.”

+ 1C(c) “Development which comprises or includes the erection of a building of mare than 30
metres high and is outside the City of London.”

3 The Schedule to the Order is also relevant here:

+  “If the local plonning authonty receive an application for planning permission for
development, which they consider forms part of more substontial proposed development,
on the same land or adjoining land, they must for the purposes of this Schedule treat that
application as an application for planning permission for the more substantial
development.”

4 Once Haringey Council has resolved to determine the application, it is required to refer it
back to the Mayor for his decision as to whether to direct refusal; take it over for his own
determination; or allow the Council to determine it itself.

5 The environmental infermation for the purposes of the Town and Country Planning
{Emvironmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 has been taken into account in the
consideration of this case.

& The Mayor of London's statement on this case will be made available on the GLA website
www. london.gov.uk.

Site description

7 The 1.03 hectares application site forms part of the wider Ashley Road South Masterplan
area occupying 2.67 hectares. The masterplan site consists of four development parcels, with
this outline application site including development parcels 1 and 2, linked by Ashley Road:

1. Cannon Factory, a one-two storey warehouse /factory building in ‘meanwhile” use,
located in the north-east corner of the masterplan area, to the east of Ashley Road;

2. Ashley House, a two-storey warehouse/office buildings with yard and car parking in
the south-west comer of the masterplan area, to the west of Ashley Road;

3. Berol House, a three-five storey locally listed building currently used as serviced
offices and a collection of low-rise industrial buildings, with associated yards and car
parking in the south-east corner of the masterplan area, to the east of Ashley Road; and
4. Cannon Jersey Factory, a two storey building, and a neighbouring low-rise warehouse
building in the north-west corner of the masterplan, to the west of Ashley Road.

page 2



Page 135

8 The masterplan site is bounded to the north by Down Lane Park, and the Harris Academy
Tottenham beyond the tree-lined Burdock Road, which provides primary and secondary
education and has planning permission to be extended to provide additional educational
facilities (LPA ref: HGY/2015/3096). To the south of the site is a petrol garage on the west
side of Ashley Road and a single row of terraced houses fronting onto Hale Read; and a number
of small industrial buildings and Stratferd College London in the three-storey Sentinel House to
the east of Ashley Road. Beyond this lies Tottenham Hale Station and bus station, with several
sites surrounding it coming forward for development, including a 22 storey building at 1 Station
Square (GLA Ref: D&P/4063/01). To the east is Watermead Way (A1055), with a number of
street trees on the site boundary, and beyond the railway line are student and residential blocks
within Hale Village of up to 10 storeys [ To the west are further facilities of Down Lane Park,
including playgrounds, bowling green, tennis courts and the Pavilion Pre-school.

9 The site lies within a potential District Centre, as identified in the Tottenham Area Action
Plan (Pre-Submission Version, January 2016). The site is also within the Tottenham Housing
Zone and the Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area.

10 The nearest section of the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) is Monument Way,
approximately 200 metres to the south-west of the site. The nearest section of the Strategic Road
MNetwork [SRN) is the A1010 High Road, approximately 1.4 kilometres to the north-west of the

site. The nearest station is Tettenham Hale, which is approximately 300 metres to the south-east
of the site, providing access to rail services to Liverpool Street, Cambridge and Stansted Airport,
and underground services on the Victoria line. A taxi rank and bus station are also located at
Tottenham Hale, with the latter providing access to six bus routes. The nearest bus stops to the
site are located on Watermead Road; approximately 100 metres from the site and served by route
192. The public transport accessibility level (FTAL) of the site ranges from &a in the south and 5 to
the north (on a scale of 1 to & where & is excellent and 1 is very poor).

Details of the proposal

1 This cutline application site includes development parcels 1 and 2, linked by the Ashley
Road comidor. Development parcel 1 in the north-east comer of the ARSM comprises a mixed
use building of between 8 and 16 storeys. Development parcel 2 in the south-west corner
comprises a ‘pavilion” building of four storeys and a mixed use building of up to seven storeys.
The western half of the “Ashley Link” will be delivered through this application, connecting
Ashley Road to Down Lane Park, with a temporary landscaped space to the south-west of the
link, which is expected to form part of a development site to the south, also in the ownership of
the applicant. The application proposes 3,000-3,600 sg.m. of commercial floorspace (Class Al,
A3, B1 and D1) and up to 265 residential units. The application proposes to make Ashley Road
one-way, with increased pavement width, tree planting and landscaping.

12 The application includes parameter plans detailing maximum and minimum footprints,
heights, uses, and non-residential frentages; points of access; and ground and upper level

landscape treatments. Design guidelines are also included, as well as illustrative building and
landscape proposals meeting the requirements of the parameter plans and design guidelines.

13 The applicant has developed the proposals jointly with the owner of the other sites
(Berkeley Square Developments) in the masterplan area, which is expected to submit two further
applications later in 2017:

* An outline application for development parcel 3, including a series of mixed use buildings
providing up to 1,000 sg.m. of uses (A1, A3 and B1) and up to 400 residential units.

# A detailed application for development parcel 4, including a new campus building (up to
six storeys and 6,000 sq.m.) for the National College for Digital Skills (D1, ancillary B1); a

page 3



Page 136

retained Berol House, with employment /commercial uses (B1) and a roof extension
providing up to 15 residential units; and a mixed use building with up to 185 residential
units and up to 170 sg.m. of commercial floorspace (A1, A3 and B1).

Case history

14 On 7 October 2016, a pre-application meeting was held for the development of the
wider masterplan site known as Ashley Road South, including a new campus for the National
College for Digital Skills (NCDS); non-residential floorspace of up to 9,000 sq.m.; retention and
redevelopment of the locally listed Berol House for employment workspace; the provision of up
to 871 residential units, including affordable and family housing and wheelchair units; new social
facilities and ancillary amenity and child play space. The GLA's pre-application advice report of

24 October 2016 concluded that the principle of the proposal was supported; however issues
relating to the principle of development; affordable housing; housing; historic envirenment,
urban design and tall buildings; inclusive design, transpert, and climate change should be
addressed in any subsequent planning applications.

Strategic planning issues and relevant policies and guidance

15 The relevant issues and comrespeonding policies are as follows:

+ Employment London Plan

& Town centre uses Landan Plan; Town Centres SPG

+ Housing Londen Plan; Housing SPG; Housing Strateqy; Shaping
Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation 5PG; Shaping
Neighbourhoods: Character and Context 5PG

s Affordable housing Londen Plan; Housing SPG; draft Affordable Housing and Viability
5PG; Housing Strateqy

+ Density London Plan; Housing SPG

+ Historic environment
& Urban design

+ Tall buildings

16

17

Inclusive design

London Plan

Londen Plan; Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context
5PG; Housing 5PG; Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal
Recreation 5PG

London Plan

Londen Plan; Accessible London: achieving an inclusive
emvironment SPG

+ Parking London Plan; the Mayor's Transport Strateqy

* Transport London Plan; the Mayor's Transport Strateqy

s Crossrail Londen Plan; Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy

¢ (limate change Londen Plan; Sustainable Design and Construction SPG; Mayor’s

Climate Change Adoptation Strateqy; Mayor’s Climate Change
Mitigation and Energy Strateqy; Mayor’s Water Strateqy

For the purposes of Section 38(5) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004,
the development plan in force for the area is made up of Haringey's Strategic Policies DPD
{2013), the Saved Policies within its Unitary Development Plan, and the 2016 London Plan
(Consolidated with Alterations since 2011).

The following are also relevant matenial considerations:

+ The Naticnal Planning Policy Framework, Technical Cuide to the Mational Planning
Policy Framework and Mational Planning Practice Guidance.

+ The Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area Plannimg Framework (ULV OAPF) (July 2013).

page4



Page 137

The Tottenham Area Action Plan (Pre-Submission Version, January 2016).
The Site Allocations DPD [Pre-Submission Version, January 2016).

The Development Management DPD (Pre-Submission Version, January 2016).
Alterations to Strategic Policies (Pre-Submission Version, January 2016).

Principle of development

Residential /town centre uses/employment

18 The site lies within the boundary of the Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area, as identified
in London Plan Policy 2.13 and Table Al.1, which states that the Opportunity Area is capable of
accommodating at least 20,100 homes up to 2031. London Plan Policy 3.3 ‘Increasing Housing
Supply’ recognises the pressing need for new homes in London and Table 3.1 gives an annual
monitoring target of 1,502 new homes per year in Haringey between 2015 and 2025. The site is
also located within the Tottenham Housing Zone, which has a target for approximately 2,000
new homes. The Tottenham Area Action Plan (Pre-Submission Version, January 2016) identifies
the site as part of site THE Ashley Road South Employment Area, with a target of 444 residential
units and 15,300 sq.m. of commercial space.

19 The site is currently designated as a Local Employment Area. London Plan Policy 4.4
‘Managing Industnial Land and Premises’ provides a strategic aim for boroughs to adopt a
rigorous appreach to industrial land management, but recognises that managed release may be
required to provide other uses in appropriate locations. The Tottenham AAP proposes to
designate the area as a Local Employment Regeneration Area, with employment, residential and
educational uses.

20 The site is within the potential District Centre identified in the AAP. London Plan
Policies 2.15 Town Centres’, 4.7 ‘Retail and town centres’, 4.8 “Supporting a successful and
diverse retail sector” and supplementary planning guidance Town Centres” provide support for
town centres as the focus for retail uses.

21 The existing site is currently occupied by 3,234 sq.m. (GIA) of low grade commercial /
industrial flogrspace (Class B1,/B2/B8), and an associated yard used for car parking. The
existing buildings respond poorly to the emerging townscape context, and represent an
inefficient and unsustainable use of this highly accessible site. The existing tenants occupy the
site on a short-term lease as a temporary meantime use. The applicant estimates that the site
provides approximately 63 full-time equivalent (FTE] jobs. The existing buildings will be
demalished and new buildings constructed with between 3,000 sq.m. and 3,600 sq.m. of
commercial floorspace (Class Al, A3, B1 and D1) on the ground and first floors. The applicant
should provide an estimate of the number of jobs that may be provided on the site, and further
informaticn on the possibility of affordable workspace.

22 The existing low grade buildings respond poorly to the emerging townscape context, and
represent an inefficient and unsustainable use of this highly accessible site. The re-provision of
a similar scale of employment flocrspace more compatible with residential uses, including town
centre uses in an identified potential District Centre, is therefore supported. The proposed
residential uses will contribute to London Plan and lecal pelicy targets and are also supported.

Housing

23 The application states that up to 265 one to three bed units will be provided, although
no detail is given beyond this, with details to be determined at reserved matters stage.

page &



Page 138

Affordable housing

24 London Plan Policy 3.9 ‘Mixed and Balanced Communities” seeks to promote mixed and
balanced communities by tenure and household income. Policy 3.12 “Megotiating Affordable
Housing” seeks to secure the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing. The Mayor's
recently published draft Affordable Housing and Viability SPG introduces a thresheld approach,
whereby schemes meeting or exceeding 35% affordable housing without public subsidy are not
required to submit a viability assessment. London Plan Policy 3.11 “Affordable Housing Targets’
requires that ©0% of the affordable housing provision should be for secial and affordable rent and
40% for intermediate rent or sale, with pricrity given to affordable family housing. The Mayor's
draft Affordable Housing and Viability SPG sets out a preferred tenure split of at least 30% low
cost rent social rent, or affordable rent significantly less than 80% of market rent), at least 30%
intermediate (with Londen Living Rent and shared ownership being the default tenures), and the
remaining 40% to be determined by the LPA; however more flexibility is encouraged in
Opportunity Areas.

25 The application proposes 50% affordable housing, made up of 70% intermediate shared

ownership, 30% affordable rent. Although the funding for the scheme is not yet confirmed, it is
understood that grant funding will be required to achieve 50%. The applicant should work with
GLA officers to confirm the approach, taking account of the draft SPG requirements and noting

review mechanism and section 106 requirements.

26 The proposed tenure split meets the requirements of the draft SPG. The application
confirms that assumed affordable rent levels are at local housing allowance levels or lower, which is
in line with the draft SPG. Of the shared ownership units, 25% will be low cost, affordable for
gross household incomes between £35,000 and £40,000, which is in line with the draft SPG;
however 75% will be affordable for gross household incomes between £40,000 and £90,000. This
raises concerns about the affordability of these units, and the applicant should respond to
paragraphs 2.38-2.41 of the draft SPC.

Housing Choice

27 London Plan Policy 3.8 "Housing Choice” encourages a choice of housing based on local
needs, while affordable family housing is stated as a strategic priority. Policy 3.11 also states
that priority should be accorded to the provision of affordable family housing. The application
states that regard will be given to the preferred dwelling mix at this location stated in the
District Centre Framework, with the mix to be determined at reserved matters stage; however
the Council should secure appropriate ranges within the section 106 agreement.

Density

28 London Plan Policy 3.4 “Optimising Housing Potential® states that taking into account local
context and character, the design principles in Chapter ¥ and public transpeort capacity,
development should cptimise housing output within the relevant density range shown in Table 3.2.

The site is within an ‘urban’ setting where the density matrix sets a guideline of 45-260 units or
200-700 habitable rooms per hectare with a PTAL of 4-6.

29 The density proposed is up to 265 units per hectare, based on the scheme’s maximum
parameters. While this is slightly above the density range, the London Plan notes that these ranges
should not be applied mechanistically and other local factors support higher density development,
such as the location in the Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area and the Tettenham Housing Zone;
the high accessibility of the site adjacent to Tottenham Hale Station; and the significant nearby
open spaces of Down Lane Park and Lee Valley Regional Park.

page



Page 139

{ |:|.| d[ED'r play space

30 Policy 3.6 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that development proposals include
suitable provision for play and recreation, with further detail in the Mayor's supplementary
planning guidance “Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation’, which sets a
benchmark of 10 sg.m. of useable child play space to be provided per child, with under-fives
play space provided on-site as a minimum.

31 Based on the maximum parameters, the child yield is expected to be 66 children, with 33
under-fives. The design guidelines secure that this will be provided according to London Plan
requirements on the Ashley Link, the courtyard of building 24, and on roof terraces, with the
illustrative proposals demonstrating how this could be delivered. It is also recognised that the
play facilities of Down Lane Park are in close proximity. These proposals are acceptable.

Urban design and tall buildings

32 The application includes parameter plans detailing maximum and minimum footprints,
heights, uses, and non-residential frontages; points of access; and ground and upper level
landscape treatments. Design guidelines are also included, as well as illustrative building and
landscape proposals in line with the parameter plans and design guidelines. As requested at pre-
application stage, illustrative landscape proposals have also been provided covering the whole of
the Ashley Road South Masterplan.

33 The layout for the application site has been developed in conjunction with the
neighbouring sites within the masterplan, which broadly meets that identified in the Tottenham
District Centre Framework. The application delivers the western half of the “Ashley Link” on its
southern boundary, which is strongly supported, providing a landscaped public space connecting
Ashley Road to Down Lane Park, and eventually linking to Hale Village (outside this application).

34 The design guidelines identify minimum distances between buildings in the masterplan
area, which are generally acceptable with two exceptions. The minimum distance between building
2 and building 2A (both within this application) is £.75 metres, and between building 2A (within
this application) and Building 1A is 6.5 metres. The applicant should clarify how negative impacts
on privacy and daylight,/sunlight will be aveided, and revisions to the layouts and/or design
guidelines may be required. A minimum distance between building 3 (within the application) and
building 4 (cutside this application] should also be specified in the design guidelines.

35 A design parameter identifies the minimum and maximum non-residential frontage and the
residential maximum frontage; however a large part of building 3 has no use identified, which
should be comected. The illustrative plan for this building shows inactive uses taking up almost all
of the north and east ground floor frontages. As the tallest proposed building on the site, marking
the entrance to the new district centre from the north, the ground floor of this building should be
wrapped with active frontage to achieve an appropriate quality for such a prominent element.
Furthermore, the design guidelines only state that inactive uses across the application site “should
be mimimised”; however a maximum coentiguous length of inactive frontage should be stated.

36 The form and massing strateqgy for the application site has been developed in
conjunction with the masterplan sites and is broadly supported. The vanation in building
heights is particularly welcomed in order to avoid a monoctonous unifermity of height. The
building in the north-east parcel rises to 16 storeys on the cormer of Burdeck Road and the dual
carriageway of Watermead Way, which will be the tallest building in the masterplan area and will

page 7



Page 140

mark the proposed district centre when viewed from the north, with limited overshadowing
impacts in this location. The 4 storey building in the south-west parcel steps down towards the
adjacent park from the neighbouring &-7 storey block, and its diagonally off-set floors provide a
distinctive focal point reflecting the proposed design of the College building to the east.
Building 24, forming the south side of a perimeter block has a break only from level 5; whereas
building 1A (outside this application), forming the north side of this perimeter block, has a full
break to ground level. Although the courtyard space appears adequate, this raises some
concems about daylight/sunlight penetration to the proposed courtyard and the applicant
should provide further information on daylight levels and justification for this layout.

ET Otherwise, the design guidelines and illustrative residential layouts suggest that a good
residential quality could be achieved; however they should be strengthened to identify a
minimum of 50% dual aspect units, and minimise the number of north-facing single aspect
units. Although the design guidelines allow up to 12 units per core, which goes beyond the 8
units per core usually allowed by the Housing 5PG; these units would be accessed from corridors
either side of the core, with no more than 8 units per corridor, and would only apply to the lower
floors of building 3, which is acceptable in this case.

38 The intention to deliver clear and simple articulation to the elevations is welcomed. The
design guidelines include clear guidance for the roofscape; setbacks; balconies; frontages,
entrances; awnings; signage; services; colour; and materials, which will primarily be brick.

39 In recegnition of the relaticnship of the propeosal to those of the larger masterplan area,
the design guidelines include appropriate temporary approaches to cladding, boundary
treatments, and landscaping, which is welcomed.

Historic environment

40 The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 sets out the statutory
duties for dealing with heritage assets in planning decisions. London Plan Policy 7.8 “Heritage
Assets and Archaeology” states that development should identify, value, conserve, restore, re-
use and incorporate heritage assets where appropriate. London Plan Policy 7.8 also applies to
nen-designated heritage assets. The NPPF states that the effect of an application on the
significance of a non-designated hentage asset should be taken into account in determining the
application, and a balanced judgement is required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss
and the significance of the heritage asset.

41 The Environmental Statement includes a heritage statement and a townscape visual
impact assessment, which identifies a number of Conservation Areas and listed buildings in the
wider area, although these are greater than 400 metres away from the site with limited visual
connection. The heritage statement finds that the proposed development would preserve the
settings of designated heritage assets identified. The locally listed Berol House lies adjacent to
the site, and the heritage statement concludes that the proposal would have a moderate
beneficial impact on its setting and preserve its significance. Other buildings within and around
the site are also considered, although these are of very low heritage significance and raise no
concemns. GLA officers agree with this assessment. In coming to this conclusion, officers have
taken account of the strong presumption against granting permission that would harm the
character or appearance of the Conservation Areas, and have given considerable importance and
weight to the assessment of harm to the setting of listed buildings.

page &



Page 141

Inclusive design

42 The aim of London Plan Policy 7.2 “An Inclusive Environment’ is to ensure that proposals
achieve the highest standards of accessibility and inclusion (not just the minimum). As
requested at pre-application stage, the design guidelines include appropriate measures to secure
inclusivity, in particular conceming shared surfaces.

43 Policy 3.8 “Housing Choice” requires that 90% of new housing meets Building Regulation
requirement M4(2) “accessible and adaptable dwellings’ and 10% meets Building Regulation
requirement M4{3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings’, that is, designed to be wheelchair accessible or
easily adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users. The application states that 10% of the
units will be accessible /adaptable, with the detail to be determined at reserved matters stage.
The Council should secure M4(2) and M4(3) requirements by condition. The reserved matters
application should identify on the plans where the wheelchair accessible homes are located, and
should be distributed across tenure types and sizes to give disabled and clder people similar
choices to others.

44 As discussed under “transport” below, all wheelchair accessible/adaptable units (10% of
total units) should have access to a Blue Badge parking space.

Transport

45 The development would be car free, save for the provision of 13 accessible spaces, which
is welcome given the high PTAL; however, the quantum of accessible parking should be
increased in line with the Mayor's Housing SPG to provide a space for each wheelchair
accessible/adaptable unit (26 spaces). The applicants” justification for lower provision is their
reported finding of a 38% average utilisation rate for Blue Badge parking across a sample of
sites managed; however this evidence is not satisfactory justification. The applicant proposes a
car park management plan, which is also welcomed and should be secured by cendition.

46 The net reduction in vehicle trips to/from the site is welcomed; however, in accordance
with London Plan Policy 6.34, bus impact should be addressed (including disag gregation of bus
trip generation by route and direction) to determine whether any additional bus capacity will be
needed as mitigation.

47 The pedestrian and cycling permeability of the site will encourage active, sustainable
travel, and overall, the public realm proposals appear to be well considered. If the proposed
Ashley Link will not be adopted highway, then 24 hour access should be secured through the
section 106 agreement.

43 The existing bus stands on Ashley Road and Burdock Reoad must be retained, and further
discussions should take place with TfL to ensure that additional parking and loading will not
block the passage of buses; any changes will increase the length of bus cages; the smooth flow
of buses will be facilitated; and improved lighting and security will be delivered. The proposed
buildings should demonstrate good acoustic design practice to ensure that any noise impact
arising from the bus stands is fully mitigated within the building envelope or the site boundary.

49 The applicant should provide a cycling infrastructure environment audit of the key cycle
routes in the vicinity to identify improvements to cycling comfort and safety. The use of the
cycling level of service {CLoS) methodology, as detailed in TfL's London cycling design
standards, is recommended, which should also inform cycle design on Ashley Road.

page 8



Page 142

50 Cycle parking provision meets the London Plan Policy 6.9Ba minimum quantity provision
for land uses Al food retail and C3-C4 dwellings; however, there is a shortfall in provision for B1
offices, which should be increased. The detailed location, access and design of all cycle parking
should also be clarified to demonstrate secure, integrated, convenient, and accessible provision.

El The detailed servicing requirements of the retail units should be addressed through a
revised delivery and servicing plan when the end occupiers are known, which should be secured
by planning condition and comply with London Play Policy 6.14.

52 The Victoria line tunnels extend below the site and the construction logistics plan (CLP)
must consider how the safety and integrity of this infrastructure will be maintained. The final
CLP should be secured by a pre-commencement condition in consultation with TFL.

53 The Council should secure, enforce, monitor, review and ensure the funding of the travel
plan through the section 106 agreement, to ensure conformity with Londoen Plan Policy 6.3.

Climate change

Energy

54 Based on the energy assessment, an on-site reduction of 142 tonnes of CO2 per year in
regulated emissions is expected, compared to a 2013 Building Regulations compliant
development, equivalent to an overall saving of 37%; however the carbon emissions for
demestic and nen-domestic elements should be presented separately for each stage of the
energy hierarchy in light of the zero carbon target for dwellings. Any carbon shortfall on the
commercial elements should also be met via a contribution to the borough's offset fund. Full
details of additional infermaticn requirements have been provided direct to the applicant, wit
the key points summarised below.

55 The applicant has carried out an investigation and there are no existing district heating
networks in the vicinity; however a proposed network has been identified. The applicant has
provided a commitment to ensure that the development is designed to allow future connection
to the district heating networlk.

56 A separate site heat network is proposed for the two development parcels within the
application; however this approach is not supported and a site-wide network is required. The
applicant should also facilitate an area wide network across all masterplan sites. The applicant is
proposing three energy centres; however taking into account the phasing of the development,
the applicant should minimise the number of energy centres and provide a single point of
connection for the whole application site.

57 The applicant is propesing to install two gas fired CHP units as the lead heat source for
each site; however the CHP option is only supported should the proposed site-wide network not
go forward. If a CHP-led site-wide network is the strategy proposed during the detailed design
stage, the applicant should provide a single CHP unit, in order to maximise the carbon savings
on-site and increase system efficiency.

=t Air source heat pumps (ASHPs) are proposed for space heating and cogling in the
commercial space; however this is not acceptable as commercial spaces comprise a significant
part of the site. In order to demonstrate compliance with the energy hierarchy, the applicant
should demonstrate that the use of CHP has been optimised before considering the use of
renewables for heating. Further information should be provided on how the ASHPs will not

page 10



Page 143

impact on the optimisation of the CHP system and the control strategy for ensuring that any air
conditiening system installed on site is onby used when needed.

. taptati

59 The site is located within Flood Zone 2, with some local surface water risks at or close to
the site, and a floed risk assessment (FRA) has therefore been provided. The outline surface
water drainage strategy proposes to attenuate surface water on-site using 5uD5 as appropriate,
including lined permeable paving, rain gardens and green roofs. The surface water runoff
generated at the development will subsequently be discharged at a controlled rate into the
public sewer at greenfield runoff rates or a maximum discharge rate of 5 /s where applicable for
Tin 1 year, 1in 30, 1in 100, T in 100 plus 30% climate change allowance pluvial events. The
proposal meets the requirements of London Plan Policy 5.13.

Local planning authority’s position

60 The applicant has been engaged in pre-application discussions with the Council since May
2016 and it is understood that officers are generally supportive of the proposals.

Legal considerations

61 Under the arrangements set out in Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning (Mayor of
London) Order 2008, the Mayor is required to provide the local planning authority with a
statement setting out whether he considers that the application complies with the London Plan,
and his reasons for taking that view. Unless notified otherwise by the Mayor, the Council must
consult the Mayor again under Article 5 of the Order if it subsequently resolves to make a draft
decision on the application, in order that the Mayor may decide whether to allow the draft decision
to proceed unchanged, or direct the Council under Article & of the Order to refuse the application,
or issue a direction under Article 7 of the Order that he is to act as the local planning authority for
the purpose of determining the application. There is no obligation at this present stage for the
Mayer to indicate his intentions regarding a possible direction, and no such decision should be
inferred from the Mayor's statement and comments.

Financial considerations
62 There are no financial considerations at this stage.
Conclusion

63 London Plan policies on town centre uses; employment; housing; affordable housing; urban
design and tall buildings; historic environment; inclusive design; transport; and climate change are
relevant to this application. The application complies with some of these policies but not with
others, for the following reasons:

+ Residential /ftown centre uses/employment: The applicant should provide an estimate
of the number of jobs that may be provided on the site, and further information on the
possibility of affordable workspace. The principle of the proposed residential led mixed-use
development is consistent with London Plan policies and is supported.

¢ Housing: The principle of residential use is consistent with London Plan pelicies, and is
supported.  The housing density and play space proposals are supported. Ranges of
housing mix should be secured in the section 106 agreement.

+ Affordable housing: 50% (by habitable room), made up of 70% intermediate shared
ownership, 30% affordable rent. It is understood that grant funding will be required to

page 11



64

Page 144

achieve 50%. The applicant should weork with GLA officers to confirm the approach, taking
account of the draft SPG requirements and noting review mechanism and section 106
requirements. The proposed tenure split meets the requirements of the draft SPG, subject
to the views of the Council. The applicant’s viability assessment confirms that assumed
affordable rent levels are at local housing allowance levels or lower. Of the shared
ownership units, 25% will be low cost shared ownership; however there are concerns about
the affordability of the remaining 75%.

Urban design and tall buildings: The proposals are generally supported; however some
amendments and clarifications are required. The applicant should clarify how negative
impacts on privacy and daylight,/sunlight due to the procamity of buildings will be avoided,
and revisions to the layouts and /or design guidelines may be required. A minimum
distance between building 3 (within the application) and building 4 {outside this
application) should also be specified in the design guidelines. The design parameter
identifying frontage uses for building 3 should be amended. The design guidelines should
identify a maximum contiguous length of inactive frontage for all buildings. The applicant
should provide further information on daylight levels to the courtyard of building 24A.

Historic environment: The proposed development would preserve the settings of
heritage assets.

Inclusive design: The proposals are acceptable in relation to inclusive design, subject to
an increase in Blue Badge parking spaces. The Council should secure M4(2]) and M4(3)
requirements by condition.

Transport: The applicant should increase Blue Badge car parking provision; assess
development trip generation impact on buses; increase cycle parking provision; and provide
detail on lecation, access and design of all cycle parking. A car park management plan,
delivery and servicing plan and travel plan should be secured by condition or section 106
agreement. A construction legistics plan should be secured by pre-commencement
condition. Depending on results of bus impact assessment, a contribution towards bus
impact mitigation may be required.

Climate change: The approach of providing a separate site heat network for the two
development parcels within the application is not supported and a site-wide network is
required. Further information is required in order to verify the carbon savings. The
proposal meets the requirements of London Plan Palicy 5.13

On balance, the application does not yet comply with the London Plan; however the

possible remedies set out above could address these deficiencies.

For further information, contact GLA Planning Unit {Development & Projects Team):
Colin Wilson, Senior Manager — Development & Projects

0207583 4783 email colin.wilsonSlondon.gov.uk

Sarah Considine, Strategic Planning Manager — Development Decisions
02075832 5751  email sarah.considine@london.gov.uk

Martin Jones, Senior Strategic Planner, Case Officer

020 7583 6567 email martinjones@london.gov.uk

page 12



Page 145

Appendix 4 Plans and Images

[See separate appendix]



Page 146

Appendix 5 Fire Safety — additional information

Cannon Factory and Ashley House Works — Frequently Asked Questions

Commercial Areas Residential Areas

01 Is the building protected with a Sprinkler System?

B2, B2A — The single storey commercial areas at
ground level do not require sprinkler protection.

B3 — The commercial areas will be provided with
sprinkler system.

B2 — The residential areas in the apartment
building do not require sprinkler protection.
{Building height below 30m).

B2A, B3 — The residential areas as well as ancillary
areas will be provided with sprinkler protection in
accordance with B5 9251,

(32: Are the areas provided with a fire detection an

d alarm system?

B2, BZA, B3 — The commercial units will be
provided with a minimum of a manual alarm

system in accordance with BS 5839 Part 1.

B2, B2A, B3 — The flats will need to be provided
with @ mains-powered and battery backed up
minimum LD2 Grade D fire detection and alarm
system (in accordance to B5 5839 Part 6),
consisting of smoke detectors in the circulation
spaces and all rooms of the flat and a heat
detector in the kitchen. Bathrooms, toilets and
shower rooms are not required to be provided
with fire detection as per code.

3: What are the materials used in escape routes?

B2, B2A, B3 — The building materials in escape routes should be Class 0 in lime with Building

Regulations.

Class 0 is the highest National product performance classification for lining materials. This is achieved

if a material or the surface of a composite product

of not more than 6.

i either:

Composed throughout of materials of limited combustibility;
Or a Class 1 material which has a fire propagation index (I} of not more than 12 and sub-index [il)

04: What is the fire separation between the units?

B2, B2ZA, B3 — The commercial units will be
separated by at least 1 hour fire resistant
construction.

B2 — The floors in the building will be designed to
provide 1 hour fire resistance between storeys.

B2A — The floors in the building will be designed
to provide 90min fire resistance between
storeys.

B3 — The floors in the building will be designed to
provide 2-hours fire resistance between storeys.
The stairs will be enclosed in 2-howrs fire
resisting construction.

B2, B2A, B3 — The flats will be separated by at
least 1 hour fire resistant construction.

The corridors also will have 1 hour fire resisting
walls. The stair will be enclosed in 2-hours fire
resisting construction.

B2 — The floors in the building will be designed to
provide 1 hour fire resistance between storeys.

B2A —The floors in the building will be designed
to provide 90min fire resistance between storeys.

B3 — The floors in the building will be designed to
provide 2-hours fire resistance between storeys.

5: How can the fire brigade enter the building?

B2, B2A — Each commercial unit is accessible

B2 — The firefighting access will be provided




Page 147

directly from the cutside.

B3 — The ground floor commercial units are
accessible directly from the outside; the first
floor units should be accessed through 2
stairwells.

through normal means of escape, a min 15%: of
the building perimeter will nead to provide
vehicle access. A dry fire main is likely to be
reguired.

B2A, B3 — The building will be provided with a
firefighting shaft (i.e. firefighting lift, lobby and
stair) that firefighters can use to reach the fire
floor. The fire-fighting shaft will be enclosed in fire
resistant construction and will be protected from
smoke ingress by smoke ventilation system.

A fire main which will provide water to all floors
for firefighting operations, will be either:

+ A dry riser if the tower is below 50m; or

* A wetriserif the tower is above 50m.

(06: How many escape stairs are provided?

B2, B2A — The commercial units will be
evacuated directly to the outside and do not rely
on stairs for evacuation.

B3 — The ground floor commercial units will be
evacuated directly to the outside and do not rely
on stairs for evacuation; the commercial units
located at first floor will evacuate through 2
stairwells.

B2 — the residential part will be provided with a
simgle stair, but the corridors approaching the
stair will have a smoke ventilation system to
prevent smoke spread and as such keep it safe for
evacuation & firefighting.

B2A, B3 — each tower be provided with a single
stair, but the corridors approaching the stair will
have a smoke ventilation system to prevent
smoke spread and as such keep it safe for
evacuation & firefighting.

7: What is the Evacuation Strategy / Procedure for the Building in the event of a fire?

B2, B2A, B3 — In the event of a fire, the fire
detection system will alert the occupants in the
area of fire origin (affected commercial unit) to
evacuate.

B2, B2A — The occupants of the commercial units
will evacuate directly to the outside, with travel
distance within the allowed limits.

B3 — The occupants of the commercial units will
evacuate directly to the outside, with travel
distance within the allowed limits; the first floor
units will evacuate through the stairs.

B2, B2A, B3 — In the event of a fire, the fire
detection system will alert the occupants in the
apartment of fire origin to evacuate.

B2, B2A, B3 — On the residential floors, the
common areas and the stairs will be designed to
provide protected routes out of the building,
supported by smoke ventilation systems in the
corridors to prevent smoke spread into the escape
stairs.

Only the flat of origin will be evacuated. The other
occupants remain in place until instructed
otherwise by the Fire Service. This is the
evacuation procedure recommended in the UK
Building Regulations for flats.

(38: What kind of materials have been used in the facade of the building?

B2 — Top storey height less than 18m; no provisions for the external surfaces of walls, unless the
boundary is less than 1m. Otherwise fagade material shall be Class 0 (national class) or Class B-s3, d2

or better (European classification).

B.2A, B3:

- If building boundary less than 1m, top storey height more than 18m; The external wall




Page 148

construction shall be Class O (national class) or Class B-s3, d2 or better (European class), i.e.

profiled or flat steel sheet at least 0.5mm thick with an organic coating of no more than 0.2mm

thickness is acceptable.

- If building boundary 1m or mare:

- Any dimension over 18m; The external wall construction shall be Class 0 (national class) or
Class B-53, d2 or better (European class).

- Upto1Bm above ground; Index {I) not more than 20 (national class) or class C-53, d2 or better
(European class), i.e. timber cladding at least 9mm thick is acceptable.

B2, B2A, B3 — Insulation product, filler material, etc. shall either be non-combustible where the height
of the top storey is greater than 18m; or be tested in accordance with BR 135.

(9. What are the precautions to prevent a fire climbing up the facade?

B2, B2A, B3 — The materials in the facade shall be chosen such that they do not contribute to fire
spread. Also, at every floor level and partition wall at every opening in the fagade e_g. windows, a fire
stopping system [cavity barrier) is installed in the fagade system to prevent a fire spread into the
facade build up or through the fagade cavity.

010: What is the fire resistance of the structure?

B2 — The buildings structures will be designed to withstand the impact of a fire for at least 1 hour.
B2A — The buildings structures will be designed to withstand the impact of a fire for at least 90min.

B3 — The buildings structuras will be designed to withstand the impact of a fire for at least 2 hours.
The 2-hours fire rating is the highest fire rating requirement for building structures in the UK Building
Regulations.

The above have been assumed on following building heights:

* Building 2 — 4 storeys, 13.5 - 25_4m, top occupied storey below 11m, single tower

* Building 2A - &-7 storeys, 25.5 - 34.95m, top occupied storey below 30m, 2 towers

* Building 3 — 8-9 storeys 54.275m, 13-16 storeys — 63.725m, top occupied storey above 30m, 2
towers



Page 149

lllustrative masterplan images for Ashley Road showing application boundary

Wik ¢




Page 150

lllustrative visualitations showing early designs for Pavilion building (Building 2)




Page 151

lllustrative design studies & elevations for Ashley Link

Cannon Factory and Ashley House lllustrative Axonometric: Ashiey Link

lllustrative Initial Elevation



Page 152

lllustrative visualisations from Down Lane Park (north) and Watermead Way

11y, R
S S Tl

[l
1 [
I [

¥ [

[ e

:. ¢
I3

e 1
s

'_

J R EY e
LML I s i e
e e b b e b e b e

S G W W S —
e o o o e e e e




Page 153

lllustrative visualisation looking north along Ashley Way




Page 154

Streets and Spaces plans referred to in Heads of Terms

X ;_" Tt 3
e AUALIR AV ERETE I |l
267-08 10611 Tottchun Hube O0F . Propoast Prtde Pushn with Runiesd Highways Lipout Adarrs & Sutherend

ST e | i e N N |
) [ || ———

‘_-—-? o..-'-'"-'l - — —— |-
l-& ol el Bed *‘ﬁ‘:

o | | A—— A - | - — ] —
onﬁ DR — | — i

BT R e )
T e --=§ | — I

f;o--u D . | —
] mais e -

A E F s P B I e ey

= N el T

I.-:ﬂ-‘ oo | — - | -

= = . -

‘“m@ ":"-?— - :

- | S - -

wow | - e | e

! | a—— - -

- - - -

= | a—— — | ——

\ o | e—— - -

| o | e | e | —

Pe——

| —

e

— | —

— | —

- —

— | —

Rt

— | —

— | —

- -

— | —

— | —

— | —

| —

R bt

= o - L
. £ A =
B2y HEI jl : HV s d':g‘b"" -
ey \ / . a b et Bt
VB | AP 2, w] | —
=] R AN
o L = DAl (TR /Bl
1 ¥ {. | Iw‘\x“ _,./‘/—- ;‘_ ] e | ———
AT PR | e D T —

s & Suthetland

15702100811 Vottenhun Mae DCF. Stroets & Spaces s0d Geean 3ot Open Spuce Propect Delivery

¥
&
2
pe

|
¥
i
!
|
1



Page 155 Agenda Item 10

Pre-application briefing to Committee

1. DETAILS OF THE DEVELOPMENT

Reference No: PRE/2017/0147 Ward: Crouch End
Address: Hornsey Town Hall The Broadway N8 9JJ

Proposal: Refurbishment and change of use of the Hornsey Town Hall from B1
Use Class and sui-generis to a mixed use scheme comprising a hotel (Use Class
C1), food and beverage uses (use classes A3 and A4), community uses (Use Class
D1 and D2) and co-working uses (Use Class B1). Removal of east wing extension
and erection of east wing roof extension. Use of the northwest roof of Town Hall as
a roof terrace. The erection of a 7 storey building and part 6, part 7 storey building
comprising 120 residential units to the rear and associated car parking at basement
level. Change of use of the ground floor of Broadway Annex to food and beverage
use (Use Class A3 and A4) and change of use of the first and second floors to
residential use comprising 16 units. The erection of a residential mews block to the
rear of the Broadway Annex comprising 9 residential units. Alterations and
landscaping improvements to the Town Hall square and open spaces. Demolition of
the Weston Clinic building.

Applicant: Far East Consortium
Agent Collective Planning
Ownership: Private/Council

Case Officer Contact: James Hughes
2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The proposed development is being reported to Planning Sub Committee to
enable members to view it at an early stage. Any comments made are of a
provisional nature only and will not prejudice the final outcome of any
planning application submitted for formal determination. It is anticipated that
the proposal will be presented to the Planning Sub-Committee in late 2017.
The applicant is engaged in pre-application discussions. These discussions
are following a ‘competitive dialogue’ procurement process in 2016, which
was conducted entirely independently from the Planning process, in which
the applicant emerged as the successful bidder.

3. SITE AND SURROUNDS

3.1. The site is located on the east side of the Crouch End Broadway and is 1.3
Ha in area. The site is irregular shaped and is bounded by Hornsey Library

Planning Sub-Committee Report



3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

Page 156

and Haringey Park to the south, and primarily Edwardian residential
development to the north and east. it is bounded by Hartherley Gardens,
and the Crouch End Broadway and various commercial uses to the west.

The key buildings on the site are the Hornsey Town Hall, the Weston Clinic
Building, and the Broadway Annex building. The Hornsey Town Hall
Building is statutory listed Grade II*. The Broadway Annex building and the
library are statutory listed Grade Il. The site also contains green space
(including the Town Square fronting the Town Hall) and surface car parking.

The site is located within the Couch End District Centre and Crouch End
Conservation Area. The site also lies within the Landmark Viewing Corridor
to St. Pauls Cathedral and within its Wider Setting Consultation Area. A
locally protected view from Parkland Walk crosses the site. The Town Hall
and its environs are well served by the bus network — the site attracts a
PTAL rating of 3. Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) CE-A surrounds the site
and CPZ CE-B lies to west.

The site lies within SA48 (Hornsey Town Hall) pursuant to the emerging Site
Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD). The pre-application site
excludes a small allocated area west of the Hornsey Library. The site
allocation SA48 promotes “restoration of the existing listed buildings to
create a sustainable future use for these buildings which complement
Crouch End District Centre, with enabling residential development on the
car parking areas.”

The allocation also notes that planning permission was granted in 2010 (for a
refurbishment of the existing Town Hall, with an element of enabling
residential development) and that “new uses will be considered by the
Council, with the aim of finding a use that benefits the vibrancy and vitality of
Crouch End District Centre. Sensitively designed residential development
which appropriately enables this refurbishment will be considered”.

4. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

4.1

The development proposals comprise:

e The change of use of the Hornsey Town Hall to a hotel use (with Use

Class C1) and a community centre, food and beverage use, and co-
working spaces. Refurbishment and restoration of the Town Hall.
Insertion of co-working floor space within the west roof of the Assembly
Hall.

e Removal of a roof extension on the southern side of the East Wing of the

Town Hall. Erection of a symmetrical roof extension (containing hotel
space) on the north and south side of the East Wing of the Town Hall.
Provision of a terrace on the north-western roof of the Town Hall.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 157

Change of use of ground floor of Broadway Annex East to restaurant
(A3/A4) use and change of use of first and second floors to residential
use comprising 16 units. Rear extension to the Broadway Annex.

Erection of 120 new build residential units comprising two blocks at the
rear of the Hornsey Town Hall. These are proposed to be located south
of the East Wing of the Town Hall (Block B — 7 storeys/41 units) and
along the eastern plotline of the pre-application site (Block A — Part 6/Part
7 storeys — 79 units).

Erection of 9 residential units to the rear of the Broadway Annex.

Landscaping and improvements to the Town Square and the open
spaces within the site. Provision of a new public green space (‘the Town
Hall gardens’) to the south of the council chambers.

The applicant’s proposal incorporates the shared use of spaces within the
Town Hall building to allow the hotel operator and local arts and
community groups to use designated areas of the Town Hall at different
times. This shared use arrangement is proposed to be managed by a
separate legal agreement and the applicant intends to appoint an
operator to administrate the shared use element of the proposal.

The planning application is proposed to be accompanied by applications
for Listed Building Consent for works to the listed Town Hall and the
Broadway Annex buildings. The applicant proposes to demolish the
Weston Clinic building.

5. PLANNING HISTORY

5.1The site has an extensive planning history. The key applications relevant to the
pre-application are below:

HGY/2010/0500 - Refurbishment and conversion of the Town Hall Building
comprising alterations, extension and change of use from B1 (Business) and
Sui Generis to a mixed use scheme incorporating: D1, D2, A3 & A4 and
retaining existing B1 and Sui Generis uses and new residential development
comprising 123 No. units in total (35 x 1 bed flats, 61 x 2 bed flats, 20 x 3
bed flats, 3 x 4 bed flats and 4 x 4 bed houses) and associated car parking at
basement level, including residential accommodation in the existing Town
hall (East Wing and Link Building), the Broadway Annexe (West Part) and
Mews. Granted December 2010

HGY/2010/0501 — Listed Building Consent in association with planning
consent — granted HGY/2010/0500

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 158

e HGY/2010/0502 — Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of existing
buildings in association with planning consent HGY/2010/0500 - granted
December 2010.

e In 2013, three Section 73 planning applications for minor material
amendments to 2010 planning, listed building and conservation area
consents (as listed above) were submitted, which sought variations to a
number of conditions to these consents, all of which were approved in
September 2013, as follows:

e HGY/2013/0694 — variation of conditions attached to planning permission
reference HGY/2010/0500

e HGY/2013/1384 - variation of conditions attached to conservation area
consent reference HGY/2010/0502

e HGY/2013/1383 — variation of conditions attached to listed building
consent reference HGY/2010/0501

6 CONSULTATION
Internal/External Consultation

6.1 This scheme is currently at pre-application stage and therefore no formal
consultation has been undertaken. Given the heritage issues, officers have met
with Historic England Inspectors on three occasions during the pre-application
process. Historic England will be formally consulted at aEpIication stage, but
provided pre-application comments to the applicant on 6" July 2017. These
pre-application comments are attached as Appendix 1. Historic England (HE)
is supportive of the scheme in principle and raises no objection to the internal
refurbishment works to the Grade II* Town Hall at this juncture in the
development process.

6.2 The applicant has undertaken non-statutory public consultation during the pre-
application process. Four consultation events were held at the Hornsey Town
Hall itself on 18" May, 20" May, 6th July and 8™ July 2017.

Development Management Forum

6.3 The proposal will be presented at DM Forum on 10" July 2017. A note of the
issues raised will be tabled on the night of Planning Sub-Committee.

Quality Review Panel
6.4 A previous version of the proposal was assessed by the Quality Review Panel

(QRP) on 17" May 2017. A summary of the QRP feedback on the initial
scheme is below.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 159

“The Quality Review Panel warmly supports the proposals to restore and
refurbish the Town Hall, and bring it back into positive use. They support
the approach that the design team have taken to the adaptation and
renovation of the Town Hall building.

However, the panel feels that fresh thinking is required for the design of
the new blocks of residential accommodation to the east and south of the
site, and the public and private spaces between them. The panel feels that
the proposed massing of the new blocks is too high, and that the scale of
Block B in particular would cause significant harm to the listed Town Hall.
The footprint and configuration of the new blocks also requires further
consideration, whilst the quality of public spaces between the blocks
needs to be improved.”

6.5Following the QRP review of 17" May 2017 (and in response to Historic
England Inspectors) the applicant has made amendments to the initial scheme.

7 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The main planning issues raised by the proposed development are considered
below:

Principle of the development

7.2The development proposal is considered to meet the general site requirements
of SA48 in the Council’s Site Allocations DPD and the land uses are broadly
acceptable in principle subject to the provision of further details. The principle of
demolition of the Weston Clinic building and introduction of new build
development on the site are also considered broadly acceptable subject to
rigerous policy assessment on a host of design and heritage issues.

Design and Appearance

7.3The current arrangement proposes a 7 storey new build block (Block B)
orientated to adjoin the Town Hall to the south of the East Wing. A second
pavilion-style new build block is proposed to align with the eastern plotline of the
site (Block A). The layouts of the blocks are generally within the previously
approved footprints, although Block A has a slightly elongated outline.

7.4The visual appearance of the new build blocks is proposed to be a blend of
materials that incorporates elements of the Town Hall and the Hornsey Library.
For Block A, the pre-application submission notes a mix of materials of 75%
brick and 25% stone. Block B seeks to incorporate precast concrete panels with
relief detailing arranged in different combinations to give a more abstract
appearance.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 160

7.5Details of the roof extensions to the East Wing should be progressed by the
applicant and officers note there has been insufficient detail presented around
this element of the scheme to date, although the principle of roof extensions in
this location was consented in 2010.

Impact to Heritage Assets and Strategic Views

7.6 Officers have received verified views from the applicant presenting the impacts
to Conservation Area views of the Town Hall from the Crouch End Broadway
and from other view points. Further details of the materials and elevational
treatments for new build elements, as well as an articulation of the public benefit
of the scheme are required to progress this element of the proposal. The
scheme does not require referral to the Mayor of London on the basis of
strategic views or building height.

7.7 As noted above, Historic England has provided preliminary comments and have
considered that the internal alterations to the Town Hall are generally
considered to be in keeping with the modern character of the heritage asset,
however further details of the works are required.

New Build Residential - Unit quality and mix
7.8 The applicant proposes that all new build and conversion units will be compliant

with London Plan standards. The proposed unit mix for the new build elements
of the scheme is set out in the table below:

Unit Size | Block A Block B Broadway | Annex Mews Total
Annex Extension

1 Bed 29 0 5 6 5 45

2 Bed 34 40 3 4 81

3 Bed 14 1 1 16

4 Bed 2 0 2

Total 79 41 9 6 9 144
Density

7.9There are limits to the application of the London Plan Density Matrix in this
instance given the site parameters, however the scheme is braodly on track to
yield a new build residential density that is in line with the range for an urban site
with a PTAL 3 that has good access to a District Centre. However, the applicant
must ensure a robust design and layout and demonstrate how a high quality
residential environment for occupiers will be achieved The removal of residential

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 161

uses from the Town Hall (departing from the 2010 scheme) is generally
supported.

Affordable Housing

7.10 London Plan Policies 3.9, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12 and 3.13 address the Mayor’s
strategy for affordable housing and Local Plan Policies SP2 and DM13 reiterate
this. The Local Plan requires developments of 10 units or more to provide 40%
of affordable housing in order to contribute to the boroughs affordable housing
stock. Discussions around afforable housing are still on going with the
applicant.

Transportation and Parking

7.11 The new build blocks would incorporate 40 allocated parking spaces for
residential occupiers (including 14 spaces for Blue Badge Users). Of these 40
spaces, 33 will be within the basement of Block A and 7 will be surface level
next to Block B.

7.12 This yields a parking ratio of 0.27 parking spaces per unit. The applicant
proposes provision of two car club spaces within the immediate vicinity of the
site. The applicant also proposes to preclude the issue of residential parking
permits within CPZs CE-A and CE-B to future occupiers of the land. The
applicant proposes 3 on site car parking spaces to the rear of the Town Hall for
all groups using the building, subject to a pre-booking arrangement. A London
Plan compliant level of cycle parking is proposed on the site. Servicing to the
Town Hall and new build blocks is proposed to be by way of Haringey Park,
however details are still under discussion with the applicant.

Impacts to Amenity

7.13 Imapct to residental amenity are still under assessment and officers
anticipate a comprehensive BRE daylight/sunlight assessment will be submitted
with the application in order to demonstrate that the siting and scale of the
proposed buildings will be acceptable in relation to the amenity of adjoining
occupiers and further 3D images will be presented.

Trees and Ecology

7.14 There are no statutorily designated nature conservation areas on the site. An
Ecological Appraisal will be submitted with the planning application and if there
is evidence of any significant habitats on site, full mitigation measures will be
detailed within the report.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 162

7.15 There are 31 trees on the site based on the applicant’s initial survey. Of
these 16 are to be retained, 5 are proposed to be moved within the site, and 10
will be felled and replanted. The Council’s Trees and Nature Conservation
Manager has engaged with the applicants at the pre-application stage and has
reviewed the applicant’s preliminary tree survey and tree plan. A map of the
current proposed tree re-locations and removals is below — See Image 1.16.

Sustainability

7.16 The London Plan requires all new homes to achieve a 35 per cent carbon
reduction target beyond Part L 2013 of the Building Regulations. This would be
expected to be outlined in an Energy Strategy submitted. District energy for the
Town Hall complex is envisaged for the scheme.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 163

PLANS AND IMAGES

Town Hall

Hatherley Gardens

Hornsey Library ; |— ﬂ — 4|, 1,

T

# s

T‘ -‘— ‘ —I— J I i """.'i"""_"_,"f"':""','L N R
Image 1.1- EX'St'ng Slte Plan (Source Applicant)

s - - N P
Image 1.2 — Approximate site boundary for illustrative purposes (Source: Google)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 164

Image 1.4 — Proposed Massing Plan (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 165

1

[LLLITIIT]
CIILITIIT
COLOITIT]
[N N RN
[Enna sl

5
«d T
Assembly Hall o Function
i Foyer Room

PTTTTTTI L0 i
JLIId »

i iy i

FaB § ) =
2 3 Terrace

6
7
) !| H
il ~
10
Committes 4 [\ . 5
Rooms 2 [
Y E Assembly Hall rlis
14 4 s'leaﬂ';iﬂc"":grﬁ 8 8 {upper level) Dressing
f \ 2 Room
¢ . d ==
i i i [
S S

Member’s Room

r
»
2 — 1
LM r'\\/?i
e N %
‘Aparthotel % %

Image 1.6 — Town Hall — Proposed First Floor (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 166

5 Ir
q l— -
T i -
errace || i
i = .
it i
il 4 |
in
i 3 A 1 5
I I
i i
2 | I| (Office / co-warking .
i B |spaces k
.

ham
LIRS
IRIEIS]

- terrace H 7 !
R EAY N i
; - \:n

1 1 p
8 B
Aparthotel Aparthotel
Lo — i — s —m—

Image 1.7 — Town Hall — Proposed Second Floor (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 167

Image 1.8 — Proposed Cross Section looking North (Block A RHS) (Source Applicant)

"
........ g u
L Wi S W
Wil & W
L i

Image 1.9 — Proposed Block A Elevation Looking east (Source Applicant)

B : '

\ G

Form and relief Solid and void Texture and finishes Metal detailing

Image 1.10 - Proposed Materials Pallet - new build block. (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 168

y NS

Ifﬁége 1.11 - Lboking southbound fror\r\l.\'/‘\/éé‘tor; Park access. (Source Applicant)

AT 7 A
ATHAT

Image 1.12 - Looking south from Weston Park access. (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 169

~==

Image 1.14 - Looking east from the Broadway (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 170

Image 1.15 — Looking east along Haringey Park (Source Applicant)

Image 1.16 — Looking south from Weston Park Access (Block B — centre of image)
(Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 171

Image 1.17 — Proposed Tree Relocation/Removal Map. (Source Applicant)

Planning Sub-Committee Report



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173
AR Historic England
o 5

LONDON OFFICE

Mr John Ferguson Direct Dial: 0207 973 3777
Collective Planning

49 York Street Our ref: PA00418271
London

W1H 1PU 6 July 2017

Dear Mr Ferguson
Pre-application Advice
HORNSEY TOWN HALL , LONDON , N8 9J3J

Thank you for consulting Historic England on your pre-application proposals relating to
Hornsey Town Hall on behalf of your client, Far East Consortium Limited. We are
pleased to hear that you are part of the team appointed to take forward the Hornsey
Town Hall redevelopment project, alongside Donald Insall Associates and Make
Architects, and that you will now be taking proposals forward to the planning and listed
building consent application stage.

In terms of our remit, Historic England has a statutory role in providing expert advice
on proposals affecting the built historic environment and recommend the authorisation
of listed building consent applications for grade II* listed buildings to the Secretary of
State for determination. We are also a consultee on any large planning applications
affecting the setting of a grade II* building or conservation area.

Significance

Hornsey Town Hall is a grade II* listed building and is therefore of high heritage
significance. The Town Hall was constructed in 1935 to designs by RH Uren and was
the first major UK building to be constructed in the modernist style. The building has
remained largely unaltered and retains many features of architectural and historic
interest, including a number of high quality interiors and finishes, some of which were
implemented in association with Heales stores. The building has been vacant for many
years, following the dissolution of the borough of Hornsey, and is an entrant on our
Heritage At Risk Register for London. We therefore welcome proposals to repair the
building and bring it back into a viable new use.

Impact

I have met twice with yourselves in recent months to discuss your emerging proposals
for Hornsey Town Hall and the associated land at the rear. Following our most recent
site meeting, on site on 3rd July 2017, you have presented updated proposed floor

g‘.”:@ & 1 WATERHOUSE SQUARE 138-142 HOLBORN LONDON ECIN 2ST *
WS Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Pspp® HistoricEngland,org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All
Information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA
or EIR applies.
Historic England will use the information provided by you to evaluate any applications you make for statutory or quasi-statutory consent,
or for grant or other funding. Information provided by you and any information obtained from other sources will be retained in all cases in
hard copy form and/or on computer for administration purposes and future consideration where applicable.



Page 174
A Historic England
S 5

LONDON OFFICE

plans for the Town Hall for review. These floor plans show the main entrance lobby
spaces, the former theatre, Mayor's Office, Committee Chamber and Committee Room
being available for community or hotel use and remaining largely unaltered. The
upper part of the theatre seating area would be converted to a new function room. The
ground floor of the south wing and the first floor of the west wing would be used as co-
working spaces. The remaining interiors would be used for food and beverage use or
as hotel bedrooms or ancillary facilities. To the east, west and south wings, the
proposals would include the retention of much of the existing office corridor spaces
and the subdivision of the existing offices to create hotel bedrooms and bathrooms.

On the land at the rear of the Town Hall, you propose two residential blocks, the
proportions of which differ in height to those previously granted planning permission as
‘Enabling Development' linked to the restoration and reuse of Hornsey Town Hall
(Mountview scheme).

Policy

Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (as amended) set out the obligation on local planning authorities to pay special
regard to safeguarding the special interest of listed buildings and their settings, and
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government's policies
for decision making on development proposals. At the heart of the framework is a
presumption in favour of 'sustainable development'. Conserving heritage assets in a
manner appropriate to their significance forms one of the 12 core principles that define
sustainable development.

Paragraphs 132 and 137 consider the impact of that development on the setting of
historic assets.

Paragraphs 133 and 134 advise on cases where proposals would lead to substantial
or less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset. In both
cases, harm needs to be weighed against public benefits, although the tests in 133 for
substantial harm are necessarily more rigorous.

Position

It is clear that you have given a great deal of consideration to the significance of the
Hornsey Town Hall when formulating your plans for conversion of the building to new
uses and this has resulted in proposals that largely retain original fabric and plan form,
wherever possible. In our view, the proposals as they are currently shown are unlikely
to be contentious in heritage terms, subject to a detailed schedule of works. There is,
of course, further detail that is required in respect to extent of repairs to the building,

g‘.”:@ & 1 WATERHOUSE SQUARE 138-142 HOLBORN LONDON ECIN 2ST *
WS Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Pspp® HistoricEngland,org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All
Information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA
or EIR applies.
Historic England will use the information provided by you to evaluate any applications you make for statutory or quasi-statutory consent,
or for grant or other funding. Information provided by you and any information obtained from other sources will be retained in all cases in
hard copy form and/or on computer for administration purposes and future consideration where applicable.



Page 175
AR Historic England
o 5

LONDON OFFICE

servicing and compliance with building regulations and we are happy to discuss these
details further at pre-application and condition stages.

In respect to the proposed extensions and external changes to Hornsey Town Hall, we
have no objection to the repositioning of the steps to the theatre foyer in order to
provide level access across the front of the building. This is providing that existing
fabric is reused wherever possible and that the design of the new fabric is seamless
with the architecture of the Town Hall. We have no objection to the provision of an
external terrace and bar over the existing roof area on the north side of the building,
provided that any associated structures are not visible in key views looking towards
the Town Hall from The Broadway and can be accommodated without any harmful
alterations to the host building. The proposed extensions over the east wing at second
floor level appeared to be follow the principle set in the extant planning permission for
the Town Hall. However, details of the proposed elevational treatment will be needed
in order to assess the impact of the proposals on the host building.

Regarding your proposals to re-landscape the front area, we expressed a clear
preference for Option 1, which allowed for a partial reinstatement of the original
landscaping scheme at the front of the Town Hall, whilst also allowing for renewal of
the existing finishes. We would particularly welcome the restoration of the circular
fountain and the reinstatement of lamp standards in the style of those that originally
existed.

In respect to the new build residential blocks at the rear of the site, we would not wish
to comment in detail on those proposals. However, we do acknowledge that the
proposed increase in height would result in one of the residential blocks appearing just
above the roofline of the Town Hall in views from The Broadway. We welcome the
steps that you have taken to reduce the height of this block to the extent that only a
small part remains visible. However, we still consider that some harm would result
from this proposal which would need to be balanced against the public benefits that
would result from the scheme, in accordance with policies within the NPPF. Of
course, our preference would be for this element to be reduced in height still further
and we would recommend that this option should be explored.

Next Steps

We welcome the progress that has been made in developing your plans in accordance
with our advice and look forward to working with you in the future as your plans
develop further.

It is our view that your proposed uses for the Town Hall provide a good fit for the
building and are unlikely to be contentious in heritage terms, provided that it can be

g‘.”:@ & 1 WATERHOUSE SQUARE 138-142 HOLBORN LONDON ECIN 2ST *
WS Telephone 020 7973 3700 Stonewall
Pspp® HistoricEngland,org.uk DIVERSITY CHAMPION

Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All
Information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA
or EIR applies.
Historic England will use the information provided by you to evaluate any applications you make for statutory or quasi-statutory consent,
or for grant or other funding. Information provided by you and any information obtained from other sources will be retained in all cases in
hard copy form and/or on computer for administration purposes and future consideration where applicable.



Page 176

AR Historic England
R 5

LONDON OFFICE

shown that these uses are able to secure the repair and long term future and

maintenance of the building.

Yours sincerely

Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas

Claire Brady
E-mail: claire.brady@HistoricEngland.org.uk

James Hughes and Nairita Chakraborty, Haringey Council

CC:
Hannah Parham, Donald Insall Associates
Regine Kandan and Katy Ghahremani, Make Architects

HORNSEY TOWN HALL , LONDON , N8 9JJ

Pre-application Advice
Presentation document received 6/6/17
Drawings sent by email on 3/7/17

Information Provided
Freetext

t Stonewall
DIVERSITY CHAMPION

1 WATERHOUSE SQUARE 138-142 HOLBORN LONDON ECI1N 2ST
Telephone 020 7973 3700
HistoricEngland.org.uk
Historic England is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR). All

VO
&
Information held by the organisation will be accessible in response to an information request, unless one of the exemptions in the FOIA
or EIR applies.

'”/sna\‘s
Historic England will use the information provided by you to evaluate any applications you make for statutory or quasi-statutory consent
or for grant or other funding. Information provided by you and any information obtained from other sources will be retained in all cases in
hard copy form and/or on computer for administration purposes and future consideration where applicable.



Page 177 Agenda Iltem 11

Pre-application briefing to Committee Item No.
1. DETAILS OF THE DEVELOPMENT
Reference No: PPA/2017/0013 Ward: Tottenham Green

Address: Land at Bernard Works, Bernard Road, Herbert Road and Norman Road
Bernard Road N15 4NX

Proposal: Demolition of the existing commercial buildings and erection of a part 1, 3, 4,
6 and 8 storey mixed use development comprising 20,020sgft of commercial makers
and designers space, circa 97 apartments and 16 residential apartments tethered to the
commercial space. The commercial space will also include live music rehearsal as well
as recording space.

Applicant: Empyrean Developments Ltd

Agent: Jo Hanslip Urbanissta

Ownership: Private and Council

Case Officer Contact: Robbie McNaugher

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The proposed development is being reported to Planning Sub Committee to
enable members to view the proposal at an early stage. Any comments made
are of a provisional nature only and will not prejudice the final outcome of any
planning application submitted for formal determination. It is anticipated that an
application will be submitted in August and the proposal will be presented to the
Planning Committee early 2018.

2.2 A Development Management Forum was held on 4™ July.

3.0 SITE AND SURROUNDS

3.1 The site consists of approximately 1 hectare of low key industrial units internal
access road and a small area of open space to the north.

3.2  The surrounding area to the south and west is industrial however to the north and
east there are 2 storey terrace residential properties. There is an unusual
arrangement along the east of the site where Herbert Road runs parallel to
Ashby Road separated by a 2 metre high brick wall.

3.3  The site is within a Local employment area: Rangemoor/ Herbert roads and the
Tottenham Hale growth area. Part of the site (excluding the open space) is

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 178

subject to a site allocation in the draft Tottenham AAP: TH12 Hebert Road. For
‘potential redevelopment of the sites for commercial-led mixed-use development
with residential’.

3.4  The site has a PTAL Rating 6a.
4. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

4.1  Demolition of the existing commercial buildings and erection of a part 1, 3, 4, 6
and 8 storey mixed use development comprising approximately 20,000sqft of
commercial makers and designers space, approximately 97 apartments and
approximately 16 residential apartments tethered to the commercial space. The
commercial space will also include live music rehearsal as well as recording
space.

5. PLANNING HISTORY
5.1 There is no relevant planning history for the site.

5.2The site and surroundings have extensive planning history for minor alterations to
the existing commercial buildings.

5.3The planning history for the neighbouring dwellings is as follows:

HGY/2008/1293 GTD 31/07/2009 Demolition of 7 existing temporary detached
bungalows and erection of a two / three storey development of 7 houses (3 / 4 bed)
including one wheelchair house, 11 (1 bed / 2 bed) flats and associated parking and
external works.

6 CONSULTATION
6.1 Internal/external consultation:

6.2 This scheme is currently at pre-application stage and therefore no formal
consultation has been undertaken. There has been no formal neighbour notification
as yet as the planning application has not yet been submitted.

6.3The applicant has been advised that the requirements of the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) and the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement
(SCI) (2011), which sets out the requirement of the developer engaging with and
consulting the local community in planning and development issues. As outlined in
the NPPF and the Council’'s SCI applicants of major schemes are advised to
undertake early community involvement before submitting an application to the
Council. The parameters for development on the site have been consulted on as
part of the Tottenham Area Action Plan.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 179

6.4 The applicant carried out a formal exhibition 18th May 2017

6.5Development Management Forum

6.6 The proposal was presented to a Development Management Forum on 4™ July.
Concerns were raised with the proposal to consolidate the road layout and the effect
on traffic levels on Ashby Road on Herbert Road. The relocation of the park was
criticised, and concerns were raised with the height and impact on neighbouring
amenity.

6.7 Quality Review Panel

6.? The proposal was presented to a Quality Review Panel on 8" March and again on
5" July.

6. 9 The QRP welcomed the mix of employment and residential uses as well as the
overall approach to the design. The panel raised some issues to be considered at the
next stage of design. The feedback from the second review will be available to
members at the Committee Meeting (18" July).

6.10 A further review will take place prior to the submission of a planning application the
feedback will be tabled for Members at Planning sub-committee.

7 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
7.1The main planning issues raised by the proposed development are:
1. Principle of the development —

The principle of redevelopment of the site for commercial-led mixed-use development
with residential is broadly acceptable and is in accordance with the emerging Tottenham
Area Action Plan allocations (TH12), subject to making a positive contribution to
meeting the Borough’s housing and employment needs.

The proposal to provide a range of modern workspaces for creative enterprises is in line
with the AAP site requirements provided that the employment floorspace is maximised.
Residential use adjacent to the existing residential uses in line with the AAP and will
cross subsidise the new employment stock. The AAP expects commercial rents to be
capped in line with the Draft Development Management DPD.

Rationalisation of the parallel access roads is included in the AAP Development
Guidelines so is acceptable in principle.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 180

With regard to moving the existing open space from the north of the site to the south
emerging DM DPD Policy DM20 sets out that the reconfiguration of open space will be
supported where:

a It is part of a comprehensive, deliverable scheme;

b There would be no net loss of open space;

c It would achieve enhancements to address identified deficiencies in the capacity,

guality and accessibility of open space, and it would secure a viable future for the

open space; and

d It would not be detrimental to any environmental function performed by the

existing open space.

The existing open space consists of grass and semi-mature trees it does not appear to
well used and is relatively poor quality.

The proposal to relocate the open space is part of a comprehensive, deliverable
scheme and there would no net loss of open space with a proposed increase from
approximately 600 sgm. to 900 sgm. The relocation aims to enhance the quality and
accessibility of the open space and does not appear to harm the environmental function
performed by the open space subject to habitat and tree surveys being carried out.

2. Design and appearance —

The proposal for up to 8 storeys which is above the prevailing height of the surrounding
area and must be considered against DM DPD Policy DM6 ‘Building Heights’ which sets
out that proposals for taller buildings must be justified in community benefit as well as
urban design terms and should conform to the following general design requirements:

a Be of a high standard of architectural quality and design, including a high quality
urban realm;

b Protect and preserve existing locally important and London wide strategic views

in accordance with Policy DM5; and

¢ Conserve and enhance the significance of heritage assets, their setting, and the wider
historic environment that would be sensitive to taller buildings.

The proposal therefore must provide a high quality design and public realm and must
not impact on local views and the setting of Tottenham High Road Historic Corridor and
nearby listed buildings.

As set out above the proposal has been to the Quality Review Panel on 27th April 2016
and received broad support. The panel felt the development was progressing along the
right lines but felt further thought was required on the impact on the tall buildings on the
neighbouring school and the design and nature of the public and private spaces on the
site.

The emerging Tottenham Area Action Plan provides a number of design guidelines. As
set out above the rationalisation of the parallel access roads on Ashby/Bernard/Herbert

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 181

Roads is set out in these guidelines. An improved streetscape with the existing homes
on Ashby Road is required.

A more detailed design was presented to the QRP on 5" July and the feedback from
this will be provided to members prior to the committee. Concerns were raised at the
DM Forum with the scale of development proposed. The AAP does not set out height
parameters for the site, for 8 storeys (at the highest point) to be acceptable it must be
considered to sit comfortably within the surrounding context and potential developments
on other site.

London Plan Policy 3.4 and Local Plan Policy SP2 require new residential development
to optimise housing output for different types of location taking account of the guidance
set out in the Density Matrix of the London Plan. The site is considered to be Urban
with a PTAL of 6 so the recommended density is approximately 45-260 units per
hectare the proposed density would in line with this range at 100u/ha.

3. Affordable housing —

Local Plan Policy SP2 requires developments of more than 10 units to contribute to the
Borough’s target of 50% (40% in the published draft revised Local Plan) of affordable
housing contributions to the Borough's affordable housing stock. However, subject to
viability any proposed scheme providing less than 50% affordable housing must submit
a viability report for assessment. The applicant has not presented a formal proposal for
the level of affordable housing as yet.

4. Quality of accommodation —

London Plan policy 3.5 and Local Plan policy SP2 require high quality development to
meet the standards of the Mayor's Housing SPG. All units must meet the space
standards set out in these policies. LIVE WORK?

The proposal commercial uses must be design to avoid noise impacts on the proposed
residential units.

5. Housing mix —

The proposed masterplan will provide a mix of units

The final mix has not yet been discussed with the Council’s Housing Team but
discussions will take place early in the pre-application process to ensure the design
retains an appropriate mix of units. The current proposal shows a mixture of dwellings
with some family sized maisonettes on Herbert Road and smaller flats on Ashby Road
and Bernard Road.

6. Impact on residential amenity

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 182

The potential overshadowing effect and impact on outlook of the proposal on the
existing residential dwellings on Ashby Road and Herbert Road will need to be carefully
considered and supported by BRE compliant reports.

The impact of the intensification of the commercial uses and changes to the road layout
will also need to be considered. The proposal has been designed taking these impacts
into consideration.

7. Parking and highway safety

The site is located in an area with a high public transport accessibility level where
development plan policies support developments with low levels of car parking
provision.

The applicant proposed an “on street” parking arrangement with additional bays on
Ashby Road to serve disabled residents. The number of bays provided exceeds the
10% required by London Plan Policy. The remainder of spaces could either be provided
into the local CPZ or retained for residents of the development. Commercial parking
spaces are provided at the centre of the site close to the commercial development with
servicing within the central courtyard area. The proposal includes the rationalisation of
the parallel access roads on Ashby/Bernard/Herbert Roads which must be managed to
prevent introducing commercial traffic to the residential roads and prevent ‘rat running’
through the site. Discussions are ongoing with Council Transportation officers to
resolve these issues.

8. Accessibility —

All units would comply with the relevant standards and 10% of the number of residential
units would be wheelchair accessible.

0. Sustainability —

The London Plan requires all new homes to achieve ‘Zero Carbon’. Commercial
buildings must achieve BREAM ‘Excellent’. This would be expected to be outlined in an
Energy Strategy to be submitted with any application.

The AAP guidelines identify the potential for the site to be part of a decentralised energy
network. This may be as a decentralised energy hub, as a customer, or requiring part of
the site to provide an easement for the network.

Discussions are ongoing with the Council's Carbon Management Team to ensure
compliance with the London Plan Policy and potential provision of a decentralised
energy hub.

These matters are to be assessed prior to the application being considered at
Committee.

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 183

PLANS AND IMAGES

Existing site

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 184

:\!

H

AI--"'IIIII; lllllllll

£

Proposed Layout — residential in red, commercial in blue

3 |

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 185

Proposed landscaping

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 186

Proposed massing

EFLTLTLT

S
o Yo Yo A
\.mMNMNNNMm,
for o i S Ji
LNV

Vo i Vi o
LHTITET
Vo T Fow o o/

e
R T IF LT T
T ETFETET T
LR P T

TR RTRTITT,

Planning Sub-Committee Report



Page 187 Agenda Item 12

Haringey

Report for- Planning Sub Committee | Item

P ' Date: 18 July 2017 Number:
Title: Update on major proposals
Report

Authorised by: Dean Hermitage / Emma Williamson

Lead Officers: | John McRory / Robbie McNaugher

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:
All
1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To advise the Planning Sub Committee of major proposals that are currently in the
pipeline. These are divided into those that have recently been approved; those
awaiting the issue of the decision notice following a committee resolution;
applications that have been submitted and are awaiting determination; and
proposals which are the being discussed at the pre-application stage.

2. Recommendations
2.1  That the report be noted.
3. Background information

3.1 As part of the discussions with members in the development of the Planning
Protocol 2014 it became clear that members wanted be better informed about
proposals for major development. Member engagement in the planning process is
encouraged and supported by the National Planning Policy Framework 2012
(NPPF). Haringey is proposing through the new protocol to achieve early member
engagement at the pre-application stage through formal briefings on major
schemes. The aim of the schedule attached to this report is to provide information

Page 1 of 2



Page 188

Haringey

on major proposals so that members are better informed and can seek further
information regarding the proposed development as necessary.

4. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1  Application details are available to view, print and download free of charge via the
Haringey Council website: www.haringey.gov.uk. From the homepage follow the
links to ‘planning’ and ‘view planning applications’ to find the application search
facility. Enter the application reference number or site address to retrieve the case
details.

4.2  The Development Management Support Team can give further advice and can be
contacted on 020 8489 5504, 9.00am-5.00pm Monday to Friday.

Page 2 of 2


http://www.haringey.gov.uk/

Update on progress of proposals for Major Sites 18 July 2017
Site Description Timescales/comments Case Officer Manager
APPLICATIONS DETERMINED AWAITING 106 TO BE SIGNED
Station Square West 22 Storey Tower. 128 Units + 434 sqm of Members resolved to grant James Hughes | Robbie
1 Station Square, Station commercial floorspace. planning permission subject McNaugher
Road, N17 9JZ to the signing of a section
HGY/2016/3932 106 legal agreement. Not yet
signed
47,66 and 67, Lawrence Redevelopment mixed use residential led | Members resolved to grant Valerie Okeiyi | Robbie
Road scheme for 83 dwellings (34 x 1b, 33 x 2b, | planning permission subject McNaugher
HGY/2016/1212 & 7 x 3b and 9 x 4b) to the signing of a section
HGY/2016/1213 106 legal agreement. Not yet
signed
Templeton Hall Garages The proposals seek to demolish the existing Members resolved to grant Samuel Uff John McRory
HGY/2016/2621 building and create a new four storey planning permission subject
residential block with a set-back fifth floor. to the signing of a section
106 legal agreement. Not yet
Proposal comprises 11 residential units. signed
Keston Centre Redevelopment of the site to provide a mix of | Members resolved to grant Adam Flynn John McRory
Keston Road, N17 pocket housing and private housing planning permission subject
HGY/2016/3309 to the signing of a section
106 legal agreement. Not yet
signed
Land north of Monument Development of the site to create 54 [ Members resolved to grant Tobias John McRory
Way and south of affordable residential units in three blocks | planning permission subject | Finlayson

Fairbanks Road, N17
HGY/2016/2184

ranging from 3-stories to 4-stories in height.

to the signing of a section
106 legal agreement. Not yet

68T abed


http://www.planningservices.haringey.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=293093
http://www.planningservices.haringey.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=291320

signed

52-68 Stamford Road, N15
HGY/2017/0426

Redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed
use commercial and residential scheme

Members resolved to grant
planning permission subject
to the signing of a section
106 legal agreement. Not yet
signed

Chris Smith

John McRory

St John’s Great
Cambridge Road
HGY/2016/4095

Internal reordering and extension of St John's
Church to the west. The demolition of the
existing Church Hall at the east end of the
church and the development of the land to the
north, south, east and on the opposite side of
Acacia Avenue with a mix of two and three
storeys 1, 2, 3 & 4 bed residential mixed
tenure accommodation including a new
Vicarage.

Members resolved to grant
planning permission subject
to the signing of a section
106 legal agreement. Not yet
signed

Gareth Prosser

John McRory

Car Park, Westerfield
Road, N15 HGY/2017/0802

Change of use of and redevelopment of
current site to create a multi-use pop-up urban
village using modified shipping containers.
The site will accommodate at least 65
individual units to support local independent
businesses and community projects. An
individual unit is one 1SO 45G0 High Cube 40
shipping container.

Members resolved to grant
planning permission subject
to the signing of a section
106 legal agreement. Not yet
signed

Wendy
Robinson

John McRory

APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED

TO BE DECIDED

70-72 Shepherds Hill, N6
HGY/2016/2081

The proposals seek to demolish the existing
building and create a new four storey
residential block with a set-back fifth floor.

Currently under
consideration following end
of consultation period.

Gareth Prosser

John McRory

06T abed



Two Mews houses are also proposed to the
rear with associated car parking, landscaping
and amenity space.

Proposals comprise 19 residential units.

Scheme presented to QRP
DM Forum undertaken

Likely October committee

Cannon Factory and
Ashley House
Ashley Road

N17

HGY/2016/4165

Demolition of the existing buildings at Ashley
House and Cannon Factory and erection of
three buildings to provide up to 3,600sgm of
commercial floorspace (GEA) (Class
A1/A3/B1/D1), up to 265 residential units
(Class C3), new public realm, landscaped
amenity space, car and cycle parking and all
associated works. (Outline planning
application).

To be presented to Members
on 18 July 2017

James Farrer

Robbie
McNaugher

163 Tottenham Lane N8 The application proposes the demolition of the | Very recently submitted — Tobias John McRory
HGY/2017/2001 existing Kwik-Fit Garage and a two storey under consultation. Finlayson
building at the rear. Erection of a five storey
building for commercial and residential
development.
Land at Plevna Crescent Construction of four individual pavilions Very recently submitted — Wendy John McRory
consisting of 72 residential units with a under consultation. Robinson
common ground level plinth and basement to
provide servicing and parking
109 Fortis Green, N2 Variation of condition 2 of planning permission | Planning application Valerie Okeiyi | John McRory

HGY/2017/0432

reference  HGY/2015/3813  (dated 20
September 2016) for minor material
amendments to the permitted scheme,
involving the provision of 1 x additional 1 bed

submitted and out at
neighbour consultation
stage. Delegated decision.

T6T abed



residential unit, associated minor reduction in
the level of commercial floorspace and
associated internal and external alterations
and other associated works

255 Lordship Lane 32 residential units 5.no 1bed, 20.no 2 bed, To be determined under Chris Smith John McRory
HGY/2017/1097 6.no 3 bed, 1.no 4 bed with commercial space | delegated authority

and an additional lower ground floor level of

549sgm.
Bracken Knoll Demolition of house behind retained front Under consideration Aaron Lau John McRory
Courtenay Avenue N6 facade, construction of replacement house of
2017/1560 1253sg m with accommodation at lower

ground, ground, 1st floor and attic, and

associated landscape and tree protection

(exact copy of existing Consent

HGY/2013/2486 granted 04/04/2014)
42 Hampstead Lane Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of | Under consideration Aaron Lau John McRory
2017/1710 replacement dwelling (2,500sgm)
Hale Village, Ferry Lane, Submission of Reserved Matters (including Planning application is in to Chris Smith Robbie
Tottenham, N15 appearance, layout, access, scale and keep permission alive. McNaugher
HGY/2015/0795 landscaping) in relation to outline consent no

HGY/2010/1897 for Plot SW forming part of

the Hale Village Masterplan.
Section 73 for Hale Village | The S73 is to remove the hotel from the Application is on hold on Chris Smith Robbie
HGY/2015/0798 tower. request of the applicant McNaugher
Ashley Road South x2 Comprehensive redevelopment of the site 2 applications submitted for | James Farrar Robbie

with a mix use residential led scheme the remainder of the McNaugher

BSD

BSD — Outline mixed use scheme

masterplan area.

26T abed



BSD + Ada NCDS

BSD + NCDS - detailed residential and
college + Berol House

Members will be briefed on
the masterplan prior to
considering the NHH
application at the 18" July
Committee.

Targeting September

Committee.

Hale Village Tower, Ferry Revised proposal for a 33 storey tower Recently submitted and out Chris Smith Robbie
Lane, Tottenham, N15 (replacing the consented 18 storey outline to consultation. McNaugher
HGY/2017/2005 permission) to provide housing with

commercial and/or community uses at ground | Targeting October

floor. 270 units Committee
IN PRE-APPLICATION DISCUSSIONS - TO BE SUBMITTED SOON
Chocolate Factory Redevelopment of the site to provide 220 Scheme to be submitted in Adam Flynn John McRory

units on Workspace land, with an additional October

14,835 sgm of commercial space.
Haringey Heartlands Comprehensive redevelopment of the site In pre-application Adam Flynn John McRory
Clarendon Road Gas (Masterplan) discussions and PPA signed
Works Site ) o

Likely submission in October

Land at Brook Road, N22 Redevelopment of site and erection of four Principle acceptable subject | Adam Flynn John McRory
(ICELAND SITE) independent residential blocks providing 148 | to compliance with the

residential units comprising a mix of one, two | emerging AAP/ Applicant in

and three bedrooms. Inclusion of a talks with the NHS

doctors/health facility.
423 West Green Road Mix use residential development, including the | Principle acceptable Chris Smith John McRory

PRE/2017/0115

erection of an A1-A3 unit at ground floor level,
replacement of existing church

c6T abed



/community/nursery including ancillary offices,
is acceptable. Amended scheme on verge of
being resubmitted for follow-up advice.

67 & 69 Lawrence Road Re-development of the site for the erection of | The principle is currently Valerie Okeiyi | Robbie
PRE/2017/0123 two buildings ranging from 4-6 storeys being discussed McNaugher

comprising of a mixed used development to

include co-living units, flexible employment

space and associated landscaping and car

parking (The Collective)
Land north of Monument Reserved Matters application pursuant to Application intended to be Tobias Robbie
Way and south of HGY/2016/2184 for development of the site to | submitted in July although Finlayson McNaugher
Fairbanks Road, N17 create 54 affordable residential units (Class outline consent s106 to be

C3) (12 x 1 bed, 24 x 2 bed and 18 x 3 bed signed

units) in three blocks ranging in height from 4-

stories to 5-stories
Lynton Road/Park Road Demolition of existing buildings and Concerns with design and Aaron Lau John McRory

redevelopment of the site to create a mixed
use development comprising employment
floor space and new residential
accommaodation circ. 88 units.

parking.

Hornsey Town Hall,
Crouch End, N8

Erection of extensions and additional
buildings including refurbishment of Hornsey
Town Hall to include a hotel

In pre-application
discussions

James Hughes

John McRory

Westbury Court, 423-425
Lordship Lane, N22

Demolition of existing building and erection of
part 1, part 5, part 6, part 7, part 8 storey

In pre-application
discussions

Chris Smith

John McRory

v6T abed



building comprising commercial uses at
ground floor and 58 dwellings above.
Provision of waste refuse storage, cycle
parking, disabled car parking and amenity
space.

555 White Hart Lane Mixed use redevelopment to provide Meeting yet to take place Wendy John McRory
employment (Use Classes Bla, Blc and B8), Robinson
retail and residential uses
Bernard Works Mixed use development comprising Site allocation for mixed use | Michelle Robbie
20,020sqft of commercial makers and and rationalisation of road Bradshaw McNaugher
designers space, circa 97 apartments and 16 | layout.
residential apartments tethered to the
commercial space. The commercial space will | DM forum held 4™ July.
also include live music rehearsal as well as
recording space. Up to 8 storeys. Pre-app proposal to be
presented to 18" July
Committee
IN PRE-APPLICATION DISCUSSIONS
BHS, High Road, Wood Re-development of the site with a mix use Meeting held, issues with Aaron Lau John McRory
Green development including a hotel uses / layouts vs. site
allocation
Response sent
PPA drafted and sent
Earlham Primary School Major rebuilding and refurbishment to address the | Pre-application meeting held | Tobias John McRory
needs of the school. 2-storey new build, including | and principle acceptable. Finlayson

the demolition of the main school block. The new
build area is estimated to be 2286sgm

School is located adjacent to
MoL

G6T abed



Tottenham Magistrates
Court

Change of use from court to residential and
erection of new build residential

Very early stage to inform
bidding process. Significant
listed building implications
and constraints for proposed
residential.

Tobias
Finlayson

John McRory

311 Roundway

Mixed Use Redevelopment — 66 Units

Pre-app meeting taken place
in October Unacceptable in
principle. Major design
concerns.

James Hughes

John McRory

23 Denewood Road Facade retention/ reconstruction with new Pre-app meeting occurred in | Tobias John McRory
construction behind. Addition of a basement | October. Finlayson
and a reduced height first storey extension c ) t for the sit
urrent consent for the site,
over the garage. so need to be mindful of
fallback position.
1-6 Crescent Mews Redevelopment of the site to create ground o Aaron Lau John McRory
floor commercial floorspaces and 42 new Pre-application held —
residential dwellings. concerns raised regarding
number of units, parking and
design.
Applicant would like to enter
into a PPA
83-89 Vale Road Redevelopment of the site with a mix use Acceptable in principle Tobias John McRory
residential scheme Finlayson
The Richards Music Demolition of existing building and erection of | Principle acceptable subject | Tobias John McRory
Centre, Highgate School, two storey building for additional teaching to scale and height o building | Finlayson

Bishopswood Road, N6
ANY

space and associated works

being appropriate within the
Metropolitan Open Land

96T abed



(MoL). However, developer’s
agents informed that the
SPD capturing all the
proposed extensions to the
school is required to be
finalised.

867-879 High Road

Redevelopment of the site with 5,460sgm
retail building with a related 235 space
surface level car park and servicing, a terrace
of small retail units as well as a pair of office
buildings, all located on a rectangular shaped
site to the west of (and accessed from) the
A1010 Tottenham High Rd.

Although acceptable
development in principle, this
site forms part of a wider
regeneration strategy and
developer has been advised
to participate in masterplan
formulations.

James Hughes

John McRory

26-28 Brownlow Road, N11

Demolition of existing dwellings and erection
of part 4 and part 5 storey block of 27 flats
and 3 house to the rear wtihe new access.

In discussions at pre-
application stage

Tobias
Finlayson

John McRory

102 Northumberland Park
Road

Redevelopment of public house at 102
Northumberland Park with conversion of
upper floors to 3 residential units and
construction of new building to the rear to
provide 8 residential units

In discussions at pre-
application stage.

Gareth Prosser

Robbie
McNaugher

Northwood Hall 21 flats within and additional one storey to Principle acceptable Chris Smith John McRory
existing block of flats.

Omega Works 7 storey development with 920 square meters | Principle maybe acceptable | Chris Smith Robbie
of office and 88 residential units. but a more comprehensive McNaugher

approach is required to

/6T abed



satisfy the Warehouse Living
Palicy.

Eade Rd and Arena Design | Masterplanning for Haringey warehouse Principle acceptable but a James Hughes | Robbie
Centre District sites Eade Road/ Overbury Road and | more comprehensive McNaugher
Arena Design Centre for redevelopment of approach is required to
sites to create warehouse living, private satisfy the Warehouse Living
rented sector residential and employment Policy.
floorspace.
341 Eade Road Erection of pop-up container park comprising | Principle maybe acceptable | Emma Robbie
approximately 15 small and 10 large studios as a temporary use. McCready McNaugher
for employment use at ground floor and 4
communal warehouse living units at first and
second floors, provision of cycle parking and
landscaping.
MAJOR APPLICATION CONDITIONS
Hornsey Depot, Hornsey A number of conditions have been submitted. | A number of pre- Adam Flynn John McRory
Refuse and Recycling commencement conditions
Centre, High Street, N8 have been discharged and
others awaiting comments.
St Lukes Conditions to be submitted soon. A meeting is | Awaiting dates for meeting Aaron Lau John McRory
being arranged in order to set up monitoring
meetings
THFC A number of conditions submitted Only recently submitted —at | James Hughes | John McRory

consultation stage

Lordship Lane A number of conditions submitted Only recently submitted — at | Chris Smith John McRory
consultation stage
St. Anne’s Magistrates and | A number of conditions submitted A number of pre- Chris Smith John McRory
police station commencement conditions
have been discharged and
others awaiting comments.
Apex House A number of discharges of conditions to be Only recently submitted — at | Chris Smith John McRory

86T abed



submitted soon. A meeting is being arranged
in order to set up monitoring meetings

consultation stage

Hale Wharf

A number of conditions submitted

Awaiting comments.

Robbie
McNaugher

Robbie
McNaugher

66T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 201 Agenda Iltem 13

HARINGEY COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

APPLICATIONS DECIDED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS BETWEEN
05/06/2017 AND 07/07/2017

BACKGROUND PAPERS

For the purpose of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the background papers in respect of the following
items comprise the planning application case file.

In addition application case files are available to view print and download free of charge via the Haringey Council website:
www.haringey.gov.uk

From the homepage follow the links to ‘planning’ and ‘view planning applications’ to find the application search facility .
Enter the application reference number or site address to retrieve the case details.

The Development Management Support Team can give further advice and can be contacted on 020 8489 5504,
9.00am - 5.00pm, Monday - Friday.

Please see Application type codes below which have been added for your information within each Ward :

Application Type codes: Recomendation Type codes:

ADV Advertisement Consent GTD Grant permission

CAC Conservation Area Consent REF Refuse permission

CLDE Certificate of Lawfulness (Existing) NOT DEV Permission not required - Not Development
CLUP Certificate of Lawfulness (Proposed) PERM DEV  Permission not required - Permitted
COND Variation of Condition PERM REQ Development

EXTP Replace an Extant Planning Permission RNO Permission required

FUL Full Planning Permission ROB Raise No Objection

FULM Full Planning Permission (Major)

LBC Listed Building Consent

LCD Councils Own Development

LCDM (Major) Councils Own Development

NON Non-Material Amendments

OBS Observations to Other Borough

ouT Outline Planning Permission

OUTM Outline Planning Permission (Major)

REN Renewal of Time Limited Permission

RES Approval of Details

TEL Telecom Development under GDO

TPO Tree Preservation Order application works



Page 202

London Borough of Haringey Page 2 of 50

List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

WARD: Alexandra

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

CLDE  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1538 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: REF Decision Date: 07/06/2017
Location: 96 Alexandra Park Road N10 2AE
Proposal: Basement floor extension and terrace at ground floor outdoor seating area. (Certificate of lawfulness for an
existing use)
CLUP  Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1617 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Location: 26 Harcourt Road N22 7XW
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed rear dormer roof extension
Application No: HGY/2017/1652 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PERM REQ Decision Date: ~ 30/06/2017
Location: 30 Crescent Road N22 7RZ
Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed dormer, hip to gable and rooflights to facilitate a loft conversion
FUL Applications Decided: 16
Application No: HGY/2017/1085 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: REF Decision Date: 07/06/2017
Location: 103 Alexandra Park Road N10 2DP
Proposal: Dropped kerb and construction of hardsurfacing to create vehicular access (Retrospective).

HGY/2017/1201 Matthew Gunning

Officer:

61D Decision Date: 05/06/2017

25 The Avenue N10 2QE
Erection of a rear roof dormer extension, insertion of one roof light to the front roofslope, and replacement
of rear door/window for new sliding doors

HGY/2017/1249 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017

172 Dukes Avenue N10 2QB

Demolition of existing garage, side extension and front porch and small capped chimney stack on side.
Partial demolition and alterations to boundary treatment. Erection of single storey side and rear

extensions. Erection of rear and side dormer roof extensions and installation of 2 no. roof lights in front roof
slope

HGY/2017/1307 Laurence Ackrill

Officer:
¢1D Decision Date: 22/06/2017
146 Victoria Road N22 7XQ

Erection of a single storey side extension and formation of a rear roof dormer extension with roof terrace



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 203

Page 3 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1320 Samuel Uff

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017

41 Crescent Road N22 7RP

Erection of a rear dormer roof extension to the main roofslope and that of the two storey outrigger; 2 x front
rooflights; 2 x rear rooflights; and demolition of the chimney stack

HGY/2017/1342 Officer: Roland Sheldon

REF Decision Date: 03/07/2017

89 Dukes Avenue N10 2QD

Erection of single storey rear extension, installation of 2 front rooflights, alterations to front garden to
provide bin and cycle storage, creation of rear lightwell with associated steps and railings, alterations to
rear ground floor fenestration, excavation to create larger basement area, in association with conversion of
the property to one x 4-bedroom and two x 2-bedroom flats.

HGY/2017/1361 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017

36 Coniston Road N10 2BP
Installation of 2 x rear dormer roof extensions, 1 x roof light in the front roofslope and reinstatement of
original turret over front bay.

HGY/2017/1373 Samuel Uff

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017

67 Grosvenor Road N10 2DU

Increase height of existing ridgeline and front gable, in conjunction with a hipped gable above the existing
two storey rear extension and installation of 3 x side rooflights, 1 x front window and 3 x rear windows in
the proposed gable ends.

HGY/2017/1404 Samuel Uff

Officer:
GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
28 Bidwell Gardens N11 2AU

Single storey rear extension

HGY/2017/1459 Roland Sheldon

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 05/07/2017

9 Crescent Road N22 7RP

Retrospective application for the extension of Sui Generis (Dog grooming) to (Dog grooming and dog day
care) and erection of rear canopy and fence

HGY/2017/1467 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017

5 Parham Way N10 2AT

Erection of front bike store and installation of ground floor front window to replace the existing garage door,
in conjunction with conversion of the garage into ancillary living space.

HGY/2017/1542 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017

62 Dukes Avenue N10 2PU

Erection of full width ground floor rear extension and rebuilding/remodelling of existing first floor rear
projection; remodelling and extension of existing rear dormer; installation of 2x front rooflights; enlarging of
existing rear rooflight; and replacement of existing rear fenestration with sash windows



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 204

Page 4 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1620 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
52 Grosvenor Road N10 2DS

Single storey rear extension

HGY/2017/1639 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
49 Rhodes Avenue N22 7UR

Part single storey, part two storey side extension (following demolition of garage); single storey side to rear
extension; hip to gable roof extension; rear dormer roof extension; and installation of 3x front rooflights

HGY/2017/1711 Officer:

GTD Decision Date:

Aaron Lau
07/07/2017
21 Rhodes Avenue N22 7UR

Erection of ground floor rear and front side extensions and first floor side extension, new glazing to rear,
new rear chimney flue, raised parapet over existing rear extension, new front door and side light and
removal of small chimney stack.

Application No: HGY/2017/1718 Officer:  Aaron Lau
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Location: 35 Albert Road N22 7AA
Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension
NON Applications Decided: 5
Application No: HGY/2017/1317 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017
Location: 3 Dagmar Road N22 7RT
Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2015/3562 to create a dual pitched

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

gable ended roof over the approved side extension and introduce a rear parapet on the side extension roof
to the rear

HGY/2017/1627 Officer:  Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017

23 Muswell Road N10 2BS

Non-material amendment to condition 2 of planning permission HGY/2015/3153 in order to omit a ground
floor front window; alter a proposed first floor side window from circular to rectangular shape; and add a
sub-cill

HGY/2017/1739 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

REF Decision Date: 29/06/2017

55 Rosebery Road N10 2LE

Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2016/3657 to reduce the amount of
glazing to the roof and insulate to improve thermal performance of the property. Raising of eaves-line by
600mm.

HGY/2017/1741 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
55 Rosebery Road N10 2LE

Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2016/3657 to install a conservation
style rooflight rear roof slope.



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 205

Page 5 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1850 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017
Location: 51 Curzon Road N10 2RB
Proposal: Non-material amendment to application HGY/2017/1594 in order to add a conservation rooflight to the
existing roof
RES Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/0381 Officer:  Christopher Smith
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Location: Alexandra Palace Alexandra Palace Way N22 7AY
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 12 (Risk Assessment, Management of Demolition and Control of
Dust) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/1574
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 25

WARD: Bounds Green

CLUP  Applications Decided: 3

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1489 Officer: Mercy Oruwari

PERM DEV Decision Date: 06/06/2017

42 Woodfield Way N11 2NS
Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of a rear dormer and hip to gable extension including the insertion
of rooflights

HGY/2017/1545 Officer:  Mercy Oruwari

PERM DEV Decision Date: 07/06/2017

6 Passmore Gardens N11 2PL

Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of a rear dormer and hip to gable extension including the insertion
of rooflights to the front elevation.

Application No: HGY/2017/1550 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Location: 14 Woodfield Way N11 2PH
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey rear extension (following prior approval not required
determination on planning application HGY/2017/0251).
FUL Applications Decided: 5
Application No: HGY/2017/1258 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: 38 Thorold Road N22 8YE
Proposal: Remove existing rear roof extension and erection of new rear dormer roof extension.
Application No: HGY/2017/1289 Officer:  Samuel Uff
Decision: REF Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: 38 Myddleton Road N22 8NR
Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling house into 3 x self contained flats (1x 3 bed, 1x 2 bed, 1x1bed) in

conjunction with extension to existing basement; excavation of associated front and rear lightwells; and
demolition of existing rear extension



Dagp 206

London Borough of Haringey Page 6 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1471 Officer: Samuel Uff

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017
Location: First Floor Flat 25 Myddleton Road N22 8LY

Proposal: Erection of rear dormer roof extension with Juliet balcony and two front roof lights

Application No: HGY/2017/1527 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: 9 The Drive N11 2DY

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No: HGY/2017/1613 Officer:  Samuel Uff

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: FlatA 29 Palmerston Road N22 8QH

Proposal: Proposed erection of rear dormer roof extension; installation of 2 x front rooflights; 2 x side rooflights; 2 x

rear rooflights; and first floor rear window

NON Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1521 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Location: Ground Floor Flat 28 Whittington Road N22 8YD
Proposal: Non-material amendment to replace a pitched roof with a flat and insert a side window, to a single storey

rear extension of same size and siting as that approved under planning permission ref. HGY/2016/3841.

PNE Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1578 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 07/07/2017
Location: 57 Sidney Road N22 8LT
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 3.645m, for

which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m

RES Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2016/4188 Officer: Robbie McNaugher
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Location: Lock-up Garages Cline Road N11
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to conditions 12 (Surface Water Drainage) & 13 (Sustainable Drainage)
attached to planning permission HGY/2016/0558
Application No: HGY/2017/1043 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: REF Decision Date: 09/06/2017
Location: Land adjacentto 74 Lascotts Road N22 8JN
Proposal: Details pursuant to condition 3 (materials) of planning permission HGY/2016/2990 for Erection of

three-storey building comprising 1no. 3-bed, 2no. 2-bed and 1no. 1bed self contained residential units

Total Applications Decided for Ward: 12
WARD: Bruce Grove

CLUP  Applications Decided: 2



Dagp 207

London Borough of Haringey

List of applications decided under delegated powers between

05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Page 7 of 50

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1787 Officer:

PERM DEV

45 Woodside Gardens N17 6UN

Emma McCready

Decision Date: 27/06/2017

Certificate of lawfulness: erection of rear dormer and rear roof extension

Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of L-shaped rear dormer including outrigger and insertion of 2 x

Application No: HGY/2017/1806 Officer:
Decision: PERM DEV
Location: 5 Eve Road N17 6YD
Proposal:
rooflights to front roof-slope.
FUL Applications Decided: 5
Application No: HGY/2017/0334 Officer:
Decision: GTD
Location: Ground Floor Shop 178 Philip Lane N15 4JW
Proposal: Retention of an Automated Teller Machine

HGY/2017/1063 Officer:
GTD
Flat B 87 Woodside Gardens N17 6UN

Rear dormer roof extension

HGY/2017/1535 Officer:

GTD

44 Lordsmead Road N17 6EY

Marco Zanelli

Decision Date: 22/06/2017

Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Formation of rear dormer window extension to first floor flat.

Application No: HGY/2017/1537 Officer:

Decision: GTD

Location: Flat B 8 Fairbourne Road N17 6 TP

Proposal: Erection of rear mansard roof extension

Application No: HGY/2017/1549 Officer:

Decision: GTD

Location: 36 Fairbourne Road N17 6TP

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear/side extension
PNE Applications Decided: 3

Application No: HGY/2017/1300 Officer:

Decision: PN NOT REQ

Location: 73 Sperling Road N17 6UJ

Proposal:

Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 5.5m, for

Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Samuel Uff

Decision Date: 07/06/2017
Gareth Prosser

Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Sarah Madondo

Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Valerie Okeiyi

Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Laina Levassor

Decision Date: 08/06/2017

which the maximum height would be 3.7m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 208

Page 8 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1301
PN NOT REQ

Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision Date: 08/06/2017
32 Elmhurst Road N17 6RQ

Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 3.175m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.850m

Application No: HGY/2017/1354 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 21/06/2017
Location: 35 Dunloe Avenue N17 6LB
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 4.5m, for
which the maximum height would be 3.7m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 10

WARD: Crouch End

FUL Applications Decided: 15
Application No: HGY/2017/1108 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: REF Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: Rear of 45 Wolseley Road N8 8RS
Proposal: Demolition of three derelict lock up garages and build a pair of semi-detached 3 bed houses with the

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

double basement

HGY/2017/1119 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: ~ 06/06/2017
FlatA 15 Womersley Road N8 9AE

Erection of a single story side and rear extension to the ground floor flat

HGY/2017/1124 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: ~ 05/06/2017

19 Tivoli Road N8 8RE
Replacement of existing single glazed timber windows with double glazed timber windows to match
existing

HGY/2017/1235 Aaron Lau

Officer:

REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017

26 The Broadway N8 9ST

Replacement of existing canopy in full with an electronic controlled roof and side panels.

HGY/2017/1259 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017

37 Glasslyn Road N8 8RJ

Conversion of 3 x self contained flats to a single family dwelling in conjunction with replacement of existing
front and rear upvc windows with timber sash frames; enlargement of first floor front window; reversion to
slate roof material; and insertion of 3 x rooflights to the rear outrigger roof

HGY/2017/1272 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
11 Edison Road N8 8AE

Construction of a single storey side and rear extension



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 209

Page 9 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1306 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017
28 Crouch Hall Road N8 8HJ

Erection of a single storey rear extension which is a glass verandah over existing patio

HGY/2017/1414 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017
FlatA 16 Park Road N8 8TD

Amendment to Planning Permission HGY/2017/0029 to allow an additional single storey extended element
on the first floor to allow for the creation of a three bedroom unit instead of a two bedroom unit.

HGY/2017/1424 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017
8 Crouch End Hill N8 8AA

Change of Use from Mini Cab Office (Sui Generis) to Tanning Salon (Sui Generis)

HGY/2017/1431 Officer: Aaron Lau

REF Decision Date: 21/06/2017

Rear of 29 Haringey Park N8 9JD

Construction of 1 x 2 bedroom dwelling with associated works

HGY/2017/1507 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017

Ground Floor Flat 22 Coolhurst Road N8 8EL

Replacement of two original single glazed timber sash windows with double glazed timber to match

HGY/2017/1519 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017

34 Dickenson Road N8 9ET

Replacement of single glazed UPVC windows with double glazed timber sash windows to front elevation,
replacement of UPVC window and door with aluminium framed window and aluminium bi-folding door set to
side elevation and replacement of UPVC window and door with aluminium bi-folding door set and double
glazed timber sash window to rear elevation.

HGY/2017/1524 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 26/06/2017

Flat 7, Stanhope Court 42 Stanhope Road N6 5NF

Replacement of an existing garage type door with new French doors at ground floor level of an existing
Mansion block.

HGY/2017/1603 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017
Flat C 71 Ferme Park Road N8 9SA

Roof terrace over existing rear addition with timber privacy screen



Dagp 210

London Borough of Haringey Page 10 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017
Application No: HGY/2017/1646 Officer: Samuel Uff
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Location: 33 Womersley Road N8 9AP
Proposal: Single storey rear extension
LBC Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1237 Officer:  Aaron Lau
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 26 The Broadway N8 9ST
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for replacement of existing canopy in full with an electronic controlled roof and side
panels.
NON Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1580 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Location: 58 Crouch Hall Road N8 8HG
Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2016/0412 involving removal of side

extension and extension of approved lightwell to create habitable space at lower ground floor level.

RES Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1540 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017
Location: FlatB 16 Wolseley Road N8 8RP
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 1 (Details of balustrade) attached to appeal decision reference;

APP/Y5420/W/16/3165390

TPO Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1338 Officer:  Samuel Uff
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: Flat2 21 Shepherds Hill N6 5QJ
Proposal: Works to TPO tress in rear garden of no.21 including: reduce east lateral spread by 3m and clean out

crown and remove crossing branches of Sycamore (Acer psuedoplatanus) (T1), sited in the rear garden of
no.19. Remove deadwood overhanging from T2, T3 & T4. Sycamore (Acer psuedoplatanus), sited in rear of
No.21. Crown thinning of three mature trees - reduce north lateral canopy by 2m and thin remainder of
canopy by 20% and remove deadwood, weak and suppressed branches. Reduce canopy spread back to
boundary fence line of mature T6 & T7 Limes (Tilia cordata), sited in rear garden of no.23. Complete 3m
reduction and balance of T2 crown.

Application No: HGY/2017/1458 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017
Location: 14 Priory Gardens N6 5QS

Proposal: Tree works to include crown thinning by 25%, crown reduction by 20%, and removal of dead / weakling

growth to 1 x Grey Poplar Tree covered under a Tree Preservation Order.

Total Applications Decided for Ward: 20
WARD: Fortis Green

FUL Applications Decided: 12



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 211

Page 11 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/0959 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 12/06/2017
464 Muswell Hill Broadway N10 1BS

Change of use from A1 (hairdresser) to A3 (restaurant) with a single storey rear extension and new
shopfront with awning.

HGY/2017/0985 Officer: Matthew Gunning

GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Albion Cottage Fortis Green N2 9EP

Part demolition and re-building of Northern boundary wall

HGY/2017/1075 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

311-323 Muswell Hill Broadway N10 1BY

Change of use of three areas of the public highway immediately in front of the commercial unit for the
placing of 6 tables and 12 chairs in connection with the existing restaurant premises

HGY/2017/1094 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

34 Leaside Avenue N10 3BU

Demolition of existing garage and replacement with the erection of a Structural Insulated Panels (SIPS)
outbuilding

HGY/2017/1305 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 28/06/2017
36 Hill Road N10 1JG

Hip to gable roof extension, rear dormer and front elevation rooflights to facilitate a lot conversion (deemed
lawful under application HGY/2017/1257) and raising ridge of front gable to align with existing ridge of main
roof.

HGY/2017/1353 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 08/06/2017
3 Western Road N2 9JB

Erection of single storey rear garden outbuilding and replacement of rear glazed patio door

HGY/2017/1372 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

54 Aylmer Road N2 OPL

Single storey side and rear extension

HGY/2017/1389 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017

33 Midhurst Avenue N10 3EP

Construction of rear dormer window following removal of 2 no. existing rear dormers; reconstruction of lower
rear roof to ground floor, involving formation of rooflight and alteration to fenestration.



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 212

Page 12 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1406 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

REF Decision Date: 14/06/2017

66 Tetherdown N10 1NG

Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and erection of a two storey rear extension

HGY/2017/1423 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017

Muswell Hill Synagogue Tetherdown N10 1ND

Creation of a 'glass box' foyer to the south entrance. Replacement of rear doors, windows to Beit
Hamidrash.

HGY/2017/1432 Officer: Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
76-78 Great North Road N2 OLL

Change of use of nos.76-78 Great North Road from large HMO (Sui Generis) to provide 2 x 5-bedroom
dwellings.

Application No: HGY/2017/1522 Officer: Samuel Uff
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: 21 Lynmouth Road N2 9LR
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear infill extension
LBC Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/0986 Officer: Matthew Gunning
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: Albion Cottage Fortis Green N2 9EP
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for part demolition and re-building of Northern boundary wall
PNE Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1261 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 07/06/2017
Location: 88 Greenham Road N10 1LP
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for

which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m

Application No: HGY/2017/1400 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 16/06/2017
Location: Androulla House 22 Aylmer Road N2 0BX
Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 8m, for
which the maximum height would be 3.5m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m
TEL Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1587 Officer: Matthew Gunning
Decision: REF Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: O/s Halifax 360 Muswell Hill Broadway N10 1DJ
Proposal: Installation of telephone kiosk



Dagp 213

London Borough of Haringey Page 13 of 50

List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

TPO Applications Decided: 3
Application No: HGY/2017/1434 Officer: Matthew Gunning
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 21/06/2017
Location: 50 Lanchester Road N6 4TA
Proposal: Tree works to include crown reduction by 2m (to 48 Lanchester Road side) and thin by 10% of 1 x Oak

tree covered by a Tree Protection Order

Application No: HGY/2017/1457 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: 24 Birchwood Avenue N10 3BE
Proposal: Tree works to include crown reduction by 25% to 1x Ash Tree, as per reduction 3.5 years ago
Application No: HGY/2017/1480 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: Land Adjacent To Treehouse School Woodside Avenue N10 3JA
Proposal: Tree works to include removal of deadwood to 1 x Sliver Birch tree and 1x Flowering Crab Apple tree and
felling to ground level of 2 x Silver Birch trees
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 19

WARD: Harringay

CLDE  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1379 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: REF Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: 54 Wightman Road N4 1RU
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness: existing use of 8 flats
CLUP  Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1399 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 14/06/2017
Location: 61 Lothair Road South N4 1EN
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness: proposed rear dormer
Application No: HGY/2017/1571 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 107 Beresford Road N8 0AG
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness: Proposed loft conversion with front/rear roof lights
FUL Applications Decided: 8
Application No: HGY/2017/0815 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
Location: 72 Beresford Road N8 0AH
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension and erection of rear dormer including insertion of 3 x rooflights to

front elevation



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 214

Page 14 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1292 Samuel Uff

Officer:
REF Decision Date: 28/06/2017
1D Tancred Road N4 1EH

Erection of first floor extension with dual-pitch roof and front and rear dormers, to facilitate creation of 2
additional floors to dwellinghouse.

HGY/2017/1376 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

Flat B 58 Raleigh Road N8 OHY

Rear Loft Extension with Dormer

HGY/2017/1473 Officer: Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
89 Allison Road N8 OAP

Single storey rear extension to existing House of Multiple Occupation.

HGY/2017/1556 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017

71 Pemberton Road N4 1AX

Extension of existing basement storage area and conversion to habitable rooms by increasing
floor-to-ceiling height, and formation of front and rear light wells.

Application No: HGY/2017/1566 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017

Location: Basement Flat 42 Endymion Road N4 1EQ

Proposal: Single story rear extension to existing basement flat.

Application No: HGY/2017/1569 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017

Location: Ground Floor Flat 104 Allison Road N8 0AS

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side and rear extension

Application No: HGY/2017/1581 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017

Location: Flat C 47 Warham Road N4 1AR

Proposal: Variation of condition 2 (Roof extension with associated roof terrace and 4 x solar panels on top of
proposed dormer) of application HGY/2016/3877 - lower and raise window cills to both front and rear
elevations)

NON Applications Decided: 1

Application No: HGY/2017/1784 Officer:  Gareth Prosser

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017

Location: Dixon Court 2A Burgoyne Road N4 1DL

Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2017/0219 to alter the style of the
approved windows

PNC Applications Decided: 1



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 215

Page 15 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No: HGY/2017/1383 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: PN GRANT Decision Date: 15/06/2017
Location: 7 Wightman Road N4 1RQ
Proposal: Prior naotification for change of use from A1 (retail) to C3 (dwellinghouse)
PNE Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1568 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 13 Raleigh Road N8 0JB
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m
RES Applications Decided: 6
Application No: HGY/2016/3804 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Location: Railway Approach Hampden Road N8 OHG
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 12 (Air Quality and Dust Management Plan (AQDMP)) attached to

planning permission HGY/2016/1573

HGY/2016/3806 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

Railway Approach Hampden Road N8 OHG

Approval of details pursuant to condition 13 (Plant and Machinery) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/1573

HGY/2017/0469 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

Railway Approach Hampden Road N8 OHG

Approval of details pursuant to condition 4 (materials) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/1573

HGY/2017/0634 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

61D Decision Date: 30/06/2017

Railway Approach Hampden Road N8 OHG

Approval of details pursuant to condition 15 (sustainable drainage scheme) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/1573

HGY/2017/0635 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

61D Decision Date: 30/06/2017

Railway Approach Hampden Road N8 OHG

Approval of details pursuant to condition 19 (disposal of surface water) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/1573

HGY/2017/0636 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

61D Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Railway Approach Hampden Road N8 OHG

Approval of details pursuant to condition 20 (surface water drainage) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/1573

Total Applications Decided for Ward: 20




London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 216
Page 16 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

WARD: Highgate

FUL Applications Decided: 1

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2016/3772 Officer:  Tobias Finlayson

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017
45 Southwood Lane N6 5ED

Creation of basement, front and rear lightwells and single storey rear extension.

HGY/2017/0700 Officer: David Farndon

GTD Decision Date: 05/06/2017

8 Broadlands Road N6 4AN

Erection of a single storey rear extension, enlargement of an existing basement storey below the footprint
of the original dwelling with lightwells to the front and rear elevations, increase in the height of the first floor
element on the western elevation of the building, and replacement and relocation of windows on the
existing building.

HGY/2017/0990 Officer: David Farndon

GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017

8 Stormont Road N6 4NL
Replacement of the rear conservatory with a new contemporary extension; creation of a basement at the
rear of the dwellinghouse

HGY/2017/1238 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

28 Cholmeley Crescent N6 5HA

Erection of a single storey rear extension with associated balustrade; increasing footprint and level of
excavation of existing basement and associated lightwell; and installation of steps from the rear lightwell
up to the rear garden

HGY/2017/1318 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

Shop 74 Highgate High Street N6 5HX
Alterations to shop front and rear elevation, including internal alterations to basement and ground floor
levels. To use as a hairdressing saloon.

HGY/2017/1350 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017

35 Cholmeley Crescent N6 5EX

Demolition of existing rear extension and erection of new rear extension with associated remodelling &
landscaping of rear garden, and new double glazed ground floor windows to front and side elevations.

HGY/2017/1395 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

206 Archway Road N6 5BA

Installation of terracotta clad cooling condenser to the rear elevation (associated with the extract flue
approved under permission HGY/2016/0789); replacement and enlargement of existing timber sash ground
floor rear window (to be fixed shut); and internal alterations

HGY/2017/1533 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date: 28/06/2017
Highgate Food And Wine 19-21 North Hill N6 4AB

Single storey side and front extension to shop with adjoining front bin enclosure



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 217

Page 17 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1558 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017

1 Talbot Road N6 4QS

The demolition of an existing, single storey garage and erection of new garage and extension. Basement
extension beneath the existing footprint of the house extending out to part of garden. Provision of a new
light well to the side of the property and structural walk-on roof light. Dormer to the south side of the
property. Demolition of existing boundary wall and erection of a new boundary wall.

Application No: HGY/2017/1609 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Location: Flat A 463 Archway Road N6 4HT
Proposal: Replacement of rear ground floor sash window with a French door.
Application No: HGY/2017/1667 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Location: 31 Toyne Way N6 4EG
Proposal: Single storey ground floor rear infill extension, installation of 2 front and 1 rear skylights.
LBC Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/0529 Officer:  David Farndon
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Location: Cholmeley Lodge Cholmeley Park N6 5EN
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for repointing and refacing of left hand boundary wall to Cholmeley Lodge elevation

along the access road

Application No: HGY/2017/1322 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

Location: Shop 74 Highgate High Street N6 5HX

Proposal: Listed Building Consent for alterations to shop front and rear elevation, including internal alterations to
basement and ground floor levels. To use as a hairdressing saloon.

NON Applications Decided: 4

Application No: HGY/2017/1528 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/06/2017

Location: 3 Southwood Lawn Road N6 5SD

Proposal: Non-material amendment to approved plans under planning application ref. HGY/2016/ 1175 to allow for;

removal of projecting balcony at second floor; demolition and re-construction of ground floor rear bay to

match existing to allow for structural frame installation; re-building of rear brickwork inclusive of chimney
breast and sash windows; removal of stucco on element of rear elevation to expose original brickwork to
match existing rear elevation

HGY/2017/1592 Matthew Gunning

Officer:
¢1D Decision Date: 21/06/2017
17 Cholmeley Crescent N6 5EZ

Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2016/0928 for a new bin store



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 218

Page 18 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

TPO

Application No: HGY/2017/1724 Officer:  Aaron Lau

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017

Location: Flat 1 40 Langdon Park Road N6 5QG

Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2014/2485 for the addition of two
skylights to Bedroom 2

Application No: HGY/2017/1930 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017

Location: 6A Church Road N6 4QT

Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2015/2659 involving infill extensions
and alterations to the extension fenestration

RES Applications Decided: 6

Application No: HGY/2016/4135 Officer: Matthew Gunning

Decision: GTD Decision Date: ~ 26/06/2017

Location: 11 North Hill N6 4AB

Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (Materials) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/1253

HGY/2017/1158 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017

191-201 Archway Road N6 5BN

Approval of details pursuant to condition 10 (Air Quality & Dust Management Plant) attached to planning
permission HGY/2015/2517

HGY/2017/1159 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017

191-201 Archway Road N6 5BN

Partial discharge condition 12 (plant and machinery to be used at the demolition phase) attached to
planning permission HGY/2015/2517

HGY/2017/1160 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

191-201 Archway Road N6 5BN

Approval of details pursuant to condition 19 (Construction Management Plan (CMP) and Construction
Logistics Plan (CLP) attached to planning permission HGY/2015/2517

HGY/2017/1263 Officer: David Farndon

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017

457 Archway Road N6 4HT

Approval of details pursuant to condition 6 (provision of 3 bicycle storage spaces) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/1191

HGY/2017/1616 Officer:  Tobias Finlayson

¢1D Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Nice Place Compton Avenue N6 4LH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 6 (Trees) attached to planning permission HGY/2014/1901

Applications Decided: 1



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 219
Page 19 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1440 Officer: Matthew Gunning
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Location: 14 Bishopswood Road N6 4NY
Proposal: Tree works to include felling of 1 x Silver Birch (T1) and 1 x Yew (T2)
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 24
WARD: Hornsey
CLUP  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1448 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: 49 Rathcoole Avenue N8 9LY
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed formation of dormer in rear roof slope and installation of two additional
rooflights in front roof slope and one additional rooflight in rear roof slope
FUL Applications Decided: 10
Application No: HGY/2017/1222 Officer: Samuel Uff
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 64 Hillfield Avenue N8 7DN
Proposal: Single storey, lower ground floor, rear extension in conjunction with the conversion of the lower ground floor

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

from HMO (Sui generis) to a self contained flat (C3a) and retention of the remaining flat as HMO (Sui
generis) use.

HGY/2017/1335 Aaron Lau

Officer:

61D Decision Date: 06/06/2017

49 Rathcoole Avenue N8 9LY

Erection of ground floor rear extension and enlargement of existing first floor rear window to create juliet
balcony

HGY/2017/1392 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

61D Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Flat 1 7 Ferrestone Road N8 7BX

Erection of single storey rear infill extension to rear and side return of property and erection of extraction
flue at rear elevation

HGY/2017/1401 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017
43 Hawthorn Road N8 7LY

Single-storey side/rear extension. First floor rear extension and a front porch.

HGY/2017/1410 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017

39 Tottenham Lane N8 9BD

Proposed change of use of property from A2 use class (estate agent) to Sui Generis use class (tattoo
studio).



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 220
Page 20 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

PNE

HGY/2017/1449 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017

Flat B 47 Tottenham Lane N8 9BD

Installation of one additional timber framed double glazed sash window at rear of first floor side elevation
and removal and making-good of one existing window at first floor rear elevation.

HGY/2017/1525 Laurence Ackrill

Officer:
REF Decision Date: 30/06/2017
3 Harvey Mews N8 9PA

Construction of a ground floor rear extension

HGY/2017/1526 Laurence Ackrill

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Flat1 76 Tottenham Lane N8 7EE

Proposed single story rear extension

HGY/2017/1629 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

REF Decision Date: 03/07/2017
17 High Street N8 7QB

Erection of sheltered enclosure at rear of premises to accomodate additional seating and smoking area in
connection with existing ground floor A3 restaurant premises to the front

Application No: HGY/2017/1647 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Location: 42 South View Road N8 7LT
Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extension
NON Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1565 Officer: Adam Flynn
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017
Location: Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre High Street N8 7QB
Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2013/2019: Design amendments to

the Cross Lane elevation of the largest building (known in Construction as Building A). These are shown on
the submitted drawings but include: - Louvers to Sainsbury's ground level plant room and fire exits -
Omission of stone band - Sub-station doors and brickwork design above - Aluminium surround detailing in
place of stone to some openings - Roof ladder addition - Wall and gate closing off adjacent strip of land -
Live/work unit rationalisation - Additional column of windows - Replacement of louvers with brickwork

HGY/2017/1654 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017

28 Hawthorn Road N8 7NA

Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2016/1932 to amend the rear
elevation to feature a partial redesign of the ground floor ridge by straightening the pitch of the roof of the
brick section in order to ease construction, with no other changes to the footprint, size or elevations of the
approved works.

Applications Decided: 1



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 221

05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1419 Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 26/06/2017

Location: 60 South View Road N8 7LT

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 3.490m, for
which the maximum height would be 3.636m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.907m

RES Applications Decided: 4

Application No: HGY/2017/1115 Officer: Adam Flynn

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017

Location: Hornsey Refuse and Recycling Centre 35 High Street N8 7QB

Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 44 (television and radio reception: Post Construction Impact

Study) attached to planning permission HGY/2013/2019

Page 21 of 50

Application No: HGY/2017/1483 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: 46 Clovelly Road N8 7RH
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 5 (Tree Protection Plan & Method Statement) attached to planning
permission reference HGY/2015/3440 (following grant of appeal reference APP/Y5420/W/16/3161053)
Application No: HGY/2017/1539 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Location: Site Adjoining 87A Rathcoole Gardens N8 9PH
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (materials) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/1007
Application No: HGY/2017/1559 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Location: Site Adjoining 87A Rathcoole Gardens N8 9PH
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 6 (Construction Management Plan CMP) and Construction
Logistics Plan (CLP) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/1007
TPO Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1420 Officer:  Aaron Lau
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: 6 Rokesly Avenue N8 8NR
Proposal: Horse Chestnut (T1): Prune back extensively beyond die-back to suitable points and thin by 20% (approx.
3-4m) Lime (T2): Clean out crown and reduce overlongs into shape Horse Chestnut (T3): Fell to ground
level. Replace with 3m
Liquidambar.
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 19
WARD: Muswell Hill
CLUP  Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1575 Officer: Fatema Begum
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Location: 38 Springfield Avenue N10 3SY
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for hip to gable enlargement, rear dormer and 2 front rooflights.



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 222
Page 22 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No: HGY/2017/1657 Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 28/06/2017

Location: 23 Muswell Hill Place N10 3RP

Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey rear extension

COND  Applications Decided: 2

App”cation No: HGY/2016/1854 Officer: Tobias Finlayson

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

Location: Land to the Rear of 76 St James's Lane N10 3RD

Proposal: Removal of condition 11 (affordable housing contribution) attached to planning permission HGY/2015/1787

App”cation No: HGY/2016/3656 Officer: David Farndon

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Location: 10-27 Connaught House Connaught Gardens N10 3LH

Proposal: Variation of Condition 2 (Drawings), Condition 4 (Balcony Screen), Condition 5 (Obscured Glazing), and
Condition 10 (landscaping), attached to the approval of planning permission HGY/2014/1973, so to provide
for the insertion of 6 no. additional dormer windows (with obscured glazing to 1700mm above the finished
floor level) to the west elevation of the building at 3rd and 4th floor level, alongside the insertion of external
lighting to pathways and car parking area, and the provision of landscaping and planting plans; Removal of
Condition 11 (Code for Sustainable Homes) also attached to the approval of planning permission
HGY/2014/1973.

FUL Applications Decided: 1

App“cation No: HGY/2017/1032 Officer: Samuel Uff

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017

Location: 32 Muswell Hill N10 3TA

Proposal: Demolition of existing building (containing 6 x self contained flats) and redevelopment of similar sized

building to contain 6 similar sized flats in conjunction with other alterations, including further excavation of
existing basement; alteration to front dormer; alterations to ground floor side wing; additional rear
projection at first floor level; enlarged footprint to single storey rear / side extension; projecting second floor
rear dormer windows; additional front and rear rooflight; and additional side windows

HGY/2017/1155 Officer:  Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
44 Danvers Road N8 7HH

Installation of security railings and side screen panels to create a roof terrace.

HGY/2017/1416 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

Flat 3 7 Grosvenor Gardens N10 3TB

Conversion of 1 bedroom flat to 2 bedroom flat, with larger rear dormers and front balcony and roof
skylights.

HGY/2017/1430 Aaron Lau

Officer:
G1D Decision Date: 07/06/2017
16 Onslow Gardens N10 3JU

Erection of ground floor side extension, second floor loft conversion and formation of outrigger addition



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 223
Page 23 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1462 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 26/06/2017

60-62 Muswell Hill Broadway N10 3RT

Construction of two storey building and parking spaces to the rear of No. 60-62 Muswell Hill Broadway to
provide B1 office space at ground floor and first floor level and B8 Storage space at basement level,
following the demoliton of existing buildings to the rear.

HGY/2017/1476 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017
19 Warner Road N8 7HB

Conversion of a single family dwelling into two self-contained units.

HGY/2017/1490 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017

12 Park Avenue North N8 7RT

Change of use from self-contained flats into a single dwellinghouse involving internal alterations

HGY/2017/1508 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

25 Onslow Gardens N10 3JT
Single storey side and rear extension, alterations to exisitng two storey rear outrigger inlcuding gable end
extension and creation of a rear balcony

HGY/2017/1510 Officer: Roland Sheldon

REF Decision Date: 29/06/2017

Little Dennington 149 Cranley Gardens N10 3AG

Widen the existing crossover and dropped kerb by 1.185 metres and creation of a new crossover to front
garden.

HGY/2017/1619 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017
108 Hillfield Park Mews N10 3QR

All single glazed timber sash windows at front and rear to be replaced with double glazed timber sash
windows like for like.

Application No: HGY/2017/1678 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

Decision: REF Decision Date: 07/07/2017

Location: 96A Priory Road N8 7EY

Proposal: Construction of two storey extension to existing two storey outrigger and extension of hipped roof.
Construction of a single storey rear extension and external alterations including externally applied
insulation.

NON Applications Decided: 2

Application No: HGY/2017/1455 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

Location: Orantez House 72-96 Park Road N8 8SX

Proposal: Non-material amendment to approved applciation HGY/2011/0905 in order to remove part of the amenity

area to the flats above the warehouse service area.



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 224
Page 24 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No: HGY/2017/1889 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 25 Firs Avenue N10 3LY
Proposal: Non-material amendment following a grant of planning permission HGY/2016/1902 involving alterations to
the fenestration of the rear dormer and single storey rear extension. Additional roof dormer.
PNE Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1441 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 26/06/2017
Location: 38 Springfield Avenue N10 3SY
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 4.5m, for
which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.907m
RES Applications Decided: 4
Application No: HGY/2015/3515 Officer: Tobias Finlayson
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Location: Land Rear of 76 St James's Lane N10 3RD
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to conditions 3 (materials), 5 (landscaping including boundary treatment), 6

(green/sedum roof) and 7 (tree protection) attached to planning permission HGY/2015/1787

HGY/2017/1130 Aaron Lau

Officer:
61D Decision Date: 05/06/2017
2 Athenaeum Place N10 3HL

Approval of details pursuant to Condition 4 (CMP/CLP) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/2966

HGY/2017/1321 Roland Sheldon

Officer:
REF Decision Date: 07/07/2017
86 Muswell Hill Road N10 3JR

Approval of details pursuant to condition 7 (Construction Management Plan) and 10 (Chartered Engineer)
attached to planning permission HGY/2014/2345

Application No: HGY/2017/1572 Officer:  Gareth Prosser
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017
Location: 3 New Road N8 8TA
Proposal: Approval of details relating to application HGY/2016/1211 - Prior approval for change of use from office (B1)
to dwelling house (C3) (3 dwellings)
TEL Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1917 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: Adjacent to Everyman Cinema Fortis Green Road N10 3HP
Proposal: Prior notification for the installation of a solar powered telelphone kiosk (with wheelchair access)
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 23

WARD: Noel Park

ADV

Applications Decided: 1



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 29285

Page 25 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/0844 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: 122-124 High Road N22 6HE
Proposal: Display of 4 x Internally illuminated fascia signs and 5 x floodlights
CLUP  Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1516 Officer:  Mercy Oruwari
Decision: PERM REQ Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: 125 Farrant Avenue N22 6PE
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the enlargement of the existing rear dormer.
Application No: HGY/2017/1801 Officer:  Neil McClellan
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Location: 16 Hewitt Avenue N22 6QD
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the demoplition of existing rear extension and the erection of a new
replacement single storey rear extension.
FUL Applications Decided: 4
Application No: HGY/2017/1164 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 12/06/2017
Location: 45 Westbury Avenue N22 6BS
Proposal: Erection of a single story rear extension and erection a rear dormer with insertion 3 x rooflights to the front

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

elevation.

HGY/2017/1189 Officer: Adam Flynn

REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017

Wood Green Shopping City High Road N22 6YD

Development and change of use of former petrol filling station site to create a new car park for a temporary
period of 10 years, including closure of existing access points on Mayes Road and Caxton Road and
creation of a new single access point from Caxton Road, together with new landscaping provision.
Refurbishment and enhancement of existing facades and creation of new escape stair, in association with
the reconfiguration of existing retail space within the shopping centre to create a new retail food store.

HGY/2017/1192 Officer:  Gareth Prosser

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
1-2 The Broadway N22 6DS

Introduction of a street trading area for tables and chairs

HGY/2017/1230 Officer:  Gareth Prosser

REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017

63 Mayes Road N22 6TN

Demolition of existing storage sheds and construction of a new ground and lower ground duplex apartment.

LCD Applications Decided: 8



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 2726

Page 26 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1452 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017

4 Salisbury Road N22 6NH

Replacement of timber windows and doors with timber to front elevation and PVCu to rear elevation

HGY/2017/1456 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017

45 Salisbury Road N22 6NN

Replacement of timber framed windows with timber to front and side elevation and replacement of timber
framed windows and door with PVCu to rear elevation

HGY/2017/1469 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017

40 Salisbury Road N22 6NX

Replacement of timber framed windows with timber to front and side elevation and replacement of timber
windows and doors with PVCu to rear elevation

HGY/2017/1475 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017

44 Salisbury Road N22 6NX

Replacement of timber framed windows with double glazed timber framed windows to front, side and rear
elevation and replacement of timber door with timber to rear elevation

HGY/2017/1479 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017

511 Lordship Lane N22 5DL

Replacement of existing PVCu windows with timber to front and side elevation to match original and
replacement of windows and doors with PVCu to rear elevation

HGY/2017/1482 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 20/06/2017

82 Gladstone Avenue N22 6LL

Replacement of timber framed windows with timber to front and side elevation and PVCu to rear elevation

HGY/2017/1582 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
2 Salisbury Road N22 6NH

Replacement of timber windows and doors with timber windows and doors to front, side and rear elevation.

HGY/2017/1623 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
629 Lordship Lane N22 5LA

Replacement of timber framed windows and timber door with timber to front and side elevation and PVCu to
rear elevation.

RES Applications Decided: 1



Dagp 227

London Borough of Haringey Page 27 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017
Application No: HGY/2017/1488 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017
Location: 133 High Road N22 6BB
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (material samples) attached to planning permission reference
HGY/2017/0461
TEL Applications Decided: 4
Application No: HGY/2017/1641 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: Hollywood Green 180 High Road N22 6EJ
Proposal: Prior notification: Proposed new payphone kiosk
Application No: HGY/2017/1642 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: O/s Mobile World 154 High Road N22 6EB
Proposal: Prior notification: Proposed new payphone Kiosk
Application No: HGY/2017/1643 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: Ezras Kitchen 185A High Road N22 6BA
Proposal: Prior notification: Proposed new payphone kiosk
Application No: HGY/2017/1762 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: 17 The Broadway N22 6DS
Proposal: Prior notification: Proposed New Payphone Kiosk
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 20

WARD: Northumberland Park

CLUP  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1336 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 56 Bruce Castle Road N17 8NJ
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for formation of dormer in rear roof slope and insertion of two roof lights in front roof
slope
COND  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1254 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: Site of Garage and Workshop rear of 44 Waverley Road N17
Proposal: Removal of condition 5 attached to planning permission HGY/2013/1582 relating (Level 4 of the Code for

Sustainable Homes)

FUL Applications Decided: 4



Dagp 2928

London Borough of Haringey Page 28 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017
Application No: HGY/2017/1146 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: Unit 2 Peacock Industrial Estate White Hart Lane N17 8DT
Proposal: Change of Use from a B8 to a B2 use
Application No: HGY/2017/1244 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 56 Bruce Castle Road N17 8NJ
Proposal: Erection for single storey rear/ side infill extension
Application No: HGY/2017/1246 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 08/06/2017
Location: 23 Asplins Road N17 ONG
Proposal: Single storey side/rear infill extension
Application No: HGY/2017/1252 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: 79 Manor Road N17 0JG
Proposal: Single storey rear garden outbuilding
FULM  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2016/2403 Officer:  Tobias Finlayson
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 864 High Road N17 OEY
Proposal: Demolition of existing building and construction of a five storey building comprising 11 self-contained flats

and ground floor A1 unit

LcD Applications Decided: 2

Application No: HGY/2017/1411 Officer:  Lucy Morrow

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017

Location: 1 White Hart Lane N17 8DU

Proposal: Repair and restoration of front elevation and shop front including removal of paint and general repairs,
replacement windows, and installation of new timber shop front with retractable canopy and external
shutter.

Application No: HGY/2017/1453 Officer:  Lucy Morrow

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017

Location: 3-5 White Hart Lane N17 8DU

Proposal: Restoration and repair of front elevation and shop front, including structural repairs to brickwork adjacent to

drive, replacement windows, and installation of new timber shop front with external shutter.

PNE Applications Decided: 3
Application No: HGY/2017/1296 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 07/06/2017
Location: 37 Commonwealth Road N17 OPL
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 3.30m, for

which the maximum height would be 3.25m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.90m



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 229
Page 29 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1492
PN NOT REQ

Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision Date: 26/06/2017
37 Commonwealth Road N17 OPL

Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 3.3m, for
which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.8m

Application No: HGY/2017/1567 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 28/06/2017
Location: 11 Chalgrove Road N17 ONP
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 2.9m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.9m
RES Applications Decided: 14
Application No: HGY/2016/2075 Officer: James Hughes
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017
Location: Tottenham Hotspur Football Club 748 High Road N17 OAL
Proposal: Approval of Details pursuant to Condition D2 (Construction Environmental Management Plan) attached to

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

planning permission HGY/2015/3000

HGY/2017/0832 James Hughes

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Land to the rear of 790-796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 31 (Structural Blast Engineer Report) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/3310

HGY/2017/0835 James Hughes

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Land to the rear of 790-796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 12 (Secured by Design) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/3310

HGY/2017/0837 James Hughes

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017

Land to the rear of 790-796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 22 (dynamic thermal modelling) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/3310

HGY/2017/0838 James Hughes

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017

Land to the rear of 790-796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 24 (sustainable drainage scheme) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/3310

HGY/2017/0840 James Hughes

Officer:
61D Decision Date: 15/06/2017
Land to the rear of 790-796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 26 (Considerate Constructors Scheme) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/3310



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 230

Page 30 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/0842 Officer: James Hughes

GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Land to the rear of 790-796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 32 (Vehicle Dynamics Assessment (VDA) and details of Hostile
Vehicle Mitigation (HVM)) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/3310

HGY/2017/1113 Officer: James Hughes

GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017

796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 5.g (Details in respect of where paint is to be removed and
re-painted, the colour and composition of the proposed paint) attached to planning permission
HGY/2015/1488

HGY/2017/1114 Officer: James Hughes

GTD Decision Date: 14/06/2017

796 High Road N17 ODH

Approval of details pursuant to condition 5.g (Details in respect of where paint is to be removed and
re-painted, the colour and composition of the proposed paint) attached to Listed Building Consent
HGY/2015/1490

HGY/2017/1211 Officer: James Hughes

GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017

744 High Road N17 OAL

Partial Discharge of Condition 5i (detailed and itemised schedule of works, methodology statement,
detailed plans and drawings: details of how the new structure would be integrated with the existing listed
building) and full discharge of Condition 5ii (detailed and itemised schedule of works, methodology
statement, detailed plans and drawings: location and finish of all mechanical ventilation, louvers, and
communal satellite as applicable) attached to listed building consent HGY/2017/0632

HGY/2017/1366 Aaron Lau

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017

Mowlem Trading Estate Leeside Road N17 0QJ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 5 (Details of Cycle Storage) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/3489

HGY/2017/1367 Aaron Lau

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017

Mowlem Trading Estate Leeside Road N17 0QJ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 6 (Details of Electric Charging Vehicle Points) attached to
planning permission HGY/2016/3489

HGY/2017/1368 Aaron Lau

Officer:
GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Mowlem Trading Estate Leeside Road N17 0QJ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 7 (Details of a CMP and CLP) attached to planning permission
HGY/2016/3489

HGY/2017/1370 Aaron Lau

Officer:
GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Mowlem Trading Estate Leeside Road N17 0QJ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 17 (Details of Surface Water Drainage) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/3489

TPO Applications Decided: 1



Dagp 231

London Borough of Haringey Page 31 of 50

List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

App”cation No: HGY/2017/1534 Officer: Sarah Madondo

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

Location: Brook House Primary School 881 High Road N17 8EY

Proposal: Tree works to include crown thinning by 25% and crown lifting by 2 metres to 1 x London Plane tree
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 27

WARD: StAnns

CLDE  Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1745 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: REF Decision Date: 21/06/2017
Location: 1 Grand Parade N4 1JX
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the use of the property as an A1 retail unit
Application No: HGY/2017/1756 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: 41 Oulton Road N15 5PY
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the use of the property as 2 no. self contained flats

CLUP  Applications Decided: 4
Application No: HGY/2017/1375 Officer:  Lucy Morrow
Decision: PERM REQ Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 55 Harringay Road N15 3HU
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed rear dormer roof extension with rooflights to front elevation
Application No: HGY/2017/1707 Officer: Marco Zanelli
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: 17 Avondale Road N15 3SL
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of an L-shaped rear dormer with Juliet balcony and insertion of 2 x

rooflights to front roof-slope.

Application No: HGY/2017/1732 Officer:  Jon Skapoullis
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: 115 Rutland Gardens N4 1JW
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed rear dormers. Front roof lights
Application No: HGY/2017/1815 Officer:  Jon Skapoullis
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Location: 80 Roseberry Gardens N4 1JL
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for proposed rear dormers. Front roof lights.
FUL Applications Decided: 10



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 232
Page 32 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:

Location:

HGY/2017/1112 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date: 08/06/2017
Flat A 83 Station Crescent N15 5BG

Single Storey Rear extension

HGY/2017/1284 Officer: Roland Sheldon

REF Decision Date: 15/06/2017

10 Gourley Street N15 5NG

Removal of existing roof and erection of a new second floor and side extension on the first floor extension
of the existing building including re-cladding of the existing metal profile facade.

HGY/2017/1351 Officer: Sarah Madondo

GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
8 Portland Gardens N4 1HU

Erection of single storey rear / side return extension

HGY/2017/1355 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017

102 Harringay Road N15 3HX
Demolition of existing single storey rear extension, erection of single storey rear extension with green roof
and side return extension with sloping roof

HGY/2017/1360 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017
160 Cornwall Road N15 5AU

Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and erection of rear and side single storey extension in
materials to match existing.

HGY/2017/1382 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 13/06/2017
17 Clarence Road N15 5BB

Erection of single storey side/rear extension

HGY/2017/1403 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017
35 Brampton Road N15 3SX

Single storey rear extension

HGY/2017/1437 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

REF Decision Date: 30/06/2017
66 Harringay Road N15 3HX

Conversion of single dwelling house into 3 residential units (2x1bed and 1x2 bed)

HGY/2017/1466 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

REF Decision Date: 27/06/2017

451 West Green Road N15 3PL



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 233

Page 33 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Proposal:

The partial demolition and redevelopment of the existing building to form a total of six self contained flats
and including the retentiuon of the existing ground floor restaurant and provision of cycle storage/ waste
storage within a new basement.

Application No: HGY/2017/1589 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 26/06/2017
Location: 48 Cranleigh Road N15 3AD
Proposal: Removal of existing single storey outbuilding and erection of new single storey outbuilding / studio with
external covered cycle store
PNE Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1491 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 28/06/2017
Location: 80 Roseberry Gardens N4 1JL
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 4.5m, for

which the maximum height would be 3.27m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.95m

Application No: HGY/2017/1636 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 07/07/2017
Location: 67 Stanhope Gardens N4 1HY
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 4m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m
RES Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/0210 Officer:  Aaron Lau
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: 10 Vicarage Parade West Green Road N15 3BL
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 4 (materials) attached to planning permission HGY/2015/2898
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 19

WARD: Seven Sisters

CLUP
Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Applications Decided: 3

HGY/2017/1530 Officer: Marco Zanelli

PERM DEV Decision Date: 06/06/2017

37 Ashfield Road N4 1NY

Certificate of lawfulness for formation of dormer in rear roof slope with outrigger and installation of two roof
lights in front roof slope.

HGY/2017/1650 Officer: Laina Levassor

PERM DEV Decision Date: 27/06/2017

22 Beechfield Road N4 1PE

Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed rear dormer and front elevation rooflights to facilitate a loft conversion

HGY/2017/1656 Officer: Laina Levassor

PERM DEV Decision Date: 28/06/2017

79 Elm Park Avenue N15 6UZ

Certificate of lawfulness for alterations involving the insertion of a new door

FUL Applications Decided: 21



Dagp 234

London Borough of Haringey

List of applications decided under delegated powers between

05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Page 34 of 50

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/0858 Gareth Prosser

Officer:

REF Decision Date:

19 Cadoxton Avenue N15 6LB

Construction of new basement under approved extension.

HGY/2017/1101 Roland Sheldon

Officer:

GTD Decision Date:

45 Hillside Road N15 6LU

07/07/2017

21/06/2017

Demolition of existing single storey side infill extension and erection of single storey ground floor side to

rear extension to dwellinghouse.

HGY/2017/1156 Duncan McKane

Officer:

GTD Decision Date:

108 High Road N156JR

Erection of rear first and second floor extensions

HGY/2017/1191 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date:

60 & 62 Fairview Road N15 6LJ

erection of a single storey and part first floor extension to both properties

HGY/2017/1209 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date:
40 Craven Park Road N15 6AB

Erection of additional storey 'Type 3'

HGY/2017/1256 Officer: Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date:

33 Rostrevor Avenue N15 6LA

Erection of roof extension to dwellinghouse (Type 2).

HGY/2017/1363 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

GTD Decision Date:

104 Lealand Road N156JT

Erection of an additional storey ('Type 3' extension)

HGY/2017/1422 Roland Sheldon

Officer:

REF Decision Date:

93 Wargrave Avenue N156TU

Erection of a 'type 3' roof extension and erection of a single storey rear extension.

HGY/2017/1506 Officer:  Conor Guilfoyle

GTD Decision Date:

103 Gladesmore Road N156TL

19/06/2017

19/06/2017

16/06/2017

20/06/2017

04/07/2017

30/06/2017

28/06/2017

Erection of additional second floor 'Type 3' roof extension with pitched roof and front and rear roof lights



London Borough of Haringey

Dagp 235

Application No:

List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017
HGY/2017/1583 Officer:  Gareth Prosser
GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

20 Manchester Road N15 6HP

Formation of rear dormer, insertion of front and rear rooflights.

HGY/2017/1585 Officer:  Gareth Prosser
REF Decision Date: 07/07/2017

145 Castlewood Road N15 6BD

Excavation to provide a basement

HGY/2017/1586 Officer: Duncan McKane
GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017

109 Gladesmore Road N156TL

Erection of single storey rear extension

HGY/2017/1626 Officer:  Gareth Prosser
REF Decision Date: 23/06/2017

6 Lockmead Road N15 6BX

Part 1, Part 2 storey rear extension and front and rear dormer additions to roof at 2nd floor level. ( Type 2
House Extension - South Tottenham)

HGY/2017/1628 Officer:  Gareth Prosser
GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

133 Fairview Road N156TS

Erection of additional storey 'Type 2' extension

HGY/2017/1660 Officer: Duncan McKane
GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017

35 Crowland Road N15 6UL

Erection of additional storey known as a 'Type 3' roof extension

HGY/2017/1666 Officer:  Gareth Prosser
GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

53 EIm Park Avenue N15 6UW

Erection of 'Type 3' loft extension

HGY/2017/1669 Officer: Duncan McKane
GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
47 Fairview Road N15 6LH

Erection of additional storey known as a 'Type 3' roof extension

HGY/2017/1684 Officer: Duncan McKane
REF Decision Date: 03/07/2017

119 Fairview Road N156TS

Erection of single storey side and rear extension

Page 35 of 50



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 236

Page 36 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1692 Officer:  Gareth Prosser

GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017

40 Craven Park Road N15 6AB
Erection of rear infill extension of 5.25m, for which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the
height of the eaves would be 3m

HGY/2017/1712 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
4 Vartry Road N156PT

Conversion of basement to 'play & games space’, alterations to front elevation including removal of door to
ground floor flat, removal of transom window above front door, installation of 3 no. airbricks for mechanical
ventilation, installation of new window to rear elevation and door to rear wall of existing extension.

Application No: HGY/2017/1716 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Location: 143 Wargrave Avenue N156TX
Proposal: Erection of additional storey known as a "Type 3" roof extension
PNC Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1125 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: PN REFUSED Decision Date: 13/06/2017
Location: Nik Nak Cottage Vale Road N4 1TD
Proposal: Prior approval for change of use from B8 (Storage or Distribution Buildings) to C3 (Dwellinghouse)
PNE Applications Decided: 5
Application No: HGY/2017/1407 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: REF Decision Date: 16/06/2017
Location: 87 Wellington Avenue N15 6AX
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 4m, for

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

which the maximum height would be 2.9m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.7m

HGY/2017/1412 Officer:  Laina Levassor

PN NOT REQ 16/06/2017

Decision Date:
104 Lealand Road N156JT

Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m

HGY/2017/1413 Officer:  Laina Levassor

PN NOT REQ 23/06/2017

Decision Date:
128 Wargrave Avenue N15 6UA

Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for

which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m

HGY/2017/1509 Officer:  Laina Levassor

PN NOT REQ 27/06/2017

Decision Date:
47 Fairview Road N15 6LH

Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 5.9m, for
which the maximum height would be 3.6m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m



Page 237

London Borough of Haringey Page 37 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1579 Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision: PN REFUSED Decision Date: 06/07/2017

Location: 74 Lealand Road N156JT

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for

which the maximum height would be 4m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m

RES Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1357 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 59A Elm Park Avenue N15 6UN
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (Constriuction and Demolition Management Plan and Demolition

Logistics Plan), and condition 4 (Cycle parking) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/2309

Application No: HGY/2017/1358 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
Location: 59A Elm Park Avenue N15 6UN
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 6 (Air Quality and Dust Management Plan), and condition 7

(Considerate Constructors Scheme) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/2309

TEL Applications Decided: 2

Application No: HGY/2017/1835 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: ~ 22/06/2017

Location: Cell Site 81465 McDonalds Haringey Green Lanes N4 1DR

Proposal: Notification under the Electronic Communications Code Regulations 2003 to utilise permitted development
rights for
deployment of 4 no. microcell antennas, as part of a small cell system.

Application No: HGY/2017/1989 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017

Location: Pharmacy 491-493 Seven Sisters Road N15 6EP

Proposal: Notification under the Electronic Communications Code Regulations 2003 to utilise permitted development

rights to remove existing 1no. external antenna and replace with 4no. new similarly sized antennas painted
to match the fascia. Addition of an external GPS module. All other ancillary works required to facilitate
these works.

Total Applications Decided for Ward: 34

WARD: Stroud Green

CLDE  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1266 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Location: Flat4 6 Mount Pleasant Crescent N4 4HP
Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for use as a self-contained residential unit
CONM  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/0874 Officer:  Tobias Finlayson
Decision: REF Decision Date: 16/06/2017

Location: Ferme Park Depot Cranford Way N8 9DG



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 238

Page 38 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Proposal: Variation of conditions attached to Appeal reference APP/Y5420/A/05/1189822 (original Haringey planning
reference HGY/2005/0007) as follows: to increase the number of operational mixer trucks that can be
based at and operate from the site (variation of condition 3), to increase the number of operational mixer
truck movements allowed per day (variation of condition 27), to increase the number of private concrete
vehicle movements allowed per day (variation of condition 28) and to increase the number of cement
deliveries allowed by road per day (variation of condition 29)

FUL Applications Decided: 16

App“cation No: HGY/2017/0202 Officer: Laurence Ackrill

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017

Location: 192 Stroud Green Road N4 3RN

Proposal: Conversion of 2no. bedsits to 1no. self-contained one bed flat

App”cation No: HGY/2017/1048 Officer: Roland Sheldon

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/06/2017

Location: 16 Quernmore Road N4 4QX

Proposal: Use of roof of lower ground floor rear extension as a balcony and installation of steel safety railings and

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

screen panels

HGY/2017/1184 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017
First Floor Flat 82 Upper Tollington Park N4 4NB

Creation of roof terrace to rear of property

HGY/2017/1186 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

Flat B 60 Stroud Green Road N4 3ER

Construction of external metal staircase, replacement sash window to front; insertion of new larger window
openings and provide new sash windows to rear

HGY/2017/1198 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 26/06/2017
81 Ridge Road N8 9NR

Construction of first and second floor rear extension and alterations to rear fenestration to facilitate the
conversion of the existing single family dwellinghouse into 3 no. flats. With additional parking spaces to
rear.

HGY/2017/1255 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

G1D Decision Date: 05/06/2017
FlatB 3 Albany Road N4 4RR

Replacement of first floor rear window with new timber sash

HGY/2017/1271 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017

81 Ridge Road N8 9NR

Demolition of existing garage to be replaced with new single dwelling house.



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 239

Page 39 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1323 Officer: Roland Sheldon

REF Decision Date: 14/06/2017
72 Ferme Park Road N8 9RY

Erection of single storey rear extension.

HGY/2017/1341 Officer:  Aaron Lau

GTD Decision Date: 08/06/2017
52 Stapleton Hall Road N4 3QG

Erection of single storey rear extension, installation of 2 doors to the front elevation to give access to front
garden

HGY/2017/1356 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill

GTD Decision Date: 19/06/2017
113 Florence Road N4 4DL

Single storey rebuilt extension, loft conversion including traditional dormer window

HGY/2017/1359 Officer: Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017
41 Nelson Road N8 9RX

Application for part single, part first floor and part second floor rear extension to building

HGY/2017/1385 Officer: Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

Flat C 18 Lorne Road N4 3RT

Rear dormer and installation of 2 front rooflights to upper floor flat

HGY/2017/1390 Officer: Duncan McKane

GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Basement Flat A 47 Ridge Road N8 9LJ

Erection of single storey rear extension

HGY/2017/1409 Officer: Roland Sheldon

GTD Decision Date: 28/06/2017

90 Ferme Park Road N8 9SD

Proposed single rear extension, removal of existing and erection of new rear dormer, insertion of new front
rooflight to create additional floor space for flats B, D and E.

HGY/2017/1601 Officer:

GTD Decision Date:

Laurence Ackrill
04/07/2017
42 Marquis Road N4 3AP

Partial demolition of existing rear projection and installation of new bi-folding aluminium double glazed
doors. Replacement of the existing aluminium windows at the front, rear and side of the property with
timber double glazed windows.



Dagp 240

London Borough of Haringey Page 40 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017
Application No: HGY/2017/1674 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 03/07/2017
Location: 28 Uplands Road N8 9NL
Proposal: Replacement and creation of new doors at rear elevation ground floor level
RES Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1172 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: Garages & Lock Ups Adjacent Connaught Lodge Connaught Road N4
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 4 (Remediation Strategy) attached to planning permission
HGY/2014/3508
Application No: HGY/2017/1679 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: 180 Stroud Green Road N4 3RS
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (refuse and waste storage and recycling facilities) attached to
planning permission HGY/2014/1120
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 20
WARD: Tottenham Green
ADV Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1220 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
Location: Tesco Supermarket 230 High Road N15 4AJ
Proposal: Re-positioning of existing 'Tesco' sign on building gable
Application No: HGY/2017/1765 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: ~ 28/06/2017
Location: Unit 8 Tottenham Hale Retail Park Broad Lane N154QD
Proposal: Display of 1 no. high level internally illuminated sign to front elevation, 2 no. vinyl signs to totem poles & 1
no. non illuminated sign to security office.
CLDE  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1226 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: REF Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Location: 232 West Green Road N15 5AP
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness: existing use of 5 flats
CLUP  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1714 Officer: Marco Zanelli
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Location: 67 Greenfield Road N15 5ER
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of an L-shaped rear dormer and insertion of 2 x rooflights to front
roof-slope.

FUL Applications Decided: 9



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 241
Page 41 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/0887 Officer: Samuel Uff

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017

3 Summerhill Road N15 4HF

Conversion of existing dwelling into a 3 x self contained flats (1 x 3 bed, 1 x 2 bed, 1 x studio flat) and
associated works to the front driveway.

HGY/2017/1218 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

Ground Floor Flat 11 Grove Park Road N15 4SW

Erection of single storey rear extension following demolition of existing rear extension and existing
out-building. Replacement of windows to double glazing.

HGY/2017/1221 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017

Tesco Supermarket 230 High Road N15 4AJ

Installation of 4no. condenser units on external raised platform within service yard of Tesco store

HGY/2017/1227 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017

261A High Road N154RR

Retrospective application for placement of 6 units of tables and chairs outside premises

HGY/2017/1253 Officer: Samuel Uff

REF Decision Date: 19/06/2017

Shop 72 West Green Road N15 5NS

Change of use from retail (A1) to Adult Gaming Centre (Sui Generis) and internal alterations

HGY/2017/1435 Officer: Emma McCready

REF Decision Date: 14/06/2017

Flats 1 and 2 21 Harold Road N154PL

Construction of part first floor rear extension, hip to gable roof extension with rear dormer and single storey
rear extension

HGY/2017/1444 Officer: Emma McCready

REF Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Unit 3 Brunswick Square N17 8ES

Change of Use from B1 to C3 and Conversion of First Floor into 2 Self Contained Units.

HGY/2017/1447 Officer: Emma McCready

GTD Decision Date: 27/06/2017
129 West Green Road N15 5DE

Installation of non-retractable canopy to the frontage of car mechanic garage.

HGY/2017/1590 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017

113 Beaconsfield Road N15 4SH

Erection of a single storey side/rear extension



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 242

Page 42 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

NON Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1883 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: Kerry 4 Clyde Circus N154LF
Proposal: Non-material amendment to application reference HGY/2017/0147 comprising of a change to the roof
design from a pitched roof to a flat roof with a lantern rooflight.
PNE Applications Decided: 2
Application No: HGY/2017/1062 Officer: Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Location: 13 Colless Road N154NR
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for

which the maximum height would be 2.982m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.747m

Application No: HGY/2017/1635 Officer: Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Location: 16 Elmar Road N155DJ
Proposal: The erection of single story rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original house
by a maximum of 4.00m, and for which the maximum height would be 2.815m, and for which the heights of
the eaves would not be more than 2.615m
RES Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/0966 Officer:  Christopher Smith
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017
Location: Apex House 820 Seven Sisters Road N15 5PQ
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 11 (c) (Remediation Method Statement) attached to planning
permission HGY/2015/2915
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 17

WARD: Tottenham Hale

ADV Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1093 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
Location: 514 High Road N17 9SX
Proposal: Display of 1 x externally illuminated fascia sign and 1 x projecting sign
CLUP  Applications Decided: 3
Application No: HGY/2017/1659 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 34 Shelbourne Road N17 9YH
Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed rear dormer and rooflights to facilitate a loft conversion

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1896 Officer: Marco Zanelli

PERM DEV Decision Date: 30/06/2017

87 Thackeray Avenue N17 9DU

Certificate of lawfulness for formation of dormer in rear roof slope and installation of two roof lights in front
roof slope.



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 243
Page 43 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No: HGY/2017/1954 Officer: Marco Zanelli
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 07/07/2017
Location: 7 Ladysmith Road N17 9AN
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for formation of dormer in rear roof slope and installation of two roof lights in front
roof slope.
FUL Applications Decided: 5
Application No: HGY/2017/1092 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 09/06/2017
Location: 514 High Road N17 9SX
Proposal: Installation of new shop front to existing retail unit and installation of 6 no. external air conditioning units to

rear of store

HGY/2017/1247 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

REF Decision Date: 08/06/2017

88 Scotland Green N17 9TU

Part single, part 2-storey Side Extension and single storey Side Infill and Rear Extension to dwelling
house.(Amendment to Previously Approved Householder Application with Ref.: HGY/2016/3718 - rear
ground floor only)

HGY/2017/1387 Laina Levassor

Officer:

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017

41-48 Bream Close N17 9DF

Replacement of existing single glazed timber windows with uPVC like for like double glazed windows to
match the existing

HGY/2017/1398 Laina Levassor

Officer:
GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017
35-40 Bream Close N17 9DF

Replacement of existing single glazed timber windows with uPVC like for like double glazed windows to
match the existing

Application No: HGY/2017/1696 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 66 Scotland Green N17 9TU
Proposal: Single storey rear and side extension for a dwelling house with new porch at front entrance.
LcD Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1515 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017
Location: 1-80 Tamar Way N17
Proposal: Replacement of timber framed windows and doors with PVCu framed windows and doors
NON Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1816 Officer: Robbie McNaugher
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: Northumberland Park Railway Station Park Lane N17



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 244

Page 44 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Proposal: Non material amendment to the wording of condition 6 (Landscape Design) attached to deemed planning
permission HGY/2017/0998 approved under the transport and works act 1992 to give Network Rail
statutory authority to construct and maintain a pedestrian footbridge over the West Anglia Main Line
railway lines in the vicinity of Northumberland Park station,, to close the existing Northumberland Park
level crossing and to stop up the public right of way over an existing stepped footbridge adjacent to the
level crossing.

PND Applications Decided: 1

Application No: HGY/2017/1754 Officer:  Gareth Prosser

Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 07/07/2017

Location: Bus Garage and Depot Marsh Lane N17 OUX

Proposal: Prior notification: demolition

PNE Applications Decided: 1

Application No: HGY/2017/1334 Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 14/06/2017

Location: 66 Scotland Green N17 9TU

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 2.95m and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.95m

RES Applications Decided: 7

App“cation No: HGY/2017/1068 Officer: Valerie Okelyl

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 22/06/2017

Location: 2 Chesnut Road N17 9EN

Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (materials) attached to planning permission HGY/2013/0155

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1069 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

GTD Decision Date: 23/06/2017

2 Chesnut Road N17 9EN

Approval of details pursuant to condition 5 (provision of refuse and waste storage and recycling facilities)
attached to planning permission HGY/2013/0155

HGY/2017/1070 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

GTD Decision Date: 15/06/2017

2 Chesnut Road N17 9EN

Approval of details pursuant to condition 7 (Construction Management Plan) attached to planning
permission HGY/2013/0155

HGY/2017/1072 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi

GTD Decision Date: 21/06/2017
2 Chesnut Road N17 9EN

Approval of details (partial discharge) pursuant to condition 8 (Control of Construction Dust) attached to
planning permission HGY/2013/0155.

HGY/2017/1719 Officer: Robbie McNaugher

GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Hale Wharf Ferry Lane N17 ONF

Approval of details pursuant to condition A2 (Phase plan) attached to planning permission HGY/2016/1719



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 245

Page 45 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1723 Officer: Robbie McNaugher

GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Hale Wharf Ferry Lane N17 9NF

Approval of details pursuant to condition A40 (Written scheme of archaeological work) attached to planning
permission HGY/2016/1719

Application No: HGY/2017/1898 Officer:  Valerie Okeiyi
Decision: GTD Decision Date:  30/06/2017
Location: 2 Chesnut Road N17 9EN
Proposal: Approval of details pursuant to condition 8 (Control of Construction Dust) attached to planning permission
HGY/2013/0155 (discharging remainder of condition partially discharged under reference HGY/2017/1072)
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 20

WARD: West Green

CLUP  Applications Decided: 3

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

HGY/2017/1546 Officer:  Mercy Oruwari

PERM REQ Decision Date: 29/06/2017

53 Waldeck Road N15 3EL

Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of a rear dormer and roof extension including the insertion of
rooflights on the front elevation proposed use.

Application No: HGY/2017/1774 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 27/06/2017
Location: 234A Langham Road N15 3NB
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness: proposed rear dormer with roof extension with two front facing rooflights
Application No: HGY/2017/1776 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 27/06/2017
Location: 234 Langham Road N15 3NB
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness: proposed use for a rear dormer window

FUL Applications Decided: 7
Application No: HGY/2017/1309 Officer: Roland Sheldon
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017
Location: 48 Westbury Avenue N22 6RS
Proposal: Replace existing single glazed timber windows with timber like for like double glazed windows to match the

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:

Location:

existing

HGY/2017/1396 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

GTD Decision Date: 16/06/2017

Second Floor Flat C 191 Carlingford Road N15 3ET

Loft conversion to second floor flat with associated rear dormer extension and 2no roof lights to front roof
slope

HGY/2017/1402 Officer: Laina Levassor

61D Decision Date: 06/06/2017

174 Westbury Avenue N22 6RU



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Dagp 246

Page 46 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Replacement of existing timber single glazed windows with like for like timber double glazed windows at
the front of the property . Replacement of existing timber single glazed casement windows with timber
double glazed sliding sash windows at the rear of the property.

HGY/2017/1408 Officer:  Laina Levassor

GTD Decision Date: 06/06/2017

77 Belmont Road N17 6AT

Replacement of existing single glazed timber windows with timber like for like double glazed windows to
match existing

HGY/2017/1463 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

REF Decision Date: 20/06/2017
Surgery 326 Philip Lane N15 4AB

Conversion of GP surgery into 1no 3-bed and 1no 2-bed self contained flats with independent entrances

Application No: HGY/2017/1465 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017

Location: 3 Graham Road N15 3NH

Proposal: Single storey side/ rear extension.

Application No: HGY/2017/1632 Officer: Emma McCready

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 04/07/2017

Location: 162 Carlingford Road N15 3EU

Proposal: Conversion of six bedroom single family house to 2x three bed self contained family units. Ground floor
single storey side to rear extension

PNE Applications Decided: 2

Application No: HGY/2017/1260 Officer:  Laina Levassor

Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 09/06/2017

Location: 16 Sandringham Road N22 6RB

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for

which the maximum height would be 3.386m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m

Application No: HGY/2017/1570 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN REFUSED Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Location: 271 Lordship Lane N17 6AA
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m
TEL Applications Decided: 3
Application No: HGY/2017/1717 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: ~ 14/06/2017
Location: Kenley 155 Gloucester Road N17 6LS
Proposal: Notification under the Electronic Communications Code Regulations 2003 to utilise permitted development

Application No:
Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

rights for proposed 3no. antenna to be mounted on existing support poles, and associated development
HGY/2017/1945 Officer: Emma McCready

REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Adj Tennessee Chicken 278 Langham Road N15 3NP

Prior notification: Development by telecoms operators



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 247
Page 47 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1946 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: O/s Gonul Diner 1 Turnpike Parade Green Lanes N15 3LA
Proposal: Prior naotification: Development by telecoms operators
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 15
WARD: White Hart Lane
CLUP  Applications Decided: 1
Application No: HGY/2017/1834 Officer:  Jon Skapoullis
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 28/06/2017
Location: 47 Oak Avenue N17 8JJ
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed single storey rear extension.
FUL Applications Decided: 4
Application No: HGY/2017/1299 Officer:  Laurence Ackrill
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/06/2017
Location: 106 Risley Avenue N17 7ES
Proposal: Construction of a single storey side extension to an existing single storey rear extension.
Application No: HGY/2017/1374 Officer: Duncan McKane
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: 102 Norfolk Avenue N13 6AJ
Proposal: Erection of single storey outbuilding in rear garden
Application No: HGY/2017/1446 Officer: Emma McCready
Decision: GTD Decision Date: ~ 22/06/2017
Location: 311 The Roundway N17 7AB
Proposal: Knock down rebuild of existing shop and car wash. 2No new jet wash bays are to be provided, bin store,

permanent parking to be provided, larger shop to be built.

Application No: HGY/2017/1672 Officer:  Gareth Prosser

Decision: GTD Decision Date: 07/07/2017

Location: 83 Norfolk Avenue N13 6AL

Proposal: The proposal involves to demolish the disperse rear extension that surrounds the main building to create a
compact and clear 2 storey side extension along matching the neighbor, with a 1 storey 4 meter rear
extension from the original rear wall. The proposal also includes a loft conversion.

PNE Applications Decided: 2

Application No: HGY/2017/1333 Officer: Laina Levassor

Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 14/06/2017

Location: 55 Courtman Road N17 7HT

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for

which the maximum height would be 3.2m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m



London Borough of Haringey
List of applications decided under delegated powers between

Page 248
Page 48 of 50
05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1427 Officer:  Laina Levassor
Decision: PN NOT REQ Decision Date: 26/06/2017
Location: 44 Devonshire Hill Lane N17 7NG
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension which extends beyond the rear wall of the original house by 6m, for
which the maximum height would be 3.3m and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m
Total Applications Decided for Ward: 7

WARD: Woodside

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

Application No:

Decision:
Location:

Proposal:

CLUP  Applications Decided: 3
Application No: HGY/2017/1605 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 06/06/2017
Location: 20 Canning Crescent N22 5SR
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the erection of a single storey rear extension.
Application No: HGY/2017/1611 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 19/06/2017
Location: 17 Stirling Road N22 5BL
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the erection of a single storey rear extension and erection of a rear dormer

including insertion of 3 x rooflights to the front elevation and 1 x rooflight to the rear elevation.
Application No: HGY/2017/1824 Officer: Marco Zanelli
Decision: PERM DEV Decision Date: 22/06/2017
Location: 65 Arcadian Gardens N22 5AG
Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness for the formation of a L-shaped rear dormer and insertion of 2 x rooflights to front
roof-slope.

FUL Applications Decided: 6
Application No: HGY/2017/1045 Officer: Samuel Uff
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 06/07/2017
Location: 678 Lordship Lane N22 5JN
Proposal: Conversion of house into 2 x 3 bed self contained flats, in conjunction with single storey rear extension,

first floor rear patio doors and Juliet balcony

HGY/2017/1313 Officer: Kwaku Bossman-Gyamera

61D Decision Date: 06/06/2017
622 Lordship Lane N22 5JH

Change of use from retail/storage floor area including alterations to provide a self-contained flat at ground
floor level fronting Acacia Road.

HGY/2017/1352 Officer: Sarah Madondo

GTD Decision Date: 07/06/2017
12 Croxford Gardens N22 5QU

Erection ground and first floor side extension

HGY/2017/1433 Officer: Sarah Madondo

GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017

First Floor Flat 66 Cranbrook Park N22 5NA

Erection of rear dormer with insertion of 2 x roof lights to front elevation and 1 x skylight to the rear.



Dagp 249

London Borough of Haringey Page 49 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017
App”cation No: HGY/2017/1531 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 29/06/2017
Location: 7 Sandford Avenue N22 5EJ
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension
App”cation No: HGY/2017/1607 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: GTD Decision Date: 30/06/2017
Location: 43 Sylvan Avenue N22 5JA
Proposal: Erection of a single storey timber building to be used as a garden room.

TEL Applications Decided: 2
App”cation No: HGY/2017/1597 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: 212 High Road N22 8HH
Proposal: Prior notification for the installation of a solar powered telephone kiosk (with wheelchair access)
App”cation No: HGY/2017/1604 Officer: Sarah Madondo
Decision: REF Decision Date: 05/07/2017
Location: 742-744 Lordship Lane N22 5JP
Proposal: Prior notification for the installation of a solar powered telephone kiosk (with wheelchair access)

Total Applications Decided for Ward: 11

WARD: Not Applicable - Outside Borough

OBS Applications Decided: 5

Application No: HGY/2017/1287 Officer: Matthew Gunning

Decision: RNO Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Location: LinkUK Seven Sisters Road N4 2PG

Proposal: Free standing internet/wifi/ telephone structure known as a 'Link unit', with internally illuminated
advertisement screens to two sides (Observations to L.B. Hackney - their application number 2017/1332)

Application No: HGY/2017/1591 Officer: Matthew Gunning

Decision: RNO Decision Date: 06/06/2017

Location: 109 Olinda Road N16 6TS

Proposal: Retrospective permission for retention of full-width dormer extension to main rear roof, single-storey roof

erection above existing two-storey rear addition (outrigger) and installation of two rooflights to main front
roof (Observations to London Borough of Hackney - their reference 2016/1772)

Application No: HGY/2017/1704 Officer: Matthew Gunning

Decision: RNO Decision Date: 21/06/2017
Location: 148 Olinda Road N16 6TP

Proposal: Erection of part single-storey, part two-storey rear and side wraparound extensions at ground and first floor

levels, with pitched roof form to side and flat roof form to rear (Observations to L.B. Hackney - their
planning reference 2017/1718)



Dagp 250

London Borough of Haringey Page 50 of 50
List of applications decided under delegated powers between 05/06/2017 and 07/07/2017

Application No: HGY/2017/1705 Officer: Matthew Gunning

Decision: RNO Decision Date: ~ 26/06/2017

Location: Whitehall Park School Ashmount Road N19 3BH

Proposal: Application under Section 73 (minor material amendment) of the Town and Country Planning Act (1990) to

amend condition 2 (approved drawings and documents) of permission ref: P2015/1089/ FUL granted on
17/12/2015 for the demolition of the existing former Ashmount Primary School building and erection of a
new 3 storey, flat roofed school building to accommodate the "Whitehall Park School", including ancillary
play space. The proposed minor material amendments are: 1) A raised ground level within the site on the
Hornsey Lane side; 2) New boundary treatment to Hornsey Lane elevation due to internal ground level
change; 3) amended balustrade to playspace on roof play area ("lower play area"); and 4) infilling of two
openings on Ashmount Road side. (Observation to London Borough of Islington - their reference
P2017/2091/S73)

Application No: HGY/2017/1706 Officer: Matthew Gunning

Decision: RNO Decision Date: 15/06/2017

Location: 109 Moundfield Road N16 6TD

Proposal: Erection of two-storey side extension at ground and first floor levels with pitched roof profile above to adjoin
existing main roof, and incorporating rear dormer extension to new pitched roof; erection of dormer
extension to existing main roof profile; installation of two rooflights to front roof slope (Observations to L.B.
Hackney: their reference 2017/1218)

Total Applications Decided for Ward: 5

Total Number of Applications Decided: 367




	Agenda
	6 MINUTES
	Minutes

	8 Cannon Factory and Ashley House
	Appendix 4 Plans and Images (003)

	10 Hornsey Town Hall The Broadway N8 9JJ
	HTH pre app appx 1

	11 Land at Bernard Works, Bernard Road, Herbert Road and Norman Road Bernard Road N15 4NX
	12 UPDATE ON MAJOR PROPOSALS
	Major Sites List to committee - 18 July2017

	13 APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

